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Consolidated Financial Statements - Overview

Management Report on the Group in
the Financial Year 2015*

OVERVIEW

'n a challenging market environment with widespread dechnes in pnices for raw materrals and agricuttural produce,
the BayWa Group was able to develop successfully in the reporting year 2015 and improve its operating result. The
key factor in this trend was the systematic internationahsation of business activiies For instance, BayWa opened
new agnicultural trade offices in Ukraine, Russia and Argentina in 2015 and acquired the Bnitish grain trader Wessex |
Grain Ltd Wessex Grain Ltd , based in Somerset, operates in the collection business in south and south-west
England BayWa also acquired the Romanian agricultural trader Patberg International S R L based in Bucharest,
which was renamed BayWa Agri Romania Sl In the Agnicultural Equipment business unit, BayWa established
Barloworld Limited, Johannesburg, a joint venture for agricultural equipment sales in sub-Saharan Africa in which
BayWa and Barloworld each hold a 50% share In the area of renewable energies, the Munich-based trade and
services group acquired project nghts for several solar parks with a total output of 75 megawatts {MW) in North and
South America, in addtion, new branch openings in Japan and Singapore marked the first step into the Scuth-East
Asian market.

Revenues in the Agnculture Segment increased shightly in the financial year 2015 by 0 5% to €10,154 7 million
This was due to another significant nise in trading volume by 12 6 percent to approximately 30 2 million tonnes in
the Agnicultural Trade business unit and further sales growth in the Fruit business unit The sharp decrease in prices
foragncultural produce had an offsetting effect, as a result, revenues in the Agncultural Trade business increased
disproportionately to sales volume by only 1 1% to €8,321 4 mullion The development of agricuftural produce
prices was reflected in a fall in farmers' investment propensity, resulting in revenues in the Agnicultural Equipment !
business unit falling by 3 8% year on year to €1,260 7 mition The new Digital Farming business unit, which was '
established in the fourth quarter, recorded revenues of €5 2 millon Revenues in the fruit business rose by 0 6% to

€567 4 million Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) in the Agnculture Segment felt by €20 6 million year on year

toc €87 2 million This was primanly due to the lack of summer ram in Germany and resulted in a decline in the use of

crop protection products, much lower corn collection volumes and a lack of grain drying mcome In addition, low

water surcharges for freight led to a nse in logistics costs There was also a moderate decline in EBIT in the

Agricuitural Equipment business unit on account of a drop in new machinery business Start-up costs were incurred

for the expansion of the Digital Farming business unit, which were not compensated by any income in the reporting

year By contrast, the Fruit business unit performed well, boosting its EBIT by 31 2% to a record-breaking

€27 0 mithon

For the Energy Segment, 2015 was a record-breaking year BayWa re renewable energy GmbH increased its
revenues by 29 5% to €1,017 8 million thanks to strong project management business and a high number of
systems sold Among the sales was the “Beethoven” project in South Dakota, USA, BayWar e 's largest wind farm to
date with total cutput of 80 MW EBIT in the Renewable Energies business sector rose by €25 3 millhion to a record-
breaking €61 8 milicn Conventional energies revenues dechned by 16 9% to €2,246 4 milhion This dechine was
solely due to the sharp fall in the price of crude ol in 2015, which pushed down prices for heating ail and fuels By
contrast, EBIT almost tripled due to ligher margins and sales figures, nsing by €9 7 miilion to €15 4 milhon Total
revenues in the Energy Segment dechned by 6 4% to €3,264 2 million, while this segment’s EBIT improved
substantially by 82 6% to €77 2 million

* 2014 figures adjusted, please refer to the “Earnings, Financial Position and Assets of the BayWa Group” on
page 17 of the Management Report on the Group with regard to the adjustments
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Business activities in the building matenals industry were hampered by unfavourable weather condihons in the first
few months of 2015, with construction business only really gaining momentum in the reporting year after Easter

At the same time, a sharp fall in demand on European buillding matenals markets outside of Germany led to foreign
producers increasing ther market presence in Germany This put pressure on prices for buiiding and insulatign
materials in the reporting year Even though the building materials trade was able to increase sales overall, the
Building Matenials Segment dechned in the financial year 2015 by €28 4 million, or 1 9%, to €1,496 4 million (2014
€1,524 8 milhon} Thanks to the continued optimisation of the network of locations and a strong performance in the
fourth quarter, EBIT came in at €27 4 million and almost matched the previous year's figure of €28 0 million

In total, the BayWa Group generated revenues of €14,928 1 million in‘the reporting year This equatestoa 1 8%
year-on-year decline, which was primanly due to the fall in prices for fossil energy carriers The BayWa Group's
operating result improved by 4 0% to €158 1 million This was due to the excellent performance in the Energy
Segment, particularly in the area of renewable energies Consolidated net income decreased by 23 7% to

€61 6 miltion, due to the fact that tax income of €0 3 miflion in the previous year turned into income tax expenses of
€26 5 million in the financial year 2015 Earnings per share attributable to the shareholders of BayWa AG amounted
to €1 39 (2014 €1 78) The BayWa Group holds promising posttions in global growth markets The continued
strategy of internationahsation is carving out new earmings potential, which 1s reflected in the anticipated nise in EBIT
in this financial year as stated in the Qutlook section Against this backdrop, the Board of Management and
Supervisory Board will put forward a proposal to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to raise the dividend
from €0 80 per share to €0 85 per share

2 BayWa AG Consolidated Financial Statements 2015




Consolidated Finanaal Statements - Background to the Group

BACKGROUND TO THE GROUP

BayWa Group Business Model

Group structure and business activities

The BayWa Group

Revenues Employees
2ms (in € million) {annuat average)
Agnculture 10,1547 10,094
Energy 32642 1,825
Bullding Matenals 1,496 4 4,093
Cther Actraities 128 597
Total 14,9281 16,809

BayWa AG was established in 1823 and has its principal place of business tn Munich Through consistent growth
and the centinual expansion of its scope of senvices, BayWa has grown from its humble beginnings in agricultural
cooperative trading into one of the world's leading trade, services and logistics compamies !ts business focus 1s on
Europe, but BayWa has alsc established an internaticnal trade and procurement netwerk by maintaining important
actwvities in the USA and New Zealand and business relations from Asia to South America, The BayWa Group's
business actvities are dvided into three segments - Agricuiture, Energy and Building Matenals - and encompass
wholesale, retail, logistics, as well as extensive supporting services and consultancy The BayWa Group has
registered places of business in 34 countries, erther through itself or through Group holdings

Digitahisation, the “Internet of things" and global electronic networking are gradually penetrating all facets of the
economy and our lives As this trend takes hold, an increasing number of analogue business models are being
systematically restructured as omnichannel models The keys to success are the scalability of the business model,
the speed of implementation (in other words the duration of the period from product development to marketable
status) and the corporate culture Launching an innovative business as a separate unit takes a tremendous amount
of wilingness What is more, disproportronately high costs and start-up losses must also be planned for BayWa
dentified this trend at an early stage and integrated it into its business medel and entrepreneunial activities This s
leading to more efficient business processes, a broader range of products and services and the development of new
customer groups The focus is always on improving the benefit for the customer Current exampies are the
establishment of the new Digital Farming business unit and the BEEGY GmbH joint venture in the Renewable
Energies business sector, which pools energy production, services and IT into complete solutions and services for
private customers, the trade sector, commerce and industry

BayWa AG heads up business operations in three segments, both directly and through its subsidiaries, which are
included in the group of consolidated companies. Besides the parent company BayWa AG, the BayWa Group
comprises 294 fully consolidated compames Furthermore, 32 compames were included at equity in the financial
statements of BayWa

Agriculture Segment

The Agriculture Segment tradihionally accounts for the largest share of revenues at the BayWa Group, in 2015, it
accounted for roughly 68% of revenues In the past, this segment had been divided into three business units ~
Agnicuitural Trade, Fruit and Agricultural Equipment - covering the full range of agricultural products and services
However, given the increasing scale of digrtalisation in the agncuttural industry, BayWa has pooled its related
activities i an independent Smart Farming busmess unit since the fourth quarter of 2015

The Agncutture Segment is strongly influenced by natural phenomena, such as the weather and the effect these
phenomena have on harvests These factors have a direct impact on the offering and pricing in the markets for

agricuitural commodities and produce Globalisahon means that international developments — such as record or
failed harvests tn other parts of the world or changes in exchange rates and transport prices - increasingly affect
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price development in regional markets The extent to which the prices of indwidual agricultural commodities
influence one another has increased significantly in recent years and prices have become more volatile Supply and
demand for operating resources, or ferthser and crop protection product pnces, for example, are also increasingly
influenced by global and reguiatory factors What's more, changes in the legal framewcrk conditions, especially in
the field of renewable pnimary products and renewable energies, can tngger considerable adaptve reactions in the
markets trading agricuftural products Finally, regulations, for instance those ssued by the EU, exerta major
influence on pricing and structures in a number of relevant markets.

Agrnicultural Trade

BayWa 1s the leading Eurcpean company in agnicuitural trade with a global reach BayWa's Agricultural Trade
business unit supplies farmers with operating rescurces such as seed, fertilisers, crop protection and foodstuff
throughout the entire agncultural year and collects, stores and sells harvested produce For its harvesting activities,
BayWa maintains a dense network of high-performance locations in its core regions with significant transport,
processing and storage capacities that ensure seamless goods delivery, quality assurance, processing, correct
storage and handling of agricultural products When it comes to the procurement and marketing of produce, BayWa
possesses a global network compnsing both inland and deep water ports BayWa sells products to local, regional
and national companies in the foodstuff, whalesale and retail Industnes through its in-house trade departments

In the case of grain and oilseed, BayWa acts as a supply chain manager and covers the entire value chain from
procurement and legistics to sales and Is continuing to expand its international grain trading actvities A global
trading and marketing platformn has been set up in the shape of BayWa Marketing & Trading International B v
(BMTI) In Rotterdam Furthermore, further internatonalisation was pursued in agnicultural trade business in the
financial year 2015 with the estabhishment of new trade offices in Ukraine, Russia and Argentina and the acquisition
of gran trader Wessex Grain Lid in Great Britain Wessex Grain Ltd , based in Somerset, operates in the collection
business in south and south-west England This regton 1s an important procurement market for the Benelux, Spain
and lreland export markets BayWa also acquired Romanian agricultural trader Patberg International SR L based in
Bucharest, which was renamed BayWa Agn Romania S r! The move secures the BayWa Group access to this key
procurement market for agricultural produce in Romania. In international terms, BayWa 1s one of the largest
agncultural traders in the world, with access to supplies in both the northern and southern hemispheres The
BayWa Group supplies customers all aver the world, from Great Britan and ireland and the Netherlands and
Belgium to Eastern Europe, the Baltic states and the MENA region (Middle East and North Africa)

In its traditional core reqions, BayWa's agnbusiness 1s embedded in the agncultural cooperatives trading structure
In Germany, this business 1s focused on a vanety of regions on account of historical structures BayWa has over
237 sites, which form part of an extensive and dense network in its regronal markets, particularly in Bavarna, Baden-
Wurttemberg, Lower Saxony, Mecklenburg-Vorpommern, Thuringia, Saxony and southern Brandenburg By
expanding its digital activiies, BayWa is also acquiring new customers beyond these regions Through its Austnan
subsidiary RWA Rarffeisen Ware Austna AG, BayWa maintains close business relations across the whole of Austna
with 472 cooperative warehouses Numerous privately owned medium-sized trading enterprises, mainly operating
locally, make up the competitive environment for agncultural products In contrast, there are a number of whole—
salers operating nationwide that offer equipment and resources All in all, BayWa has estabhished a leading market
position for itself in the agncultural trade In Germany and Austria.

Fruit

In Germany, BayWa's Fruit business unit i1s a leading supplier of dessert fruit to the foad retail industry, the largest
single seller of dessert pome fruit and the largest supplier of organic pome fruit. Furthermore, BayWa also collects,
stores, sorts, packages and trades frut for customers mn Germany and abroad as a marketer under contract at its

7T sites in the Lake Constance, Neckar and Rhineland-Palatinate regions BayWa has reorganised its Fruit business
unit's national business, which was transferred to the newly founded subsihary BayWa Obst GmbH & Co KG with
effect from 1 January 2015 In doing so, BayWa focused its frust business on the increasing specialisation in the
national and international market. This allowed the processes and structures in the frut business to be optimised,
meaning that national fruit business can benefit from greater onentation towards the international flow of goods and
the development of growth markets BayWa has been operating in international fruit business since 2012 through
its subsidiary T&G Global Limited (T&G) T&G 1s the leading fruit trader in New Zealand and also supplies parts of
Asia and the South American market. Following T&G's acquisition of the third-largest apple supplier in New
Zealand, Apollo Apples Limited, in the financial year 2014, the BayWa Group has increased its share in New
Zealand apple exports to approximately 35% In the financtal year 2015, T&G acquired two New Zealand tomato
growers, Great Lake Tomatoes Limited, Auckland, and Rianto Limited, Auckland, and entered into a joint venture
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with asparagus trader and exporter M+G Vizzarn (n Australia Through the joint venture T&G Vizzarn Farms Pty Ltd,
T&G has become a leading asparagus trader in the southern hemisphere and improved its position in the Austrahian
food retal sector and in relation to its customers i South East Asia What's more, BayWa 1s developmg and
cultivating new vaneties of table grapes in Peru for the Asian market

Through the reciprocal marketing of dessert frut and pome fruit between the narthern and southern hemispheres,
BayWa 1s in the position to provide partners in the retaul industry with fresh produce all year round, expand its
product range and seize sales opportunities for German fruit on the internatronal growth markets The sales
structures of T&G and 1ts affihates offer the potential to open up additional sales markets, particularly in Asia. For
instance, T&G opened a branch in Shanghar in auturnn 2015 to provide its Chunese contacts with optimum support

Agncultural Equipment

The Agncuftural Equipment business unit offers a full line of machinery, equipment and facities for all areas of
agnicufture The most important customer groups include those in agriculture and forestry, local government, and
industry Aside from tractors and combine harvesters, the range of machinery aiso includes versatile municipal
vehicles, road-sweeping vehicles, mobile facilities for wood shredding and forklift trucks for municipal services and
commercial operations The range on offer for forestry extends from large machinery and equipment such as
forestry tractors, wood splitting and chipping machinery, forest milling cutters and mulchers, cable winches, road
and path construction machinery right through to small appliances such as chainsaws and brush cutters and the
necessary protective clothing In addrion, an extensive network of workshops and mobile service vehicles provide
maintenance and repair services for machinery and equipment

For products made by AGCO and CLAAS, BayWa s the world's largest sales partner, and it maintans a closely
linked network of in-house workshops in southern and eastern Germany that are tallored to manufacturer brands
The range of workshop services i1s also complemented by mobile service vehicles to provide maintenance and
repair services, supply replacement parts and trade in used machinery BayWa also sells used machinery via an
onbine platform Through Agnmec Group BV, a jomnt venture founded between Agrifirm Group BV and BayWa, the
company has been represented in the sale and servicing of agricultural machinery in the Netherlands since 2014 In
2015, BayWa established Barloworld Limited, Johannesburg, the joint venture BHBW Limited for agricultural
equipment sales in sub-Saharan Africa in which BayWa and Barloworld each hold a 50% share The joint venture
holds licences to distnbute AGCO brands Massey Ferguson and Challenger The joint venture's first sales trading
company began operations on 1 November 2015 in the Zambian capital Lusaka. The medium-term plan 1s to
expand the joint venture's presence in Zambia and development more markets in sub-Saharan Africa. This marks
the systematic continuation of the business unit's strategy of internationahisation to secure long-term growth
opportunhes

Digrtal Farming

Digitalisation is changing agriculture as we know it Nowadays, potential for optimisation at agricultural operations
1s more about optimising whoie processes instead of implementing indmidual measures Site-specific farm
managemerit allows costs for operating resources to be reduced significantly Machinery and system maintenance
costs can also be reduced through the rapid collection, assessment and transmisston of technical data, By
establishing a brand-new business unit for digital farming, BayWa is piotting a course into the digital future The
Digrtal Farming business unit also compnises PC-Agrar Informations- und Beratungsdienst GmbH, acquired by
BayWa effective as at 1 Apnl 2015, alongside the BayWa Group's existing e-commerce actvities, whuch are already
pooled in the new business unit. With its “Agrar-Office” software, PC-Agrar GmbH offers farmers a future-criented,
cross-manufacturer digital information platform Maoving forward, the aim is to develop solutions that allow farmers
to seize the opportunities of smart farming across all types of machinery and operating resources and irrespective
of the size of the farm BayWa offers a range of modular tools and solutions for this purpose and aims to take cn a
leading role in the market in this area. PC-Agrar's sales subsidiary, LAND-DATA Eurosoft — renamed FarmFacts
GmbH & Co KG in Novernber 2015 — was awarded a gold medal at the Agritechnica trade fair in autumn 2015
Together with a number of partners, FarmFacts has development a brand-new integrated solution for erganic and
mineral fertihsation known as “Connected Nutnent Management” LAND-DATA Eurcsoft was also awarded a siver
medal for its Irrigation control software “ICA-Wireless” The next step 1s farm management, in other words the
networking of entire areas of farms and processes with upstream and downstream stages BayWa already offers an
overall concept for medium-sized and small farms in the shape of the new “Next Farming” product generation
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Energy Segmeant

In the financiaf year 2015, the Energy Segment accounted for around 22% of consolidated revenues The
segment's business actvities are dvided into the conventional energy business and the Renewable Energies
business sector, which i1s housed in BayWar e renewable energy GmbH

Conventional Energy

In its conventional energy business, BayWa predominantly sells heating o, fuels, lubncants and wood pellets in
Bavaria, Baden-Wurttemberg, Hesse, Saxony and Austna. In the heating business, heating matenals are primarily
sold through in-house sales offices Dhesel and Otto fuels are sold through over 244 of the Group's fuel stations in
Germany |n addition, supplies are delivered to the fuel station chains operated by partner companies and
wholesalers In Austria, more fuef stations are managed by subsidiaries The Group company GENOL actsas a
wholesale fuel supplier to cooperative fuel stations BayWa sells lubnicants to commercial and industrial customers,
as well as to farmers and operators of combined heat and power plants BayWa is also one of the leading suppliers
of environmentally friendly, vegetable oil-based lubricants The subsidiary BayWa Energie Dienstleistungs GmbH
offers extensive and individual solutions for energy provision to residential properties, municipal and commercial
bulldings and the healthcare and industnal sectors

Besides the large mineral ol trading companies, the compettive environment 1s shaped mainly by medium-sized
fuel traders Having developed over time, there 1s now a close connection with agnbusiness, as farmers are among
the largest customer groups In the Energy Segment, conventional energy business i1s manly shaped by volatie
price trends in the crude ol markets The prices of fossi-based heating materials, fuels and lubnicants are also
subject to considerable fluctuations, which affect the demand for these products In addition, demand for heating ol
has been falling for years due to the increasingly widespread use of renewable energy sources and gas, as well as
the improvement in energy efficiency 1n builldings

BayWar e renewable energy

The Group pools its entire renewable energy value chatn in BayWar e renewable energy Activities are dvided into
four areas project development/realisation, services, photovoltaic frade and energy trade Project development/
realisation encompasses project planning and management and the construction of wind power, photovoltaic and
biomass plants through to the sale of fimished plants In February 2015, project licenses were acquired for the
construction of several solar parks with a total output of 75 megawatts (MW) in North and South America. In
addition, BayWa r e also acquired project icenses for 31 wind power projects at the end of 2015 with a total output
of some 375 MW spread across various sites in Germany but mawnly m North Rhine-Westphalia and Rhineland-
Palatinate Services compnse planning and technical services, the provision of operating resources and plant
operations and maintenance In this area, BayWa re acquired the service business for renewable energy plans of
Deutsche Immobilien Leasing GmbH in 2015 In addition, BayWarr e also trades in photovoltaic systems and
components and markets electricrty, gas and heat generated from renewable sources This business sector has
been internationally onented nght from day one, as BayWar e pursues a double diversification strategy in order

to reduce reliance on certain national markets and respective renewable energy sources BayWar e 1s now
represented in all major European markets, North America, Japan and Singapore a total of 16 countries

The market for renewable energies 1s a largely regulated market where energy 1s produced and fed into the gnid at
prices set by the government. Developments in the market are therefore largely determined by changes in the
structure and size of state subsidies BayWa's wind energy and solar actvities operate in Austria, Croatia, Denmark,
France, Germany, Great Britain, italy, Japan, Mexico, Poland, Romaria, Singapore, Sweden, Switzerland, Spain and
the USA. This ensures that BayWa s well diversified both in terms of its range of energy carners and its geographic
distnbution By consolidating various affiiated companies in the umbrella brand BayWar e renewable energy and
setting up a clear business structure in bath the areas of wind energy, solar and biomass as well as in the
Projects/Services and Trade functional urits, the foundations have been laid to eminate overlapping activities, take
advantage of synergtes and thus partcipate in the anticipated market growth Generally, nvestment incentives
through guaranteed feed-in tanffs or tax breaks affect demand in Germany, the structuring of subsidies in the
German Renewable Energy Sources Act (EEG) 1s a major factor influencing demand for wand energy, photovoltaic
and biomass plants, as the profitability of these piants 1s determined by the statutory feed-in tanffs Similar subsidy
mechanisms usually exist in foreign markets Furthermore, regulatory intervention in free trade also influences
prices for systems components Changes to relevant legislation can therefore have significant effects on
nvestments in renewable energy
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Building Matenals Segment

Approxamately 10% of consohdated revenues are generated in the Bullding Materials Segment. The segment
primarty comprises buillding matenals trading activities 1n Germany and Austna. In addition, BayWa supplies a
number of franchise partners in the building matertals and DIY and garden centres business in Austria and ltaly
through its Austnan subsidiary AFS Franchise-Systeme GmbH With a total of 145 locations, the BayWa Group is
Germany's number two in the building matenals trade and ranks among the leading suppliers in Austnia with

31 sites The number of franchise locations 1s currently 1,320

In the bulding materals trade, BayWa mainly caters to the needs of small and medwm-sized companies,
tradesmen, commercial enterpnses and municipalihes Private building companies and house owners are also
important customers The key success factors in this business are physical proximity to the customer, the product
mix, advisory services and close relations with industnal customers BayWa takes these factors into account with a
targeted focus on its customer groups when it comes to sales and customer consulting services. Further focat
points include comfortable Iiving and energy efficiency BayWa offers its customers a wide range of emissions-
tested building matenials and soiutions for energy-efficient construction or renovation In the case of conventional
construction maternials, being close to the customer i1s a significant competitive advantage However, at the same
time, the cost of transporting heavy or bulky construction matenals with relatively low added value necessitates
excellent location structures and optimum logistics

The bullding matenals market 1s strongly fragmented both In Germany and in Austria. In Germany, there are around
760 comparues In total with some 2,250 sites specialised in the buillding materials trade The majonty of these are
small or medium-sized enterpnses, which often join forces in the form of procurement groups and similar
organisations

Changes in the economic and political environment in particular may have a positive or negative effect on the
Building Matenals Segment, especially in the case of subsidy programmes concerning energy-efficient renovation
and residential construction The development of the bulding matenals trade generally follows overall bullding
activity Crvil engineering and road construction depend greatly on public-sector spending In the area of private
construction, incentives such as government subsidies for renovation or refurtishment measures and favourable
Interest rates for financing play a major role in investment decisions In addition, manifold regulations influence
general nvestment propensity levels and the demand for certain products Construction laws and directives, such as
the German Energy Saving Ordinance (EnEV) or the introduction of energy certification for buildings, construction
permits, pubhc procurement law, as well as directives on fire and noise insulabon are of particular significance

Management, Monitoring and Compliance

BayWa 1s an Akbiengesellschaft (stock corporation) under German law with a dual management structure consisting
of a Board of Management and a Supervisory Board

As at 31 December 2015, the Board of Management consisted of five members Prof Klaus Josef Lutz (Chairman,
responsible for agricultural and fruit trading), Andreas Helber (responsible for finance and building materials),
Roland Schuler (responsible for operating resources trading and agncultural equipment/digital farming), Matthias
Taft (responsible for energy) and Reinhard Wolf (responsible for RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austria AG) The Board of
Management is solely responsible for managrng the company with the primary aim of increasing its value over the
long term

The BayWa AG Supervisory Board consists of 16 members It monitors and consults the Board of Management in
its management actvities and regularly discusses business development, planning, strategy and nisks together
with the Board of Management In accordance with the German Codetermination Act (MitbG), shareholder and
employee representatives also sit on the Supensisory Board of BayWa AG to ensure codetermination on the basis
of parity The Supervisory Board has formed six commuttees in order to boost efficiency

Cooperation between the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board and on corporate governance at
BayWa AG 1s detailed in the Supervisory Board report and the corporate governance declaration

The main task of the Corporate Compliance orgarmisational unit 1s to perform preventative duties Corporate
Compliance draws on training courses and an extensive range of consultancy and information services to prevent
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breaches of the law Its activities are focused on corruption prevention and antitrust law Comprehensive
frameworks have been developed and implemented across the company on these issues Furthermore, a Group-
wide code of conduct has been introduced, creating a uniform set of values which apply to the entire BayWa Group
Employees who wish to report potential breaches of compliance regulations are now able to register their
gnevances through an anonymous tip-off system in addition to existing possibilities, such as the ombudsman
Reported information 1s assessed and followed up in conjunction with Group Audit Corporate Complhance and the
Group Audit organisational unit werk together closely in internal investigations of an antitrust or cniminal nature
There 1s also an extensive range of compliance controls to review and guarantee adherence to compliance
pnnciples Corporate Comnpliance 1s managed by the Chief Comphance Officer, who reports dwectly to the Chief
Executive Officer Compliance Officers are also appointed in BayWa's business units, as well as at all significant
affilated companies They are avaulable to employees as additonal contact partners and act as conduits

The areas of foreign trade law, data protection, tax comphance, environmental law and data security are managed
by independent departments in the company

Corporate Goals and Strategy

As a partner to its customers, BayWa intends to ensure that the company is fit for the future and independent. Its
corporate governance is oriented over the long term and shaped by the company's responsibiiity towards
customers, employees, other stakeholders and the company as a whole The environment and the markets in which
BayWa operates are subject to constant changes In order to reinforce its positton and expand its presence by
carving out market opporturities, BayWa acts with entrepreneunal foresight while remaiming decisive, quick-
thinking and flexible BayWa achieves its growth targets through the organic development of existing activities,
through general development of new business areas in Germany and abroad and through acquisihions In addition,
BayWa joins forces with other companies to seize new business opportunities through partnerships and coopera-
tion The internationalisation of the company's business activities represents a central strategic thrust through
targeted acquisibons, the development of new business areas and organic growth in agncultural trade, fruit,
agncultural equipment and renewable energies, BayWa has succeeded in entering new corporate dimensions

over the past few years This means that the Group has taken a major step towards its aim of becoming Europe’s
leading agricultural trade, distribution and logistics provider with global reach In frut trade, BayWa 1s also setting its
sights on is medium-term target of offering a diverse and attractive range of produce throughout the year by
systematically expanding its procurement base in the southern hemisphere In order to secure long-term growth
apportunities in the agncuttural equipment sector, the Group intends to take on a leading role as an independent
provider of smart farming solutions for all farm sizes, alongside its geographic expansion As one of Europe's largest
providers of renewable energies, BayWa's focus 1s on driving forward the expanston of its renewable energies
business on a global stage Internahonalisation forms the key foundations for the growth that reinforces BayWa's
competitive position and opens up new markets Other focuses include expanding digital offenings and
strengtheming the BayWa umbrella brand

BayWa continually analyses its business portfclio — compnsing the Agnculture, Energy and Budding Matenals
Segments and therr respective business units and business sectors — in view of future growth and earnings
potential Another important aspect i1s the further improvement of the business nsk profile The increasing
internationahsation of business activities in the agniculture and energy industries reduces reliance on indwvidual
national markets BayWa reorgamised its agnicultural trade activities in the reporting year in order to boost
effectiveness in relevant markets BayWa Agncultural Sales {BAV), which compnises collection and trade business
involving operating resources and feedstuff, and the Agricultural Equipment and Digital Farrming business units
have been pooled in BayWa Agn Services BayWa Agn Supply & Trade (BAST) encompasses BayWa's national and
international trading, distribution and logistic actvities invalving grain, cilseed and co-products It consists of three
organisational units, BayWa Agricuitural Products, BayWa Agricultural Trade and BayWa Agrar International
Effective as at 1 January 2016, BayWa Agricuitural Trade's operating resources business was allocated to BAV
Produce trade is carried out by BAST The newly established Digital Farming business unit has been housed in the
Agriculture Segment since the fourth quarter of 2015

At the same tme, BayWa systematically pursues the strategy of restructuring, adapting or disposing of any activities
with insufficient growth and/or earnings prospects This way, BayWa counteracts the structurally driven decline in
demand for heating oil for years by acquiring smaller competitors, in order to expand its market postion moving
forward, BayWa is also considering a corporate partnership under BayWa stewardship BayWa s alsc aiming to find
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an effective soluban to iImprove competitiveness and safeguard jobs in the medium term in its building matenals
business.

Strengthening the market position, boesting revenues and optimising the business portfolio all serve the same

goal increasing the profitability of the BayWa Group’s business activities over the long term The newly acquired
companies open up a wide range of business opportunities and, therefore, also earnings opportunities Revenues
growth can generate economies of scale, such as in procurement through the pocling of procurement voiume,
which leads to more favourable purchasing conditions The continual improvement of cost structures has always
been a core element of the BayWa strategy The focal point here is on optimising the network of sites, structuring
processes efficiently, intensifying the use of existing sales structures and strengthening cooperation between Group
companies at an operating level Continuous development of the Group nisk management system is asrned at
mitigating rnisks and minimising nsk costs

The development of the BayWa Group 1s accompanied by a solid and proactive financing strategy It 1s shaped by
the caution tradihonally exercised by companies in the cooperative and agricultural sectors, but also takes into
account the changing requirements of an estabhshed international Group In its corporate financing, BayWa puts its
faith in tried-and-tested, rehable partners in the cooperative federahon Furthermore, it makes sure that there i1s
suthicient diversification in terms of financing sources, so as to guarantee its independence and bmit nsks Efficient
management of working capital is vital at the BayWa Group as it represents a net figure for current assets less
current habilites BayWa aims to maintain a balanced capital structure The target equity ratio stands at 30%, but
can be temporarily breached when taking advantage of growth opportunities

Control System

Strategic controlling of the corporate divisions 1s based on value-onented corporate governance and integrated nisk
management. Operational management of the corporate divisions is conducted based on targets, the key earnings
figures EBITDA, EBIT and EBT are primarily used as the most significant financial performance indicators The
development of financial performance indicators in the financial year 2015 1s described in the Financial Report in
the secticn “Financial Performance Indicators” Nen-financial performance indicators are still of secondary
importance at BayWa,

The value-driven management approach supports the medium- and long-term streamhning of the portfolio and the
strategic onentation of capital allocation within the Group This approach shows whether the ratio between the
operating profit achieved and the nsk-adjusted cost of capital 1s appropriate, 1 e whether the segment has earned its
cost of capital Return on average capital invested in the corporate divisions 1s calculated by applying the weighted
average cost of captal (WACC) model The return on invested capital (ROIC) of the corporate divisions 1s then
measured aganst the respective cost of capital There 1s economic profit of the return on invested capital 1s higher
than the cost of capital specific to each business unit The development of an efficient nsk management system 1s
particularly important in safeguarding long-term economic success, especially in international business The risk
management system 1s monitored and managed by a Risk Board established in 2009 and headed up by the Chief
Executive Officer The Agncuitural Coordination Center {ACC), set up for this purpose in 2014, was developed
further in the financial year 2015 and its mstruments enhanced Inthe newly created organisational unit Economics
and Public Affars Department (EPAD), market analysis 1s carned out for all of the BayWa Group's agnculture
actvibies In additton, a system to coordinate trade management has been created in the shape of the Global Book
System (GBS), which reconciles and optimises trade and risk positions of indvidual product lines in grain, ollseed
and co-product trade for national and international divisions
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FINANCIAL REPORT

Operative Business Development

Agriculture Segment

Market and ndustry development

Global grain production - excluding rice - increased n harvestyear 2014/15 by just under 1 4% to a record-
breaking 2,023 million tonnes Harvest volumes exceeded the figure forecast at the start of 2015 by 22 milhon
tonnes In Germany, the harvest broughtin 48 8 million tonnes of grain in 2015, down roughly 6% on the extremaly
high previous-year figure Corn harvest volumes 1n Germany suffered a particular decline, falling by 26%, due to the
hot summer and dry weather conditions With overall weather conditions providing favourable worldwide, the first
half of 2015 saw successive ncreases in forecasts for the global grain harvest in harvest year 2015/16 to a total of
2,000 million tonnes As a result, the harvest only fell just short of the previous two years On the back of the record-
breaking harvest of 676 million tonnes in harvest year 201 4/15, the oilseed harvest in 2015/16 1s once again
expected to be very high at 672 milhon tonnes Due to the ample supply situation, prices of much agricultural
produce declined even further in 2015 — with the exception of fruit and vegetables The positive supply situation
was prnimarily caused by the fow number of weather-related faled harvests The much-anticipated negative impact
of El Nific on the southern hemisphere harvest falled to matenalise As aresult, exchange-traded funds and
speculative investors who had gambled on prices rising were forced to reposikon themselves This caused gram
prices to plummet in the second haif of the year, with price volatility increasing at the same time Over the yearasa
whole, prices fell by roughly 12% to their lowest level in five years This price frend meant that the willingness
among German farmers to sell gram was subdued at imes The sold supply situation also meant that processors
were also reticent when it came to their buying activities At the end of the year, the price of wheat on the MATIF
commodity futures exchange was some 10% down year on year at approximately €175 per tonne Allin all, the
producer price iIndex for agricultural produce in Germany had falien by some 5% year on year by the end of the third
quarter

Global milk production increased even further in 2015 Production in the European Umion (EU), the world's largest
mitk producer, rose by 1 1% to just under 162 milhon tonnes iIn 2015 The end of the mitk quota as at 31 March

2015 led to considerable increases in production in some EU member states By contrast, milk production
decreased shghtly in Germany in 2015 Global trading volumes of dairy products fell by 1 7% to roughly 71 3 million
tonnes in 2015 This was primarily due to the decline in demand from China, as well as the ban on imports from
Australia, the EU, Canada, Norway and the USA 1mposed by Russia in August 2014 The ample supply situation put
prices on the dairy market around the world under pressure, which gave dary-producing farms an increasing
number of problems The FAQ (Food and Agnculture Organization) Darry Price Index fell from the annual high of
185 9 points recorded n March by almost 20% to 149 3 points in December 2015

Global meat production in 2015 rose by approximately 1 1% to 318 8 million tonnes In the EU, meat production
was up by 2 5% to 45 6 mallion tonnes, making it the second-largest meat producer after China. In Germany, meat
production increased by roughly 1% to 8 8 million tonnes, with pork production increasing in particular and
accounting for seme 58% of German meat production There were also shght increases in poultry praducton,
whose share in overall production rose to approximately 21% Beef production lost a small amount of its market
share to poultry, but continues to account for roughly 14% of overall production According to the FAQ Meat Price
Index, global market prices for meat fell by some 20% between October 2014 and early March 2015 and
subsequently treaded water at this level This stabilisation was due to the higher prices for beef, while prices for pork
and poultry declined further The development of prices in the EU and Germany largely followed the global trend
The financial situation of German animal feeding operations has deteriorated considerably as a result

The price index for agricultural operating resources has declined in Germany over the past three years Atthe end of
the third quarter of 2015, costs for operating resources were down 0 B% year on year This trend 1s hikely to have
actually increased in tempo in the fourth quarter, particularly due to the sharp fall in the price of crude ol Seed
prices fell by 2 3% This was partty due to the fallin market prlf:es for agncultural produce The supply situation 1s
guaranteed in most cases, in spite of the dry conditions in 2015 Cultivation areas for grain legumes for the 2015
harvest were increased in size significantly to meet nsing demand caused by greening regulatons On average,
fertiliser prices rose by 3% year on year Pnces for nitrogen fertilisers declined marginally 1n 2015, whereas
phosphate fertlisers expenenced a significant price nse due to the significant explottation of phosphate reserves
and the scarcity in supply worldwide Sales of fertihsers fell by 6 2% on account of the lack of usage caused by the
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dry conditions in the reporting year Sales of crop production products declined substantially year on year, as the dry
weather meant that much lower volumes of products were required Prices rose slightly by 1 9% year on year
Prices of feedstuffs were down 1 7% on the previous year on average

Due to the less favourable weather conditions compared to the previous year, harvest volumes were down across
aimost all fruit produce in Germany in 2015 As anticipated in the forecast at the start of the year, the 2015 German
apple harvest was down 13% on the exceptionally positive harvest in 2014 at 903,000 tonnes Penods of dryness
with some tropical temperatures hampered frurt growth and caused fruit sunburn At roughty 12 0 mullion tonnes,
harvest volumes in the EU were down by some 4% on the record-breaking harvest of the previous year Pricesin
the previous year came under pressure from high harvest volumes and the Russian import embargo, whereas the
lower harvest in 2015 caused producer prices to rise noticeably In New Zealand, the 2015 apple harvest increased
In volume by roughly 11% year on year to 543,146 tonnes, onginally, an increase of 13% had been anticipated
New Zealand exports over 60% of its apple harvest, with roughly two-thirds destined for Asia — and nsing

investment activities in agriculture declined considerably in 2015 due to the significant downturn in farmers'
revenue and income situation compared to previous years Low producer prices for milk and feeding ptgs
dampened farmers' investment propensity According to estimates by the German Engineering Foundation
{VDMA), revenues in the agricuttural equipment sectar fell by 4% to just under €7 4 bilion At the start of the yeara
decline In investments of 7% had been anticipated Tractor revenues declined in Germany by a disproportonately
high 8 7%, while new tractor registrations fell by 6 9% Sales of other agricultural machinery developed
considerably better, with revenues declining by just 2 5% in 2015 Development of mowers and lawnmowers and
self-propelled forage harvesters, in particular, was extremely dynamic There 1s enormous potential for growth in
digrtal farming Just 39% of farmers have a digitalised acreage index and only 33% are able to apply different
fertilisers to different areas

Business development

Revenues in the Agricultural Trade business unit increased by €90 7 million, or 1 1%, to €8,321 4 million in the
financial year 2015 The nse in revenues was largely the result of the 4 5 million tonnes, or 30 4%, rise in BayWa's
grain trading volume to 19 5 milion tonnes, caused by company expansion Altin all, grain and cilseed turnover
stood at roughly 30 2 rmillion tonnes (2014 26 8 million tonnes) This overcompensated for lower revenues due to
considerably lower corn collection volumes, a lack of grain drying revenues due to the lack of rain in the summer
and the sharp fall in prices for agricultural produce There was also a siight 1 2 miilion tonnes decline i turnover
volume of oilseed and other products to 10 7 milhion tonnes In terms of operating resources, BayWa Group focuses
on the sale of seed, fertilisers, crop protection and feedstuff Demand was varied here in 2015 Sales of fertilisers
went against the general market trend and stood at just under 2 5 milhon tonnes, an increase i volume of 5 7% -
with prices alsa improving on the previous year This was pnimarily the result of a significant nise in sales from
Austnan subsidiary RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austria Akbengesellschaft. Seed sales also increased in the reporting year,
nsing by 10 6% aganst the backdrop of stable prices The dry weather in the summer cut short the period of
effective crop protection appiication, meaning that many farmers were not able to perform as many treatments as in
the previous year Feedstuff sales fell in the reporting year by 12 3% as a result of the transition from in-house to
external procurement, Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) in the Agrnicultural
Trade business unit deciined in the reporting year by €24 5 milhon, or 25 4%, to €71 9 million primarily as a result
of the fall in produce prices In addition, low water surcharges for freight led to a nse In logistics costs Finally, start-
up costs were incurred on account of the ongoing international expansion of business, which did not generate any
revenues in the reporting year At €30 3 million, depreciation and amortisation in this business umit was shghtly up
on the 2014 figure of €31 & million, meaning that EBIT (earnings before interest and tax) fell year on year by

€23 3 millon to €41 6 million This equates to a decline of 35 9% Financial expenses dechned by €1 5 midlion to
€220 milhon largely as a result of the price-related fall in working capital employed Overall, Agricultural Trade
business unit’s earnings before tax stood at €19 6 miilon in 2015, down by €21 8 milion on the previous year's
figure of €41 4 milhon

As expected, total fruit sales at the BayWa Group rose significantly by 16 29% in 2015 Alengside the record-
brealung harvest in New Zealand, this rise was pnmanly due to the first-ttme full-year inclusion of Apolio Apples
Limited International sales volumes of New Zealand company T&G Global Limited (T&G) rose by 40 5%, while
marketing volume in Germany was 6 9% down on the previous year's figure Revenues in the Frurt business umt
increased marginally by 0 6% in 2015 to €567 4 million (2014 €563 9 milion} The major decline in German fruit
bustness was more than evened out by growth in international actvites EBITDA improved by €5 9 million, or

17 4%, to €40 0 million This nise in earnings was pnmanly due to the marketing of the record-breaking harvest in
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New Zealand, operating improvements at T&G and the full-year earnings contribution of the New Zealand company
Apollo Apples Limited, which was acquired in December 2014 Depreciation and amortisation was down by

€05 million at €13 0 million As a consequence, the operating result (EBIT} rose by a disproportionately high

31 20, or €6 4 million, to €27 0 millien in the course of growth investments and financing of the increased working
capitat, finanaing costs increased by €1 3 mullion to €8 7 milhion Overall, earnings before tax in the Frurt business
umtimproved In the reporting year by €5 1 oillion, or 31 8%, to €27 3 million

Business involving tractors and other agncultural machtnery declined significantly In 2015 due to a fall in farmers’
investment propensity All in all, sales of new tractors were down 8 7% at 3,986 However, sales of used machinery
rose by 2 3% te 1,789 In terms of farm and animal equipment, the business unrt benefited from a high level of
orders from 2014 However, the same high level of revenues recorded in the previous year was unable to be
matched against the backdrop of a market-related fall in demand for buiidings and systems in the reporting year By
contrast, sales rose in the service and repair business, which recorded a rise 1n demand for customer services on
account of high tractor and combine harvester sales in previous years The Agncultural Equipment business
generated total revenues of €1,260 7 million 1n 2015, whichequates toa €50 0 million, or 3 8%, dechne year on
year EBITDA declined by €1 4 mullon, or 4 3%, to €31 8 mullion, above all because of afall m business in new
machinery Deprecation and amortisation deciined by €0 6 million, or 55%, to €10 4 milion in the reporting year,
resulting n a decline in EBIT of €0 8 million, or 3 7%, to €21 5 milion Financing costs fellby €1 8 million to

€9 5 million as a result of the reduction in working capital In total, earnings before tax in the Agncultural Equipment
business unit cimbed by €1 0 million to €12 0 milhon in 2015

The new Digital Farming business unit, which was established in the fourth quarter of 2015, mainly comprises the
business activibes of PC-Agrar GmbH, acquired 1n April 2015, and its subsidianies In 2015, the Digital Farming
business unit generates revenues of €5 2 million BayWa has set rtself the target of taking on a leading role asa
component partner to the agnicultural industry when it comes to smart farming and farm management solutions
Start-up costs were Incurred due to the estabhshment of business unit structures and investments in future growth,
which led to negative EBITDA of €2 2 million in the reporting year After depreciation and amortisation of

€0 7 million, EBIT came to €-2 9 million in 2015 The business unit’s earnings before tax also came to this figure, as
no mayor financing costs were incurred

Revenues in the Agriculture Segment increased n the financial year 2015 by 0 8% to €10,154 7 million The
operating result before depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) fell by €22 2 milhon to €141 6 milion (2014

€163 8 million), particularly due to the fall in revenues in trade with agnicultural produce After depreciation and
amortisation of €54 4 million in the reporting year (2014 €56 0 million), the segment’s EBIT declined by

€206 million to €87 2 million The segment's financing costs fell in the reporting year by €2 0 miflion to

€37 2 millon In total, the Agnculture Segment recorded earnings before tax of €50 0 million in financial year 2015,
down from €68 5 miflion in the previous year

Energy Segment

Market and industry development

The price of crude il fell sharply aver the course of 2015 on account of the ongoing situahion of excess supply
worldwide, the anticipated return to the oil market of Iran following the conclusion of the nuclear deal and the
weaker than expected economic growth, particularly n emerging economies Contrary to expectations of anseto
USD80 to 85 per barrel, the price of oil fell from roughly USD56 per barrel at the beginming of the year by just under
35% to under USD37 per barrel at the end of the year Prices last fell to this level n late 2008 at the height of the
financial cnisis The price of heating o largely followed this trend and was considerably down on 2014 levels
throughout 2015 In the German heating market, heating ol sales declined year on year by 3 7% in 2015 The fall in
sales was the result of an ongotng structural decline m consumption as well the comparatively mild winter Total fuel
sales rose by 2 1% between January and December 2015 against the backdrop of a 1 8% increase in vehicle stock
Sales of Otto fuels declined by 1 4%, while diesel fuel consumption was up by 4 0% Total lubricant sales in 2015
fell year on year by 2 4% desprte the positive economic environment in Germany overall This was primanly due to
the dechine in lubricating grease and hydraulic oil sales, while demand for engine oils rose by 5 5%

The renewable energies trend accelerated worldwade in 2015 Investments in these energies rose toa total of
USD329 3 bilion in 2015, a 4 2% year-on-year increase from USD315 9 buliion

Photovoltaic capacity expansion worldwide was up 27% year on year in 2015 at 51 gigawatts (GW), and rose to a
much greater extent than the anticipated 5% Just under 30% of newly installed plants were located in China, with
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Japan accounting for roughly a further 20% and the USA some 19% Europe accounted for a share of just under
17% in worldwide capacity expansion in 2015 The largest indvidual markets are Great Britain, with expansion of
4.0 GW, and Germany with expansion of 1 4 GW, although capacities of newly mstalled solar power systems
declined (2014 19 GW) As aresult, the German government missed its annual capacity expansion target of

24 GWto 2 6 GW for the second year in succession This was primarily due to the fact that subsidies under the
German Renewable Energy Sources Act (EEG) for free-standing plants of up to 10 megawatts (MW) were removed
as at 1 September 2015 Since then, subsidies are only being granted through tender processes At the end of
2015, the total output of the solar power plants compensated under the German Renewable Energy Sources Act
(EEG) installed in Germany was 39 7 GW

According to the World Wind Energy Assocration (WWEA), wind power capacrty worldwide increased by 56 6 GW,
a nse of roughly 7% on the previous year, and therefore exceeded forecast capacity expansion to 54 0 GW Just
under 29 GW, or roughly §1%, of newly instailed capacity was attnbuted to China. The second-largest wind power
plan market in 2015 was the USA with capacity expansion of 8 6 GW Great Britain only recorded onshore wind
power capacity expansion of some 04 GW in 2015 In Germany, wind power capacity expansion reached 3 5 GW
(2014 4 4 GW), significantly higher than the figure of 2 5 GW targeted by the German government. At the end of
2015, onshore wind power plants with a total output of 41 7 GW were aperating in Germany This equates to a year-
on-year rise of some 9%

Approximately 9,000 biogas plants were operating in Germany at the end of 2015, with a total output of roughly

4 2 GW Some 200 of this amount were commissioned in 2015 - most of which consisted of small-scale manure-
based plants with an output of up to 75 kilowatts (KW) Most plants have already been in operation for some 15
years, so subsidies under the German Renewable Energy Sources Act (EEG) are set to expire infive years Since
the appheation of *he amendment to the German Renewable Energy Sources Act (EEG), new bromass projects are
no lenger attractive due to the massive cuts to subsidies in Germany The only opportunities exist n repowernng or
using bio-energy plants as a standby source on the electricity rmarket as well as in service business Under these
crcumstances, it1s doubtful whether the German government will reach its target of covering 6% of natural gas
consumption through biomethane in 2020 and 10% of consumption by 2030

Business development

Heating oil sales in BayWa’s conventional energy business increased by 2 5% in the financial year 2015 The
increase In sales volume was primanly due to the fact that consumers seized on the falling prices to fill up their
tanks Heating ot sales also henefited from the posiive performance of Austrian subsidianes Sales of wood peliets
increased by 15 7%, with the market share increasing as a result of the construction of five specialist centres in
southern Germany with sophisticated logstics concepts and natonwide delivery BayWa Group fuel sales rose
marginally by O 4% year on year, with the market-related dechne in Qtto fuel sales mare than compensated for by
the increase in diesel sales The lubnicant business saw a 4 5% increase Iin sales in 2015 and was therefore able to
outperform the market. The decline in first fdls due to the fall in new tractor registrations was more than
compensated for by growth in speciai products such as gas engine oils or AdBlue BayWa has been able to acquire
new custormners in heat contracting, including the heating supply contract for Straubing Wailmuhle Arrport.
Conventional energy sales dechned by €456 4 milhion, or 16 9%, 1n the reporting year to €2,248 4 milion primarity
on account of the significant decline in heating ol and fuel pnces EBITDA improved by €3 1 million, or 61 1%, to
€24 0 million as a resuft of increases in sales as well as positive margin development in the fuel business
Depreciation and amortisation of €8 6 rmullion was €0 5 mulion down on the previous-year figure There was
therefare a disproportionately high increase in EBIT of €3 7 million to €15 4 million (2014 €5 7 millien) Financing
costs in the reporting year amounted to €0 2 mullion (2014 financing income of €1 1 milhon) Total earnings before
tax more than doubled to €15 2 million (2014 €69 mddlion)

The international orientation of activities in the Renewable Energies business sector in 2015 resulted in revenues
nsing to over €1 bilion The output generated by all wind power, solar power and biomass plants commissioned in
2015 rose by some 76% (n the reparting year to 294 9 MW (2014 167 1 MW) Of this amount, 205 2 MW was
attributed to wind power plants, 86 6 MW 1o solar power plants and 3 1 MW to momass plants Compileted systems
were sald in 2015 m Germany, Austna, France, Span, Great Britain and the USA A total of 11 solar projects with a
total output of 123 1 MW were sold, with 71 5 MW of this total output attributed to Great Britain, 35 8 MW to Spain
and 13 3 MW to the USA. Atotal of 7 wind power plants were sold 1n Germany, Austria, Great Britain and the USA
with a total output of 164 3 MW The USA was the largest market, accounting for 79 6 MW of output, followed by
Great Brtain wath 29 9 MW and Austrnia with 27 1 MW BayWa r e assumes respansibiiity for the commercial and
technical operations as well as the maintenance of most of these wind and solar power plants, too Sales in trading
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with photovoltaic components rose by 15% to 245 6 megawatts peak power output (MWp), manlyas a result of
activibes in the USA and Switzerland Total revenues in the Renewable Energies business sector increase in the
financial year 2015 by €231 6 million, or 29 5%, to €1,017 8 milhon EBITDA rose by €31 6 million, or 563 5%, to
€90 8 million, with depreciation and amortisation nsing less sharply than revenues of €6 4 mulion, or 28 1%, to
€29 0 milion The €25 3 milhon, or 63 2%, nse in EBIT to €61 8 milion was therefore greater than the increase in
revenues At €11 2 million, financing costs were down by €1 6 million, or 12 8%, on the previous year Allin all, the
business sectar’s earnings before tax practicatly doubled year on year, nsing by €26 9 milhon to €50 6 million

In total, revenues of the Energy Segment fell by €224 8 million, or 6 4%, year on year to €3.264 2 million inthe
tinancial year 2015 The segment's EBITDA increased by €407 million to €114 8 milhon Adjusted for depreciation
and amortisation, which increased by €5 8 million year on year to €37 6 mihon, EBIT chmbed by €34 3 milon, or
89 6%, to €77 2 million Finanaing costs deciined by €0 3 mllion to €1 1 4 mdtion Overall, the Energy Segment's
earnings before tax more than doubled to €65 8 million (2014 €306 million)

Building Matenals Segment

Market and industry deveiopment

The German construction sector began 2015 more cautiously than 2014, more due fo the fack of demand for
commercial and public sector construction than poor weather condiions, The construction ndustry only expanded
by some 1% aver the year as a whole — instead of the 20k forecast at the start of the year However, revenues in the
matm construction ndustry broke the €100 biihan mark for the first tme simce 2000 Residential construction firms
recorded a solid order stuatian througheut the year However, at 2%, actual residential construction growth fell just
short of the forecast figure of 3% In public sector construchon, revenues stagnated at the previous year's level,
whereas commercial construction recorded a dechre of 0 5% Residential construchan, which accounted for the
largest share of 60 2% in total nvestment 1n construction, generated real mvestment growth of 1 5% Growth was
primarily due to a sharp nse in the construction of new mult-storey rasidential properties in major urban areas,
bulding completion rose in 2015 by approximately 27% year on year By contrast, construction of single- and
multtple-famiy dwellings and construction cutside of major urban areas developed siuggishly Canstruction volume
in refurbishment, renovation and modernisation business remained on & par with the previaus year There was a
dechine in energy-efficient renovation, partly due to the sharp fall in energy prices Another reason was the high
capacity utihsation in the construction industry As a consequence, renovation orders were pushed aside by new
construction business Real investments in commercial construction dechned by 1 9% in 2015 Even though
capacity utifisation was up on the long-term average at some 84%, mvestments i expansion largely faled to
matenalse Contrary to onginal expectations, pubhc sector construction faled to nse in 2015 In fact, public-sector
spending on construction declined by 1 7%

Contrary to expectations of a shght nise in 2015, construction mvestment in Austria 1 actually eshmated to have
dechned by 1% in 2015 The construchon mdustry therefore performed considerably worse that the economyasa
whole. The continual decline In the level of orders in the industry in almost all of Austna's federal states led toa
magor downturn in sentiment In the Austnan construction industry over the course of the year Residential
construction performed poorly, in sprte of nsing property prices, favourable financing conditions, high demand for
Iving space and a record-breaking number of butlding permits Ancther contributing factor 1s ikely to have been
that the residental construction subsidies offered by Austnan federal states have been too low in the past two years
to inject momentumn into the residential construction industry In Vienna, Lower Austria and Salzburg, subsidies
were actualfy cut. [n terms of commercial construction, momenturm remamed lm ited to public-sector chents, who
accounted for just under one-third of commeraial construchon actviies Thanks to investment of just under

€600 milion in the construction, development and renovation of pubhic-sector bulldings, marginal growths likely to
have been achieved n the commercial construction industry by the end of 2015 Cmil engineenng, in which some
60% of orders onginate from the pubhic sector, was only able to stabdise itself i the second half of 2015 Increases
in order intake and trust in construction firms in the second half of the year may suggest recovery, but there has
barely been any iImprovement in capacity utilisation The civil engineenng sector only generated growth of 1% to
2% in 2015 as a whole

Business development

Bulding materials activities were hampered by unfaveurable weather conditions in the first few months of 2015,
with construction business only really garming momentum in the reporting year after Easter Industry growth is solely
driven by residential construction, which was focused in 2015 on mutk-storey maustnal properties, in which theres
lower demand for matenals What's more, demand on European building matenals markets outside of Germany
dechned significantly at the same time This led to foreign producers stepping up thewr market presence in Germany,
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which, in turn, put pressure on prices for bullding and insulation materials in the reporting year Even though sales in
bullding matenals trading rose overall, the Building Materials Segment's revenues dechined in the financial year
2015 by €28 4 million, or 1 8%, to €1,496 4 milkon (2014 €1,524 8 million) Due to the ongoing optimisation of
the site network, EBITDA only fell by €07 rmuflion to €42 2 million, while deprectation and amortisation was down by
€02 million at €14 8 milion This resulted in a marginal decline in EBIT of €0 5 million to €27 4 milion Adjusted for
the shght €0 9 million fall In financing costs to €10 0 million, earnings before tax were slightty above the previous-
year level of €17 1 milhon at €17 5 million

Development of the Other Activities Segmentin 2015

Revenues In the Other Activities Segment declined in the reporbing year to €12 8 million The previous year's figure
of €82 7 million pnmarily compnsed bulding materials actviites in Rmneland-Palatinate and North Rhune-
Westphalia, untl thewr disposal in the second quarter of 2014 EBIT resulting from Other Activities consists of the
Giroup's administration costs, as wel! as consolidation effects, in 2015, 1t came to €~33 7 million, down from

€-26 0 rmulhon in the previous year
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Earnings, Financial Position and Assets of the BayWa Group

Adjustment of Previous-year Figures

The consolidated financial statements and the managernent report on the Group of BayWa AG as at 31 December
2013 were subject to a random sample audit by the Deutsche Prufstelle fur Rechnungslegung (DPR) / Financial
Reporting Enforcement Panel {(FREP) pursuant to Section 342b para 2 sentence 3 German Commercial Code
(HGB) This audit resulted in a total of five findings, three of which had an effect on the assets, financial position and
result of operations of the BayWa Group for the financial year 2013 and, consequently, also for subsequent years
Two findings solely concerned reporting and therefore had no impact on the assets, financial position and result of
operations

The audit findings concerming the assets, financial postton and result of operations were as follows

In the financial year 201 3, BayWa AG disposed of 80 properties within the scope of a sale-and-lease-back
transaction The iease of these properties was classified by BayWa AG at that tme as an operating lease within the
meaning of IAS 17 FREP found in its audit that, considenng the existing unilateral lease extension options on the
part of the lessor, the lease back of all 80 properties conshituted financial leases For this reason, the properties
should have been recognised in the consclidated balance sheet at far value together with a corresponding lease
habiiity at the start of the lease The rental expenses recognised in BayWa AG's consolidated financial statements in
the financial years 2013 and 2014 should have been replaced with depreciation on the properties and interest
expense from the lease hability The book values resulting from the disposal in the financial year 2013 should have
been recognised as deferred income in other liabdities and distnbuted pver the term of the lease in consideration of
the lessor's extension options (a total of 25 years)

In addrtion, FREP also found that, in WealthCap Portfolio Finanzierungs-GmbH & Co KG, Grunwald, Germany, a
company that has similar aims as the Group and whose nisks and opportunities are fully apportionable to the Group
was not reported as a special purpose vehicle in the sense of IAS 27 13 in conjunction with SIC 128 et seq in
BayWa AG's consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards applicable to full consclidation
Instead of reporting the investment in the company, as was the case in the past, the loans granted by the company
should have been reported on the balance sheet.

It was also found that, in the course of the purchase price allocation for Cefetra B V, which was acquired in the
financial year 2013, debt and therefore aiso goodwill resulting from this transaction were too high

In addition to the adjustments presented here on the basis of FREP's audit findings, the consoclidated financial
statements in the previous year also required correction pursuant to JAS 8 in order to rectify the incorrect calculation
of deferred tax assets and habilies caused by an erroneous tax assessment This resulted in a reduction in deferred
tax assets of €4 447 million in the consohdated financial statements as at 31 December 2014 and a corresponding
rise in tax expenses

In the reporting year, the BayWa Group opted for the early adoption of amendments to 1AS 16 (Property, Plant and
Equipment) and 1AS 41 (Agriculture) with regard to the recognition of bearer plants, which were endorsed in
European law in November 2015 These kinds of bearer piants have been removed from the scope of IAS 41 into
the scope of 1AS 186, therefore enabling entities to measure them at cost subsequent to inibal recognition or at
revaluation Bearer plants had been subject to recogrution at fair value on an annual basis in the past. However, the
produce growing on bearer plants continues to be accounted for under IAS 41 The early adoption of the
amendments was implemented retrospectively, meaning that the fair values of bearer plants were corrected in the
previous year's annual financial statements Since 1 January 2014, bearer plants have therefere been accounted for
at cost less accumulated depreciahon as a component of property, plant and equipment The fair value of bearer
plants as at 1 January 2014 was recognised at cost for accounting purposes
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The aforementioned adjustments impacted the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2013 as well as at 1 January 2014 in the following

manner
First-time
01/01/2014 FREP application of 01/01/2014
in € milhon unedjusted findings 1AS 41/1AS 16 adjusted
ASSETS
Intangible assets 1570 -20 - 1550
Property, plant and equipment 10742 2295 80 1,311 7
Other financial assets 3204 -689 — 2515
Non-current biological assets 128 - -128 -~
Deferred tax assets 1281 255 - 1536
Current biological assets 3] - 48 56
Other current receivables and other assets 1,0187 - - 1,0187
Cash and cash equivalents 91 - - 921
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Other reserves 1807 -670 - 837
Non-current financial lease obligations 67 1598 - 1665
Other non-current habilibes 237 838 - 1075
Qther current prowisions 1453 -1 - 1452
Current financial lease obhgations 46 41 - 87
Current trade payables and liabilrties from inter-Group business relatonships 7666 - - 7666
Cther current liabilties 2218 36 - 2254
The effects of the adjustments on the consoclidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2014 are as follows
First=time

31/12/2014 FREP applcaton of Miscorrection of 31/12/2014
in € million unadjusted findings IAS 41/1AS 16 deferred taxes adjusted
ASSETS
Intangible assets 1501 -20 - - 1481
Property, plant and equipment 11633 2201 131 - 1,386 5
Participating interests recognised at equity 1969 - -04 - 1964
QOther financtal assets 2504 -68.9 - - 1815
Non-current biological assets 262 - -262 - -
Deferved tax assets 1876 261 - -44 2003
Current biological assets 09 - 83 - 92
Other current receivables and other assets 1,086 6 -22 - - 1,084 4
Cash and cash equivalents 1061 23 - - 1084
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Other reserves 1458 -686 -28 -44 700
Minority interest in equity 2649 - -10 — 2639
Mon-current financial lease cbligations 60 1554 - - 1614
Other non-current habifittes 414 802 - - 1216
Deferred tax habilities 1538 - -13 - 1525
Current financial lease obligattons 35 44 - - 79
Current trade payables and latilities from inter-Group business
relationships 7450 - - — 7450
Other current liabilittes 1999 40 - - 2039
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The effects on the income statement for the financial year 2014 are as follows

First-time

2014 FREP application of Miscorrectron of N4

in € millign unad)justed findings IAS 41/1AS 16 deferred taxes adjusted
Other operating income 1738 38 - - 1824
Cost of matenals -13,8166 - -03 - -138169
Gross profit 1,5262 36 -03 - 15295
Personnel expenses -7926 -05 - - ~7931
Depreciation and amortisation -1178 -94 -05 - -1277
Other operating expenses -5065 189 -39 - ~4915
Resutt of operating actrities 109 3 126 =46 - 1173
Income from parhcipating interests recognised at equity 38 - -0a - 34
Other income from shareholdings 337 -23 - - 314
Interest expense -659 =125 - - -784
Fihancal result -217 -147 -04 - -368
Result of ordinary activities (EBT) 8786 -22 -50 - 804
ncome tax 28 06 13 -44 03
Consohdated net ncome S04 -16 -37 -44 807
of which profit share of minorty interest 202 - -10 - 192
of which due to sharehoiders of the parent company 702 -16 -27 -44 815
EBIT 146 8 103 -50 - 1521
EBITDA 2646 197 -45 - 2798
Basic earmings per share (in €) 203 =004 -008 ~013 178
Diluted earnings per share (in €) 203 -004 -008 -013 178

The transition to the consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome for the financial year 2014 following the
adjustments ss as follows

First-time
2014 FREP apphcation of Miscorrection of 2014
n € million unadjusted findings 1AS 41/1AS 16 deferred taxes adjusted
Consohdated net income 804 -16 -37 -4.4 BO7
Sum of items not subsequently reclassified in the
income statement -946 - - - -94 6
Differences from currency translation 102 - -01 - 101
Sum of items subsequently reclassified in the
income statement 133 - -01 - 132
Gains and losses recogmsed directly in equity -812 - -01 - -813
of which profit share of minonty nterest 08 - - - 08
of which due to sharehoiders of the parent company -820 - =01 - -821
Consohdated total result for the penod g2 -18 -38 =-4.4 -06
of which profit share of mingnty interest 210 - -10 - 200
of which due to shareholders of the parent company -118 -18 -28 -44 -206
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The adjustments had the following effects on the cash flow statement for the financial year 2014

First-time
2014 FREP application of Miscomrection of 2014
in € milion unadjusted findings IAS 41/1AS 16 deferred taxes adjusted
Cash flow from operating actvities -1124 211 or - -906
Cash flow from investing actvibes -2247 -22 -07 - -2276
Cash flow from financing activities 3510 ~-166 —_ - 3344
Cash-effective changes in cash and cash equivalents 139 23 - - 162
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the penod 921 - - - 921
Inflow/outflow of funds due to changes n the group of
consohdated companies and in exchange rates Cc1 - - - 01
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the pernod 1061 23 - - 1084
Earnings position
Change n %
in € millon 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015/14
Revenues 95857 10,5311 15,9676 152018 14,9281 -18
EBITDA 23513 30686 814 2798 2883 30
EBITDA margin (in %) 26 29 18 18 19 -
EBIT 1492 1868 1374 1521 1581 40
EBIT margin (in %) 16 18 09 10 11 -
EBT 954 1226 751 804 884 95
Consolidated net income 681 1180 543 807 616 -237

Revenues of the BayWa Group fell in the financial year 2015 by 1 8%, or €273 7 million, to €14 928 1 milhon This
trend was pnmarily due to the sharp fall in prices for heating ail and fuels and came in spite of a nise in trading
volumes across almost all of the Group's business areas In business with conventional energies, revenues declined
substantially by €456 4 million to €2,246 4 milion, desprte an increase in sales volumes This was offsetby a

€231 6 million nse in revenues from renewable energies to €1,017 8 millton, which was primarily driven by further
expansion in project management business At €224 8 million, total revenues in the Energy Segment fell Revenues
in the Agncultural Trade business unit rose by €90 8 million to €8,321 4 milhon on account of an increase of grain
trading volumes Fruit trading revenues remained relatively stable year on year, while agnicultural equipment
revenues dechined shghtty The new Digital Farming business unit contnibuted €5 2 million to total revenues in the
segment. Allin all, revenues in the Agnculture Segment cimbed by €49 4 million to €10,154 7 million The Building
Materials Segment saw its revenues decrease by €28 3 million on account of falling pnces for bulding and
insulation materials

Other operating income fell by a total of €24 6 million in the reporting year to €157 8 milion Of this amount,

€7 5 milhon was due to a drop in income from asset disposals, which came to €26 5 million in the reporting year
The key factor in this development was the property sale of an Austrian subsichary in the previous year In addition,
the previous year's other operating inceme had included negative goodwill from the acguistion of Apollo Apples
Limited’s business activities in New Zealand, which was recognised through profit and loss in the amount of

€8 4 milion Other income declined from €47 2 million to €37 O million due to the reversal of earn-out components
from company acquisitions recognised through profit and loss In addition, the lower income from the reversal of
provisions of €100 mifhon (2014 €13 9 million), from letting and leasing of €26 3 midlion (2014 €28 7 million)
and from currency gains of €18 1 million (2014 €20 3 million) contributed a total of €8 6 million to this dechne
Value adjustments of recevables or rather Income from recewables written down of €7 5 million offset this decline
(2014 €27 miihon) At €324 milicn, remairung other Income Increased by €5 2 million year on year, which was
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due In particular to anncrease n income from the farr value measurement of biological assets of New Zealand
Group comparies

The increase in Inventories in the financial year of €86 7 million was largely due to the project developments in the
Renewable Energies business sector during the financial year 2015

Cost of materials fell in the reporting year by 1 8%, or €241 6 million, to €13,575 3 million, largely proportional to
revenues In spite of lower revenues and cther operating income, the BayWa Group's gross profit rose by 4 7%
largely as a result of increases in inventones — at €1,601 2 mullion, gross profit was up by €71 7 mtllion on the
previous year's figure of €1,529 5 miilion

Personnel expenses chimbed year on year by 4 0%, or €32 1 milion, to €825 2 million, primanly due to the
expansion of business activities The acquisition of Apoilo Apples Limited's business actvities in December 2014
resulted in an increase in the number of employees and contributed to a corresponding nse in personnel expenses
m the financial year 2015 The increasingly international orientation of agricultural trade activities, coupled with the
expansion of activiies in the Renewable Energies business sector, also resuited in personnel expenses increasing
Addrional personnel expenses were also incurred in the new Digital Farming business unit and adjustments under
collective bargaining agreements also contnbuted to development.

At €435 3 million, other operating expenses were up by €3 8 milhon, or 0 8%, on the 2015 figure of €491 5 million
in the financial year 2015 The pnimary factors in this increase were rental and leasing costs of €51 3 million (2014
€48 3 million), travel expenses of €15 6 millton (2014 €13 3 million), nsurance expenses of €18 6 million (2014
€17 3 million), other expenses of €40 5 miflion (2014 €34 4 million) and a rise in consultancy, auditing and legal
fees to €36 3 million (2014 €34 4 milion) These were offset in particular by lower currency losses of €17 7 milhion
{2014 €23 3 million), vehicle fleet costs of €73 9 milhon (2014 €77 2 million), energy and supply costs of

€29 8 million (2014 €32 6 million) and reduced maintenance costs of €49 3 million (2014 €50 6 milhon) Total
remaining other operating expenses came to €162 3 million, up €2 2 million year on year

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) rose by €8 5 million, or 3 0%, to
€288 3 milion in the financial year 2015 (2014 €279 8 million)

Scheduled depreciation and amortisation at the BayWa Group rose marginally by €2 5 million in the reporting year
from €127 7 milion to €130 2 milion, which was largely the result of the unscheduled write-down on an exishng
plant in the Renewable Energies business sector

Aliin all, earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) of the BayWa Group improved by €6 O milion, or 4 0%, in the
financial year 2015 to €158 1 million

The financial result comprises income from participating interests, which (s allocated to EBITDA and EBIT, and net
interest. The result of participating interests declined in the reporting year by €27 3 million to €7 6 million Given
that the equity result remained largely unchanged, this decline was the resuit of a reduction in the result from other
participating interests and financial assets In the previous year, this item had included accounting profit of

€20 9 million from the contribution of shares in a joint venture Furthermore, dividend income from Austnian Group
company Raiffeisen Ware Austria AG also contributed to a higher result of participating interests in the previous
year The €1 6 million improvement to net interest to €-70 1 millon was predorminantly the result of a fall in interest
expenses from pension obhgations

The BayWa Group’s earnings before tax (EBT) increased by €7 7 mullion, or 9 5%, to €88 1 milion This increase
was pnmarily caused by the €35 2 mullion rose in the Energy Segment's EBT, as the Building Matenals Segment's
earnings before tax only increased marginally by €0 4 million By contrast, the revenue contribution from the
Agriculture Segment declined by €18 6 million The corresponding earmings indicators from the Other Activibies
Segment, together with the consolidation effects presented in the transition, came to €-45 2 million in the reporting
year, down by €9 4 million on the previous year

The BayWa Group generated tax expenses of €26 5 million in the financial year 2015 following tax mcome of

€0 3 milion in the previous year The tax rate therefore came to 30 1% in the reporting year (2014 -0 4%) The
previcus year’s tax income was largely the resuit of deferred tax lrabilibes resulting from the valuation differences in
tax accounting and loss carryforwards from Group companies
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Taking account of income tax, the BayWa Group generated net income of €61 6 million in the financial year 2015
(2014 €80 7 million), compared with the previous year's ftgure, this represents a dechne of 23 7% The share in
profit due to shareholders of the parent company went down by 21 6% from €61 5 million in the previous year to
€48 2 milhon in the reporting year

Earmings per share (EPS}, which 1s calculated from the portion of the result attnibutable to the shareholders of the
parent company in relation to the average number of shares outstanding of 34,643,344 (dvidend-bearing shares
less treasury shares), fell from €1 78 in the previous year to €1 39 in the financial year 2015

Companson of forecast business development with actual business development

In the Cutlook section of the 2014 Management Report on the Group, BayWa forecast a moderate nise in
consolidated revenues in the financial year 2015 and a noticeable improvement in the Group's relevant key
earnings Indicators, EBITDA, EBIT and EBT

In agncultural trade, sales volumes for agnicultural produce were set to rise considerably based on more-constant
harvest marketing and fewer fluctuations in grain prices compared to the previous year It was assumed that sales of
operating resources would alsa nse on account of gains in market share The operating result (EBIT) was also
expected to profit from the extremely positive development of revenues and increase noticeably on the 2014 figure
In fact, actual development in the financial year 2015 differed from these expectations High harvest volumes for
many important types of agncultural produce saw trading velumes nise but also resulted in sharp falls in prices over
the course of the year In addition, sales of crop protection products also dechned due to the extremely dry summer
As a consequence, onginal expectations regarding revenues and the operating result were not fulfilled, revenues
only exceeded the previous year's figure by a small margen, while EBIT fell significantly year on year

Significant revenue growth was anticipated in fruit trading thanks to the full-year inclusion of New Zealand company
Apollo Apples Limited However, due to one-off income in the previous year, the operating result (EBIT) was
expected to decrease sharply In 2015 Revenues performed as expected, whereas the negative expectations faled
to matenaltse In view of the mayor rise In earnings - above all from New Zeaiand Group companies

Revenues in agnicultural equipment business were expected to fall shghtly, with a proportional decline in the
operating result (EBIT) In fact, revenues declined by 3 8% and EBIT by 3 7%, which corresponded to the forecast
figures

Due to the performance of the business units, revenues in the Agriculture Segment only rose by 0 5% to

€10,154 7 mill:on, contrary to expectations of a significant ncrease There was a significant dechine in the gperating
result (EBIT) of 19 1% to €87 2 million

Revenues from conventional energies business were forecast to remain on a par with the previous year, with the
operating result (EBIT) nsing moderately Due to the sharp fall in the price of crude ol over the course of 2015, the
business unit's revenues were down significantly on the anticipated {igure for the financial year 2015 at -16 9%
The operating result counteracted this effect, performing considerably better than expected with an increase of
€9 6 milhon

According to the forecast, revenues in the Renewable Energies business sector were set to nse by a shght margin
compared to the previous year A moderate improvement in the operating resuit (EBIT) was also forecast. The

29 5% nise in revenues and the 69 2% increase in EBIT exceeded expectations considerably, as many more
projects were realised and sold in the reporting year than inthally anticipated thanks to the positive market climate
Total revenues of the Energy Segment were down on expectations at -6 4%, with moderate growth having been
forecast The operating result (EBIT), however, exceeded expectations of moderate growth by chimbing 82 6%

Marginal revenue growth was anticipated in the Building Matenals Segment. In fact, the segment’s revenues fell by
1 9% due to falling market prices A moderate improvement in the operating result (EBIT) had been assumed, but
this figure fell just short of expectations by falling 1 9%

No forecast was possible for the Other Actvities Segment, as revenue and earnings development in this business
area 1s primarily driven by opportunism in capitalising on market opportunities within the scope of BayWa's portfolio
management system

Based on the assumption of largety stable prices, a moderate nise in revenues and a noticeable improvement in
earnings in the financial year were forecast for the BayWa Group in the 2014 Management Report on the Group
Seasonal effects meant that performance in the first and second quarters if 2015 was worse than expected A
significant improvement in business performance in the third and fourth guarters of the year was unable to make up
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for the shortfalls in the first half of the year Against this backdrop, the aniginal forecast for the financial year 2015
was adjusted with the publication of the third quarter interim report fuil-year revenues and the operating result m
2015 were only expected to remain on a par with the previous year Revenues then fell short of the forecast lowered
midway through the year as a result of a further fall in prices for agricultural produce and in the conventional
energies business The operating result (EBIT) was somewhat better than expected in the adjusted forecast with
amoderate rise of 4 0% thanks to an extremely strong final quarter

Financial Position

Financial management

The aim of financial management within the BayWa Group s to provide the cash and cash equivalents required for
the purpose of conduchng regular business at all mes This task includes hedging against interest rate nisk,
currency nsk and merchandise-related market nsks by using suitable denvative instruments

Forward exchange transactions and swaps are used selectively to hedge recevables and habilities denominated in
a foreign currency These forward exchange transactions and swaps serve exclusively to hedge existing and future
recervables and llabihties from underlyings in the purchase and sale of merchandise within the scope of customary
busmness operations Hedging transactions in the BayWa Group are designed to reduce the risks from fluctuating
exchange rates The volume of open positions ansing from the respective underlyings and the resulting cash flows
form the basis for currency hedges Terms reflect those of the underlyings
In the BayWa Group, financial management has been set up as a service centre for the operating units and notas a
profit centre in its own nght. In accordance with this conservative approach to providing services, the use of fungible
financial products to generate ongial profit contnbutien in financial operations has been wawved In particular, there
are no speculative nsk positions in our financial operations

—
Daily financial management 1s focused on hquidity management through cash pooling within the whole Group and
the same-day provision of lquidity The Treasury Department uses suitable IT systems and appropriate treasury
management software for this purpose
The procurement of funds 1s orgarmsed decentrally and based on the pninciple that the national entities refinance in
the local currency of the respective country This applies mainly to activites in Eastern Europe, the USA, New
Zealand and the UK Apart from this, however, the BayWa Group conducts its business mainly in euros Treasury Is
responsible for the centralised monitoring of Group-wide financial exposures

Financial management 1s subject to the most stringent requirements imposed by an internal control system, which
includes the documentation of transactions, a hierarchy of approval and resolution procedures, comprehensive
appiication of the principle of dual control as well as the segregation of Treasury front, middle and back offices

The most impoertant finaneing principle of the BayWa Group consists in observing the principle of matching
maturiies Short-term debt s used to ftinance the working capital Investments in property, plant and equipment as
well as acquisihons are funded from equity, bonded loans and other long-term loans In addition, the project
companies in the Renewable Energies business sector have access o separate non-recourse financing (without the
lenders having access to the BayWa Group's assets and cash flows)

The management of working capital 1s a focal point at BayWa and comprises the optimisation of working capital as a
net figure for current assets less current habilites For years, BayWa has placed great importance on the best
possible working capital performance Furthermore, in 2013, a Group-wide project began to further optimise
working capital management The aim of the project is to continue to drive forward the continual reduction of the
current assets employed in the company and the resulting release of iquidity without jeopardising the company's
profitability Consistent process management along the entire turnover chain is the key to success To this end,
working capital responstbilities have been redefined, the systematic inclusion of relevant parameters has been
anchored in internal reporting systems, specific training and coaching programmes have been carned out and
existing guidelines and process descripbens have been adapted

Interest rate nsks inherent in short-term debt are covered by BayWa in the context of its risk management through
the use of simple dervative instruments Around 50% of the borrowing portfolio 1s to be secured against interest
rate risk through the respective hedging instruments This parhal hedging takes account of the seasonally induced
strong fluctuations in financing requirements
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Long-term interest rates were hedged naturally by 1ssuing bonded loans in 2015, 2014, 2011 and 2010 as fixed-
interest as well as variable-interest rate tranches were 1ssued and the interest rate risk was reduced as a result,

BayWa evolved from the cooperatives sector with which it remains closely connected through its shareholder
structure as well as through the congruence of the regional interests of banks and commerce These historical ties
form the basis for a special kind of mutual trust Particularty in the face of the great uncertainty still prevailing in the
financial markets, both sides benefit from thus partnership The cooperatve banks boast a particutarly strong primary
customer and deposit portfolio, which 1s made available for the preferential

financing of stable business models

Along wath its integration into the cooperative financial association, the broad transnational diversification of the
bank portfolio and the financial instruments, in particular, lower the financing nsk within the BayWa Group

Capntal structure and capital base

Change 1n %
1 € rllon 201 2012 2013 2044 2015 2015/14
Minonty interest 1,0452 1,0780 1,1150 10804 10759 24
Equity ratro {in %) 266 242 214 186 178 -
Short-term borrowing ' 1,697 4 19742 24217 24935 2,769 3 11
Long-term borrowtng 11,1784 1,4080 1,6625 21081 21915 40
Debt 28768 33822 40842 45018 43608 78
Debt ratio (In %) 734 758 786 814 822 -
Total capatal (equity plus debt) 38220 4,460 2 51993 56520 6,036.7 68

1 Including liabillties trom non-current assets held for sale

As at the balance sheet date, the BayWa Group equity ratio stood at 17 8% The equity base 15 a sound foundation
for a trading company and a stable platform for business to develop As an indicator, a ngid equity ratio 1s only of
hmited use for a trading company such as the BayWa Group In particular, the change in current assets with the
storage of inventonies in the form of agricultural commaodities, as well as the acquisition of project icences in the
area of renewable energies, has a direct influence on the balance sheet total and equity ratio, but actually forms the
basis for trading activities m the subsequent year As a result, the asset coverage ratio Il 1s used as a target indicator
in the BayWa Group's capital management process Equity and long-term borrowing should cover at least 90% of
non-current assets As at 31 Decemnber 2015, the asset coverage ratio stood at 100% The year-on-year reduction
n the equity ratio was due to the increase in total assets as a result of the Group's growth Long-term borrowing was
increased in November 2015 by the placement of a bonded [can with a nominal volume of €200 0 million Existing
investors accepted the swap offer with a nominal volume of €27 5 million, with the remaining €172 5 mullion able to
be placed with new investors In addition, short-term debt was taken out to expand international agricultural trade
actvities Furthermore, the method in which actuanal gains and losses from prowisions for pensions and severance
pay in previous years are offset against equity without affecting profit or loss once again led to a reduchion in

equity The reserve for actuanal losses from pension and severance pay obligations less deferred taxes came to
€-2157 milkon as at 31 December 2015 As this reserve results from a change of parameters not within the
company's control when calculating provisions for pensions and severance pay, BayWa's capital management uses
an equity ratio of 21 4% (2014 22 49%), which has been adjusted for this effect.

Short-term borrowing is used exclusively to finance short-term funds tied up in working capital The status of short-
term borrowing disclosed at year-end regularly reflects the highest level of utiisation Due to seasonal influences,
borrowang rises through preliminary stonng of eperating resources and through buying up harvest produce in the
fourth quarter of the financial year Short-term borrowing rose year on year by €275 8 mullion, or 11 1%, and
includes a nise in current habilities of €147 1 millon By contrast, long-term borrowing increased by just 4 0% or
€83 4 milhon This was largely the result of the 1ssuing of a new bonded loan of €200 0 milhon by BayWa AG in the
reporting year, €27 5 milhon of which was used to redeem bonded loans 1ssued in previous years At the same time,
obligations from bonded loans that had already been issued in previous years were reclassified into current iabilties
as they are due for repayment in the subsequent year Borrowed funds were used to expand agncultural trade
business actvities and project business in the Renewable Energies business sector In addition, three acquisitons
were financed through subsidiary T&G Global Limited in New Zealand to expand tomato and asparagus trade
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activities The acquisition of Apeilo Apples Limited's business operations was alsa financed by New Zealand
company T&G Besides the nse in financial Llabiibes, an increase in trade payables and habilites from inter-group
business relattonships and other liabihities also pushed up debt.

As at 31 December 2015, the BayWa Group’s total assets cmbed by €384 7 milion in comparison with the
previous year's figure Borrowing increased by €359 2 mithon due to the placement of an additional bonded loan as

well as the borrowing of short-term funds to expand business activities, while equity increased by €25 5 million

Cash flow statement and development of cash and cash equivalents

in € milion 2011 2012 2013 204 2015
Cash flow from operating activities =275 1500 2303 -906 190
Cash flow from investing actvities -2226 -1937 B45 -2276 ~1435
Cash flow from financing activities 2739 374 -2970 3344 987
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 870 832 921 1084 845

Cash flow from operating activities amounted to €19 0 million in the financial year 2015 With consolidated net
mcome down by €19 1 million year on year, this increase largely resulted from a non-cash result of parbcipating
interests from the contribution of shares in ajoint venture and deferred tax income, both of which were included in
the previous year's figure Besides other non-cash income recognised in the previous year’s resuit, which was
largely attributable to negative goodwill, the development of non-current provisions also contnibuted to a nse in
operating cash flow, as did a reduction in income tax payments A significant increase in inventories, in trade
recevables and in other assets not attributable to investment and financing actvities was financed by cash outflows
and a rnse in habiities from operating activibes, meaning that cash flow from operating activites was relatively even
for the financial year 2015

Cash flow from investing actwvities fell year on year by €84 1 million following cash cutflow of €143 5 milhon in the
reporting year This was pnimanly due to lower payments for company acquisitions, which fell from €142 2 million in
the previous year to €36 9 million in the financial year 2015 and were largely attributed to the acquisition of
PC-Agrar Informations- und Beratungsdienst GmbH, Great Lake Tomatoes Limited and Rianto Lirmited and the
acquisthon of Wessex Grain Ltd 's business activities Investments in intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment totalled €174 5 milion (2014 €165 2 mullion} By contrast, incoming payments from the sale of
mtangible assets, property, piant and equipment and investment property dechned by €30 3 mifion Following the
previous year's cash outflows of €31 5 million from additons and disposals of financial assets, the financtal year
2015 saw cash outflows of €7 0 million Furthermore, the dvidend receved, other mncome assumed and interest
received led to cash inflows of €10 2 million

Cash flow from financing activites came to €98 7 million in the financial year and was predominantly attributable to
the placement of a long-term BayWa AG bonded loan in November 2015 of €200 0 milhon and a short-term
bonded loan in May 2015 of €750 million In addition, funds were borrowed to fund acquisiions in New Zealand
and to finance project management business in the Renewable Energtes business sector A further €2 2 rmillion was
raised by the Group through capital iIncreases These were offset by the partial redemption of bonded loans 1ssued
in previous years of €150 0 million In addibon, cash outflows from dividend payments at the parent company and at
subsidianes totalled €33 5 million and interest payments €25 3 million The year-on-year reduction in cash flow
from financing activites was particularly the result of an increase in borrowing year on year and a simultaneous
reduction in redemption payments

tn an overall analysis of the ncoming and outgoing cash payments from operating activiies, investing and financing
activrties, and 1in consideration of changes to the group of consolidated companies and changes in foreign exchange
rates, cash outflow from operating activities was not able to be completely compensated by the incoming cash flow
from operating activities and from financing activities As a result, cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting year came to €84 5 million, which 1s €23 9 mullion lower than in the previous year
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Financial base and capntal requirements

The BayWa Group's financial base 1s primarily replenished by funds from operating actvites Furthermore, the
Group was allocated funds from the placement of a new bonded loan in the financial year 2015, these funds were
used both for company acquisitions and to finance non-current and current assets Moreover, the Group receves
tunds from measures to streamline portfelios, such as the disposal of real estate not essential to operations or non-
strategic financial participation and sale-and-lease-back transactions

Capital requirements are defined by investment financing and the ongoing financing of operations, the repayment
of financial hiabiiities and ongoing interest payments The overall view of iquidity and debt 1s determined through the
calculation of adjusted net liquidrty or net debt and used for internal financral management as well as for external
commumcation with financial investors and analysts Net hquidity and net debt is calcutated from the sum total of
cash and cash equivalents less outstanding commercial paper, bank debt and finance lease obhigations, as reported
n the balance sheet.

Matched te funds commutted, the financing structure remains largely short term, but the ratio of of long- to short-
term financing has evened out somewhat through the 1ssuing of bonded {oans in the last few financial years
Along with short-term borrowing, the Group finances also itself by way of a multi-currency Commercial Paper
Programme, the total volume of which was expanded from €400 0 milhon to €500 0 milhion i the finanaidl year
2015, as at the reporting date, drawdowns with an average term of 33 days came to €266 5 million (2014

€309 2 milion) By the end of the reporting peniod, €121 8 million {2014 €141 9 million) had been financed
from the ongoing Asset Backed Securntisation Programme

Investments

In the financial year 2015, the BayWa Group invested around €174 5 milhon in intangible assets (€21 3 million) and
property, plant and equipment (€153 2 million) together with its acquisitions These investments were primarily for
the purpose of repair and maintenance of buiidings, facilibes and office fixtures and fittings, as modern locations and
seamlessly operating facilities are a precondition for efficient logistics processes

BayWa will continue to invest in modern site infrastructure in future This includes investments in land and buildings,
wherever such investments are expedient and prudent. By contrast, real estate no longer used for operations 1s
consistently sold off The proceeds accruing from these transactions are used to reduce debt or to finance the
Group'’s growth

In 2015, roughly €64 4 million was invested In new business premises Group-wide The main focus was on the
completion of company operations and investment in sites' technical facilities

Investments in the financial year 2015 included €5 1 million in a used machinery centre at the Bamberg agncultural
equipment site A further €5 2 millkon was invested in other agricultural equipment sites in Abersfeld, Riedlingen,
Freystadt and Geretsned

In the Agncultural Trade business unit, major Investments were carred out at the sites in Leupoldsgrun

(€1 7 milhon) and Schweinfurt-Hafen (€1 4 mulion), while a further €8 2 mullion was invested in the building
matenals centres in Bad Tolz, Saal an der Donau and Nordlingen In addihon, a plot of land in GroBwallstadt was
acguired for €1 9 milien In the Frust business unit, a total of €3 8 million was invested in the sites in Kressbronn,
Ravensburg and Aillingen

In addition, a total of €10 0 million was invested in a biogas piant at the Hohenhameln site by r e Bioenergie
Betniehs GmbH & Co Vierundzwanzigste Biogas KG within the scope of an asset deal Austnan Group company
"UNSER LAGERHAUS" WARENHANDELSGESELLSCHAFT mb H carried out investments of €6 0 mullion, which
were focused on a raw materials intake plant and the construction of a building matenals centre in Klagenfurt.

Ulhimately, investment measures totalling €47 9 million began in the financial year 2015, these concern BayWa AG
sites as well as sites belonging to other Group companies and are to be compieted in the financial year 2016

Outgoing payments for company acquisthons came to €38 3 million in the financial year 2015 and were largely
attrbuted to the acquisitions of Great Lake Tomatoes Limited and Rianto Limited by New Zealand Group company
T&G Global as well as the acquisitions of PC-Agrar Informations- und Beratungsdienst GmbH and Wessex Grain
Lid 's business activities
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tncluding acquisthions, roughly 62% of total investments in non-current assets in the BayWa Group were attnbuted
tc the Agriculture Segment. The huigh share in Investments attnbuted to the Agnculture Segment reflects the
international expansion of agricultural trade and the development of the Group's business portfolic with the addition
of the Digital Farming business unit. Some 15% of total investments were made in the Energy Segment, while just
under 12% was attnbuted to the Buillding Matenals Segment and just under 11% to the Other Activities Segment.

Asset position

{n the reporting year, non-current assets increased marginally year on year by 1 1%, or €255 million, to

€2,287 2 mithon Additions to intangible assets and property, plant and equupment amounting to €213 8 milkon
within the scope of investing actviies and changes to the group of consolidated companies in core business were
offset by disposals of €23 7 million and transfers amounting to €20 9 million Adjusted for scheduled depreciation
and amortisation in the financial year of €128 2 million and exchange rate-induced increases of €1 0 milhon,
intangble assets and property, plant and equipment increased by a total of €42 0 mullion Shares in comparies
recognised at equity rose by €7 4 milhion to €203 9 milhion Besides earnings contributions from associated
companies, investment in a joint venture In renewable energies was a key factor in this development. Other financial
assets declined by €13 3 millien to €168 2 milion, pnmarly as a result of the repayment of loans receved from
sharehoiders Sales completed in the financial year 2015 or property sales planned for the coming financial year
and the resuiting recognition of the properties concerned under non-current assets held for sale led to a reduction
ininvestment real estate of €16 9 million Non-current liabilities and other assets rose by €5 5 million, whereas
deferred tax assets were up by €2 3 millien

Project developments in the Renewable Energies business sector and the international expansion of agnicultural
trade activittes saw the BayWa Group's inventories increase by €155 2 milhon year on year to €2,141 5 milion The
increase 1n financial assets from €153 4 mullion to €222 4 millon was due to the expansion of Group companies’
commodity futures recognised as financial instruments due caused by the expansion strategy in agncuitural trade
At €1,254 8 milhon, the value of other current recevables and other assets as at the reperting date chmbed by
€170 3 million year onyear This was due to a nse in trade recevables and recewvables from financing actvibes in
the case of sold project companies in the area of renewable energies This was offset by the €8 7 million and

€9 8 million reductions in non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale respectively This was
due to the disposal of the assets of Raiffeisen Kraftfutterwerke Sud GmbH as part of an asset deal as at 1 March
2015 As at the reporting date, this item only contained real estate inventories, which are intended to be sold in the
subsequent year The BayWa Group's balance sheet increased by 6 8%, or €384 7 million, to €6,036 7 million as at
the reporting date of 31 December 2015

Traditionally, BayWa has always placed an emphasis on ensuring matching maturities in the financing of assets
Current habilities of €2,769 3 million — consisting of current financial habilities, trade payables, tax, other habilities
along with current provisions and habilities from disposal groups — were offset by current assets and assets held for
sale/disposal groups of €3,749 5 mullion By the same token, there 1s roughly 143% coverage for non-current
assets amounting to €2,287 2 millicn through equity and long-term borrowing of €3,267 4 milion Ensunng
matched matunities in financing Is an smportant quahty critenion for the financing partners of BayWa in the context of
raising short-term funds
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Change in %
in € milion 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015/14
Non-current assets 1,623 4 1,7833 20940 22617 22872 11
of which [and and buldings 6420 5301 7754 8144 8454 38
of which financial assets 2106 2328 2515 1815 168.2 =73
of which investrent property 636 862 824 728 559 -232
Non-current asset ratio (in %) 414 400 403 402 379 -
Current assets 20398 24444 30618 33718 37397 09
of which inventones 1,1654 14326 1,8360 19863 21415 78
Current asset ratio {In %) 520 548 589 595 619
Assets/disposal groups held for sale 2588 2325 434 185 28 -470
Total assets 39220 44602 51993 56520 6,0367 68

General statement on the business situation of the Group

At the time the Management Report of the BayWa Group was drawn up, the Board of Management continued to
view the development of business as positive Earnings development in the Agriculture Segmentin 2015 was
negatrvely impacted by a senes of unusual external factors, but this situation did not change the medium- and long-
term business outlook of the BayWa Group In fact, BayWa benefited in 2015 from its strategic orientation in
international markets and the development of new business sectors such as renewable energies by considerably
expanding the basis of its business and noticeably reducing rebance on indmdual country markets The BayWa
Group has a well-balanced, fit-for-the-future business portfolio to underpin its success in the future

Financial Performance Indicators

BayWa orents the short-term management of its corporate dmisions with the development of key earnings
indicators EBITDA, EBIT and EBT Key earmings indicators for the segments of the BayWa Group

developed as follows in the financial year 2015

Key financial earnings figures

Eamings before interest, tax, depreciation Earmings before interest

Earmings before tax

and amortisation (EBITDA) and tax (EBIT) (EBT)

in € million Change Change Change Change Change

2015 (ebsolute} n% (absolute) n % {absohste) n %
Agricultural Trade 79 -245 -254 M6 -233 ~-359 196 -218 -526
Fruit 400 59 174 270 64 N2 213 51 318
Agrcultural Equipment 319 -14 -43 215 -08 -37 120 10 88
Digital Farming -22 - - -29 - - -29 - -
Agnculture Segment 1316 ~222 -1386 872 -206 -191 500 -1886 -271
Energy 240 o1 611 154 96 > 100 152 83 >100
Renewable Energies 908 316 535 618 253 692 506 269 > 100
Energy Segment 1148 407 550 772 349 82.8 65.8 352 > 100
Building Matenals Segment 422 -07 -186 274 -05 -19 1758 04 22
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The diference in the contributions from each segment to the total earnings of the BayWa Group n all three key
earnings indicators, EBITDA, EBIT and EBT, 1s calculated from the earnings contribution of the Other Actvities
Segment as well as on the basis of economic influence factors at Group level BayWa does not perform any
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entrepreneurial management in the Other Activities Segment, as this segment encompasses peripheral activities
that are of secondary importance in the BayWa Group Group-wide economic iInfluence factors are circumstances
not attributable to the operational management of the segments

Medium- to long-term portfoho optimisation in the BayWa Group is carned out through value-onented
management. Using economic profit as a basis, this system calculates the surplus return on invested capital (ROIC)

of the corporate divisions by means of their nsk-weighted costs of capital

Economic profit

In € million Agncultural Renewable
2015 Agncultural Trade Frut Equipment Energy Energies Building Matenals
Net operating profit 418 270 219 154 618 274
Average invested capital | 115885 2917 3882 401 8992 3053
ROIC (in %) 359 926 564 3841 687 899
Weighted average cost of caprtal
{WACC) (in %) 630 590 680 630 520 650
Diiference (ROIC/WACC) (in %) -27 336 -116 3211 167 249
Eccnomic profit by business unit -314 98 -45 129 150 76
Agriculture Energy Building Matenals
Economic profit by segment -261 279 76

1 intanglible assets + property, plant and equipment + net working capital

In the financial year 2015, the BayWa Group’s Energy and Building Materals Segments achieved posttive economic
profit (iIn other words, positive net Income after respective capital costs) The Agnculture Segment posted negative
economic profit of €-26 1 milllon Agricultural trade’s economic profit contribution to the Agricuiture Segment was
also negative at €-31 4 muillion This was primarily caused by the low amount of summer rain in Germany, which
resuited in a drop n the use of crop protection products, a sharp decline in the volume of corn collection volume
and a lack of grain drying income |n addition, low water surcharges for freight led to a ise in logistics costs The
negative economic profit of the Agricultural Equipment business unit of €-4 5 million was chiefly caused by the
decline In new machinery business The Fruit business unit ncreased its econormic profit to €9 8 million
International business was the key factor in this increase, with a record-breaking harvest in New Zealand, operating
improvements at T&G Global Limited and the full-year earnings contribution of New Zealand company Apollo
Apples Limited, which was acquired in December 2014 Economic profit cannot be calculated for the Digital
Farming business unit yet, as it was only establshed in the fourth quarter of 2015 In the Energy Segment, the
Renewable Energies business sector generated economic profit of €15 0 million thanks to strong project
management business and an increase In the number of sold plants Business with conventional energies generated
positive economic profit of €12 9 million in the reporting year, pnimarily as a result of a nse in sales volumes The
Energy Segment's economic profit totalled €27 8 million The Building Matenals Segment generated positive
economic profit of €7 6 million in the financial year 2015 due to successful optimisation of the site network

Employees

The number of employees at BayWa rose once again in 2015 By the end of the year, the BayWa Group employed
16,229 employees (2014 15917) In terms of an annual average, the number of employees rose year on year by
537 to 16,609, equating to an increase of 3 3% This change was due to a series of sirategic measures. In the
Agriculture Segment, for instance, the Fruit, Agricultural Trade and Agncultural Equipment business units were all
strengthened internationally through targeted recrutment and acquisitions In addition, the establishment of the
new Digital Farming business unit aiso resulted in an increase i the number of employees By contrast, the number
of employees in the Bullding Materials Segment decreased due to that fact that BayWa sold off its building materials
business in North Rhine-Westphaha and Rhineland-Palatinate The number of employees in the Energy Segment
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remained largely stable, with the shight deciine in conventional energtes practically evened out by the shight increase
in the Renewable Energies business sector

Development of the average number of employees in the BayWa Group

Change
2012 2013 2014 2015 2015/14 n %
Agniculture 8,730 9,038 9,489 10,094 605 64
Energy 1,564 1,720 1,830 1,825 -5 -03
Building Matenals 4,868 4118 4178 4,093 -85 -20
Other Activities 518 498 575 597 22 38
BayWa Group 15,680 15974 16,072 16,609 537 33

Personnel development - more than simply training

Motivated and highly qualified employees and managers are the cornerstone of BayWa's success Strategically
onented personnel development and training 1s therefore essential

Through its personnei development and training measures, the Group gives its employees the opportunity to make
systematic and individual progress in their careers Besides arange of training courses, the Group also ofters
numerous development programmes for a variety of target groups.

Well over 16,000 employees took part in training courses and seminars in 2015, completing aver 29,000 days’
traiming This training was focused on developing personal / social skills (over 17,000 training days) and
quabfication in specialist subjects (over 12,000 training days)

Increasing internationalisation in personnel

In June 2015, an international meeting was orgamised for the first time with personnel managers from several
international subsidiartes This meeting lard the foundatians for the further intensification of cooperation Besides
overarching international personnel measures that are already Iin place in certaun areas, a number of international
talent management projects are also planned

Quality training for a successful future

Extensive, professional training provides the best platform for a promusing future - both for trainees and for the
BayWa Group With more than 1,300 trainees in Germany and Austna, the BayWa Group ranks among the most
important companies offering trainee programmes The trainee ratio of 10 1% 1s much higher than the average The
quality of training in the 29 apprenticeships also remains at a constantly high leve!

BayWa Foundation promotes knowledge of a balanced diet among children

Securing the welfare of future generations requires actien today This includes transfernng knowledge of healthy
eating to pnmary school chiidren “Planting vegetables Harvesting health " 1s the name of the BayWa Foundation's
latest project, which stands for switching the focus from fast food and on to fresh fruit and vegetables from the
school garden Many children don't know where food comes from, how it1s made and why healthy eating 15 so
important. The result? Poor and insufficient diets are becoming increasingly widespread and can cause tiredness,
loss of concentration and poor performance at school Long-term heaith 1ssues and social problems can also be
traced back to the wrong diet For instance, the number of overweight children has increased by 50% over the past
30 years according to the KIGGS study published by the Robert Koch Institute in 2013, the number of obese
children has doubled over the same penod Through its long-term education projects, the BayWa Foundation is
striving to improve children’s nutnition and make them fit for the future More information about the BayWa
Foundation's projects can be found at www baywastiftung de

Heaithy employees in safe workplaces

Employee health and safety and the protection of the environment are key 1ssues at BayWa. As a result, measures
are being taken to prevent acaidents and damage to health and safety, such as the organisation of taulor-made
training courses and the implementation of special protective equipment Employees are also supported in ther
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efforts to mamntain their physical and mental health over their entire professional careers through a range of back
therapy courses, exercise classes, company sport programmes, nutritional advice, occupational health advice and
stress-prevention seminars

Sustainability at BayWa

As an international trading and services group, BayWa assumes its ecological and social responsibility With its
products and services, BayWa covers the basic human needs for food, energy and shelter It gears its business
practices towards the needs of future generations and pursues strategic sustainahility targets BayWa's
sustainabiity philosophy anses from its cooperative tradition and 1s based on binding values

The Code of Conduct, adopted by the Board of Management in 2015, apphes to the employees, managers and
Board of Management or Board of Director members of all companies in the BayWa Group It defines the standards
for general business conduct, as well as for special topics, such as legal conformity or the avoidance of conflicts of
interest. Other binding guidelines for fair conduct with integnty include BayWa's Articles of Association, its
corperate guidelines, the management policy as well as the regulations on corporate governance

As an integrated member of the business world and society, BayWa cultivates a continuous dialogue with its
stakeholders, which it achieves through transparent communication as part of its investor and public relations
activities, through personal dialogue with customers and employees, by attending events and by having efficient nsk
and complaints management

BayWa demanstrates ecological responsibility in 1ts care business, as well as in its operations BayWa includes
requirements in its range of products and services which climate change involves Inits operational processes,
BayWa relies on renewable energies and renewable raw matenals, environmentally friendly products, as well as an
efficient use of resources and transport logistics By providing them with advice and services, BayWa supports its
customers and suppliers in their efforts to achieve their own environmental targets

Withmn the scope of its social responsibility, BayWa pursues a policy of sustainable personnel management Secure
Jobs and an cccupational health management scheme are just as much a part of these efforts as continuous
professional development for employees BayWa 1s one of the leading companies in Germany where traming 1s
concerned

BayWa's commitment to society 1s reflected in the work of the BayWa Foundation {www baywastiftung de), among
other things The BayWa Foundation supports long-term education projects on healthy eating and renewable
energy BayWa covers the Foundation’s administrative costs and doubles the donations received BayWa s tied
through tradrtion to those regions where 1t operates Here, too, BayWa contributes to society In the reporting year,
BayWa promoted the young sporting talent of the Bavarian Football Assocation (BFV) and supported the
basketball players of FC Bayern as the main sponsor

Since 2014, BayWa has published detaiied information on its sustanability strategy and activities in the defined
fields of action — Market, Environment and Climate, Employees and Quality of Life — in an annual Sustainability
Report This can be found online at www baywa.com/en/sustainabibity/
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Takeover-relevant Information

Composition of subscribed capital

The subscribed capital of BayWa AG amounted to €89,046,988 80 on the reporting date and 1s dmvided up into
34,783,980 registered shares with an anthmetical portion of €2 56 each in the share capital Of the shares issued,
33,419,593 are registered shares with restricted transferability and 121,136 recently registered shares with
restricted transferabiity (dvidend-beanng employee shares from 1 January 2016 onwards) 1,243,251 shares are
not registered shares with restricted transterability With regard to the rnights and cbligations transferred by the
shares (e g the nght to a portion of the unappropnated retamed earmings or to particrpate in the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders), referance 1s made to the provisions laid down under the German Stock Corporation Act
{AktG) There are no special rights or preferences

Restnictions on voting nights and the transfer of shares
Pursuant to Section 68 para. 2 of the German Stock Corparation Act (AkiG), in conjunction with Article 6 of
BayWa AG's Articles of Association, the purchase of shares with restricted transferability by individuals and legal
entities under cvil and public law requires the approval of the Board of Management of BayWa AG BayWaholds a
small portfolio of registered shares (19,500 units), which, pursuant to Section 71b of the German Stock Corporation
Act (AktG), do not carry voting nghts as long as they are in BayWa's possession There are no cther restnctions that
relate to the voting nghts or the transfer of shares
Affilated companies with over 10% of voting nghts
On the reporting date, the following sharehoiders held stakes in the capital that exceeded 10% of the voting nghts
Bayensche Raiffeisen-Betethgungs-AG, Beilngries, Germany
Raiffersen Agrar Invest GmbH, Vienna, Austna

Legal requirements and prowvisions of the Articles of Association on the appointment or dismissal |
of members of the Board of Management and on amendments to the Articles of Association

Suppiemental to Sections 84 et seq of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG), Article 9 of the Articles of

Association of BayWa AG on the appointment or dismussal of members of the Board of Management also requires
members of the Board of Management to he appointed by the Supervisory Board Members of the Board of

Management are appointed for a maximum term of five years, and reappointment 1s permitted The Supervisory

Board appoints the Chairman of the Board of Management

Pursuant to Section 179 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) in conyunchon with Article 21 of the Articles |
of Association of BayWa AG, amendments to the Articles of Assccration are always passed by the Annual General |
Meeting of Shareholders

Authonsation of the Board of Management relating in particular to the option of 1ssuing or buying
back shares

Subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board, the Management Board 1s authonsed to raise the share capital
one or several imes on or before 18 May 2020 by up to a nominal amount of €4,689,891 84 through the 1ssuance
of new registered shares with restnicted transferability against cash contribution to the employees of BayWa AG and
of affliated companies within the meaning of Sections 15 et seq of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG)
Shareholders’ subscription nghts are excluded Subject to approval by the Supervisory Board, the Board of
Management 1s authonised to specify the further content of the share nghts and conditons under which the shares
are to be issued

Subject to approval by the Supervisary Board, the Board of Management 1s also authonsed to raise the share capital
one or several times on or before 31 May 2016 by up to a nominal amount of €12,500,000 through the 1ssuance of
new registered shares with restricted transferability against contributions in kind The authorisation can be used n
partial amounts Shareholders’ subscription rights are excluded Subject to approval by the Supervisory Board, the
Board of Management is authonsed to specify the further content of the share rnights and conditions under which
the shares are to be 1ssued

Furthermore, subject to approval by the Supervisory Board, the Board of Management is authorised to raise the

share capial on or before 31 May 2018 by up to a nominal amount of €10,000,000 through the 1ssuance of new
registered shares against contributions inkind The authorsation can be used in partial amounts Shareholders’
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subscnption nghts are excluded Subject to approval by the Supervisory Beard, the Board of Management is
authonsed to specify the further content of the share nghts and conditions under which the shares are to be 1ssued

Furthermore, the Board of Management 1s authorised to offer held shares to third parties within the framework of
the acquisition of or investment in compamies or of mergers and to withdraw part or all of the shares without
requiring a further resolution to be passed by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

The Board of Management has not been further authonsed by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to buy
back shares There are no agreements within the meaning of Section 315 para. 4 tems 8 and 9 of the German
Commercial Code (HGB)

Significant Events after the Reporting Date

On 26 January 2016, the Bundeskartellamt (German federal antitrust authority) conducted a search in a number of !
offices at the BayWa AG headquarters in Munich, Germany, on the basis of a warrant 1ssued by the District Court of
Bonn The investigation is based on the suspicion that employees of the company were allegedly involved in
agreements aimed at restricting compettion in the sale of agncultural equipment. According to the court order
authonsing the search, several companies from the industry are being investigated No further details on the
accusations were available to the company at the time of the conclusion of the consolidated financial staternents
BayWa AG will cooperate fully with the German federal antitrust authonity to clanfy the matter

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, will take over the majority interest in the Dutch supplier of exotic fruits and
vegetables, TFC Holland BV (TFC) based in De Lier, the Netherlands, subject to approval by the antitrust
authonties The Munich-based trading and services group will receve 68 4% of the shares for a purchase price of
€28 7 million The takeover 1s an important step for BayWa in its international growth strategy in the Agniculture
Segment TFC has long-standing international trade relations in all procurement markets for exotic fruits — mainly
for avocado, mango, ginger and citrus fruits, as well as with the European food retail industry By expanding its
pertfolo in the growth market for exotic speciality fruits, in particular in the “ready-to-eat” sector, BayWa AG1s
strengthening its position as a leading international supplier of exotic and pome fruit

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, acquired 100% of the shares in Evergrain Germany GmbH & Co KG, Hamburg,
Germany, on 29 January 2016 Evergrain is specialised in international trading with malting barley With the
takeover, BayWa s expanding its specialites business internationally and aims to take a leading role in the malting
barley trade in future The biggest market potential for malting barley hes in the European Union and increasingly in
the growth markets of South America and Asia.

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, acquired the project rights for a total of 31 wind energy projects from juw, a project
developer based in Worrstadt, Germany, through the Group company BayWar e Wind GmbH, Munich, Germany
The portfolio comprises an output of around 375 MW at different locattons in Germany, for the most part in North
Rhine-Westphaha and Rhineland-Palatinate BayWar e renewable energy GmbH will implement the prosects and
complete them in line with our business made! The projects are at different stages of development. BayWare 1s
anticipating approval for nearly one third of these projects in 2016 Following this, the aim s to immediately
commence construction BayWa r e expects the first wind farms from the new portfolio to be commissioned as early
as 2017

Remuneration Report

The Remuneration Report 1s part of the Management Report and explains the system of remuneration for members
of the Board of Management and the Supenvisory Board

Remuneration of the Board of Management

The remuneration system, inciuding the main contractual components, i1s reviewed by the Supervisory Board once a
year and adjusted If necessary

Since 1 January 2010, the remuneraton of members of the Board of Management has comprised an annual fixed
salary, a short-term vanable component (annual bonus) and a long-term vanable component (knawn as the bonus
bank) The ratio of fixed to vanable short-term remuneration and long-term vanable remuneration is roughly 50 to
20 to 30 based on full (100%) achievement of goals The non-performance-related component comprises an
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annual fixed salary and benefits, such as the use of a company car and contributions to accident and health
insurance Short-term variable remuneration takes the form of an annual bonus The amount of this bonus depends
on the extent to which objectives, determined by the Supervisary Board and geared to individually agreed goals and
to the successful development of the company's business (earnings before tax), are achieved If the targets are
achieved, the agreed bonuses are paid out in full If the targets are exceeded, the bonus will be increased, but only
up to a maxamum amount {cap) of 150% If the targets are not fulfilled, the bonus will be reduced proportionately
Both negative and positive developments are therefore taken into account in calculating short-term variable
remuneration

The long-term variable component takes the form of what 1s known as a bonus bank The bonus bank will be *
supplemented or charged on a yearly basis depending on the extent to which objectives, inked to the success of
the company (earnings before tax) and determined by the Supemsory Board for three years in advance, have been
achieved, exceeded or undershot If objectives are exceeded, the amount which can be transferred to the bonus
bank s capped at 150% of the target figure If there 1s a credit balance on the bonus bank, one third will be
provisionally paid out for financial year 2015 to the members of the Board of Management. The remaining two
thirds of the credit balance on the bonus bank remain in the bonus bank The amount 1s pad inearly, in other words,
the amount carried In the bonus bank will be paid out provisienally to members of the Board of Management in
equal instalments across three financial years, provided there 1s a suffictent credit balance in the bonus bank and
after calculating negative bonuses If, owing to payments made in previous years or a charge reducing the bonus
bank, there 1s a negative balance in the bonus bank, the respective Board of Management members are ohliged to
pay back the provisional payments made in the two preceding years Both negative and positive developments are
therefore also taken into account in calculating long-term variable remunerabon Alongside the agreed cap on both
components of remuneration, there 1s also a cap imposed for extracrdinary developments

In addition, there are pension commitments for the members of the Board of Management. These commitments are
based partly on the most recent fixed salary (30%) and partly on the number of years of service to the company
(with increases limited to 35% and 50% of the salary most recently received) The retirement age has been set at
65 years (full year) Since 1 December 2012, ali cbligations from pension commitrnents have been transferred to an
external pension fund in the form of an earned entitiement, or to a provident fund Running payments made to the
pension fund or provident fund are included in the overall remuneration disclosed for the Board of Management
There are no commitments In the employment contracts of the Board of Management members if service to the
company 1s prematurely terminated There are also no Change of Control clauses

The total remuneration of the Board of Management for the financial year 2015 came to €6 326 million

(2014 €6 519 mullion), of this amount, €2 262 million (2014 €2 300 million) is vanable Contributions amournting
to €1 105 million {2014 €1 230 million) were paid In benefits after termination of the employment contract
{pensions)

The remuneration of the Board of Management is not itemised Instead, it 1s divided up into fixed and vanable/
performance-related amounts and disclosed once a year in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The relevant resolution was passed by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in accordance with Section 286
para. 5 of the German Commercial Code {(HGB) on 19 May 2015 (Code Item 4 2 4 sentence 3) There 1s more
information on other remuneration In the Notes to the Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial Statements

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board

The remuneration of the Supervisory Board is based on the responsibilities and the scope of tasks of the members
of the Supervisory Board as well on as the Group's financial situation and performance

Since 1 January 2010, members of the Supervisory Board have receved fixed annual remuneration of €10,000,
payable after the conclusion of the financial year, plus vanable remuneration of €250 for each cash dividend portion
of €0 01 per share approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders which 1s distributed to shareholders in
excess of a share in profit of €0 10 per share Vanable remuneration 1s due and payable at the end of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders, which has passed a resclution on the aforementioned cash dividend portion

The Charrman of the Supervisory Board receves three times the amount and the Vice Charrman twice the amount
of remuneration paid as described m the paragraph above Additional fixed annual remuneration of €2,500 1s paid
for commrttee work The chairmen each receive three times the respective amount

Supervisory Board members who serve on the Supervisory Board and/or its commuttees for oniy part of the
financial year will recerve remuneration on a proportionate basis
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{n addition, they are reimbursed for ther expenses and value added tax which falls due on account of their activities
as member of the Supervisory Board or ts committees Moreover, Supervisory Board members wall be included in
any D&O insurance taken out in the interest of the company covering personal habtlity in an appropriate amount
The company pays the insurance premiums

The total remuneration of the Supenvisory Board comes to €0 702 milion (2014 €0 686 mullion), of which
€0 369 million is variable (2014 €0 351 milion}

Disclosure of remuneration paid to the members of the Supervisory Board 1n the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements has not been itemised (reason given in the Declaration of Conformity)

Opportunity and Risk Report

Opportunity and nisk management

The corporate policy of the BayWa Group 1s geared toward weightng up the opportunities against the risks of
entrepreneurship in aresponsible way The management of opportunities and nisks 1s an ongoing task of
entrepreneunal actvity designed to ensure the long-term success of the Group

This enables the BayWa Group to innovate, secure and improve what 1s already in place The management of
opportunities and risks 15 closely ahigned to the BayWa Group's long-term strategy and medium-term planning The
decentralised regional organisation and management structure of operating business enables the Group to dentify
trends, requirements, and the opportunities and rnisk potential of frequently fragmented markets at an early stage,
analyse them and take action which 1s both flexible and market oriented Internationalisation also allows BayWa to
tap new business oppaortunities, which in turn reduces its dependence on the indwvidual country markets and ther
nsks Moreover, the systematically intense screening of the market and of peer competitors 1s carned out with a
view to identifying opportunities and nisks This 1s flanked by ongoing communication and the targeted exchange of
information between the individual parts of the Group, which leverages additional opporturuties and synergy
potential

Pnnciples of opportunity and nsk management

BayWa exploits opportunities that anise in the context of its business activihies but, at the same time, also enters into
entrepreneurtal nsks The identification of entrepreneunal opportunibies, the safeguarding of the assets and the
enhancing of enterprise value therefore necessitate an opportunity and nsk management system

The prninciples underlying the system setin place within the BayWa Group to identify and monitor nsks specific to
the business have been described in a nsk management manual approved by the Board of Management In
addition, the Internal Audit Department regularly audits the internal nsk management system which supports the
processes SO certifications for the standardisation of workflows and for nsk avoidance, as well as taking out
insurance policies, supplement the Group's management of nsk

Mereover, the BayWa Group has established binding goals and conductin its corporate policy, ethical principles and
Code of Conduct, which have been implemented throughout the Group They regulate individual empioyee actions
when applying the corporate values, as well as their fair and responsible conduct towards suppliers, customers and
colleagues

Opportunity and nsk management within the BayWa Group

In the BayWa Group, opportunity and nsk management is an integral component of the planning and management
and control processes A comprehensive risk management system records and monitors both the development of
the Group and any existing weak peints on an ongoing basis The nsk management system covers all segments and
1s included as a key component of reporting A particularly mportant task of nisk management is to guarantee that
risks to the Group as a going concern are identified and kept to a mimimum This enables the management of Group
companies to react swiftly and effectively All unuts have nisk officers and nsk reporting officers who are responsible
for implementing the reporting process

The reporting process classifies opportunities and risks into categories and estimates thewr probable occurrence and
potential financial impact The system 1s based on individual assessments, supported by the relevant management
processes, and forms an integral part of core activities It starts with strategic planning and proceeds through {o
procurement, sales and distribution and, finally, to counterparty risk management As an extension of the planning
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process that takes place in the business areas, the procurement and sales organisations and centrahsed functions,
the opportunity and nsk management system serves to detect and assess potential divergences from expected
developments In addition to identifying and assessing key developments influencing business, this system
facihitates the pricritsaton and implementation of activities As a result, the BayWa Group can make better use of
the opportunrties while averting or reducing the risks

A cornerstone of the risk management system is the risk reports, which are regularly prepared by the operating
units These reports are subject to evaluation by the Board of Management and by the heads of the business
unrts The systematic development of existing and new systems with a built-in early warning component makes
an indispensable contribution to further strengthening and building up a Group -wide opportunity and nisk culture
In a targeted manner

A key component and, at the same time, an evolution of the opportunity and nsk management i1s the Risk Board,
which has been in place since the financial year 2009 Presided over by the Chief Executive Officer, the Risk Board,
which consists of operations managers and support staff, meets regularly to discuss and assess operational
opportunities and risks Minuted meetings are used to develop an understanding of the opportunities and risks and
form the basis of the measure of nsk applted to operational decisions

The Group-wide nsk management system for the agriculture group implemented in 2014 includes the business
activities of BayWa, the Cefetra Group, BayWa Agrarhandel GmbH and BayWa Agrar International BV The
minimum requirements for nsk management (MaRisk) published by the German Financial Supervisory Authonty
(BaFn) serve as a benchmark for BayWa's nsk management The mirimum requirements for risk management
(MaRisk) contain regulations for identifying, assessing, managing and monitoning all major nsk types, including
counterparty nisk as well as operational risks, such as quality and logistics nsks BayWa adapted the standards
established in the inancial services sector and at leading trading companies for its Agrnicultural Trade business unit
due to the flexible and practical framework of the material regulations Appropriate and effective nsk management
pursuant to the mimmum requirements for risk management (MaRisk) comprises, in particular, the formulation of
strategies and the estabiishment of internal control procedures, taking into account the nsk-bearing capacity The
internal control system consists in particular of

« Arrangements governing the organisational structure and workflow,

= Processes for dentifying, evaluating, managing, monitering and reporung risks (rnisk management and control
processes), and

» The establishment of a risk controiling function

The positions, including spreads (basis risks), are determined and monitored for all Group companies for the
purposes of market risk management on each tfrading day Alongside volume mits, value-based procedures serve
the nsk-appropriate management of the positions These procedures include the regular mark-to-market valuation
of pending agncultural trade transactions and the determination of the trading results derved from this, as well as
the portfolio-based value-at-rnisk procedure In addition, scheduled and ad hoc stress tests are performed to
recognise the effects that extraordinary market price changes have on profit and loss and, where necessary,
implement measures to reduce nsks The trading positions of the agriculture group as well as the risks these pose
are reported to the operating units local risk officers on a daily basis as well as to the Board of Management in the
form of aweekly Risk Report.

These controi mechamisms are supported by a standardised, Group-wide IT system solution for nsk management
that was introduced in 2014, which sees all funchons and processes being monitored by an external auditing
company within the scope of user acceptance testing

The Agricultural Risk Committee is part of sk governance and serves as the highest decision-making body within
the agnculture group It 1s composed of members of the Board of Management and meets regularly and when
warranted The Agncultural Risk Committee decides on risk guidelines and lirit systems for the Agnicultural Trade
business unit and, where necessary, implements nsk-controiling and mitgating measures

A form of nsk controlling that 1s independent of trading was established at both the leve! of the Group and in the
indmdual agncultural trading companies to ensure that the provisions of the Agnicultural Risk Committee, including
compliance with the imits, are implemented in full Group Risk Control 1s responsible for the Group-wide
developments and implementation of nsk management, nsk momitering and risk reperting methods, processes and
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systems The risk officer’s responsibility at the trading companies covers all nsk processes within the company,
including mit monitoning and reporting The Agncultural Risk Controlling Board, which compnses Group Risk
Control as well as the nisk officers of the trading units, i1s also part of risk governance and aims to promote the
regular, at least weekly, structured exchange on nisk-relevant incidents

The Agricultural Coordmation Center {ACC) established for improving the commercial coordination of agnicultural
trading activities in the previous year underwent further development in the reperting year and was integrated into
the newly created orgarisatronal unit known as the Economics and Public Affairs Department (EPAD} Alongside
global market momitoring, EPAD is responsible for prepanng market analyses for all agncultural actmibes of the
BayWa Group |n order to coordinate trading management, a global bock system (GBS) was established It serves to
coordinate the trading and risk positions of individual product ines with each other in addition to optimising them It
does so on an overarching scale that includes all national and international actwities and regions in the trade of
grain, oilseed and related products

Macroeconomic opportunities and nisks

General economic factors have an influence on consumer behaviour and investment patterns in BayWa's core
markets However, these factors have less of an influence on BayWa than on other companies BayWa's business
model 1s pnmarily geared to satisfying fundamental human requirements, such as the need for food, shelter,
mobility and the supply of energy Accordingly, the impact of cyclical fluctuations is likely to be less strong than in
other sectors As aresuit, BayWa 1s even able to turn certain opporturuties ansing in times of crisis to its advantage
through, for instance, the identification and acquisition of suitabie companies with a view to building up or
expanding existing or new areas of business BayWa 1s, however, unable to fully escape from severe setbacks to
international economic development as a result of the global decline in prices for raw matenals, for example

Sector and Group-specific opportunities and nsks

Changes in the political framework, such as changes to the regulation of markets for indvidual agricuitural products
or tax-related government subsidies of energy carriers, in addion to volatile markets, create nsks At the same time,
however, they open up new prospects Extreme weather conditions can have a direct impact on offerings, quahty,
pricing and trading in agncultural produce and also downstream on the operating resources business This is offset
by the rise in product and geographical dversification in the Agriculture Segment, as this has reduced the depen-
dence on individual markets and increased procurement and marketing flexibility In addiion, BayWa counters
quality-related risks with sampling and controls Risks that arise from deterioration in the quality of inventories are
reduced through the apphcation of professional storage standards Logistics nisks from a lack of availabie transport
capacrties due to weather or strikes are identified in good time thanks to early detection systems and subsequently
managed Global cimate changes are also having a long-term effect on the agnicultural sector The global demand
for agricultural produce, particularty grain, continues to grow This may give nise to a sustained pnce uptrend Fruit-
growing activities pose a financial nisk to the Group on account of the delay between cash outflow for buying,
growing and matntaining the trees and vines and the costs of the harvest, on the one hand, and cash inflow from the
sale of the fruit on the other This risk 1s managed by actively monitoring net working caprtal The development of
income 1n the agncultural sector filters through directly to investment capacity and propensity and therefore to the
sale of high-end agnicultural equipment.

In the energy business, renewable energies are particularly affected by changes in support and subsidy measures In
ight of this, geographic diversification stabilises the development of revenues and profit, while diversification across
a number of different energy carrers - especialty wind energy, solar power and biomass - mitigates risk in certain
markets that remain strongly dependent on subsidisation Climatic nsks {wind, sunshine) alse play a role for
atfihated BayWa electricity-generating companies in the field of renewable energies Long-term surveys mean that
average wind and sunshine are relatively easy to forecast in the medium term, although both positve and negative
deviations can occur at short notice Plant availability also poses a nsk, though this i1s greatly reduced by the
assortment of proven components provided by well-known manufacturers The conclusion of full-service
mantenance contracts ensures that mamtenance and reparr work 1s perfermed within defined time periods

Poiitical and economic factors exert the man influence on demand in the construction sector Pohtical factors of
influence include, for instance, special depreciation for listed buildings, measures to promote energy efficiency and
the construction of social housing At the same time, the ageing housing stock in Germany wilt encourage growing
dernand for modermisation and renovation In the Buillding Matenals Segment, the BayWa Group 15 a franchiser of
DIY and garden centres After the inclusion of BayWa Bau- und Gartenmarkte in a joint venture with Hellweg, the
newly established BayWa Bau- und Gartenmarkte GmbH & Co KG, operational management was transferred to

.
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Hellweg In light of this, the nsk anses that the franchise company in the BayWa Group will no longer be able to fulfil
its contractual service obligations towards franchisees in the previous manner and quality Among other things, this
may lead to claims for damages on the part of franchisees This nsk was countered by concluding long-term
contracts with Hellweg

Opportunities and nsks from financial instruments

In addihion to fixed- and vanable-rate financial nstruments, which are subject to varying degrees of interest rate
nsks, the BayWa Group also uses dervative hedging instruments, such as options and futures contracts, to hedge
its commodity trading In addition to interest rate nisk, these dervative hedging instruments are also subject to the
nsk of price changes in the underlying and, depending on the base currency in which the dervative hedge 1s
denomunated, currency nsk Provided these transactions are not concluded through a stock exchange, there 1s also
a counterparty nsk By the same token, changes to interest rates, currency exchange rates or forward market prices
can lead to unplanned opportunities

Price opportunities and nsks

BayWa trades in merchandise with very high price volatility, such as grain, ollseed, fertilisers, mineral oil, biomethane
and solar components, especially in its Agriculture and Energy Segments The warehousing of the corresponding
merchandise and the conclusion of supply contracts governing the acquisition of goods in future means that BayWa
15 also exposed to the nisk of price fluctuahons Whereas the risk inherent in rmineral oils and biomethane 1s relatively
low due to BayWa's pure distribution function, fluctuations in the price of grain, oilseed, ferhiisers and solar
components may incur greater nsks owing to their warghousing if there 1s no matching in the agreements on the
buying and selling of merchandise Aside from absolute price nisks, different developments in terms of local
premiums, the pnice curve over ime and in product quality can also influence the course of business | there are no
hedging transactions in place at the tme when agreements are signed, the ensuing nsk s monitored on an ongoing
basis by the respective executive bodies Whenever necessary, appropnate measures to imitnisk are taken BayWa
also operates as a project developer in the field of renewable energies This business harbours a risk that, for
instance, the planring and building of solar power plants, wind farms and biogas plants are delayed and that they
may be connected to the gnd later than oniginally planned In such cases, if the deadline for the further reduction in
feed-n tanffs 1s not adhered to, there 1s a nsk that the low feed-in and electncity Income could result in the
profitability of the projects being lower than planned

The BayWa Group uses a portfolio-based value-at-nisk method to measure and control risks from commodity
futures, which are treated as financial instruments in the sense of 1AS 39 (international Accounting Standard) The
value-at-nisk used by BayWa aims to quantify the negative changes in the value of a portfolio, which - with a certain
degree of probability (95%) ~ will not be exceeded during a defined period of ime (five trading days) The value-at-
nsk calculated as at 31 December 2015 amounted to €2 633 mithon and indicates that the potential loss from the
commodity futures considered will, with a probability of 95%, not exceed €2 693 million within the next five trading
days

Foreign currency opportunities and nsks

BayWa's business activities are largely located in the euro zone I foreign currency positions anse from goods and
services transactions or projects, they are always hedged without delay Other payment obligations or recevables
denorminated in a foreign currency are hedged at the tme when they anse Speculative borrowing or investing
funds denominated in foreign currencies i1s prohibrted

Share pnce opportunities and risks
To a small extent, the BayWa Group’s investment portfolio comprises direct and indirect investments in histed
companies Equity investments are continuously monitored on the basis of their current market values

Interest rate opportunities and nisks

Interest rate nsk posittons anise from the Group's floating-rate financing activihes, especially from the 1ssuing of
short-term commercral papers, taking out short-term loans, as well as variable-interest bonded loans Short-term
borrowing 1s used mainly to finance working capital To reduce the interest rate nsk, which s not hedged using a
natural hedge, BayWa uses dervatives instruments in the form of futures, interest rate caps and swaps

in the current financial year, the issuance of another bonded loan further reduced the share of vanable-rate habilibes
and increased the share of fixed-rate habiittes As a result, it was possible to reduce the average interest rate for
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variable-rate financial labilities to 1 0225% (2014 1 5%) A change in this interest rate of plus 1 0% to 2 0225%
would cause interest expenses to nse by €3 192 million

Due to the present market environment with negative refinancing rates, a reduction of the interest rate would have
no impact on the current interest expenses

Legal and regulatory opportunities and risks

The companues of the Group are exposed to risks in connection with Iitigatton in which they are currently invotved or
may be involved in the future This kind of htigation comes about in the course of normal business activities, in
particular in relation to the assertion of claims from services and delivenes that are not up to standard or from
payment disputes Legal risks can also rise from breaches of compliance regulations by individual employees
Antirust nvestigations were conducted at vanous agricultural companies in Germany in 2015, including BayWa,
with regard to crop protection wholesale operations The investigation 1s ongoing As at the time of the conclusion of
the consoldated financial statements, the findings of the investigation were not available, even i part Accordingly,
no provisions have been made, aside from those for legal counsel, as the Board of Management 1s currently unable
to assess the situation BayWa establishes provisions for the event of such lihgation nsks if the occurrence of an
cbligation event s probable and the amount can be adequately estimated In the indmidual case, actual utiisation
may exceed the reserve amount,

Changes in the regulatory environment can affect the Group's performance In particular, this includes government
intervention tn the undertying condstions for the agncultural industry and the renewable energies business Negative
impacts are related to the adjustment, reduction or abolition of funding measures Conversely, new regulatory and
legislative developments influencing bioenergy can also resutt in opportunities In the construchon sector, changes
to building or fiscal regulations may also have an impact on the development of business

Ptant efficiency in terms of energy generation using renewable energy carmers s strongly rehant on the regulatory
environment and government subsidies Poliically motivated changes to subsidy frameworks — particularly the
retroactive reduction or abolition of feed-in tanffs - can have a major iImpact on the value of these plants either
through a fall in potential disposal gans in the future or through lower incoming cash flow from the operation of the
plants BayWa combats the potential implications of such nsks on earnings by pursuing a threefold diversification
strategy In its business portfolio for renewable energies by country, by energy carrier and by business unit (projects
and service, on the one hand, and trade on the other)

Credit and counterparty nsks

As part of its entrepreneunal activities, the BayWa Group has an important function as a source of finance for its
agncultural trading partners |n the context of so-called cultivation contracts, the Group 1s exposed to a financing nisk
ansing from the advance financing of agricultural resources and equipment, the repayment of which 1s made
through acquiring and selling the harvest Moreover, BayWa grants financing to commercial customers particularly
in the construction sector in the form of payment terms of a considerable scope Beyond this, there are the
customary default risks inherent in trade recewvables Risks are kept to a minimum by way of an extensive debt
monitoring system which spans all business units To this end, credit limits are defined through a decumented
process of approval and monitared on an ongoing basis

Alongside credrt risks, counterparty nsks are also reviewed on a reguiar basis in the Agricultural Trade business unit,
this way, changes in market prices refating to outstanding sales and procurement contracts are measured in order
to manage the nsk of non-fulfilment of contractual obligations ¢

There 15 currently no discernibie concentration of default nisk from business relationships with indwidual debtors or
groups of debtors The maximum credit risk exposure on the reporting date corresponds to the book value of this
class The expected default nsk amounts to €12 604 milion (2014 €15 746 million)

Liquidity risks

The liquidity nisk 1s the risk that the BayWa Group may not - or only to a imited extent - be able to fulfil its financial
obhgations In the BayWa Group, funds are generated by operations and by borrowing from external financial
institutions In addition, financing instruments, such as multi-currency commercial paper programmes or asset-
backed secuntisation, are used as well as bonded loans Existing credrt lines are therefore measured to an extent
deemed sufficient to guarantee business performance at all imes - even in the event of growing volume The
financing structure therefore accounts for the pronounced seasonality of business activities Owing to the
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diversification of the sources of financing, the BayWa Group does not currently have any nisk clusters with respect to
fiquidity The BayWa Group'’s financing structure with its mostly matching maturities ensures that interest-related
opportunities are reflected within the Group

Rating of the BayWa Group

BayWa enjoys a positive rating among banks This achievement s due to the solidity as well as to the long and
successful history of the company and its high enterprise value, underpinned by assets such as real estate In 2015,
the BayWa Group was again able to rasse its credit faciiiies and 1ssue a bonded loan For reasons of cost
effectiveness, BayWa deliberately dispenses with the use of external ratings

Opportumties and nisks associated with personnel

As regards personnel, the BayWa Group competes with other companies for highly qualified managers, as well as
for skilled and motivated staff The Group compames continue to require qualfied personnel in order to secure
future success Excessvely hugh employee fluctuation, brain drain and failure to win juntor staff loyalty may have a
detnimental effect on the Group's business performance BayWa counteracts these risks by offering its employees
extensive training and continuous professional development in order to secure expertise Management based on
trust, the tasking of employees in ine with their natural talents and abilries, as well as the definition of and
adherence to our ethical pninciples creates a positive working environment.

At the same time, BayWa AG promotes the ongoing training and professional development of its employees With
more than 1,300 trainees in Germany and Austria in 2015, the Group ranks among the largest companies offering
traiming speaifically in rural areas BayWa recruits a large majonity of its future specialist and managenal employees
from the ranks of these trainees Long years of service to the company are atestament to the great loyalty that
employees show to BayWa. This attitude creates stabilily and continuity and also secures the transier of expertise
down the generations

IT opportunities and nsks

The use of cutting-edge information technology characterises the overall business actvity of the BayWa Group All
key business processes are supported by IT and mapped using state-of-the-art software solutions In a trading
company with high numbers of employees, having work processes supported electronically 1s imperative The
continuous review and revising of processes, however, involves more than the mere implementation of new IT
compenents [tis always accompanied by an optimisation of process workflows, as a resuit of which opportunities in
the form of synergy and cost savings potential can be identified and realised At the same time, the nisk inherentin
the system rises in tandem with the growing complexity and dependency on the availabiity and reliabiiity of the IT
systems

To realise the opportunities and minwimise the risks, the IT skills and expertise of the BayWa Group are always kept
up to date The resources are pooled in RI-Solution GmbH, a BayWa subsidiary that provides the Group companies
with [T services at the highest standard Extensive precautionary measures, such as firewalls, virus protection
updated on a daity basis, disaster recovery plans and training 1n data protection, serve to safeguard data processing
Segregated 1n organisational terms, a data protection officer monitors compliance with security and data protection
standards

QOverall assessment of the opportunity and nsk situation by Group management

An overall assessment of the current opportunity and nisk situation shows that there are no nsks which could
endanger the Group as a going concern There are currently no such rnisks discernible for the future either Allin all,
the nsks to the BayWa Group are imited and manageable

Along with potentrally non-influenceable or only indirectly influenceable geopolitical risks and macroeconomic nisks,

operational nsks are also the focus of monitoring As far as the latter are concerned, the BayWa Group has taken
approprate measures to manage and control these nisks
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Internal Control System and Risk Management System in Relation to the
Group Accounting Process

The Internal Control System (ICS), which monitors accounting processes, Is a key component of opportunity and
nsk management The BayWa Group has set in place a professional control system, which has been certified in
many areas, comprising measures and processes to safeguard its assets and to guarantee the presentation of a true
and fair view of the result of operations

The consolidated financial statements are drawn up through a centralised process Complance with legal provisions
and regulations pertaning to the Articles of Association duning this process 1s guaranteed by the prescribed
accounting standards Corporate Accounting acts as a direct point of contact for the managers of the subsidrartes in
matters pertaining to reporting and the annual and intenm financial statements and draws up the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards)

A control system which monitors the accounting process ensures the complete and timely logging of all business
transactions in accordance with the statutory provisions and the regulations latd down under the Articles of
Association Moreover, it serves to guarantee that stocktaking 1s duly and properly performed and that assets and
liabilihes are recognised, valued and disclosed appropnately The control system uses both IT-based and manual
control mechanisms to fully ensure the regulanty and reliability of accounting Beyond this, surtable control
mechanisms, such as strict compliance with the principle of dual control and analytical reviews, have been
established in all processes relevant for accounting In addihon, internal Audit, which i1s independent of these
processes, audits all accounting-related processes

The obhgation of all subsidianes to report their figures every month to BayWa on an [FRS basis in a standardised
reporting format makes it possible to swiftly identify deviattons from planned targets, thereby offering an
opportunity to take action at short notice

Corporate Accounting monitors all processes relating to the consolidated financial statements as part of quarterly
reporting, such as the capital, labiities, expenses and income consolidation and the elimination of inter-company
results, in conjunchion with the reconciliation of the Group companies

The departments and units of the Group involved in the accounting process are suitably equipped in quantitative
and gualitative terms, and fraining courses are conducted regularly

The integrity and responsibility of all employees in respect of finance and financial reporing are ensured through
obliging each employee to observe the code of conduct adopted by the respective company

The employment of highly qualified personnel, targeted and regular training and continuous professional
development, along with stringent functional segregation in financial accounting in the preparation, booking and
controlling of vouchers 1s guaranteed through compliance with local and international accounting principles in the
annual and conschdated financral statements

Qutlook

Outlook for the Agriculture Segment

Expected market and industry development

The agnicultural industry continues as a growth market, The long-term forces drnving growth in demand include, in
particular, the constantly expanding global population, whose need for food 1s continuously increasing In addibion to
this, nsing income levels lead to a change In consumption habits in favour of amimal products At the same time, the
dechine in the amount of land avallable for cuitivation per caprta necessitates constant increases in yteld per hectare,
which can only be achieved through further increases in productivity in the agricultural sector The degree of
mechamsation 1 agncultural produchon will therefore continue to incease, and the digrtisation of agricufture,
expanding at a dynamic rate, will have a significant impact on the optimisation of workflows and boosting mcome At
the same time, the need for operating resources 1s also growing in order to optimise yields per hectare The global
interconnection of markets for agricultural produce 1s widening the procurement and sales basis for internationally
active companies and accordingly allows for the continuous suppty of the markets However, particularly good or
poor harvests of certan agricuitural products or In certain regions can cause strong fluctuations in global market
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pnces over the short term That bemng said, a stable to positive price trend for agncultural produce can be assumed
over medium- and long-term perspectives

Based on current forecasts for the harvest season 2015/16, grain and oilseed are set for another excellent harvest,
grain harvest volume — excluding nce — s expected to amount to 2,000 millien tonnes, only shghtly below the record
level of 2,023 millicn tonnes seen the previous year Global consumption i1s expected to nse by just under 1% to
1,983 mullion tonnes, meaning that inventories are likely to increase by approximatety 20 milion tonnes to

475 million tonnes As a result, the coverage of the inventory stocks will increase from 84 days in the grain year
2014/15 to 87 days in the grain year 2015/16 Overall, a good supply sttuation is also expected for the EU While
forecasts indicate that the harvest volume will be some 8% smaller in the grain year 2015/186, this nonetheless
stands to be largely offset by lower wheat exports and higher corn imports According to their most recent forecast,
experts from the International Grains Council (IGC) anticipate a shght drop in the global harvest volume for wheat
and corn n the grain year 2016/17 Compared over several years, grain prices are significantly down on the lughs
of 2011 and 2012 Owng to the good supply situation worldwide, grain prices are expected to fall shghtly over the
short term A sustainable recovery of prices is likely to occur only if the harvest prospects for 2016/17 detenorate
The weakening of the euro's exchange rate with respect to the US dollar could lead to lower levels of gran exports
from the United States and benefit exports from the euro zone

In the case of feedstuff grain, the US Department of Agnculture (USDA) forecasts a minor increase in inventories
the grain year 2015/16, as the anticipated consumption of 1,266 million tonnes is just below the production volume
at 1,270 million tonnes Following a shght price decline in 2015, a larger drop in prices for staple and mixed feed\s
not expected for 2016

In the case of agncultural operating resources, a slight increase in demand 1s also expected for seed In 2016, as EU
environmental, or greening, requirements became compulsery on 1 January 2015 Under these new regulations,
agricuitural operations must initially ensure that 5% therr land 1s set aside as an Ecological Focus Area (EFA} Many
farmers left this land fallow in the past year However, the land may continue to be used for farming under certain
conditions, ncluding the cultivation of high-protein plants to bind nitrogen in the soil or the cultvation of catch and
cover crops Demand for seeds for legumes and other catch and cover crops 1s therefore likely to rise Assuming
that the cultivation structure remains largely the same in 2016 and that we will see normal weather conditions, the
use of crop protectton products 1s expected to be well above the previous year's level In particular, the demand for
tungicide 1s likely to go up again foilowing the sharp drop during the previous year due to dry weather Prices are
expected to remain stable on the whole in 2016 Assuming that we will see normal weather conditions during 2016
as a whole, a moderate increase in feribser sales i1s anticipated, as the dry weather also imited the application of
fertshser in 2015 While the relatively mild winter 2015716 ailowed for an early start to fertiising, traders and farmers
have been reticent so far concerning advance sales, especially with regard to nitrogen fertiisers The German
Fertiiser Ordinance (DuV) set to take effect in autumn 2016 could iead to a shght drop in demand The ordinance
limits the amount of fertilisers containing nitrogen or phosphates that can be used and extends the fertiiser
blackout pericd from three months to four Following an increase in fertiiser prices of approximately 3% i 2015,
prices are expected to trend sideways until summer 2016 The fall in energy prices could also have a detnmental
effect on fertiliser prices in the second half of the year Asn previous years, different types of fertiiser are expected
to develop differently

Assurmuing that we will see normal weather condihions in Germany, an average harvest yield for apples of some
965,000 tonnes Is anticipated in 2016, which 1s largely on par with 2015 The political and regulatory framework 1s
also the same as in the previous year Demand is likely to experience virtually constant development. In ight of this,
fruit prices are expected to remain stable Similar development is anticipated for the other EUJ countries Based on
current fruit development overall, the apple harvest in the southern hemisphere 1s expected to total some 5 3 millon
tonnes (previous year approximately 54 million tonnes) Following last year's record harvest, apple preducton in
New Zealand for 2016 1s anticipated to be down by 1% year on year at some 548,000 tonnes Exports, however, are
likely to increase by around 1% to 337,000 tonnes Due to an increasing focus on greater quality and a further nse
1n exports to Asia, apple prices are expected to erither remain stable or nise shightly

Revenues for many types of agncultural produce suffered a considerable decline in 2015 As aresult, the
agricultural sector's sentiment indicator took a marked turn for the worse over the course of 2015, and the
assessment of the future situation also remains subdued At 28%, the propensity of farmers to make investments in
the first half of 2016 1s down considerably from 34% the previous year At €3 3 billion, planned investment volume
1s also down significantly from €4 7 billion in the previous year The negatrve frend in terms of investment stretches
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across all sectors, from the construction of farm buildings to farm and animal equipment and from technical facilities
and machinery to cutdoor equipment. The only area in which investment volume 1s on par with the previous year,
albeit at alow level, is etectronic equipment. Against this backdrop, the German Engineering Federation (VDMA)
antrcipates a decline in investment in Germany in 2016 of approximately 5% to €7 0 bilhon (previous year

€7 4 billon) Over the medium and long term, the agncuttural equipment industry will benefit, however, from the
continued increase in the use of technology to step up agricultural production and boost efficiency Increasing
digitisation in the areas of smart farming, precision farming and farm management will open up additional business
potential

Anticipated business performance

The business activities of the Agricuiture Segment were restructured with effect from 1 January 2016 The activities
of the Agncultural Trade business unit were split up into the new BayWa Agn Supply & Trade {BAST) and BayWa
Agnicuitural Sales (BAV) business sectors BAST combines BayWa's national and international trade, distribution
and logsstics activities for grain, olseed and related products The collection business and trade in operating
resources and feedstuff have been pocled in the new business sector known as BAV The Agnicultural Equipment,
Digtal Farming and Fruit business sectors remain unchanged

In 201 6, the BayWa Group's volume of trade in agrcultural produce - particularly grain and oilseed, as well as
feedstuff — s expected to be up significantly on the previous year This s based on the positive business from the
subsequent collection and storage of the harvest, high grain inventones and the high harvest volume forecasts for
the grain year 2015/16 In addition, the inttial inclusion of Wessex Grain Ltd and the newly opened trading offices in
Ukraine, Russia and Argentina as part of BayWa's international expansion strategy 1s contributing positively to
growth With the acquisition of malting barley trader Evergrain Germany GmbH & Co KG, BayWa 1s also further
expanding its speciality business internaticnally Altogether, this is ikely to result in the expansion of the handling
volume of grain and oilseed to more than 32 million tonnes

In the operating resources business, sales volume in the BAY business sector in 2016 1s set to chmb primanly on
account of better market penetration in existing sales regions Owing to greening requirements, the sales volume
for seed 1s expected to increase shghtly Following a weak performance for crop protection products in 2015 due to
dry weather, dermand is anticipated to return to normal again Normal weather conditions in 20186 are also likely to
lead to a moderate nise in sales in the fertiiser business as well In terms of feedstuff distnbution, the restructuning of
the business with new own brands 1s poised to have a positive impact on sales

In total, revenues for the BAST and BAV business sectors are expected to be significantly lugher than revenues in
the Agricultural Trade business unit in 2015 An unusually high improvement in the operating result (EBIT) 15 also
anticipated, as the negative impact from start-up costs for grain trading actvities in ltaly, Spain and Romania will no
longer apply and additional earnings can be expected thanks to the continued expanston

In the frurt business, the entire marketing volume of the BayWa Group s set to increase noticeably The acquisition
of the majority interest in the Dutch supplier of exotic fruits and vegetables, TFC Holland BV (TFC), will play an
important role in this regard In New Zealand, improved prices and a moderate tncrease in exports to Asia are
expected to overcompensate for the shght decline in the harvest volume of apples Overall, the Fruit business sector
15 therefore likely to be able to considerably Increase revenues year onyear Due to positive one-off effects at New
Zealand-based subsidiary T&G, the operating result (EBIT) will ikely see an exceptionally strong rise In addion to
the acquisition in the Netherlands, the optmisation of the network of locations in the German fruit business and the
ensuing productivity gamns also stand to contnibute to an improvement of the result.

In the agnicuitural equipment business, the level of orders has dropped noticeably as a result of famers' lower
propensity to invest. A considerabie dechine in safes concerning the trade in new machinery is therefore to be
expected for 2016 However, the complete takeover of the Dutch Agnmec Group B V 1s likely to offset this effect,
while the farm and animal equipment business volume will probably be down significantly year on year, as well The
service business, on the other hand, 1s poised to expand cnonsiderably due to the high sales figures for agncultural
machinery Overall, BayWa expects to see a shght mcrease in revenues for agnicultural equipment in 2016 Upfront
costs for the specialisation of sales operations at Massey Ferguson and the new central warehouse for replacement
parts near Schweinfurt, the operating resuit (EBIT) 1s hkely to fall significantly short of the previous year's level
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The Digital Farming business sector is hikely to generate revenues measured in euros in the high single-

digit miliens Due to the necessary investments to develop this scalzble business, disproportionate upfront and
start-up costs are expected until 2018 as part of medium-term planning The operating result (EBIT) as measured in
euros s likely to turn out negatively In the low, single-digit millions

On the whole, BayWa anticipates an unusually high increase in revenues in the Agriculture Segment and a
significant nise in the operating resuft (EBIT)

Outlook for the Energy Segment

Expected market and industry development

Cemand for fosstl fuels in the heating business 1s subject to fluctuations in consumption determined by weather
conditions Purchasing behaviour 1s also influenced by the heating ol price trend, which, in turn, 1s hughly dependent
on the pnice of crude oil Forecasts for the pnice of crude oil indicate that the current excess supply will persist into
the third quarter of 2016 In ight of this, a maxamum price increase to approximately USD45 per barrel s expected
Heating ol consumption in BayWa AG's core regions is likely to see considerable further decline 1n 2016 due to
structural factors, such as the nse of renewable energies, the increasing use of gas and energy savings through the
use of modern technologies and energy-efficient building renovation Sales of wood pellets are benefiting from the
number of installed wood pellet-based heating systems, which continues to increase The growth potential of this
energy carrier is, however, hmited by the regional availability of the raw material and the hmited transportation
distance in economic terms Sales of fuels and lubricants are primanily dependent on economic development. in
view of the forecast economic growth of 1 7% for Germany in 2016, demand can be expected to nse moderately

In terms of renewable energies, the course has been set for long-term development The energy concept
introduced by the German federal government aims to gradually expand the proportion of electriaty generated
from renewable sources from the current level of around 33% to between 40% and 45% in 2025, then to 55% to
60% by 2035, and then to at least 80% in 2050 In the EL, the proportion of total energy consumed from renewable
sources 15 to nse to at least 27% by 2030 However, renewable energy subsidies have been cut back or abohshed in
many countnes on account of the European sovereign debt cnisis

In Germany, the amendment to the German Renewable Energy Sources Act (EEG) from August 2014 aimed to

make the energy transition policy affordable for German citizens and the economy and to limit the negative impact

on the entire energy provision system As a result, direct distribution in a market premmium model 1s becoming the ;
norm for all operators of large-scale renewable energy plants Surplus electricity from new plants with installed 1
output greater than 500 kilowatts {KW) must be sold and traded on the energy exchange, usually by a direct |
distnbutor The guaranteed feed-in tariff stit applies to smaller plants with a term of 20 years However, in the case

of new plants, the EEG surcharge 15 also to be paid for self-generated and consumed electrncity provided the de

mimimis thresholds of 10 KW of installed output or a generation of 10 megawatt-hours (MWh) for own consumption

per year are exceeded

An expansion cornidor has been defined for onshore wind turbines - as was the case before for photovoltaic
technology Based on afeed-in tanff decline of O 4% per quarter from 1 January 2016, the rates of reduction
increase If the expansion corndor i1s exceeded and drop if expansion rates fall short of the defined corndor The
2014 amendment to the German Renewable Energy Sources Act (EEG) removes all previous matenal-related one-
off bonuses for new biomass plants The expansion of biomass technology was focused on the use of residuat
matenals such as slurry and refuse The preparations for a new version of the German Renewabie Energy Sources
Act (EEG) are currently underway The revised law 1s set to take effect already in early 2017 According to the
current version of the draft, the funding of onshore and offshore wind turbines, as well as large photovoltaic
systems, will occur through competitive tenderning in future The lowest bids will recerve the allowance untl the
installed output in the invitation to tender has been reached The only turbines/systems excluded from the
invitations to tender are those with an installed output of up to 1 MW, for which the subsidy amount i1s determined by
law Funding for existing biomass plants 1s scheduled to be phased out gradually from 2020, which makes the
construction, renovation or expansion of bromass plants unattractive from a financial perspective

Allin all, the expansion of capacities in the areas of photovoitaues, wind energy, solar and biomass 15 expected to
slow considerably — as 13 the poliical intention - due to the amendment to the German Renewable Energy Sources
Act (EEG) In some southern European countries, the expansion of renewable energies will also decrease sharpty
due to cuts to or the aboltion of subsidisation On the cther hand, investments in renewable energies are expected
to continue nsing worldwide China is paised to account for the largest share of this growth The country aims to
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realise an increase of 150 GW in the photovoltaic sector by 2020 Forecasts project a worldwide increase of 64 GW
for photovoltaics in 2016, equating to year-on-year growth of approximately 25% The share of global photovoitaic
demand attnbutable to the United States 1s expected to nse from 10% in 2015 to 15% 1n 2020 as a result of the
extension of the solar investment tax credits (ITC) until 2019 for now In Germany, forecasts indicate thatat 1 4 GW,
the expansion of new photovoltaic capacities will be on par with 2015 A major decline tn investmenis 1s expected in
the United Kingdom, as the Renewables Obhgation Certification (ROC) funding expired at the end of March 2016

China is by far the largest single market for wind energy as well Installed output is set to grow there by an additonal
200 GW by 2020 In the United States, which 1s the second-targest market in the world, rebates based on the
production tax credits {PTC) have also been extended untl 2019, meaning that a further increase of 9 4 GWin wind
turbines can be expected there in 2016 In Europe, growth 1s set to subside considerably In ight of the subsidisation
setto expire at the end of 2016, however, forecasts indicate an expansion in capacities of 1 2 GW in the United
Kingdom, which corresponds to a threefold increase year on year In Germany, the installed outputis expected to
grow by a total of 3 6 GW in 2016, of which 2 6 GW 15 atiributable to onshore and 1 0 GW to offshore wind turbines

Anticipated business performance

Even though heating oil prices are at therr lowest level in eleven years, it1s unhkely that demand will nse, as many
consumers took advantage of the sharp drop in prices over the course of 2015 to refuel As a result, heating od
tanks are still relatively full, which 1s also due to the mild 2015/16 winter In addition, the structural decline in
demand in heating ol business 1s set to continue The siight iIncrease in market share 1s not expected to compensate
for the resulting significant fall in sales In the business with fuels and lubricants, a shight increase in sales 1s
anticipated owing to the expected positive economic development. In terms of the sale of wood pellets, significant
growth opportunities have opened up following the estabhishment of five specialised centres in southern Germany
and warehousing locations with sophisticated logistics, as well as an online shop that provides free delivery on
shipments across Germany In addition, the takeover of the wood pellet business at Hofgut Mauer in Wurttemberg
in autumn 2015 enhanced market penetration In 20186, revenues in fossil and renewable heating fuels, fuels and
lubricants trading are set to be up considerably in a year-on-year comparison across all product areas as based on
current prices From today's perspective, a significant decline in the operating result (EBIT) 1s expected based on
existing business activities It may be possible to mitigate this drop in earnings through a gain in market share above
all in Austria.

The Renewable Energies business sector 1s set to continue down its path towards growth in 2016 through organic
developments and acquisitions The operung of branches in Japan and Singapore represents a first step in entering
the market in South East Asia. Declines in some European countries or technology industries will be more than
compensated for by growth i other markets The project pipeline for commssioning and turbine/piant sales with
respect to wind and solar energy currently amounts to a total of around 375 MW, of which some 200 MW is
atinbutable to the photovoltaic business and some 175 MW to wind power The focus of photovoltaic business in
2016 wall be on new projects 1n the United Kingdem and the United States With respect to wind turbines, activities
are focused on Germany and France In terms of biomass business in Germany, the focus continues to be on the
repowering of existing plants, consultancy services and raw matenals management. Following several years of
consolidation in photovoltaic component trading in continental Europe, 2016 15 likely to see this peniod come to an
end and mark the road to recovery

BayWa r e 's business in Germany 1s benefiting from innovative system solutions Further increases in sales in the
United States are also expected, though it is unlikely they will be able to fully compensate for declines in other
regions, especially the United Kingdom The development of revenues and earnings depends primanly on the
number and capacity of project sales concluded In contrast to the number of systems, the capacity of project sales
is unlikely to reach the hugh level achieved the previous year in 2016 Overall, the revenues of the Group company
BayWar e are expected to increase considerably on 2015 Asa result of lower year-on-year margin potential due to
increasing competition, the operating result (EBIT) is expected to see a considerabie decline, though it 1s expected
to significantly exceed the EBIT leve! from 2014

Overall, there 1s hkely to be a significant increase in the Energy Segment's revenues for 2016 on the basis of

anticipated development in indvidual areas The operating result (EBIT) i1s expected to be below the exceptionally
high figure achieved in 2015
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Outlook for the Building Materials Segment

Expected market and industry development

According to industry association Hauptverband der Deutschen Bawndustrie, the pace of growth in the German
construction industry 1s hkely to rise year on year, the construchion industry's revenues are expected to increase

by 3 0% to €103 bilhon overall Based on the 4 6% increase inthe number of building permits for residentiai
construction in 2015, accelerated growth of real investments in residential construction by 5 0% 1s expected for
2016 New construction is set to be nearty 10% higher than in 2015 Factors contributing to this growth also include
the doubling of funding provided by the German federal government for residential construction for 2016-2018 to
€1 billion per year, as well as planned additional tax incentives to stmulate investment. Forecasts indicate a rise of
3 0% for investments in modermisation measures The tightening of requirements from the German Energy Saving
Ordinance (EnEV) and rmprovements made to the KfW subsidy programmes are providing positive stimuli where
this matter 1s concerned Following a slowdown in 2015, commercial construction 1s expected to stage a moderate
recovery with growth of 1 6% Investments in public-sector construction are set to expand by 2 2%, driven prmanly
by greater investments by the German federal government in streets, raitways and waterways

In contrast, the construction industry in Austna is expected to continue seeing weak developmentin 20186,
according to forecasts from the Austnan Institute of Economic Research (WIFQO), which anticipates an increase in
construction actvity of merely 0 8% in real terms As a result, growth in the construction sector 1s poised to be well
below the rise in macroeconomic output in 2016 This increase will be driven by a shight improvement in the order
situation for structural engineering, while a lower year-on-year volume s expected for cvil engineering

Anticipated business performance

As was the case already in previous years, a large portion of growth in the construction sector Is attributable to the
construction of multi-storey dwellings in major urban areas, as living space in these locations remains highly scarce
In rural areas, the underlying conditions wifl remain a mixed bag As a result, the construction volume of commercial
buildings tn the agncultural sector 1s expected to drop sharply Building permits for commercial structural eng:-
neenng projects also continue to face a shight decline, meaning no positive momentum can be anticipated there as
well The moderate nise in the number of bullding permits for new owner-occupied homes is the only factor that
could lead to growth in regions outside of major urban areas |n hight of this, BayWa's trade in bullding matenals
stands to participate in the generally positive industry development to only a lesser extent in 2016 In contrast,
BayWa i1s benefiting from the growing prefabncation trend and the expansion of the business with “mobile
generalists” in terms of crafts- and tradespecple Through the continued expansion of e-commerce, additronal
growth opportunities are opening up beyond the existing market area. Due to the reduction in the number of
building materials sites, revenues in the Building Matenals Segment are expected to fall year on year by a small
margin The aperating result (EBIT) 1s likely to be down siightly on that from 2015 due to increased costs in some
areas, such as the costs of wages Insufficient growth prospects in the medium to long term coupled with
foreseeable cost increases 1s forcing the search for a strategic partner for buillding matenals trading activities in
Germany

Other Activities
No forecast 1s possible for the Other Activities Segment, as revenue and earnings development is pnmarily driven
by opportunism in capitalising on market opportunihes within the scope of BayWa's portfolio management system

Qutlook for the BayWa Group

Prospects for the BayWa Group are positive, though restrained for 2016 Group revenues are expected to Increase
significantly in 2016 on the hasis of the expected underlying condibons in the segments The Group's operating
resuit (EBIT) 1s anticipated to improve slightly year on year From today's perspective, the earnings indicators
EBITDA and EBT are likely to see development which 1s similar to that of EBIT BayWa s continuing i1ts strategy of
strengthening profitability sustainably in order to safeguard the independence of the company over the fong term
and ensure that it s fit for the future
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2015

Assets
Note 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 01/01/2014

In € milion adjusted adjusted
Non-current assets
Intangible assets ©1) 166 808 148108 154087
Property, plant and equipment €2} 1,419 814 1,396 535 1,311 700
Participating interests recogrised at equity {C3) 203876 196 444 101 601
Other financial assets {C3) 168196 181 542 251 525
Investment property {C5) 55915 72849 82393
Tax assets {C6) 1432 2802 4085
Other receivables and other assets €8) 89610 54142 34122
Deferred tax assets {c9) 211525 20927 153635

2287177 2,261 693 2,094 048
Current assets
Securihies ca) 1983 2127 2171
Inventones (C10) 2,141 541 1,986 319 1,836 039
Biclogical assets (C.4) 11977 2171 5667
Tax assets (Ce) 22 595 28009 13506
Financiai assets (C7) 222373 153 409 93819
Qther recesvables and other assets [(oF:)] 1,254 756 1,084 415 1018734
Cash and cash equivalents C11) 84 459 108 356 92087

3,739684 3,371 806 3,061 823
Non-current assets held for sate/disposal groups (C12) 9796 18 500 43392
Total assets 5,036 657 5,651 999 5,199 263
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Note 31/12/2018 31/12/2014 01/01/2014

In € milson adjusted adjusted
Equity (C13)
Subscribed capital 88997 88687 88 409
Capital reserve 104.949 101 683 98154
Revenue reserves 538 564 526 103 576 941
Other reserves 77166 69 986 83684
Equity net of minonty interest 809 676 786 459 847 188
Minerity interest 266 225 263917 267826

1,075 901 1,050 376 1,115014
Nen-current habiities
Pension provisions (C14) 625 466 637 669 512083
Other non-current provisions (C15) B2618 83136 86 381
Financial habilitias (C16) 1,068 340 946511 621 896
Financial lease obligations C17) 154 823 161 406 166457
Trade payables and labilities from inter-group business relationships (C.18) 5084 2236 3042
Financial habilities {C20) 3650 3124 2380
Cther habilities (C21) a3 419 121566 107 486
Deferred tax habilthes {C22) 158 092 152 456 162776

2,191 492 2,108 104 1,662 501
Current habilthes
Pension provisions {C.14) 29787 291223 28765
Other current prowvisions (C15) 175940 171201 145245
Financial habilities (C16) 1,314 307 1,167 23% 1,131 943
Financial lease obhgatons {€17) 6671 7856 8700
Trade payables and liabiirties from inter-group business relationships (C18) 792 220 744998 766616
Income tax iabiltties {C19) 25 301 27593 19652
Financial kabiities {C20) 169 868 136422 95 405
Other habities {€21) 285170 203912 225 422

2,769 264 2,488 440 2,421 748
Liabilthes from non-current assets held for sale/disposal groups {C23) - 5079 —
Total sharehclders’ equrty and habiithies 6,036 657 5,651 999 5,199 263
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Consolidated Income Statement for 2015

Continued operations

Note 2015 2014

In € millien adjusted
Revenues o1} 14,928 129 15,201 788
Inventory changes 86720 -43111
Other own work capitalised 3825 5334
Other operating ncome 02) 157 850 182426
Cost of materials D3) -13,575 301 -13,816916
Gross profit 1,601 223 1,529 521
Perscnnel expenses D4) -825156 -793069
Depreciation and amortisation -130161 -127711
Other operating expenses {O5) -495 334 -491 488
Result of operating achvities 150572 117253
Income from participating interests recognised at equity {D6) 3284 3394
Other income from sharehaoldings {D6) 4291 31431
Interest income {o7) 5616 6772
Interest expenses {O7) -75710 -78426
Financial result -62519 -36 829
Result of ordinary activities (EBT) 88053 80424
Income tax D8) -26 450 0279
Consohdated net income 61803 80703
of which due to minority interest (D9) 13399 19276
of which due to sharehalders of the parent company 48204 61427
EBIT 158 147 152078
EBITDA 238 208 279789
Basic earnings per share (in €) {D10) 139 178
Ciluted earrings per share (in €) {D10) 139 178
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive

Income — Transition

2015 2014
In € milon adjusted
Consolidated net income 61603 80703
Actuarial gains/losses from pension obligations and provisions for sevetrance pay recognised in the reporting period 3116 -94 570
Sum of Items not subsequently reclassified in the income statement 3118 -94 570
Net gain/loss from the revaluation of financial assets in the “available for sale” category recognised in the repoarting period
and other income from interests accounted for using the equity method -0501 -0904
Reclassifications to the income statement due to disposal of financial assets in the “avalable for sale™ category recogmsed
in the reporting penod - 2367
Met gain/loss from hedging instruments with a clear hedging relationship 0016 1031
Net gain/loss from hedging instruments with a clear hedging relationship recognised in the income statement
in the reporting penod -1647 0576
Differences from cumency transiabon 1731 10239
Differences from currency transtation reclassified to the income statement dunng reperting penod 0301 -0tod
Sum of items subsequently rectassified in the iIncome statement -0 100 13205
Gans and losses recognised directly In equity 3016 -81 365
of which due to minortty interest -08a7s 0775
of which due to shareholders of the parent company 3891 -82140
Caonsoiidated total result for the penod 64619 -0662
of which due to minartty interest 12524 20051
of which due to shareholders of the parent company 52095 -2073
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for 2015

Note (E.1.)
2015 2014

In € million adjusted
Consolidated net income 61603 80703
Income tax expenses 26 450 -0279
Financial result 62519 36829
Whnte-downs/write-ups of non-current assets
Intangible assets 21238 18475
Property, plant and equipment 106915 105 864
Cther financial assets 094 1234
Investment property 2008 3372
Other nor-cash related expenses/income
Expenses relating to share-based payment through profit and loss 1431 1522
Other 1222 -13226
Increase/decrease in hon-cutrent provisions -6761 -18548
Cash-effective expenses/income from special tems
Gain/lcss from the disposal of financial assets -0 a47 -20734
Income tax pard -23 604 ~34134
Interest received 4838 4462
Interest paid -34 667 ~31534
Cther financial result -13643 -2173

21006 133 433
Increase/decrease in current and medium-term provisions 4674 24 780
Gain/loss from asset disposals -15 472 ~-18980
Increase/decrease in inventories, trade recevables and other assets not allocable te investing or financing activities -355949 -152422
Increase/decrease in trade payables and other habilities not allocable to investing or financing actvities 175776 -77 402
Cash flow from operating activities 19045 =90 621
Qutgoing payments for company acquisibens (Note B 1) -36916 ~142185
Incoming payments from the divestiture of campanies - -
Incoming payments from the disposal of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investment property 64713 94964
Qutgoing payments for investments in intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investment property -174 538 -165214
Incoming payments from the disposal of other financial assets 16309 3441
Outgoing payments for investments in other financial assets -23264 -34949
Interest received 0595 0447
Drvidends recerved and other income assumed 8635 15804
Cash flow from investing achvrhes -143466 -227 592
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2015 2014
In € milion adusted
Incoming payments from equity contributions 2195 4251
Dnvidend payments -33514 -32953
Incoming payments from borrowing of (financing) loans 313034 472187
Cutgoing payments from redemption of (financing) loans -157 767 -87086
Interest pad -25288 -22 0086
Cash fiow from finanang achwibes 98 660 334393
Payment-related changes in cash and cash equivalents -25761 16 180
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the penod 108 356 92087
Inflow/outflow of funds due to changes in the group of consolidated compantes and in exchange rates 1864 Q089
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the penod 84 459 108 356
Qutgoing payments for company acquisitions included in the cash flow from investing activities are as follows
Purchase price of company acquisiions -36834 ~167 448
Purchase prices paid in the financial year (including contingent purchase price components from company acquisitions in
previous years) -38345 - 145050
Cash and cash equivalents assumed from company acquisttions 1429 2 865
Net cash flow from the acquisition of comparues -36916 =142185%

Please ses Note B 1 of the Consalidated Financtal Statements for details on the assets and habilities of the subsidianes and/or operating units over which control 1= obtained or
lost, summansed by each major category As one of the primery business purposes in the Renewable Energies business sector 1s the disposing of project companiesonce a
project has been completed, iIncoming payments from the disposal of project companies from the group of consolidated companies are allocated to cash flow from operating
activities, and not cash flows from investing activities.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Note (C.13.)

In € milion

Subscribed capital Capntal reserve

As at 01/01/2014 before adjustments

88409 98154

Adjustments pursuant to IAS 8

As at 01/01/2014 after adjustments

88409 98 154

Crfferences resulting from changes in the group of consohdated companies

Capital Increase against cash contribution/share-based payments

0278 3529

Changes in the far value of assets classified as “avatable for sale” and dervative financial instruments as well as
other income from interests accounted for using the equity method

Change in actuanal gains/losses from pension and severance pay obligations

Inter-company prafits from elimination with associates recognised in equity

Dwvidend distribution

Differences from currency translation

Transfer to revenue reserve

Consolidated net iIncome

Adjustments pursuant to 1AS 8 — Differences from currency transtation

Adjustments pursuant to IAS 8 - Consolidated net income

As at 31/12/2014 /7 01/01/2015 after adjustments

88687 101683

Differences resulting from changes in the group of consolidated companies

Capital increase aganst cash contnbution/share-based payments

0310 3266

Changes in the far value of assets classified as “avallable for sale” and denvative financial iInstruments as well as
other income from interests accounted for using the equrty method

Change in actuarial gains/losses from pension and severance pay obligations

Inter-company profits from elimination with associates recognised in equity

Cmwidend distnbution

Dufferences from currency translation

Transfer to revenue reserve

Consolidated net income

As at31/12/2015

88997 104 949
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Equity net of minonty

Assessment reserve Cther revenue reserve Other reserves interest Minonty interest Equity

-50229 582170 150 658 914162 267 826 1,181 988

- - -66974 -§6974 — -66974

-5229 582 170 83 684 847188 267 826 1,115014

- -165857 -1758 -18312 -18758 -37110

- — — 3807 1966 5773

2414 - - 2414 0656 3070

- -92 381 - -92 381 -2189 -94 570

- o3a - 0314 - o34

- - -25825 -25 825 -7128 -32953

- - 7921 79 2343 10264

- 55372 -55 372 - - -

- - 70190 70180 20283 90 473

- - -0094 -00%4 -0035 -0129

- - -8763 -8763 =-1007 -9770

-2815 5286918 69 986 786459 263917 1,050 378

- 2335 -1258 1077 -4,380 -3303

- - - 3576 0050 3626

~1558 - - -1558 -0574 -2132

- 3348 - 3348 -0232 3116

- -5903 - -5903 - -5903

- - -27628 -27 628 -5886 -33514

- - 210 21 -0069 2032

- 14 239 -14239 - - -

- - 48 204 48204 13399 61603

-4373 542 937 77166 809676 266 225 1,075 901
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Y

Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements
as at 31 December 2015

Drawn up in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS)/International Accounting Standards (IAS) adopted within the European
Union, as well as in accordance with the additional information required under
Section 315a para 1 of the German Commercial Code (HGB).

* Previous-year figures adjusted, please refer to Note (B 7 ) for the corresponding adjustments
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(A.) BACKGROUND TO THE BayWa CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(A.1.) General information, accounting and valuation methods

BayWa AG has its pnncipal place of business in Arabellastrasse 4, 81925 Munich, Germany The BayWa Group, with BayWa AG as the ulimate
parent company, I1s a group of trading and services comparies with core activities i the following business areas Agncultural Trade, Fruit,
Agncultural Equipment, Digital Farming, Energy, Renewable Energies and Building Materals The Agncultural Trade business sector comprises
trading m agnicultural produce and operating resources The Fruit business sector combines all activities of the Group in the business of fruit and
vegetable growing and trading these products The full range of agncultural equipment and services 1s offered in the Agncultural Equipment
business sector The Digital Farming business sectton, which was added in the financial year 2015, provides software solutions and integrated
services for process-controlled operations management in agriculture (smart farming) The Energy business sector has an extensive network,
which ensures the supply of heating oil, fuels, lubncants and wood pellets to commercial and private customers In the Renewahle Energies
business sector, the Group offers customers services geared towards project planning for wind power, biogas faciities and solar power plants, on
the one hand, and operates 1ts own wind and biogas plants to produce electricity, on the other The range of products and services under
Renewable Energies s rounded off by the sale of solar panels The Bullding Matenals Segment comprises building matenals sales activities, as
well as the operation of DIY and garden centres of the Austrnian Group companies

The BayWa Group decided in the reporting year on the earty application of the amendments to 1AS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) and

IAS 41 (Agncuiture) with regard to the accounting for bearer plants, which were endorsed in European law in November 2015 According to the
amendment, these kinds of bearer plants are exempt from the scope of IAS 41 and fall within the scope of |AS 16, therefore enabling entities to
measure them at cost subsequent to initial recognition or at revaluation Until now, bearer plants had been measured at farr value on an annual
basis The produce growing on bearer plants continues to be accounted for under IAS 41 The early application of the amendments was
implemented retrospectively, meaning that the fair value of bearer plants was corrected in the previous year's annual financial statements
Consequently, bearer plants have been accounted for as a component of property, plant and equipment since 1 January 2014 and measured at
cost less aggregated depreciation The fair value of the bearer plants as at 31 December 2013 or 1 January 2014 was used as the historical costs
For information on the impact on the consolidated financial statements of BayWa as at 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 resulting from this
amendment, reference is made to Note B 7 of the Consolidated Financial Statements There were no other changes in the accounting policies
and valuation methods applied to the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2014

The conscolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2015 were drawn up in comphance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as applicable within the European Union The standards of the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), London, and the
nterpretations of the (nternational Financial Reporting Interpretabons Commuttee (IFRIC) valid on the reporting date were fully taken into account.
The consolidated financial statements therefore give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and result of operations of the

BayWa Group and were prepared under the assumption that the company will continue as a going concern

Moreover, the consolidated financial statements comply with the supplementary provisions set out under Section 315a para. 1 of the German
Commercial Code (HGB)

The financial year of the BayWa Group covers the period from 1 January to 31 December The financial statements of BayWa AG and its Group
companies are generally prepared in accordance with the balance sheet date of the consolidated financial statements The financial statements of
Deutsche Raiffeisen-Warenzentrale GmbH, Frankfurt am Main, Germany, Raiffeisen Beteligungs GmbH, Frankfurt am Main, Germany, BRB
Holding GmbH, Munich, Germany, BEEGY GmbH, Mannheim, Germany, LWM Austria GmbH, Hollabrunn, Austna, Frisch & Frost Nahrungsmuittel
GmbH, Vienna, Austna, AUSTRIA JUICE GmbH, Allhartsberg (formerly Krollendorf), Austnia, Allen Blair Properties Limited, Wellington, New
Zealand, Fresh Vegetable Packers Limited, Christchurch, New Zealand, Mystery Creek Asparagus Limited, Hamilton, New Zealand, and
Worldwide Fruit Limited, Spalding, UK, constitute an exception, as these companies are accounted for using the equity method All of the above
comparies have different reporting dates, which are 28 February, 31 March, 30 June, 31 July or 30 September The intenm financial statements
of all companies as at 30 November or 31 December form the basis for consolidation

The accounting implemented within the Group of BayWa AG s carnied out in accordance with the accounting and valuation prineiples uniformly
apphed by the whole Group, they are described under Notes C and D in the notes to the balance sheet and the Income statement. Indmidual
items have been disclosed separately in the balance sheet and in the mcome statement to enhance transparency They are broken down and
explained in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in euros Unless
otherwise indicated, amounts are shown in mullions of eures (€ million, rounded off to three decimal points)
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(A.2)) Estimates and assumptions by management

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements necessitates that, to a certain extent, assumptions are made and estmates used which
have an impact on the valuation of assets, habilites capitahsed, the income and expenses and the contingent liabiirtes Estimates are necessary,
particularly in respect to the measurement of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, as well as inventones, in connection with
purchase price allocation, the recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets, the recognitton and measurement of pension provisions and
other reserves, as well as the carrying out of impairment tests in accordance with IAS 36

in the case of pension prowvisions, the discount factor, along with wage and salary and pension trends, are important parameters for estimates An
increase or decrease in the discount factor affects the net present value of the obligations ansing from pension plans Likewise, changes to
anticipated wage, salary and pension trends and expected employee fluctuation alsc impact the defined henefit cbligation (DBO)

Impairment tests on goodwill are basad on future-oriented assumptions From today's standpoint, justiftable changes to these assumptions would
not result in the book values of the cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeding their recoverable amount, thereby triggering imparment. The
underlying assumptions are influenced primaniy by the market situation of the CGU Please refer to Note C 1 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements for information on the extent to which justifiable changes to the underlying assumptions for material goodwill could result in the book
values of the respective CGU exceeding their recaoverable amount

Deferred tax assets on loss carryforwards are recognised, provided that future tax advantages are likely to be realised within the next three years
The actual taxable profits in future periods, and thus the actual usability of deferred tax assets, may differ from the esttmate at the time when the
deferred tax 1s capitahsed

In respect of property, plant and equipment, assumptions were made relating to the Group-wide estabhishment of useful economic lives
Deviations from the actual economic life are, therefore, possible but are estimated to be fairly low Assumphons made i relation to the definition
of useful economic lives are reviewed at regular intervals and, if necessary, modified In the financial year 2015, the reguiar reviews resulted in the
extension of the useful economic lives, as well as the depreciation penod of awind park to take into consideration the expected consumption of
the future economic use of the wind park (changes from estimates in the sense of IAS 8 32 [d]) Thus resulted in a reduction in depreciation of
property, plant and equipment of €3 B16 million in the financial year 2015 For subsequent years, a reduction in depreciation of €3 816 milhon
per year Is also expected

Estimates of the future revenues, growth and the inflation-adjusted margins, as well as the location and variety are required for deterrmining the
fair value of the biological assets

Estimates have heen made in respect of inventones, especially in the context of write-downs on the net reahsable value Estimates of the net
realsable value are based on the substantive information available at the tme when the likely recoverable amounts of inventones were estimated
These estimates take account of changes in prices and costs, which are direclly associated with events after the reporting period, in as much as
these events serve to elucidate the conditions already prevailing at the end of the reporting period

The measurement of the recoverability of receivables is also subject to assumptions which are based in parbicular on empirical values on
recoverability

The operating expenses of “investment property” are also subject to estimates based on empirical values

Allassumptions and estimates are based on the conditions prevailing and judgements made on the reporting date In addition, particufar
consideration was given to the economic development and the business environment of the BayWa Group If, in future business periods,
framework condrtions should develop otherwise, there may be differences between actual and estmated amounts In such cases, the
assumptions and, If necessary, the book value of the assets and liabilities affected will be adjusted on subsequent reporting dates At the time
when the consolidated financial statements were prepared, a matenal change in the underlying assumptions and estimates was not anticipated
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(A.3.} Impact of new accounting standards
Accounting standards applicable for the first time in the financial year 2015 — mandatory or voluntary early application

In the financial year 2015, the following standards and interpretations were applicable for the first ime These new standards had very little or no
influence on the presentation of the net assets, financial position and result of operations or on earmings per share of the BayWa Group

In May 2013, the IASB published {FRIC 21 (Levies), which was endorsed in European law in June 2014 This interpretation clarifies, in the case of
pubhc-sector levies imposed on the basis of legal regulations, how and, in particutar, when such obligations are to be accounted for in accordance
with |1AS 37 (Prowvisions, Contingent Liabiities and Contingent Assets) According to the interpretation, the hability 1s to be recognised as soon as
the obhgating event occurs that tnggers the payment of the levy in accordance with the relevant legislabon The amendment enters into force for
reporting penods beginnung on or after 17 July 2014 The interpretation did not have any impact on the net assets, financiai position and resuit of
operations of the BayWa Group

As part of its annual improvements to IFRSs 201 1-2013 cycle, the IASB introduced amendments to four standards in December 201 3, which
were endorsed in European law in December 2014 The amendments enter into force for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
They had no impact at all or no major iImpact on the net assets, financial position and result of operations of the BayWa Group

An amendment to IFRS 1 (First-tme Adophon of International Financial Reporting Standards) clanfies that an entity, in its first IFRS financial
statements, has the choice between applying an existing and currently effective IFRS or applying early a new or revised IFRS that i1s not yet
mandatonly effective, provided that the new or revised IFRS permits early apphication An entity 1s required to apply the same version of the [IFRS
throughout the periods covered by those first IFRS financial statements

An amendment fo IFRS 3 (Business Combinations) clarifies that IFRS 3 excludes from its scope the accounting for the formation of a joint
arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself

An amendment to IFRS 13 (Far Value Measurement) clarifies that the scope of the portfolio exception defined in paragraph 52 of IFRS 13
includes all contracts accounted for within the scope of 1AS 39 (Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement) or IFRS 9 (Financial
Instruments), regardless of whether they meet the definition of financial assets or financial habilities as defined In1AS 32

An amendment was also made to JAS 40 {Investment Property) as part of the 1ASB's annual improvement project. This clarifies that determining
whether a specific transaction meets the definition of both a business combination as defined in IFRS 3 and investment property as defined 1n
1AS 40 requires the separate application of both standards independently of each other

1n June 2014, the IASB published amendments to IAS 16 {Property, Plant and Equipment) and IAS 41 (Agriculture) with regard to the accounting
for bearer plants, which were endorsed in European law in November 2015 In the future, these kinds of bearer plants are removed from the
scope of IAS 41 and fall within the scope of IAS 16, therefore enabling entities to measure them at cost subsequent to imihal recognition or at
revaluaton The produce growing on bearer plants continues to be accounted for under IAS 41 The amendments enter into force for reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 In the BayWa Group these amendments were retrospectively applied early in the financial

year 2015 As aresult of the amendments, bearer plants are no longer regularly measured at farr value Instead, bearer plants in the BayWa Group
are accounted for as a compecnent of non-current assets and measured at cost less aggregated depreciatton The impact on the consohdated
financial statements of BayWa AG as at 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 resulting from the retrospective application of this amendment is
presented in Note B 7 of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Standards, interpretations and amendments which have been published but not yet applted

The IASB and IFRS Interpretations Committee have 1ssued the following standards, amendments of standards and interpretations that are not yet
mandatorily applicable In some cases, an endorsement of this IFRS or interpretations thereof in European law has yet to take place All amended
statements are appiied at the BayWa Group once they are endorsed in Eurapean law from the date on which the endorsement takes effect The
BayWa Group dectded against the premature apphication of these amendments

In November 2013, the |ASB pubiished an amendment to 1AS 19 (Employee Benefits [201 1]), which was endorsed in European law in

December 2014 The amendment clarifies requirements that relate to how contnbutions from employees or third parties that are linked to sernce
shouid be attributed to periods of service In addition, it permits a practical expedient if the amount of the contnibutions s independent of the
number of years of service The amendment enters into force for reporting peniods beginning on or after 1 February 2015 The amendment 1s not
expected to have any impact on the net assets, financial positicn and result of operations of the BayWa Group
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As part of its annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle, the IASB published amendments to seven standards in December 2013, which
were endorsed in European law in December 2014 The amendments enter into force for reporting periods beginning on or after

1 February 2015 They are expected to have no impact at all or no major impact on the net assets, inancial posion and result of operations
of the BayWa Group

An amendment to IFRS 2 (Share-based Payment) ctarifies the definitions of “vesting condiion” and *market condrtion™ and adds defimtions for
the terms "performance condition” and “service condition” The latter had previously been part of the definiion of “vesting condition”

In addrtion, IFRS 3 (Business Combinations) contains an amendment clanfying that contingent considerations that are classified as an assetora
liatnhity shall be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective of whether the contingent consideration 1s a financial mstrument falling
within the scope of IAS 39 or IFRS 9, a non-financial asset or a iability Changes to fair value (within the excephon of changes in the valuation
period) are to be recogrised through profit and loss Subseguent amendments were made correspondingly to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IAS 37

Anamendment to IFRS 8 {Operating Segments) stipulates that an entity must disclose Judgements made by management on the basis of which
the management resolved to apply the aggregation critena to operating segments This includes a brief description of the operating segments
that have been aggregated and the economic indicaters that have been assessed in determining that the aggregated operating segments share
siriiar econormic charactenstics In addition, it i1s also clanfied that an entity shall only provide reconciliations of the total of the reportable
segments’ assets to the entity’s assets If the segment assets are reported regularly

An amendment to IFRS 13 (Far Value Measurement) clanfies that issuing IFRS 13 and amending IFRS 9 and JAS 39 did not remove the ability to
measure short-term recevables and payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without discounting, if the effects of not
discounting are immaterial

Anamendment was also made to IAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) as part of the IASB's annual improvement project, This clanfies that,
when an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the gross carrying amount 1s adjusted in a manner that Is consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount and the aggregated deprecration 1s calculated as the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the net carrying amount after considering all impairment losses

Anamendment to IAS 24 (Related Party Disclosures) clariftes that an entity providing key management personnel services to the reporting entity
or to the parent of the reporting entity 1s a related party of the reporting entity

Anamendment to IAS 38 (Intangible Assets) clanfies that, when an intangible asset is revalued, the gross carrying amount 1s adjusted 1n a manner
that is consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount and the aggregated depreciation is calculated as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the net carrying amount after considering all imparment losses

In May 2014, the IASB pubhshed armendments to IFRS 11 (Joint Arrangements) The amendments clanfy that the acquirer of an interest in a jomnt
operation in which the actvity constitutes a business, as defined in IFRS 3, i1s required to apply all of the principles on business comhbinations
accounting in IFRS 3 and other IFRSs with the exception of those principles that conflict with the guidance n IFRS 11 The amendments enter into
force for reporting penods begmning on or after 1 January 2016 This 15 not expected to have any impact on the net assets, financial postion and
result of operations of the BayWa Group

In August 2014, the IASB published amendments to [AS 27 (Separate Financial Statements) In future, an entity will again be able to account for
investments in subsidianes, joint ventures and associates in ts separate financial statements using the equity methed The amendments enter into
force for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 The amendments have no impact on the net assets, financial position and result
of operations of the BayWa Group

The IASB published amendments to IAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) and IAS 38 (Intangible Assets) im May 2014 The amendments to
|AS 16 clarify that a depreciation method that 1s based on revenue that 1s generated by an actvity that includes the use of an asset s not
appropnate |AS 38 was amended to introduce a rebuttable presumption that a revenue-based amortisation method for intangible assets 1s
inapproprate for the same reasons as in 1AS 16 In addition, guidance was introduced into both standards to explain that expected future
reduchons in selling prices could be indhcative of a higher rate of consumption of the future econormic benefits embodied In an asset. The
amendments enter into force for reporting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 The amendments are not expected to have any impact
on the net assets, financial position and result of operations of the BayWa Group

In December 2014, the IASE pubhshed amendments to IAS 1 (Presentation of Financial Statements) The amendments are aimed at eliminating
obstacles that the writers saw as refating to the exercising of discretionary powers when preparing the financial statements The amendments
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enter into force for reporting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 The amendments are not expected to have a major impact on the
presentation of the net assets, financial posthon and result of operations of the BayWa Group

As part of its annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle, the IASB introduced amendments and clarifications to four standards in
September 2014 The amendments enter into force for reporting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 They are expected to have no
impact at all or no major impact on the net assets, financial position and result of operations of the BayWa Group

InIFRS 5 (Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Qperations) specific guidance was introduced for cases in which an entity
reclassifies an asset from “held for sale” to *held for distrnibution” or vice versa and cases in which held-for-distribution accounting 1s discontinued

An amendment to IFRS 7 (Financial Instruments Disclosures) adds addtional guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract 1s continuing
involvement in a transferred asset for the purpose of determining the disclosures required Another amendment clanifies that the amendments to
IFRS 7 on offsetting disclosures are not mandatory for all condensed intenm financial statements However, these disclosures may be required on
a case-by-case basis in order to comply with the requirements of IAS 34

An amendment was also made to IAS 19 (Employee Benefits [2011]) as part of the IASB’s annual improvement project. It was clarified that the
high quality corporate bonds used in esthmating the discount rate for post-employment benefits should be denominated in the same currency as
the benefits to be paid Therefore, the depth of the market for high quahty corporate bonds should be assessed at currency level

An amendment to 1AS 34 (Intenim Financial Reporting) clanfied the meaning of “elsewhere in the intenm financial report” and added the
requirement for a cross-reference to this cther pomt in the report if said point 1s not within the main part of the intenim report

The following standards or standard amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU as part of the IFRS endorsement procedure

In January 2014, the IASB published an nterim standard in the form of IFRS 14 (Regulatory Deferral Accounts), which permits an entity which s a
first-ime adopter of IFRSs to continue to account, with some mited changes, for “regulatory deferral account balances” in accordance with its
previous accounting standards The standard is seen as a short-term intenim solution until the IASB concludes its longer-term comprehensive
project on rate-regulated activities Apphcation of IFRS 14 1s voluntary The standard may be applhed if the first financial statements for an entity
are prepared for financial years starting on or after 1 January 2016 The standard may be applied early The European Commussion resolved in
October 2015 not to endorse IFRS 14 in European law as only a few entities in the EU wall fall under the scope of this standard This means that
the new standard in effect 1s of no relevance for German entrties

The IASB made amendments to IFRS 10 (Consolidated Financial Statements) and IAS 28 (Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures [2011])
in September 2014 The amendments clanfy that, in the case of transactions with an associate or a joint venture, the extent of the gain or loss
depends on whether the sold or contnbuted assets constitutes a business as defined in IFRS 3 The date of first-time appiication was initrally
postponed untl further notice

The |ASB also made amendments to IFRS 10 {Consolidated Financial Statements), IFRS 12 (Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities) and 1AS
28 (Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures [2011]) in December 2014 The amendments address issues that have artsen in the context
of applying the consohdation exception for nvestment entiies The amendments enter into force for reporting penods beginning on or after

1 January 2016 The amendments are not expected to have any impact on the net assets, financial position and result of operations of the
BayWa Group

The IASB introduced a new standard in the form of IFRS 15 (Revenue from Contracts with Customers) in May 2014, which stipulates when and 1n
what amount revenue 1s to be recognised In addiion, report writers are required to provide users of financial statements with more informative,
relevant disclosures The standard provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers and replaces
current revenue regulations in IAS 11 {Construction Contracts) and IAS 18 (Revenue) First-time application of the standard 1s compulsory for
financial years starting on or after 1 January 2018 IFRS 15 has yet to be endorsed in European law The impact of the new standard on the
presentation of the net assets, financial positon and result of operations of the BayWa Group 1s currently being reviewed

The IASB published its final draft of IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) in July 2014 The object of IFRS 9 1s to replace the current IAS 39 (Financial
Instruments Recognition and Measurement) The standard governs all aspects of accounting for financial instruments The latest version of

IFRS 9 differs from the standard it supersedes by way of the revised classification of financial assets These are based on the charactenstics of the
business model as well as on contractual payment flows for financial assets Requirements concerning the recognition of impairment losses,
which 1s now based on an expected loss model, were also amended Furthermore, IFRS 9 also redefines the recognition of hedging transactions,
which 1s now more strongly onented towards nsk management First-time application of the standard ts compulsory for financial years starting on
or after 1 January 2018 Endaorsement in European law 1s still pending In view of the complexity of the scope addressed by IFRS 9, 1ssuing a
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reliable, detailed statement on its impact 1s currently not possible It 1s, however, assumed that these amendments will have no matenal impact on
the presentation of the net assets, financial position and result of cperations of the BayWa Group

In January 2016, the IASB published amendments to |1AS 12 {income Taxes) that aim to clarfy the different methods used in the past to recognise
deferred tax assets for unrealised losses for assets stated at farr value The amendments enter into force for reporting penods beglr(mmg onor
after 1 January 2017 They are expected to have no impact at all or no major impact on the net assets, financial position and resuit of operations of
the BayWa Group

The IASB also amended IAS 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) in January 2016 These amendments are designed to allow users of financial
statements to assess changes in liabilities ansing from financing actvities The amendments enter into force for reporting penods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017 The amendments are not expected to have any impact on the net assets, financial position and result of operations of the
BayWa Group

In publishing IFRS 16 {Leases) 1n January 2016, which governs the principles for the recogmtion, measurement, presentation and disclosure
obligation of leases, the IASB aims to replace the current IAS 17 as well as IFRIC 4, SIC 15 and SIC 27 In the future, the standard will provide a
separate lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and habihities for all leases unless the lease term 1s 12 months or less or
the underiying asset has a low value Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16's approach to lessor accounting
substantally unchanged from 1AS 17 First-bme application of the standard 1s compulsory for financial years starting on or after 1 January 2019
IFRS 16 has yet to be endorsed in European law The impact of the new standard on the presentation of the net assets, financial position and
result of operations of the BayWa Group 1s currently being reviewed
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Share in capital in % Comment
VIELA Export GmbH, Vierow, Germany 740
Cefetra Group
Cefetra BV, Rotterdam, the Nethertands 1000
Baltic Logistic Holding B V', Rotterdam, the Netherlands 1000
Burkes Agencies Limited, Glasgow, UK 1000
Cefetra Feed Serwce BV, Rotterdamn, the Netherlands 1000
Cefetra Hungary Kft, Budapest, Hungary 1000
Cefetra Limeted, Glasgow UK 1000
Cefetra Polska Sp z o o, Gdyra, Poland 1000
Cefetra Shipping BV, Rotterdam, the Netherlands 1000
Hailtwood Logistics Limited, Glasgow, UK 1000
Shieldhall Logrstics Limited, Glasgow, UK 1000
Sinclarr Logistics Limrted, Glasgow, UK 1000
Woessex Grain Lid, Templecombe, UK 1000 Initial consohdation on 30/11,/2015

T&G Global Group

Acquisition of eddrhional O 6% of shares on

T&G Global Limited (formerty Tumers & Growers Limited), Auckland, New Zealand 737 04/12/2015
Apollo Apples (2014) Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Berryfruit New Zealand Limsted, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Dehca {Shanghe) Fruit Trading Ltd, Shanghai, Peaple’s Republic of China 1000
Delica Austrafia Pty Ltd, Tullamanne (formerty Pakenham), Australia 1000
Delica Domestic Pty Ltd, Tullamarine (formety Pakenhkar), Austrahia 800 Disposal of 20 Q% of shares on 30/11/2015
Delica Lirnited Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Delica North Amenca, Inc, Torrance, USA 750
EFL Heldings Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
ENZA Fresh, Inc. Seattle, USA 1000
ENZA Investments USA, Inc, Seattle, USA 1000
ENZA Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 000
ENZAFQODS New Zealand Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
ENZAFRUIT (Hong Kang) Limited, Hong Kong, People's Repubiic of China 1000
ENZAFRUIT New Zealand (Continent} NV, Sint-Truiden, Balgium 1000
ENZAFRUIT New Zealand (UK) Limited, Luton, UK 1000
ENZAFRUIT New Zealand Intemational Limrted, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
ENZAFRUIT Peru S A.C, Lima, Peru 1000
ENZAFRUIT Products Inc., Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
ENZASuntistng (Holdings) Lirmted, Hong Kang, Peaple’s Republic of China 510
Acquisition of additional 25 0% of shares on
Fresh Food Exports 2011 Limited, Auckland (formerty Mangere), New Zealand 1000 25/06/2015
Fruit Distributors Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Fruitmark NZ Limrted, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Frutmark Pty Ltd, Muigrave (formerly ENZACOR Pty Ltd, Pymbie), Australia 1000
Fruttmark USA Inc., Seattle, USA 1000 Initial conschidation on 01/08/2015
Frutesa Chule Lirmtada, Santiago de Chile, Chile 1000
Frutesa, George Town, Cayman Islands 1000
Great Lake Tomatoes Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000 Inihal consolidation on 20/10/2015
Horticultural Corporation of New Zealand Limited, Auckiand, New Zealand 1000
Invercargill Markets Limrted, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Kerrfresh Growers Trust 2015, Kertken, New Zealand 630 Inthal consohdation on 01/04/2015
Rembrandt Van Rizen Limited, Auckdand, New Zeatand 1000 Inshal consolidation on 02/11/2015
Rianto Limited, Auckiand, New Zeatand 1000 Intial consolidation on 02/11/2015
Safer Food Technologies Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Status Produce Favona Road Limnted, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Status Produce Limited, Aucktand, New Zeatand 1000
T&G Vizzarm Farms Pty Ltd, Tullamanne (formerly Delica Pty Ltd, Pakenham), Australia 500 Transitanal consolidation on 30/07/2015
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(B.) INFORMATION ON CONSOLIDATION

(B.1.) Group of consolidated companies - fully consolidated companies pursuant to IFRS 10

Under the principles of full consolidation, all domestic and foreign comparnies on which BayWa can exercise direct or indirect control within the
meaning of IFRS 10 and where the subsidianes are not of secondary importance have been included in the consolidated financial statements,
alongside BayWa AG

Share in capital in % Comment
Agnculture Segment
Agrosaat d o o, Ljubljana, Slovenia 1000
Bayensche Futtersaatbau Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Ismaning, Germany 792
BayWa Agrar International BV, Rotterdam (formerty Amsterdam), the Netherlands 1000
BayWa Agn Romania S r|, Bucharest, Romama 900 Initial consolidation on 30/04/2015
BayWa Agro Pailska Sp z o 0, Grodzisk Mazowieck, Poland 1000 Inihal consolidation on ©1/01/2015
BayWa Marketing & Trading International B V', Rotterdam, the Netherlands 1000 Initial consolidation on 01/01/2015
BayWa Qbst GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000 Inttial consolidation on 01/01/2015
Baywa Rus LLC, Moscow, Russia 1000 Initial consolidation on 15/07/2015
BayWa Ukraine LLC, Kiev, Ukraine 1000 Initial consolidation on 04/08/2015
BGA Bio Getreide Austna GmbH, Vienna, Austna 1000
BOR s.ro, Chocen, Czech Republic 928
Cefetra Ibénca S LU, Pozuelo de Alarcon, Spain 1000 Initial consolidatton on 01/01/2015
Cefetra S p A., Rome, [taly 1000
CLAAS Nordostbayern GmbH & Co KG, Altenstadt, Germany 900
CLAAS Main-Donau GmbH & Co KG, Vohburg, Germany 900
CLAAS Sudostbayern GmbH, Toging am Inn, Germany 900
CLAAS Wurttemberg GmbH, Langenau, Germany 800
EUROGREEN AUSTRIA GmbH, Mondsee, Austna 1000
EUROGREEN CZ s.ro, hifetin pod Jedlovou, Czech Republic 1000
EUROGREEN GmbH, Betzdorf, Germany 1000
EURQGREEN Schweiz AG, Zuchwil, Switzerland 1000
F Ur & Co Gesellschaft m bH, Lannach, Austria 1000
FarmFacts GmbH & Co KG, Pfarrkirchen, Germany 1000 Iritial consohdation on 31/03/2015
Garant - Tiermahrung Gesellschatt m b H, Pochlarn, Austria 1000
LTZ Chemnitz GmbH, Hartmannsdorf, Germany 300
PC-Agrar Informations- und Beratungsdienst GmbH, Pfarrkerchen, Germany 1000 Imitial consolidation on 31/03/2015
Rarffetsen Agro d o o, Belgrade, Serta 1000
Resffeisen Kraftfutterwerke Sud GmbH, Wurzburg, Germany 1000
Rarffeisen Waren GmbH Numberger Land, Hersbruck, Germany 520
Rasffersen-Agro Magyaroszag Kft , kreny, Hungary 1000
RWA RAIFFEISEN AGRO d 0 0, Zagreb, Croatia 1000
RWA Raiffeisen Agro Romania S rl, Orfisoara, Romania 1000 Initied consolidation on 01/01/2015
RWA SLOVAKIA spol s 1o, Bratislava, Slovakia 1000
Sempol spal sro, Trnava, Slovakia 1000
TechnikCenter Gnmma GmbH, Mutzschen, Germary 700
URL AGRAR GmbH, Unterpremstatten, Austra 1000
BayWa Agrarhande! Group
BayWa Agrarhandel GmbH (formerly Bohnhorst Agrarhandel GmbH), Steimbke,
Germany 1000
Agrar- und Transportservice Kolleda GmbH, Kolleda, Germany 580
Agrarhandel Zussow Bohnhorst / Naeve Betedigungs GmbH, Zussow, Germany 1000
Hefen Vierow - Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Brunzow, Germany 500
Ketziner Lagerhaus GmbH & Co KG, Ketzin, Germany 1000
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Share in capital tn %

Comment

Taipa Water Supply Limited, Kenken, New Zealand 650

Turners & Growers (Fiy) Limited, Suva, Repubilic of Fiyi 700

Turners & Growers Fresh Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000

Turners & Growers New Zealand Limited, Auciand, New Zealand 1000

Tumers and Growers Horticulture Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 10600

Building Matenals Segment

AFS Franchise-Systeme GmbH, Vienna, Austna 1000

Bad und Heizung Krampfl GmbH, Plattling, Germany 700 initial consolidation an 30/06/2015
BayWa Handels-Systeme-Sernce GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000

BayWa Vorariberg HandelsGmbH, Lauterach, Austna 510

Energy Segment

AMUR S LU, Barcelona, Spain 1000

Ashuits Kraft AB, Malmo, Sweden 1000

Aufwind BB GmbH & Co Bioenergie Dessau Sechzehnte KG, Regensburg, Germany 1000

Aufwind BB GmbH & Co Sechsundzwanzigste Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany 1000

Aufwind BB GmbH & Co Zwewndzwanzigste Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany 1000

Autwind Schmack Elsé Biogaz Szolgaltats Kft, Szarvas, Hungary 1000

Aurgra Solar Prejects, LLC, Cover (Delaware), USA 1000

AWS Entsorgung Gmbi Abfail und Wertstoff Service Luckau (formerty AWS Transfer of additional shares of 10% effective
Entsorgung GmbH Abfall & Wertstoff Service, Boppard), Germany 1000 01/031/2018
BayWa Energie Dienstleistungs GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000

BayWa Okoenergie GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000 Initial consolidation on 01/01/2015
BayWare Bioenergy GmbH, Regensburg, Germany 1000

BayWare Development, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware}, USA 1000 Inttial consolidation on 12/02/2015
BayWare EPC, LLC, Wilnungton (Delaware), USA 1000 Initial consotidation on 18/02/2015
BayWare EspanaSL U, Barcelona, Spain 1000

BayWare Green Energy Products GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000

BayWare Japan K.K. Tokyo, Japan 1000 Initial consolidation on 26/02/2015
BayWare Mewuco LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000 Initial consolidation on 11/06/2015
BayWare Nordic AB {formerly BayWar e Scandinavia AB), Malrmo, Sweden 1000

BayWa re Operation Services GmbH, Munich, Germany (formerly Solarmarkt

Deutschland Gmbi, Schwabisch Hall, Germany) 1000

BayWa re Polska Sp z 0 o, Warsaw, Poland 1000

BayWare renewabie energy GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000

BayWare Rotor Service GmbH Basdahl, Germany 1000

BayWare Rotor Service Holding GmbH, Mumch, Germany 1000

BayWare Rotor Service Vermogensverwaltungs GmbH, Basdahl, Germany 1000

BayWare Scandinavia AB (formery HS Kraft AB), Malmo, Sweden 760

BayWare Solar Energy Systems GmbH {formerly BayWa re Solarsysteme GmbH),

Tubingen, Germany 1000

Bayware Solar Projects LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000

BayWare Solar Systems LLC (formerly Focused Energy LLC), Witmington (Delaware), Acquisition of additional 4% of shares on
UsSA 1000 03/03/2015
BayWare Solar Systems Ltd , Machynlleth, UK 900

BayWare Solardacher Il GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000

BayWare Solarsystemer ApS, Svendborg, Denmark 1000

BayWare USA LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000

Biogas Meden Ltd , London, UK 1000 Initial consofidation on 91/01/2015
Biomethanantage Welbeck GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000 Inttial consalidatton on 01/01/2015
Camemough Solar Project Limited, Landon, UK 1000 Inttial consolidation on 09/10/2015
Cork Dak Solar LLC, Raleigh {North Carclina), USA 1000 Inttial consolidatton on 23/12/2015
Cosmos Power S LU, Barcelona, Spam 1000

Delanc Solar |, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000 Inttial consahidation on 11/06/2015
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Share in capital in % Comment
Diermeter Energie GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
Furukraft AB, Malmo, Sweden 1000
GENOL Gesellschaft m b H & Co KG, Vienna, Austria o
Ge-Tec GmbH, Lienz, Austria 1000
INRG (Solar Parks) 14 Ltd, London, UK 1000 Initial consoildation on 08/11/2015
Lyngsésa Kraft AB, Malmo, Sweden 1000
MHH France SAS, Toulouse, France 990
Mozart Wind, LLC (formerly BayWa r & Mozart, LLC), Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
NLP Granger AB2, LLC, Wilmington {Delaware), USA 1000 Initial consolidation on 15/01/2015
NLP Valley Center Solar, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware}, USA 1000 Inthial consohdation on 15/01/2015
Notch Peak Solar, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000 Inittal consohdation on 29/10/2015
r e Bioenergie Betnebs GmbH & Co Dreiundzwanzigste Biogas KG, Regensburg,
Germany 1000 Initial consolidation an 01/01/2015
r e Bivenergie Betnebs GmbH & Co Vierundzwanzigste Biogas KG, Regensburg,
Gerrnany 1000 Inttial consohdation on G4/01/2015
r e Bioenengie Betnebs GmbH & Co Zehnte Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany 1000
r e Bivenergie Betnebs GmbH & Co Zwolfte Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany 1000
Real Power S L U, Barcelona, Spain 1000
renerco plan consult GmbH, Munich (formerly Creotece GmbH, Freiburg im Breisgau),
Germany 1000
Rock Power SL U, Barcelona, Spain 1000
Rose & Crown Solar PV Limited London, UK 1000 Intial eonsolidabion an 18/11/2015
Ryfors Kraft AB, Malmo, Sweden 1000
Schradenbiogas GmbH & Co KG, Groden, Germany 945
Sellindge Solar Limited, London, GroBbritannien 1000 Intial consohdation on 04/11/2015
Sjonnebol Kraft AB, Malmo, Sweden 1000 Initiad consohdation on 10/06/2015
Solarmarkt GmbH, Aarau, Switzerland 1000
Stormon Energs AB, Malmo, Sweden 1000
Studios Solar, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
Studios Solar 2, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
Studios Solar 3, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware}, USA 1000
Studios Solar 4, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
Studios Solar 5, LLC, Wilmington (Detaware}, USA 1000
Sunflower Solar LLC, Raleigh {North Carolina), USA 1000 Initial consoiidation on 23/12/2015
Acqusition of additional 30% of shares on
Teeno Spot-GmbH (formerly Tecno Spot Srl), Bruneck, italy 1000 12/03/2015
TESSOL Kraftstoffe, Mineralola und Tankanlagen Gesellschaft mit beschrankter 1000
Haftung, Stuttgart, Germany
Wagner Wind, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware} USA 1000
WAV Warme Austna VertnebsgmbH, Vienna, Ausina B30
Wingenfeid Energie GmbH, Hunfeld, Germany 1000
BayWa r e Asset Holding Group
BayWare Asset Holding GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Alisea Srl, Rome, Italy 650
Aludra Energies SARL, Pans, France 1000
Arlena Energy S rl, Milan, Italy 1000
BayWare 148 Projektgesellschaft mbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWare 149 Projektgesellschaft mbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWare 203 Projektgesellschaft mbH, Grafelfing (formery Grunwald), Germany 1000
BayWare 205 Projektgesellschaft mbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWare 206 Propektgesellschaft mbH Grafeling, Germany 1000
BayWare Asset Management GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWare France SAS, Pans, France 1000
BayWare Hellas MEPE, Athens, Greece 1000
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Share in capital in % Comment
BayWare ftalaSrl, Milan Italy 1000
BayWare Solar Projects GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa re UK Limited, London, UK 1000
BayWa re Wind GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa r e Wind Verwaltungs GmbH, Grafetfing, Germany 1000
BayWa r e Windpark Arlena GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWa re Windpark Gravina GmbH, Grefelting, Germany 1000
BayWa r e Windpark Guasifa GmbH, Grafeifing, Germany 1000
BayWa r e Windpark San Lupo GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWa r e Windpark Tessenano GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWa re Windpark Tuscania GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWa Ravanc Operation Services Srl, Genoa, italy 875 Inival conselidation on 17/07/2015
Bish (Holdings) Limited, London, UK 1000 Initsal consolidation on 14/10/2015
Brshopthorpe Wind Farm Limited, London, UK 1000 tnihal consolidation on 27/11/2015
Breathe Energia in Movimento Srl, Potenza, Italy 500
Dorenhagen Windenergieanlagen GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Energia Rinnovabile Pugliese S rl, Milan, Italy 1000
Eolica San Lupe Sri, Milan, Italy 1000
Fraisthorpe (Holding) Limited, London, UK 1000 Imital consolidation on 21/09/2015
Fraisthorpe Wind Farm Ltd , Landon, UK 1000
FwW Kamionka Sp z o o, Kamionka, Poland 1000
Haymaker (Homestead) Ltd , London (formerty Eastbourne), UK 1000
Les Eoliennes de Saint Fraigne SAS, Paris, France 1000
Les Pointes Energies SARL, Pans, France 1000
Montjean Energtes SARL, Pans, France 1000
Parca Solare Smeraldo S|, Brxen, ttaly 1000
Parque Edlico La Carracha S |, Zaragoza, Spain 740
Parque Edlico Plana de Jarreta S L, Zaragoza, Span 740
CQuilly Guenrouet Energies SARL, Pans, France 1000
RENERCO GEM 1 GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
RENERCO GEM 2 GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
RENERCOQ GEM 4 GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Saint Congard Energies SAS, Pans, France 1000
SEP S A.G Intersolaire 3 SNC, Mulhouse, France 1000
SESMP1 10 Lower House Solar Farm Limited, London, UK 1000
Societe d'exploitation photovoltatque du Midi Il SNC, Muthouse, France 1000
Solarpark Aquanus GmbH & Co KG, Mumich, Germany 1000
Solarpark Anes GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
Solarpark Aston Clinton GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Homestead GmbH (formerly Solarpark Flit GmbH), Grafetfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Lupus GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Lynt GmbH, Grafetfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Vine Farm GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solesa Engineenng Sri, Tunn, ltaly 1000 Inhal consolidation on 21/12/2015
Sunshune Movement GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
Tessennano Energy Srl, Milan, italy 1000
Theit Rabier Energies SARL, Pans, France 1000
Tuscania Energy Srl, Milan, ltaly 1000
Umspannwerk Klein Bunsdorf GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing (formerly Munich), Germany 1000
Vine Farm Solar Wendy Ltd London, UK 1000
Windfarm Fraisthorpe GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windfarm Lacedonia GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windfarms Italia S.r |, Mian, ltaly 1000
Windpark CreuBen Neuhof GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000 Inihial consolidation on 31/12/2015
Windpark Holle-Silium GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Gernmany 1000
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Share In capital 1n % Cornrnent
Windpark Karmionka GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Melfi GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Nambom GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Wilhelmshohe GmbH & Co KG, Grafetfing, Germany 1000
WP QWD Infrastruktur GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000 Inittal consolidation on 01/01/2015
BayWa re Wind Group
BayWare Wind, LLC, Wilmington {Delaware), USA 950
Amadeus Wind LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
Brahms Wind Hoidings, LLC, Wilmington {Delaware}, USA 1000 Inittal consolidation on 91/01/2015
BW DSG LLC (formerty Vivald) Wind, LLC), Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
Chopin Wind, LL.C, Wilmington (Delaware}, USA 1000
Ravel Wind, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
Windpark Berschweller GmbH & Co KG (formerly Windpark GHN GmbH & Co KG),
Grafelhing, Germany 1000
Windpark Finkenbach-Gerswetler GmbH & Co KG (formerly Windpark GHN
Grundstucksverwaltung GmbH & Co KG), Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Hettstadt GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000 Instrel cansoldation on 01/01/2015
ECQOWIND Group
ECOWIND Handels- & Wartungs-GmbH, Kilb, Austna Q00
ECOwind d o 0, Zagreb, Croatia 1000
Eko-En Drozkow Sp z 0 o, Zary, Poland 600
Eko-En lwonicz 2 Sp z 0 0, Rezesow, Poland 750
Eko-En Kozmin Sp z 0 o, Poznan, Poland 1000
Eko-En Polanow 1 Sp z 0 0, Koszalin, Poland 750
Eko-En Polanow 2 Sp z 0 0, Koszalin, Poland 750
Eko-En Skibno Sp z 0 0, Koszalin, Poland 750
Eko-En Zary Sp z ¢ 0, Zary, Poland 600
Eko-Energetyka Sp z 0 o, Rezesdw, Poland 510
Ewind Sp z o0, Rezesdéw Poland 50
Park Eolian Limanu Srl, Sibiu, Romama 990
Puterea Verde Srl, Sibiu Romanta 753
Samsonwind Wirtsnock GmbH, Thomatal, Austna 8OO
Windpark Furstkogel GrmbH, Kilb, Austria 1000
Windpark Hiesberg GrbH, Kilb, Austria 1000
Windpark Kraubatheck GmbH, Kilb, Austria 1000
Cther Activities Segment (including Financial Parhiespations)
Agroterre Warenhandel und Betelligungen GmbH, Vienna, Austria 1000
Bautechrik Gesellschaft m b H , Vienna, Ausina 1000
Bauzentrurn Westmunsterland GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa Agrar Betetligung Nr 2 GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa Agrar Beteiligungs GmbH, Munich, Germany 1060
Baywa Agn GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa Pensionsverwaltung GmbH (formerly BayWa Finanzbeteiligungs-GmbH),
Munich, Germany 1000
DRWZ-Beteilgungsgesellschaft mbH, Munich, Germany 643
Frucom Frutimport GmbH, Hamburg, Germany 1000
Immobienvermietung Gesellschaft m b H, Traun, Austna 1060
Janmis Betelhigungsgesellschaft mbH, Murich, Germany 1000
Kan Theis GmbH, Murich, Germany 1000
Raiffeisen-Lagarhaus investiionshelding GmbH, Vienna, Austna 1000
RI-Solution Data GmbH, Vienna, Austna 1060
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Share In capital in % Comment
RI-Solutran GmbH Gesellschaft fur Retaik-informationssysteme,
Services und Losungen mbH, Mumich, Germany 1000
RUG Rasffeisen Umweltgesellschaft m b H., Vienna, Austra 750
RWA International Holding GmbH, Vienna, Austna 1000
Unterstutzungseinnchtung der BayWa Aktiengesellschaft in Munchen GmbH, Munich,
Germany 1000
WealthCap Portfolio Finanzierungs-GmbH & Co KG, Grunwald, Germany 1000
Cross-segment subsidianes
"UNSER LAGERHAUS" WARENHANDELSGESELLSCHAFT m b H, Klagenturt, Austna
{for short UNSER LAGERHAUS) (Segments Agnculture, Energy, Building Matenals) 511
Rarffeisen-Lagerhaus GmbH, Bruck an der Lestha,
Austria (Segments Agriculture, Energy, Bullding Matenals) B899
RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austna Akttengesellschaft, Vienna, Austna (for short RWA AG)
(Segments Agriculture, Energy, Bullding Matenals, Gther Activities) 500

Cefetralbénca SL U, Pozuelo de Alarcdn, Spain, BayWa Marketing & Trading International B V, Rotterdam, the Netherlands, BayWa Agro Polska
Sp z oo, Grodzisk Mazowieckl, Poland, BayWa Obst GmbH & Co KG, Murich, Germany, Windpark Hettstadt GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing,
Germany, BayWar e Japan KK, Tokyo, Japan, RWA Raiffeisen Agro Romania S rl, Orfisoara, Romama, BayWa Okoenergie GmbH, Munich,
Germany, BayWa Rus LLC, Moscow, Russia, BayWa Ukraine LLC, Kiev, Ukraine, Biomethananlage Welbeck GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany, Biogas
Meden Ltd, London, UK, Bish (Holdings) Limited, Londan, UK, Bishopthorpe Wind Farm Limited, London, UK, Fraisthorpe (Holding) Limited,
London, UK, Frutmark USA Inc, Seattle, USA, Kenfresh Growers Trust 2015, Kenken, New Zealand, BayWar e Mexico LLC, Wilmington
(Delaware), USA, BayWa r e Development, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA, BayWar e EPC, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA, Delano

Solar |, LLC, Wiimington (Delaware), USA, Notch Peak Solar, LLC, Wilmington {Delaware), USA, Brahms Wind Holdings, LLC, Wilmington
(Detaware), USA, r e Bioenergie Betniebs GmbH & Co Dreiundzwanzigste Biegas KG, Regensburg, Germany, r e Bioenergie Betriebs GmbH &
Co Vierundzwanzigste Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany, WP OWD Infrastruktur GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany, are all companies
established in the financial year 2015 or before, became part of the fully consolidated group for the first time in the financial year 2015 Those
compantes established in previous years had not been included in BayWa AG's consohdated financial statements up to that point as they were of
only minor importance overall for the consolidated financial statements

The fallowing project companies also became part of the fully consolidated group for the first tme in the financial year 2015 Windpark CreuBen
Neuhof GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany, Cork Oak Solar LLC, Raleigh (North Carohna), USA, NLP Granger A82, LLC, Wilmington
{Detaware), USA, NLP Valley Center Solar, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA, Sunflower Solar LLC, Raleigh (North Carolina), USA, Rose &
Crown Solar PV Limited, London, UK, Sellindge Solar Limited, London, UK, INRG (Solar Parks} 14 Ltd , London, UK, Carnemough Solar Project
Limited, London, UK, Sjonnebol Kraft AB, Maimo, Sweden

In the financial year 2014, BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, acquired business activities in the fruit growing and trading business together with the
corresponding assets and liabihties of Apollo Apples Limited, Whakatu, New Zealand, through Group company Apollo Apples (2014) Limited,
Auckland, New Zealand, by way of an asset deal to expand business activiies in the Fruit business unit. The business activities, together with

the corresponding assets and liabiliies of Apollo Apples Limited were transferred to Apollo Apples (201 4) Limited, which was estabhished for
this purpose by T&G Global Limited (formerly Turner & Growers Limited), foliowing the payment of the first purchase pnce instalment on

18 December 2014 The purchase price allocation to be performed within the scope of the accounting of business combinations was reported in
BayWa AG's consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2014 on a preliminary basis and was finalised in the financial year 2015 This
did not result in any changes compared to the preliminary purchase price allocation

The cost of the acquired assets and liabidites came to €32 339 million and includes the contractually agreed purchase price component of

€29 650 millron which was disbursed n December 2014 Furthermore, the purchase agreement includes purchase price components contingent
on the operating performance of the acquired operatons (largely future harvest and marketing volumes) achieved in the financial years 2015 to
2018 The payments to be made in subsequent years on the basis of the contingent purchase price components are within a range of

€0 000 rmulion up to a maxtmum of €2 778 million Inview of the anticipated performance of the acquired company at the ime of acquisthon,

a purchase price totalling €32 339 million was recognised, including contingent purchase price componenis
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The transaction costs incurred in connection with the acquisttion of the shares amount to €0 376 million These costs were included in the income
statement for the financial year 2014 under other operating expenses

The net assets acquired in connection with the acquisition of Apollo Apples Limited's operations comprise the following

In € milhon Book value Fair value adjustments Fair value
Intangible assets 0041 - o] 24}
Property, plant and equipment, including brological assets 42 286 3084 45370
Financial assets - - -
Inventones 0246 - 0246
Recewvables and other assets 1541 - 1541
Deferred tax assets - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 0038 - 0033
Non-current habilities - - —
Current labtlities 2883 - 2883
Deferred tax habilities - 3660 3660

41 269 -0576 40693
Negative goodwill -B354
Total purchase pnce, including contingent purchase pnce components 32339

The negative goodwill of €8 354 mihon was recogrused under cther operating income through profit and loss in the financial year 2014 and 1s
mamly due to business nisks that cannot be recognised when allocating the purchase price

The hidden reserves and hidden encumbrances identified when allocating the purchase price were identified using expert opinions or observable
market prices

The gross amount of the receivables amounted to €0 615 milllon as at the time of acquisition, the full amount 1s considered to be recoverable

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, took aver 100% of the shares in PC-Agrar Informations- und Beratungsdienst GmbH, Pfarrkirchen, Germany, by
way of a share deal Together with its subsidianes, PC-Agrar informations- und Beratungsdienst GmbH develops and offers software solutions
and integrated services for process-driven operations management in the agricultural sector (smart farming) Through this acquisition, BayWa
would like to develop solutions for farmers through this partnership in order to make use of the advantages of smart farming across all types

of machinery and operating resources and irrespective of the size of the farm BayWa AG has had a controlling influence over PC-Agrar
Informations- und Beratungsdienst GmbH since 12 March 2015, the date when the purchase price was paid for the acquired shares The initial
consolidation of the company therefore tock place for reasons of matenality and practicabilty on 31 March 2015 within the scope of full
consolidation

The cost of the purchased shares came to €5 969 million and includes contractually agreed purchase price instalments totalling €5 259 mulhon,
which were disbursed in March and June 2015 Furthermare, the purchase agreement on the acquisition of the shares includes a contractual
agreement regarding a secunty deposit of €0 700 millicn, which will be disbursed in December 2018, after discounting the security deposit, a
purchase price totalling €5 969 million was recognised as at the time of acquisition

The transaction costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of the shares amount to €0 456 million These costs are included in the income
statement for the financial year 2015 under other operating expenses

68 BayWa AG Consoltdated Financial Statements 2015




Consolidated Financial Statements — Notes to the Consolidated Financiat Staternents

The net assets acquired in connection with the purchase of PC-Agrar Informations- und Beratungsdienst GmbH and its subsidiaries break down

as follows
i1 € milhon Book value Fair value adjustments Far value
Intangible assets 1767 3976 5743
Property, plant and equipment Q573 - 0573
Financial assets 0 GB6 - 0586
Inventones 0230 o 0341
Recewables and other assets 0805 - 0805
Deferred tax assets - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 0040 - 0040
Non-current habilities - = -
Current habiities 2514 - 2514
Deferred tax habilites 0019 1119 1138
1468 2.968 4436
Goodwiil 1533
Total purchase pnce 5 969

The goodwill resulting from the transaction includes non-separable intangible assets such as employee expertise and expected synergy effects

Goodwill 1s not tax deductible

The hidden reserves identified when allocating the purchase price were identified using income capitalisation approach or observable market
pnices The senes of payments in the iIncome capitahisation approach, fixed at economic useful lives of 14 years, were based on a discount factor

of 6 5%

The gross amount of the recevables amounted to €0 807 million as at the time of acquisiion, of this amount, €0 767 million 1s considered to be

recoverable

If the purchase of the company had been concluded by the first day of the financial year, the share in consoldated revenues would have been

€0 595 million higher and the consolidated profit attributable to investors €1 682 million lower

Since 31 March 2015, the date of its inibial inclusion in the group of consolidated compames, PC-Agrar Informations- und Beratungsdienst GmbH

together with its FarmFacts GmbH & Co KG subsidiary has generated revenues of €6 028 million and a loss of €0 278 million

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, took over 90% of the shares in Romantan agncultural trader Patberg International S r [, Bucharest, Romania, via
its BayWa Agrar International B V, Rotterdam (formerly Amsterdam), the Netherlands, subsidiary by way of a share deal The operations of the
Romanian agnicultural trader continue as part of the newly founded BayWa Agn Romarua S rl with headquarters in Bucharest, Romania. The
move secures the BayWa Group access to this key procurement market for agnicultural produce in Romania. BayWa Agrar International BV has

had a controling influence cver BayWa Agn Romania S r| since 24 Apnl 2015, the date when the purchase price was paid for the acquired

shares The imibial consolidation of the company therefore took place for reasons of mateniality and practicabiiity on 30 Apnil 2015 within the scope

of full consolidation

The cost of the shares came to €1 192 million and includes the contractually agreed purchase price component which was disbursed in
Apnl 2015

4

The transaction costs incurred in connection with the acquistion of the shares amount to €0 070 million These costs are included in the income

statement for the financial year 2015 under other operating expenses
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The net assets acquired 1n connection with the purchase of BayWa Agn Romania Sr| break down as foliows

n € rmulion Book value Faur value adjustments Far value
Intangible assets 0001 0729 0730
Property, plant and equipment 0073 - 0073
Financial assets - - -
Inventories 0100 - 0100
Recewvables and other assets 0178 - 0178
Deterred tax assets - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 0483 - 0463
Non-current liabdities - - -
Current liabiliies 1473 - 1473
Deferred tax liabilities - onz a7

-0 660 0612 -0048
Proporticnate net assets -0043
Goodwll 1235
Total purchase pnce 1192
Portion of net assets attributable to nan-cantrolling shares =005

The goodwill resulting from the transaction includes non-separable intangible assets such as employee expertise and expected synergy effects
Goodwill 1s not tax deductible

The portion of net assets of €-0 005 mullien attributable to the non-controlling shares in BayWa Agn Romania Srl comprises the farr value of the
assets and habilities attributable to minority interests

The hidden reserves identified when allocating the purchase price were identified using income capitalisation approach The senes of payments in
the income capitalisation approach, fixed at economic useful lives of four years, were based on a discount factor of 5 3%

The gross amount of the recervables amounted to €0 106 million as at the time of acquisition, the full amount 1s considered to be recoverable

If the purchase of the company had been concluded by the first day of the financial year, the share in consclidated revenues would have been
€0 318 mitlion higher and the consolidated profit attributable to investors €0 661 miflion lower

Since 30 April 20185, the date of its initial inclusion in the group of consolidated companies, BayWa Agrn Romania S rl has generated revenues of
€40 448 million and a loss of €2 702 million

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, took over 70% of the shares in Heizung-Luftung-Saritar Krampfl GmbH, Platthng, Germany, by way of a share
deal The bullding services specialtst company will continue trading under the name Bad und Heizung Krampfl GmbH At the Plattling, Germany,
site, which has good road access, the specialist company has exhibrton and office space of 300 square metres and warehousing space of
approximately 1,200 square metres BayWa AG has had a controiiing influence over Bad und Heizung Krampfl GmbH since 3 July 2015, the date
when the purchase price was paid for the acquired shares The initial consolidation of the company therefore took place for reasons of matenality
and prachcability on 30 June 2015 within the scope of full consolidation

The cost of the shares comes to €0 801 milhion and includes the contractually agreed purchase price component of €0 675 million, which was
disbursed in July 2015 Furthermore, the purchase agreement on the acquisition of the shares in the company includes a purchase price
compenent contingent on the EBIT achieved by the acquired company in the financial year 2015 In view of the expected performance, the
contingent purchase price component was recognised at €0 126 million

The transaction costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of the shares amount to €0 012 miihon These costs are included in the income
statement for the financial year 2015 under other operating expenses
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The net assets acquired in connection with the purchase of Bad und Heizung Krampfl GmbH break down as follows

in € milien Book value Fair value adjustments Fair value
Intangtble assets Q0o 0100 010
Property, plant and equipment Q001 - 0001
Financial assets - — -
Inventones 0466 0062 0528
Recevables and other assets Q172 - o172
Deferred tax assets - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 0165 - Q185
Non-current labilties - - -
Current liabilities 0720 - 0720
Deferred tax abilities - 0045 0045

0085 o117 0202
Proportionate net assets 0142
Goodwall 0659
Totai purchase prnice 0801
Portion of net assets attnbutabie to non-controlling shares 0060

The goodwill resulting from the transaction includes non-separable ntangible assets such as employee expertise and expected synergy effects
Goodwill 1s not tax deductible

The porhon of net assets of €0 060 million attnbutable to the non-controlling shares in Bad und Heizung Krampfl GmbH comprises the fair value
of the assets and habilities attributable to minonty interests

The hidden reserves identified when allocating the purchase price were identified using income capitalisation approach or observable market
prices The series of payments in the ncome capitalisation approach, fixed at economic useful lives of three years, were based on a discount
factor of 5 2%

The gross amount of the recevables amounted to €0 157 million as at the time of acquisition, of this amount, €0 145 million 1s considered to be
recaverable

If the purchase of the company had been concluded by the first day of the financial year, the share in consolidated revenues would have been
€1 535 milkon higher and the consolidated profit attributable to investors €0 058 million higher

Since 30 June 2015, the date of its imhal inclusion in the group of consolidated companies, Bad und Heizung Krampfl GmbH has generated
revenues of €1 535 million and gains of €0 211 million

BayWa AG acquired 87 5% ot the shares in BayWa Ravano Operation Services Sr |, Genoa, Italy, through Group company BayWare ltaliaSrl,
Milan, Italy, by way of a share deal, BayWa Ravano Operation Services Srl 1s the company in which the business operations to be acquired by
BayWare ftala S rl, comprising the techrucal management and maintenance of wind parks, were integrated by the seller pnor to the takeover
The takeover is designed to expand technical management and maintenance bustness activities in the Italian market. BayWar e ltallaSr has had
a controlling influence over this company since 17 July 2015, the date when the purchase pnce was paid for the acquired shares The intial
censolidation of the company therefore took place on this date within the scope of full consolidation

The purchase cost of the shares came to €1 530 milhion and includes the coniractually agreed purchase price component, which was disbursed n
July 2015

No transaction costs were incurred tn connection with the acquisition
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The net assets acquired in connection with the purchase of BayWa Ravano Operation Services Sr| break down as follows

In € rithon Book value Fauir value adjustments Farvalue
Intangible assets 19554 - 1554
Property, plant and equipment - - -
Financial assets - = -
Inventones 0064 - 0064
Receivabies and other assets 0166 = 0166
Deferred tax assets - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 0002 = 0002
Non-current hahilities - - -
Current labilties 0037 - 0037
Deferred tax habilities - - -

1749 - 1749
Proportionate net assets 1530
Goodwill ’ -
Total purchase pnce 1530
Portion of net assets attributable to non-contrelling shares 0219

The portion of net assets of €0 213 million attributable to the non-controlling shares in BayWa Ravano Operation Services Sl comprises the fair
value of the assets and habilrhes attnbutable to minority interests

Due to the seller's contnibution of the assets and habilities in the company at fair value, the book values at the time of the takeover of the company
by BayWar e Malia Srl corresponded to the fair values, meaning that no additional adjustments were reguired within the scope of the accounting
of business combinations

The gross amount of the recervabies amounted tc €0 166 million as at the ime of acquisthion, the full amount 1s considered to be recoverable

If the purchase of the company had been concluded by the first day of the financial year, there would have been no impact on the consolidated
revenues and the consolidated result atinbutable to investors

Since 17 July 2015, the date of its inthia) inclusion in the group of consolidated comparnies, BayWa Ravano Operation Services S r| has generated
revenues of €0 352 million and net income of €0 139 milhon

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, cbtained control pursuant to IFRS 10 of T&G Vizzarn Farms Pty Ltd, Tultamarnine (formerly Delica Pty Ltd,
Pakenham), Australia, effective 30 July 2015 through Group company Delica Austraha Pty Ltd, Tullamarine (formerly Pakenham), Australia,
which had until this date been recogmised as a joint venture at equity

Etfective 30 July 201 5, T&G Vizzarn Farms Py Ltd concluded an exclusive asparagus supply agreement wath M & G Vizzarn worth €3 321 miliion
and at the same time took over specific assets as well as employees of Vizzarn Farms, an affliated company of M & G Vizzarn

Following the closing of this transaction, Group company Delica Australia Pty Ltd stil holds 50% of the shares in T&G Vizzarn Farms Pty Ltd The
remaining 50% of the shares are held by M & G Vizzarr As the amended articles of association state that Delica Australia Pty Lid 1s responsible
for the company's operational management and that Delica Australia Ply has the nght to appoint three of the five Managing Directors as well

as the Chairman of the Management Board of T&G Vizzarr Farms Pty Ltd, this company s controlled by Delica Australia Pty L.td pursuant to the
provisions of IFRS 10, as a result, the company 1s to be included in BayWa AG's consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
standards applicable to full consolidation The company was included in the consolidated financial statements as at 30 July 2015

The cost to be apphied within the scope of the consohdation 1s made up of the cost of the asparagus supply agreement (€3 321 rmillion), which
was paid out on 30 July 2015, as well as the far value of the shares previously recognised at equity in T&G Vizzarn Farms Pty Ltd (€0 845 million)

The measurement at fair value of the shares held in T&G Vizzarn Farms Pty Ltd resulted in an accounting profit of €0 205 milion This amount s
included in the Income statement under other operating iIncome
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The transaction costs incurred 1n connection with the acquisition of the shares amount to €0 121 mullion These costs are included n the income
statement under other operating expenses

The net assets of T&G Vizzarrn Farms Pty Ltd acquired in connection with the transaction break down as follows

in € mdlion Book value Fair value adjustrments Fair value
Intangibie assets 33 - 33
Property, plant and equipment Q002 - Qo002
Financial assets - - -
lnventones 0109 - 0109
Recervables and other assets - - -
Deferred tax assets - - —
Cash and cash equivalents 0033 - 0033
Non-current llabilities - - -
Current habilities 0a72 - oar2
Deferred tax habtlities 0993 - 0993

2400 - 2400
Proportionate net assets 2363
Goodwill 1803
Total cost 4166
Partron of net assets attnbutable to non-controlling shares 0037
Share of the shareholders of the parent company in goodwtli 1317

The goodwill resulting from the transaction includes non-separable intangible assets such as employee expertise and expected synergy effects
Goodwill 1s not tax deductible

Fhe portion of net assets of €0 037 milion attributable to the non-controlling shares in T&G Vizzarn Farms Pty Ltd compnses the fair value of the
assets and liabilities attnbutable to minonty interests

if the control of the company had been exerted from the first day of the financial year, the share in consohdated revenues would have been
€4 826 milhon higher and the consohdated profit attributable to investors €0 181 million higher

Since 30 July 2015, the date of its initial mclusion in the group of consolidated companies, T&G Vizzarn Farms Pty Lid has generated revenues of
€12 427 million and gains of €0 603 millon

BayWa AG, Muntch, Germany, acquired 100% of the shares in Great Lalke Tomatoes Limited, Auckland, New Zealand, through its New Zealand
subsidiary T&G Global Limited (formerly Turners & Growers Limited), Auckland, New Zeatand, by way of a share deal to expand the actvities in
the tomato growing and trading business Tomato grower Great Lake Tomatoes Limited owns and operates greenhouses with an annual tomato
harvest volume of approximately 3,000 tonnes The acquisition aims to ncrease the annual harvest and trading volume, as well as ensure the
year-round supply to national and international companies T&G Global Limited has had a controlling influence over Great Lake Tomatoes since
20 October 2015, the date when the purchase price was paid for the acquired shares The initial consolidation of the company therefore took
place on this date within the scope of full consoiidation

The preliminary cost of the shares came to €10 506 million and includes the contractually agreed purchase price component which was
disbursed in October 2015

The transaction costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of the shares amount to €0 030 milllon These costs are included in the iIncome
statement for the financial year 2015 under other operating expenses
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The net assets acquired in connection with the purchase of Great Lake Tomatoes Limited break down as follows (preliminary figures)

n € million Book value Faur value adjustments Feur value

Intangible assets - - -

Property, plant and equipment 7889 - 7899
Financial assets = - -
Inventones 0460 - 0460
Receivables and other assets 0750 - 0750
Ceferred tax assets - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 0622 - 0622
Non-current labilties — - -
Current liabtlities 0622 - 0622
Deferred tax habilities 1169 - 1168

7940 - 7240
Preliminary goodwill 2566
Total purchase pnce {(preliminary) 10 506
Share of the shareholders of the parent company in preliminary goodwill 1875

The prehminary goedwill resulting from the transaction includes non-separable intangtble assets such as employee expertise and expected
synergy effects Goodwillis not tax deductible

The gross amount of the recevables amounted to €0 424 million as at the time of acquisitien, the full amount 1s considered to be recoverable

If the purchase of the company had been concluded by the first day of the financral year, the share in consoldated revenues would have been
€2 940 milhon higher and the conschidated profit attributable to investors €0 480 million ugher

Since 20 October 2015, the date of its initiat inclusion in the group of consolidated companies, Great Lake Tomatoes Limited has generated
revenues of €1 140 million and a loss of €0 060 milion

The final purchase price allocation pertaiming to this acquisition has not yet been made as the fair value of the assets and liabibities — especially
with regard to property, plant and equipment and tax effects — had not yet been definstively calculated at the ime when the consolidated financal
statements were drawn up

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, acquired 100% of the shares in Rianto Limited, Auckland, New Zealand, through its New Zealand subsidiary T&G
Global Limited (formerly Turners & Growers Limited), Auckland, New Zealand, by way of a share deal to expand the actvities in the tomato
growing and trading business Together with its subsidiary Rembrandt Van Rijen Limited, tomato grower Rianto Limited owns and operates
greenhouses with an annual tomato harvest volume of approximately 1,600 tonnes The acquisition of the companies also included land and
buildings in addition to the greenhouses The acquisiion aims to increase the annual harvest and trading volume as well as ensure the year-round
supply to national and international companies T&G Global Limited has had a controlling influence over Rianto Limited since 2 November 2015,
the date when the purchase price was paid for the acquired shares The imitial consolidation of the company therefore took place on this date
within the scope of full consolidation

The preliminary cost of the shares came to €4 982 million and includes the contractually agreed purchase prnice component which was disbursed
in November 2015

The transaction costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of the shares amount to €0 018 million These costs are included in the income
staternent for the financal year 2015 under other operating expenses
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The net assets acquired in connection with the purchase of Rianto Limited and Rembrandt Van Riyen Lirmited break down as follows (prekminary
figures)

tn € milion Book value Farr value adjustments Far value :
Intangible assets - - -
Property, plant and equipment 4213 - an3
Financial assets - - -
Inventones - - -
Recewvables 01 - 01
Deferred tax assets - —- -
Cash and cash equivalents - - -
Non-current labilties - - - X
Current habtlties 0377 - 0377
Deferred tax labilities 0471 - X V2]

3496 - 3496
Preliminary goodwiil 1436
Total purchase prnce (preliminary) 4982
Share of the shareholders of the parent company in prelirminary goodwill 1086

The preliminary goodwll resulbing from the transaction includes non-separable intangible assets such as employee expertise and expected
synergy effects Goodwill Is not tax deductible

The gross amount of the recevables amounted to €0 131 million as at the tme of acquisition, the full amount s considered to be recoverable

If the purchase of the company had been concluded by the first day of the financial year, the share in consolidated revenues would have been
€2 751 milhon higher and the consolidated profit attributable to investors €0 550 million higher

Since 2 November 2015, the date of its initial inclusion in the group of consolidated companies, Rtanto Limnted, together with Rembrandt Van
Rijen Limited, has generated revenues of €0 245 million and a loss of €0 006 million

The final purchase price allocation pertairing to this acquisiion has not yet been made as the fair value of the assets and llabiities - especially
with regard to property, plant and equipment and tax effects — had not yet been definttively calculated at the time when the consohdated financial
statements were drawn up

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, acquired 100% of the shares in Wessex Gramn Ltd, Templecombe, UK, through its subsidiary Cefetra Limited, ‘l
Glasgow, UK, by way of a share deal with effect from 24 November 2015 to expand business actvities in the Agriculture Segment. Agricultural

trader Wessex Grain Ltd has an annual trading volume of approximately 450,000 tonnes Cefetra Limited has had a controlling influence over this
company since 24 November 2015, the date when the purchase price was paid for the acquired shares The initial consolidation of the company

therefore took place for reasons of matenality and practicability on 30 November 2015 within the scope of full consohdation

The preliminary cost of the acquired net assets comes to €4 612 million and i1s made up of a purchase price of €4 211 rmillion that had been
offered to the previous shareholders within the scope of a takeover offer and was paid out In November, as well as a security deposit of

€0 401 milhon

The transaction costs incurred to date in connection with the acquisition of the shares amount to €0 477 milkion In the financial year 2015, these
costs are included in the income statement under other operating expenses
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The net assets acquired in connection with the purchase of Wessex Grain Ltd break down as follows {prehminary figures)

n € mlhon Book value Farr value adjustments Faur value

Intangible assets - - —

Property, plant and equipment 7234 1 807 Q04
Finencial assets - - -
Inventones 0429 - 0429
Recewables 5459 - 5459
Deferred tax assets - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 0077 - 0077
Non-current iabiities - - -
Current liabilities 10096 - 10086
Deterred tax liabilties 0298 - 0298

2805 1807 4512
Goodwtll -
Total purchase pnce (preliminary) 4612

The hidden reserves identified when allocating the purchase price (prebrminary) were identified using expert opinions

The gross amount of the receivables amounted to €5 546 midlion as at the tme of acquisition, of this amount, €5 459 million is considered to be
recoverable

If the purchase of the company had been concluded by the first day of the financial year, the share in consolidated revenues would have been
€23 448 milkon higher and the consolidated profit attnibutable to investors €0 024 mullion lower

Since 30 November 2015, the date of its imitial inclusion in the group of consolidated companies, Wessex Grain Ltd has generated revenues of
€5 517 milhion and net income of €0 024 mithon

The final purchase pnice allocation pertaining to this acquisttion has not yet been made as the farr value of the assets and llabiliies — especially
with regard to property, plant and equipment and tax effects - had not yet been definitively calcutated at the time when the consolidated financial
statements were drawn up

BayWa AG acquired 100% of the shares in Solesa Engineering Sr 1, Turin, italy, through Group company BayWare Itala Srl, Milan, ltaly, by way
of ashare deal The takeover 15 designed to expand technical management and maintenance business actrities in the ltalian market BayWare
Italia S r| has had a controling mnfluence over this company since 21 December 2015, the date when the purchase pnice was paid for the acquired

shares Theinitia! consolidation of the company therefore took place on this date within the scope of full consolidation

The preliminary cost of the shares came to €0 757 mullion and includes the contractually agreed purchase price component, which was disbursed
1n December 2015

No transaction costs have been incurred to date in connection with the acquisihion
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The net assets acquired in connection with the purchase of Solesa Engineering S| break down as follows {preliminary figures)

in € mithion Book value Fasr value adjustments Far value
Intangible assets 0001 0741 0742
Property, plant and equipment 0035 - 0005
Financial assets - - -
Inventones - - -
Recevables Q229 - 0229
Deferred tax assets = - =
Cash and cash equivalents 0001 - 0001
Non-current liabilities - — -
Current habilihes 0220 - 0220
Deferred tax habilities - - -

0016 o741 Q757
Goadwall —
Total purchase price (preliminary) 0757

The hidden reserves identified when allocating the purchase price (preliminary) were identified using the income capitalisation approach The
series of payments in the income caprtalisation approach, ixed at economic useful lives of 12 years, were based on a discount factor of 9 75%

The gross amount of the recevables amounted to €3 229 million as at the tme of acquisition, the full amount 1s considered to be recoverable

If the purchase of the company had been concluded by the first day of the financial year, there would have been no impact on the consolidated
revenues and the consolidated result attributable to investors

Since 21 December 2015, the date of its inihal inclusion in the group of consolidated companies, Sclesa Engineenng Srl has generated
revenues of €0 056 milhlon and net income of €0 008 million

The final purchase price allocation pertaiming to this acquisiion has not yet been made as the fair value of the assets and liabilities - especially
with regard to intangible assets and tax effects — had not yet been definitively calculated at the ime when the consolidated financial statements
were drawn up

In summary, the additions to assets (excluding goodwll) and habidities from company acquisiions according to major categary break down as
{ollows for the financial year 2015

Additions from
In € mdlion company acgjuisition n the financial year 2015
Intangible assets 12191
Property, plant and equipment 21 807
Financial assets 0586
Inventones 2031
Recervables and other assets 7888
Deferred tax assets -
Cash and cash equivalents 1403
MNon—current hebiltbes -
Current liabilties 16131
Deferred tax iabilities 4231

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, acquired the remaining 4% of the shares in BayWar e Solar Systems LLC (formerly Focused Energy LLC),
Wiimington {Delaware), USA, effective 3 March 2015, through Group company BayWa re USA LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA, meaning
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that BayWa re USA LLC has been entitled to 100% of the shares i this company since the acquisiion The cost of the shares comes to
€0988 million and includes the contractually agreed purchase pnce component of €0 988 mulhon, which was disbursed on 3 March 2015 The
book value of the previcus minerity interests in the equity of BayWa re Solar Systems LLC amounted to €0 577 million as at the ttme of
acquisiion As a result of this transaction, the minonty interest in equity included in the consolidated financial statements fell by €0 577 million
and the equity attnbutable to the shareholders of the parent company declined by €0 411 million due to the offsetting of the difference ansing
from the purchase of additional shares No additional transaction costs were incurred in connection wath the purchase of additional shares

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, acquired the remaining 30% of the shares in Tecno Spot -G mbH (formerly Tecno Spot S rl), Bruneck, Italy,
effective 12 March 2015, through Group company BayWar e Solar Energy Systems GmbH (formerly BayWar e Solarsysteme GmbH),
Tubingen, Germany, which means that BayWa r e Solar Energy Systems GmbH has been entitied to 100% of the shares in the company since the
acquistion The cost of the shares comes to €1 253 million and includes the contractually agreed purchase price component of €1 253 milhon,
which was disbursed on 12 March 2015 The book value of the previous minority interests in the equity of Tecno Spot - G mbH amounted to

€2 618 million as at the time of acquisition As a result of this transaction, the minority interest in equity included in the consolidated financial
statements fell by €2 618 million and the eguity attnbutable to the shareholders of the parent company increased by €1 365 milhion due to the
offsetting of the difference ansing from the purchase of additional shares No transaction costs were incurred in connection with the additional
acquisition of shares

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, acquired the remaining 25% of the shares in Fresh Food Exports 2011 Limited, Auckland, New Zealand, effective
25 May 2015, through Group company Dehca Limited, Auckland, New Zealand, meaning that Delica Limited has been entitled to 100% of the
shares in this company since the acquisition The cost of the shares attributable to the parent company's shareholders comes to €0 057 million
and includes the contractually agreed pro rata purchase price component of €0 057 million, which was disbursed on 25 May 2015 The book
value of the previous minonity interests in the equity of Fresh Food Exports 2011 Limited amounted to €0 167 million as at the time of acquisition
As a result of ths transaction, the minonty interestin equity included in the consolidated financial statements fell by €0 167 million and the equity
attributable to the shareholders of the parent company increased by €0 110 million due to the offsetting of the difference arising from the
purchase of additional shares No additional transaction costs were incurred i connection with the purchase of addibonal shares

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, was awarded 10% of the shares in AWS Entsorgung GmbH Abfall und Wertstoff Service, Luckau (formerly AWS
Entsorgung GmbH Abfall & Wertstotfe Service GmbH, Boppard), Germany, effective 1 January 2015, through Group company Schradenbiogas
GmbH & Co KG, Groden, Germany, at no cost within the scope of legal proceedings, meaning that Schradenbiogas GmbH & Co KG has been
entitled to 100% of the shares in this company since the acquisiion The hook value of the previous minority interests in the equity of AWS
Entsorgung GmbH Abfall und Wertstoff Service amounted to €0 055 million as at the time of acquisition As a result of this transaction, the
minority interest in equity included in the consclidated financial statements fell by €0 055 miilion and the equity attributable to the shareholders
of the parent company increased by €0 055 million due to the offsetting of the difference ansing from the purchase of additional shares No
addrtional transaction costs were incurred in connection with the purchase of additional shares

BayWa AG, Mumich, Germany, participated In a capital mcrease by Group company T&G Global Limited {formerly Turners & Growers Limited),
Auckland, New Zealand, on 4 December 2015 As the parhcipation of shareholders in the capital increase was not always proportional to the
shares held, the shares held by BayWa AG in T&G Global Limited rose from 73 07% to 73 68% The book value of the previous minority interests
in the equity of T&G Global Limited amounted to €0 996 million as at the ime of acquisition As a resuit of this transaction, the minority interest in
equity Included 1n the consolidated financial statements fell by €0 996 million and the equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent
company increased by €0 996 million due to the offsetting of the preliminary difference ansing from the purchase of additional shares No
additional transaction costs were incurred in connection with the purchase of additional shares

Delica Limited, Auckland, New Zealand, sold 20% of the shares in Delica Domestic Pty Ltd, Tullamanine (formerly Pakenham), Australa, effective
30 November 2015, meaning that Delica Limited has been entitled to 80% of the shares in this company since the tme of the disposal The sales
proceeds from the shares sold atiributable to the parent company amounts to €0 082 million The book value of the shares sold in Delica
Comestic Pty Ltd amounted to €0 116 milhon as at the disposal date As a result of this transaction, the minority interest in equity included in the
consolidated financial statements rose by €0 166 milhon and the equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent company declined by
€0084 milhon
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The following mergers also took place within the Group

Effectwe 1 January 2015, BayWa Pensionsverwaltung GmbH, Munich, Germany, was merged with BayWa Finanzbetethgungs-GmbH, Munich,
Germany Since the merger, the operations of the company continue under the name BayWa Pensionsverwaltung GmbH, Munich, Germany

Effectve 1 Apnl 2015, BayWa r e Operation Services GmbH, Munich, Germany, was merged with Sclarmarkt Deutschtand GmbH, Schwabisch
Hall, Germany Since the merger, the operations of the company continue under the name BayWar e Operation Services, Munich, Germany

Effective 1 July 2015, renerco plan consult GmbH, Munich, Germany, was merged with Creotecc GmbH, Fresburg im Breisgau, Germany Since
the merger, the operations of the company continue under the name renerco plan consult GmbH, Munich, Germany

BayWar e 148 Projekigesellschaft mbH, Grafelfing, Germany, scid 100% of its shares in Cornwall Power {Polmaugan) Ltd , London, UK, on
28 February 2015 within the scope of operating activities

Furthermore, BayWare Espana S L U, Barcelona, Spain, sold 100% of its shares in the following companies headquartered in Barcelona, Spain,
on 5 June 2015 within the scope of operating activities Abastecimiento Energetico Sofar S LU, Enemir Soiar S L U, Madnd FotovoltaicaSL U,
Microchma Solar SL U, Remosol Energias Renovables SL U, Renovaplus Energias Renovables SL U, Renovar EnergiaSL U

BayWar e Asset Holding GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany, and BayWar e Solar Projects GmbH, Munich, Germany, sold 100% of their shares in SEP
SAG Intersolaire 3 SNC, Mulhouse, France, on 13 August 2015 within the scope of operating actrvities

BayWar e Solar Projects LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA, sold 100% of its shares in the followmng US companies, based 1n Los Angeles, USA,
on 14 August 2015 within the scope of operating activiies ESA Newton Grove 1 NC LLC, ESA Selma NC 1 LLC, ESA Smuthfield 1 NCLLC

BayWar e Wind, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA, sold 100% of its shares in Beethoven Wind, LLC, San Diego, USA, on 25 Septernber 2015
within the scope of operating activities.

Furthermore, BayWar e Asset Holding GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany, sold 100% of its shares in Sclarpark Pindgewocd GmbH, Grafelfing,
Germany, on 30 September 2015 within the scope of operating actvities This also resulted in the sale of the 100% of the shares held by the
company in Haymaker (Solar) Ltd , London, UK, which, until it was sold, was a fulty consohdated company

Furthermore, BayWar e Espafia S L U, Barcelona, Span, sold 100% of ts shares in the followming companies headquartered in Barcelona, Spain,
on 23 October 2015 within the scope of operating actvities Energies Netes de Corral SerraS LU, Energies Netes de Sa Boleda S L U, Energies
Netes de Son Parera SL U, MONZINIMAN XXI SL U, NetEnvironment S L U, Puerto Real FV Preduction SL U, Rock Power CaceresSL U,
Solrenovable Fotov SL U, ZAX Products SL U, ZIGZAG Inversiones S L U, Serrezuela Solar XXISL U Atthe same time, Sunshine Movement
GmbHM, Munich, Germany, also sold 100% of its shares in the following companies headquartered in Madrid, Spain, on 23 October 2015 within
the scope of operating activittes Cubiertas Solares Carrocerias SL U, Cubiertas Solares Palencia 1 SL U, Cubiertas Solares ParkingSL U,
Silverworld System S LU

RENERCO GEM 4 GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany, sold 100% of its shares in GEM WIND FARM 4 Lid , London, UK, on 1 December 2015 within the
scope of operating actvibes

Solarpark Aston Clinton GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany, sold 100% of its shares in Haymaker {Gib Lane Solar) Ltd , London, UK, on 17 December
2015 within the scope of operating actvities

Solarpark LLynt GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany, also sold 100% of its shares in Lynt Farm Solar Ltd , London, UK, on 31 December 2015 within the
scope of operating actvities
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The effects of these transactions on the consolidated financial statements totalled as follows

Consideration received

1n € million

Consideration recetved in the form of cash and cash equivalents for the sold shares 271457

Assets and liabilities derecognised owing to control relinguished

In € million

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 2664

Property, plant and equipment 7009

Financial assets acol

Ceterred tax assets 3058

12732

Current assets

Inventones 325819

Recervables and other assets 18698

Cash and cash equivalents 13192
357 709

in € million

Nonr-current habilibes

Non-current provisians 2764

Financial hiabilihes 141237

Trade payables and other habilibes 0174

Deferred tax habilties 0675
144 850

Current labikhes

Current prowisions 3440

Financial habilities 24041

Trade payables and other habilities 7054

34 535
Net assets on the disposal date 191 056
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Gams/losses from the disposal of Group companies

n € miliion

Consideration received for the sold shares 271457
Net assets relinguished 191 056
Disposal gain 80401
of which attnbutable to minonty shareholders 1357
of which attnbutable 1o shareholders of the parent company 79044

As the companies being disposed of are all project compames from the Renewable Energies business sector that are being sold because they will
not be viewed as a material part of operating activittes once the corresponding plants have been completed, the disposals are disclosed in the
income statement under revenues and changes in inventones, while tax components are disclosed under tax expenses

Incoming net cash and cash equivalents from the disposal of Group companies

tn € million

Purchase price settled through cash and cash equivalents 271 457
Less cash and cash equivalents paid out in connection with the disposal -13192
258 265

Comparnies in which BayWa AG either directly or indirectly holds less than 100% of the capital and voting nights are also included in BayWa AG's

consolidated financial statements
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The summary of financial information for Group companies in which non-controlling shares are held 1s as follows

T&G Global Limited
(formerly Turners & Growers Limited), RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austna AG,
Auckland, New Zealand Vienna, Austria

31/12/2015 31/12/2014 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Share in the capital and voting rights held by the non-controlling shares 26 32% 26 93% 50 00% 50 00%
in € milion
Share 1n the annual result attnbutable to non-controling shares —1345 1163 4674 8359
Aggregated non-controlling shares 27513 30828 136517 134130
Dridends distnibuted to non-controling shares 1187 0982 2.108 2108
Financial information (prior to consolidation)
Current assets 110945 84252 347101 356017
Non-current assets 167 359 174877 184010 182519
Current liabilihes 70142 61 60 228 544 242814
Non-current Labiiities N 103637 83055 20534 27 461
Revenues - - 1,233 856 1,180183
Net income -5110 -4320 9347 18717
Cther earnings -0828 -0879 -0358 - 2025
Total earmengs -5938 -5199 8,989 14 692
Met cash flows from operating activihes -21911 -5173 25 396 9343
Net cash flows from investing activiies -0280 -30854 -9 -0 486
Net cash flows from financing activities 21299 34036 -17501 -9285
Total net cash flows -0901 -1991 2.384 ~-0438
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"UNSER LAGERHAUS"
WARENHANDELSGESELLSCHAFTmbH, BayWa Vorariberg HandelsGmbH,
Klagenfurt, Austria Lauterach, Austna

31/12/2015 31/12/2014 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Share in the capital and voting mghts held by the nen-controlling shares 48.94% 48.94% 49 00% 49 00%
in € million
Share in the annual result attnbutable to non-controlitng shares 2449 2377 1030 0764
Aggregated non-controlling shares 31833 30628 6708 6219
Dvidends distnbuted to nen-controling shares 11580 1221 0522 0606
Financial information {pnor to consolidation)
Current assets 100621 101 889 11 869 12 801
Non-current assets BO779 77035 17713 17934
Current iabilities 101 363 87958 8420 9551
Non-current habilities 14992 28383 7473 8192
Revenues 487084 524271 72218 71835
Net income 5004 4.856 2103 1560
Qther earmings -0192 ~-0708 -0039 -0189
Total earmings 4812 4148 2064 1 361
Net cash flows from operating actwities 10022 8084 4207 1886
Net cash flows from investing actvities -10850 -8649 -0633 -0818
Net cash flows from hnancing actmities 0937 0555 -3 9564 -1488
Total net cash flows 0009 -0010 0010 ~0 420

Owing to their generally secondary importance, 70 (2014 61) domestic and 45 (2014 34) foreign affillated comparues were not included in the
group of consolidated compantes The recognition of these companies in the group of consoiidated companies was carried out at cost The
aggregated annual results and aggregated equity (unconsolidated HB | values based on the individual financial statements) of these companies in
the financial year 2015 are set out below

Share in % n relation to the
sum total of ail fully

Unconsohdated affihated compamies in € miflion consohdated companies
Netincome 07 039
Equity 14855 046
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(B.2.) Joint ventures pursuant to IFRS 11 in conjunction with IAS 28

The following 10 (2014 8) joint ventures aver which the BayWa Group exerts joint control together with one or more external third parties on the

basis of a contractual agreement are recognised under the equity method

Share in capital in %

Comment

Agnculture Segment

Apollo Foods Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 500 Initial conselidatron on 01,/01/2015
Baltic Grain Terminal Sp z o0, Gdynia, Poland 500

BHBW Limited, Maidenhead, UK 500 Inthal consolidaton on 28/10/2015
T&G Vizzam Farms Pty Ltd, Tultamanne (formerly Delica Pty Ltd, Pakenham), Austraha 5G0 Transitional consolidation on 30/07/2015
Wawata General Partner Limited, Netscn, New Zealand 500

Worldwide Fruit Limrted, Spalding, UK 500

Energy Segment

BEEGY GmbH, Mannheim, Germany 251 Inihal consolidation on 15/05/2015
Suddeutsche Geothermie-Projekte GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 500

Suddeutsche Geothermie-Projekte Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Grafetfing, Germany 500

Other Actvibes Segment (including financial partiapations)

BayWa Hochhaus GmbH & Co KG, Grunwald {formerly Feldafing), Germany 980

50% of voting nghts

IFS Srl, Bazen, Italy 510

The shares of these companies have been recognised at cost, taking account of changes in the net assets of the affilated companies since the
purchase of the shares Delica Pty Ltd was renamed T&G Vizzarn Farms Pty Ltd on 30 July 2015 At the same time, the BayWa Group, whose
share remamned unchanged at 50%, exerted sigmficant influence over the company due to an amendment to the partnershup arrangements
Consequently, this company was included in the group of consolidated companes as a subsidiary pursuant to IFRS 16 (Consolidated Financial
Statements) from the date on which control was exerted Please refer to Note B 1 Group of consolidated companies — fully consolidated

companies pursuant to IFRS 10 for more detalls
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Surnmary of financial nformation about the material joint ventures inciuded under the equity method

BEEGY GmbH, Mannheim, Germany*

Worldwide Fruit Limited, Spalding, UK

30/09/2015 30/09/2014 31/12/2015 3112/2014
Shareholding 2510% - 50 00% 50 00%
Voting nghts 25 109% - 50 00% 50 00%
In € milion
Dradends recerved from joint ventures - - 0261 0620
Current assets 19254 - 19 894 15186
Noen-current assets 3602 - 11143 10920
Current lrabrlthes 2900 - 18881 16.248
Non-current labiiities - - - 4.544 4763
Cash and cash equivalents 5175 - 2197 0858
Current financial habiittes - - - -
Non-¢current financial labilities - - 4544 4763
Revenues 0047 - 156 621 141 904
Amortisatton -0216 - -0914 -0 752
Interest expense - - -0138 -0114
Income tax expense - - -0 869 -0 582
Netincome from continued operations -6953 - 2859 2018
Other earnings - - - -
Total eamings -6953 - 2859 2018
Losses not realised for the reporting perod - - - -
Aggregated fosses not realised = - - -
Transihon
Joint venture s net assets 17444 - 7612 5095
Shareholding and voting nghts 25 10% - 50 00% 50 00%
Goodwill 2223 - - -
Other adjustments — - 1157 0803
Book value €601 - 4963 31351

* Baoth the net assets of BEEGY GmbH and the book value of the equity approach of the compeny relats to 31 December 2015

The above financial information relate to values used as a basis for the IFRS financial statements of the respective joint ventures

Summary of financial information about the joint ventures included under the equity method which are, m and of themselves, not material

In € million 31/12/2015 3122014

Book value as at the balance sheet date 7855 6830
BayWa Group's share in net ncome from continued operations -3424 -3166
BayWa Group's share in eamings from disconttnued operattons after tax - -
EayWa Group's share in other earnings -0465 -1305
BayWa Group's share i total eamings -3889 -447

Losses not realised for the reporting peniod - -
Aggregated losses not realised - -

'
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(B.3.) Associated companies pursuant to IAS 28

The following 22 (2014 21) associated companies over which the BayWa Group esther has a proportion of voting nghts of at least 20% and a
maximurn of 50%, or over whose business management or supervisory functions the BayWa Group exerts a significant influence, and which are
not jointly held companies or companies of secondary importance, are recognised under the equity method

Share in capital in % Comment
Agricuiture Segment
Agrimec Group BV, Apeldoorn, the Netherlands 490
Alten Blair Properties Limited Wellington, New Zealand 333
Dawd Oppenheimer & Company |, LLC, Seattle, USA 150
Dawvid Oppenheimer Transport Inc, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 150
Fresh Vegetable Packers Limited, Christchurch, New Zealand 414
McKay Shipping Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 250
Mystery Creek Asparagus Limited, Hamiiton, New Zealand 145
N Z Kumara Distnbutors Limited, Dargawvile, New Zealand 204 Imitial consolidation on 01/01/2015
Energy Segment
Aufwind BB GmbH & Co Zwanzngste Buogas KG, Regenshurg, Germany 1000 50% share n voitng nghts
Biomethananlage Barby GmbH, Barby
(formerly Bioenergie Barby GmbH, Regenshurg), Germany 251
Biomethananlage StaBfurt GmbH, Mannheim, Germany 251
CRE Project Sr 1, Matera, Itaty 490
EAV Energietechmsche Anlagen Verwaltungs GmbH, StaBfurt, Germany 490
Hewizkraftwerke-Pool Verwattungs-GmbH, Munich, Germany 333
Other Activities Segment (including Financial Participations)
AHG- Autohandelsgesellschaft mbH, Horb arm Neckar, Germany 490
AUSTRIA JUICE GmbH, Allhartsberg (formerly Krollendorf), Austna 500
BayWa Bau- & Gartenmarkte GmbH & Co KG, Dortmund, Germany 500
BRB Holding GmbH, Munich, Germany 453
Peutsche Rarffeisen-Warenzentrale GmbM, Frankfurt am Main, Germany 378
Frisch & Frost Nahrungsmittel GmbH, Vienna, Austna 250
LWM Austrna GmbH, Hollabrunn, Austna 250
Rarffersen Beteligungs GmbH, Frankfurt am Main, Germany 474

The shares of these companies have been recogrised at cost, taking account of changes in the net assets of the affthated companies since the
purchase of the shares The shares in BayWa Bau- & Gartenmarkte GmbH & Co KG constitute an exception, as these are measured at cost due to
the contractual terms, the cost also corresponds to the future contractually agreed disposal price and, in turn, to the fair value of the shares

86

BayWa AG Consolidated Financial Statements 2015



Consclidated Financial Statements - Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of financial informaticn about the matenal companies included under the equity method

Agnmec Group BV, Apeldaorn,

BayWa Bau- & Gartenmarkte

the Netherlands GmbH & Co KG, Dortmund, Germany

31/12/2015 311272014 28/02/2015 28/02/2014
Sharehclding 45 00% 49 00% 50 00%: 50 00%
Voting nghts 49 Q0% 49 Q0% 50 00% 50 00%
in € millon
Dwmndends recerved from associated companies - — - -
Current assets 27999 26646 131 866 121 334
Non-current assets 5397 5140 20604 18201
Current habilities 23892 22988 71950 83323
Non-current liabilrties - - 61903 39882
Revenues 69016 64500 250212 254090
Net income from continued cperations 0706 0754 2287 2945
Other earnings - - - -
Total earmings Q706 0754 2287 2945
Losses not realised for the reporting penod - - - -
Aggregated losses not realised - - - -
Transition
Assooiated company's net assets 9 504 8798 18617 16330
Shareholding and vating nghts 49 00% 43 00% 50 00% 50 0%
Goodwll 0194 0194 - -
Other adjustments - - 4693 5837
Book value 4851 4505 14002 14002

The financial year of BayWa Bau- & Gartenmarkte GmbH & Co KG ends on 28 February and therefore differs from that of the parent company
The shares in the company are measured at cost, which also correspeonds to the fair value, due to the terms of the contractual agreement,

meaning that the differing reporting periods have no impact on the net assets, financial posrtion and result of operations of the Group
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Dawid Oppenhesmer & Company |, LLC, BRB Holding GmbH,
Seattle, USA Muruch, Germany

31/12/2015 3t/12/2014 31/12/2015 31/12/201 4
Shareholding 15 00% 15 00% 45 26% 4526%
Voting nghts 15 D0% 16 00% 45 26% 45 26%
n € million
Drvidends receved from assoctated companies 0612 0359 1729 -
Current assets 673872 61385 0168 0025
Non-current assets 0303 0279 234 845 234845
Current labilties 63325 57989 0159 0003
Non-current habilities - - — -
Revenues 466 144 384340 - -
Net income from continued operations 4773 2872 3806 -0003
Other earnings - - - -
Total earnings 4773 2872 3806 -~ 0003
Losses not reshsed for the reporting penod - - - -
Aggregated losses not realised - - - -
Transition
Assoctated company's net assets 4850 3675 234.854 234 867
Shareholding and voting nghts 15 00% 1500% 45 26% 45 26%
Goodwll - - - -
Other adjustments 1637 t 388 ~17295 -17295
Book value 2365 1539 83000 89006
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AUSTRIA JUICE GmbH, Allhartsberg AHG- Autohandelsgesellschaft mbhH,

(formerly Krollendorf), Austna Horb am Neckar, Germany

30/11/2015 30/11/2014 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Shareholding 49 99% 49 9% 49 00% 49 00%
Voting nghts 49 59% 49 99% 49 00% 49 00%
in € milhon
Dvidends receved from associated companies 3499 3489 0245 0245
Current assets 237 391 200755 92522 107163
Non-current assets 93948 92006 42093 40436
Current llabilies 273905 224585 31798 23390
Non-current lablhes 7543 9056 88 409 113221
Revenues 213253 267 117 434273 398979
Nat income from continued cperations ~1445 2923 3920 2344
Other earnings -0920 -1320 - -
Total earnings -2 365 1603 3920 2344
Losses not realised for the reporting penod - - - -
Aggregated losses not reafised - - - -
Transition
Associated company's net assets 43 591 59120 14408 10988
Sharehelding and voting nghts 49 99% 49 99% 49 00% 49 00%
Goodwill 22449 22449 0099 0099
Other adjustments - - - -
Book value 47 350 52 003 7159 5483

Due to the company’s business actvities, the financial year of AUSTRIA JUICE GmbH ends on 28 February For this reason, the reporting periods,
which are used as the basis for the inclusion of the financial statements of AUSTRIA JUICE GmhbH in the consolidated financial statements of
BayWa AG, end on 30 November, and therefore deviates from the parent company’s reporting date Differing reporting periods have no impact
on the net assets, financial position and result of operations of the BayWa Group

The above financial information relate to values used as a basis for the IFRS financial statements of the associated company

Summary of financial nformation about the associated comparues included under the equity method which are, in and of themselves, not
material

in € million 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Book value as at the balance sheet date 19 680 19235
BayWa Group's share in net income from continued operations 3041 2142

BayWa Group's share in earnings from discontinued operations after tax - -

BayWa Group s share 0 other earmings - —

BayWa Group's share n total earnings 3041 2142

Losses not realised for the reporting penod - -

Aggregated losses not realised - -
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Atotal of 31 (2014 33) associated companies of generally secondary smportance for the consolidated financial statements have been accounted
for at cost and by using the equity method The aggregated assets, labiliies, revenues and annual results (each based on the indvidual financial
statements) of these companies in the financial year 2015 are set out below

Associated companies not included under the equity method n € million
Assets 293 606
Liabilibes 259737
Revenues 474917
Net income 0201

(B.4.) Summary of the changes to the group of consolidated companies of BayWa AG

Compared with the previous year, the group of cansolidated companies, including the parent company, has changed as follows

Germany International Total
Included as at 31/12/2014 108 212 318
of which fully consclidated 93 196 289
of which recognised at equity 13 16 29
Included as at 31/12/2015 114 213 327
of which fully consolidated 100 195 295
of which recogrised at equity 14 18 32

All Group holdings are histed separately {(appendix o the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

(B.5.) Principles of consolidation

Capttal consolidation at the time of inihial consolidation i1s carned out through offsetting the cost against the fair value of the identifiable assets,
habilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiaries at the time of acquisition (purchase methad) If the cost exceeds the farr value of the
dentifiable assets, habilities and contingent liabilities purchased, the difference 1s disclosed as goodwill under intangible assets as part of non-
current assets Goodwill is subject to an annual impairment test (Impairment Only Approach) If the book value of goodwill 1s higher than the
recoverable amounts, impairment must be carned out, otherwise goodwill remains unchanged If the cost s lower than the fair value of the
identifiable assets, lrabilities and contingent habilities, the differences are booked immediately through profit and loss

All recervables and habilities, as well as provisions within the group of consolidated companies, are offset. Interim results, f matenal, are
ehminated Intenim results realised from associated compames are ehminated against the corresponding investments recognised at equity If the
respective investment does not exist to a sufficient extent for elimination, other assets related to the affected company are eliminated [f these do
not exist or do not exist to a suffictent extent, the intenim result 1s eiminated by recognising it in revenue reserves on the liabiitties side to ensure
that the result of operations reflects actual developments It s not recognised as “deferred income” under cther liabilities, as the eliminated intenm
result does not represent a lability and recognition as other habilities would incorrectly depict the actual asset position Intra-Group revenues,
expenses and earnings are netted
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(B.6.) Currency translation

The translation of the financial statements prepared in a foreign currency into euros is carmned out by applying the concept of funchonal currency
as defined under 1AS 21 {The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates) The companies of the BayWa Group operate independently They
are therefore considered “foreign operations” Functional currency is the respective national currency or, in exceptional cases, the currency in
which most of the respective company's transaction are settled in Assets and habilihes are converted at the exchange rate on the reporting date
This does not apply to investments, which are measured at histonical exchange rates With the exception of Income and expenses included directly
n equity, equity I1s carnied at historical rates The translation of the income statement 1s carried out using the average rate for the year Differences
resulting from currency transiation are treated without effect on income, until such time as the subsidiary is disposed of and set off agamst other
reserves in equity The differences resulting from currency translation increased by €2 032 milion in the reporting year (2014 €10 135 million)

The exchange rates used for translations are shown in the table below

Batance sheet Income statement

Middle rate on Average rate

€1 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 2015 2014

Australa AUD 1490 1483 1478 1472
China CNY 7061 7536 6973 8186
Croatia HRK 7638 7658 76N 7634
Czech Republic CZK 27 025 27725 2730 27 540
Denmark DKK 7463 7445 7460 7 455
Hungary HUF 313120 314890 309672 308 641
Japan JPY 131070 — 134414 —
New Zeatand NZD 1592 1553 1589 1 606
Peru PEN 3701 3656 3560 3770
Poland PLN 4264 4273 4190 4191
Republc of Fi FID 2326 2418 2326 2500
Romania RON 4524 4483 4444 4441
Russia RUB BOGT4 - 67833 -
Serbia RSD 121 626 120988 120772 117123
Sweden SEK 9190 9393 9341 9097
Switzerand CHF 1084 1202 1074 1214
Ukraine UAH 26159 - 23707 -
UK GBP 0734 0779 0728 0805
usa uso 1089 1214 1112 1323

(B.7.) IAS 8 - Accounting and Valuation Principles, Changes in Estimates and Errors

The consolidated financial statements and the management report on the Group of BayWa AG as at 31 December 2013 were subject toa random
sample audit by the Deutsche Prufstelle fur Rechnungslegung (DPR) / Financial Reporting Enforcement Panel (FREP) pursuant to Section 342b
para. 2 sentence 3 German Commercial Code (HGB) This audit resulted in a total of five findings, three of which had an effect on the assets,
financial position and result of operations of the BayWa Group for the financial year 2013 and, consequently, also for subsequent years Two
findings solely concerned reporting and therefore had no impact on the assets, financial position and result of operations

The audit findings concerning the assets, financial position and result of operations were as follows

In the financial year 2013, BayWa AG disposed of 80 properties within the scope of a sale-and-lease-back transaction The lease of these
properties was classified by BayWa AG at that ime as an operating fease within the meaning of IAS 17 FREP found inits audit that, considenng
the existing unilateral lease extension options on the part of the lessor, the lease back of all 80 properties constituted financial leases For this
reason, the properties should have been recogmised in the consolidated balance sheet at farr value together with a corresponding lease hability at
the start of the lease The rental expenses recognised in BayWa AG's consolidated financial statements in the financial years 2013 and 2014
should have been replaced with depreciation on the properties and interest expense from the lease liabiity The book values resulting from the
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disposal in the financial year 2013 should have been recognised as deferred income in other labilities and distributed pver the term of the lease in
consideration of the lessor's extension options (a total of 25 years)

In addihon, FREP also found that, in WealthCap Portfolio Fmanzlerungs;GmbH & Co KG, Grunwald, Germany, a company that has similar aims as
the Group and whose risks and opportunities are fully apportionable to the Group was not reported as a special purpose vehicle in the sense of
1AS 27 13 in conjunchon with SIC 12 8 et seq In BayWa AG's consohdated financial statements in accordance with the standards appiicable to full
consolidation Instead of reporting the investment in the company, as was the case in the past, the loans granted by the company should have
been reported on the balance sheet

It was also found that, in the course of the purchase price allocation for Cefetra B V, which was acquired in the financial year 2013, debt and
therefore also goodwill resulting from this transaction were too high

In addition to the adjustments presented here on the basis of FREP's audit findings, the consolidated financial statements in the previous year also
required correction pursuant to |AS 8 in order to rectify the incorrect calculation of deferred tax assets and habdities caused by an erronecus tax
assessment. This resulted in a reduction in deferred tax assets of €4 447 mithen in the consohdated financial statements as at 31 December 2014
and a corresponding rise in tax expenses

In the reporbing year, the BayWa Group opted for the early adoption of amendments to IAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) and |1AS 41
(Agnicutture) with regard to the recognition of bearer plants, which were endorsed in European law in November 2015 These kinds of bearer
plants have been removed from the scope of IAS 41 into the scope of IAS 16, therefore enabling entities to measure them at cost subsequent to
iitial recognition or at revaluation Bearer plants had been subject to recognition at fair value on an annual hasis In the past However, the produce
growing on bearer plants continues to be accounted for under IAS 41 The early adoption of the amendments was implemented retrospectively,
meaning that the fair values of bearer plants were corrected in the previous year's annual financial statements Since 1 January 2014, bearer
plants have therefore been accounted for at cost less accumulated depreciation as a component of property, plant and equipment The fair value
of bearer plants as at 1 January 2014 was recognised at cost for accounting purposes

The descnbed adjustments had the following iImpact on the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 Decernber 2013 as well as at 1 January 2014

First-ime

01/01/2014 FREP application of 01/01/2014
In € millwon unadjusted findings |AS41/1AS 16 adjusted
ASSETS
Infangible assats 157020 -2033 - 154887
Praperty, plant and equipment 1074189 229517 7994 1,311 700
Other financial assets 320415 -68 880 - 251525
Non-current biological assets 12814 - -12814 —
Deferred tax assets 128108 25827 - 153635
Current biological assets 0847 - 43820 5667
Other current receivables and gther assets 1,018732 0002 - 1,018734
Cash and cash equivalents 92069 0018 - 92087
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Other reserves 150658 -66974 - 83684
Non-current financial lease obligations 6689 169768 - 166 457
Other non-current habil ties 23723 83763 - 107 486
Other current provisions 145 366 -0121 - 145245
Current financial lease obligations 4613 4087 - 8700
Current trade payables and habilities from inter-Group business relationships 766611 0005 - 766616
Other current labiities 221 808 3614 - 225422
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The effects of the adjustments on the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2014 are as follows

First-time
31/12/2014 FREP application of Miscorrection of 311272014
In € millign unadjusted findings IAS 41/1AS 16 deferred taxes adjusted
ASSETS
Intangible assets 150141 -2033 - - 148.108
Property, plant and equipment 1,163 312 220115 13108 - 1,396 535
Participating interests recogrised at equity 196 867 - -0 423 - 196 444
Qther financial assets 250 432 -68890 - — 181 542
Non-current biglogical assets 26186 - -26 186 - -
Deferred tax assets 187 588 26130 - -4 447 208271
Current biologicai assets 0 881 - 8290 - 917N
Other current recevables and other assets 1.086 663 -2248 - - 1,084 415
Cash and cash equivalents 106 076 2280 - - 108 356
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Other reserves 145817 -68 555 -2829 -4 447 65986
Minenty interest in equity 264 959 - -1042 - 263917
Nan-current financial lease obligations 5994 155412 - - 161406
QOther non-current liabilties 41 417 80149 - - 121 566
l.atente Steuerschulden 153 796 - -1340 - 152 456
Current financial lease obhgations 3500 4356 - - 7856
Current trade payables and habilities from inter-Group business
relationships 744 991 Q007 - - 744998
Other current habilities 199827 3985 - - 203912
The effects on the iIncome statement for the financial year 2014 are as follows
First-tme
2014 FREP application of Miscorrection of 2014
in € milhan unadjusted findings IAS 41/1AS 16 «deferred taxes adjusted
Cther operating income 178811 3614 - - 182426
Cost of matenals -13,816835 - -0281 - -13816916
Gross profit 1,526 188 3614 -0281 - 1,529 521
Personnel expenses -792576 -0493 - - -793069
Depreciation and amortisation -117 825 -9400 -0 486 - -127711
Other operating expenses -506 485 18860 -3863 - -491 488
Result of operating actinties 109 302 12581 -4 630 - 117253
Income from participabing interests recogrised at equdy 3803 - -0 409 - 3394
Qther income from shareholdings 33693 -2262 - - 31431
Interest expense -65924 -12502 - - -78426
Financial result -21656 -14764 -0409 - -36 829
Result of ordinary actrwities (EET) 87 646 -2.183 -5039 - 80424
Income tax 2.827 0602 1297 —4 347 0279
Consolidated net income 80473 -1581 -3742 -4 447 80 703
of which profit share of minorty interest 20283 - -1008 - 19276
of which due to shareholders of the parent company 70180 -1581 -2734 -4 447 61 427
EBIT 146 798 10319 -5039 - 152078
EBITDA 264 623 19719 -4 553 - 279 789
Basic eamings per share (in €) 203 -g04 -008 -013 178
Diluted earmings per share (in €) 203 -004 -008 -013 178
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The transition to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the financial year 201 4 tollowing the adjustments is as follows

First-time
2014 FREP application of Miscarrection of 2014
n € million unadjusted findings 1AS 41/1AS 16 deferred taxes adjusted
Consochdated net income 90473 -1581 -3742 -4 447 80703
Sum of items not subsedquently reclassified in the
ncome statement -94570 - - - -94570
Differences from currency translation 10264 - -0129 - 10138
Sum of items subsequently reclassified in the
income statement 13334 - -0129 - 13205
Gains and losses recogmsed directly in equity -B1236 - -0129 - -81 365
of which profit share of minonity interest 0810 - -0034 - 0775
of which due to shareholders of the parent company -82046 - -0 095 - -82140
Consohdated total result for the penod 9237 ~1 581 -387Mm -4 447 -0 662
of which profit share of minonty interest 21093 - -1042 - 20051
of which due to shareholders of the parent company -11 856 -1581 -2829 -4447 -20713
The adjustments had the following effects on the cash flow statement for the financial year 2014
First-ime
2014 FREP apphication of Miscorrection of 2014
in € million unadjusted findings 1AS 41/1AS 16 deferred taxes adjusted
Cash flow from operating activities -112377 21112 0644 - -90621
Cash flow from investing activities -224 636 -2262 -0644 - —-227 592
Cash flow from financing activibes 350981 -16 588 - - 3341393
Cash-effective changes in cash and cash equivalents 13918 2262 - - 16180
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the pencd 92 069 osg - - 92087
Inflow/outflow of funds due to changes in the group of
consolidated companies and in exchange rates 0089 - - - 00839
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the periad 106 076 2230 - - 108 356
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(C.) NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET

(C.1.) Intangible assets

Intangible assets purchased agamnst payment are capitalised at cost and, with the exception of goodwill, amortised on a straight-line basis over
their useful economic lives (generally three to five years) Intangible assets which have been created in-house (self-created) have been capitalised
in accordance with IAS 38 (Intangible Assets) if it 1s likely that the future economic benefit will acerue from the use of the assets and if the cost of
the assets can be reliably determined These assets have been recogrised at cost, with an appropriate portion of the overheads relating to their
development, and amortised on a straight-line basis The caleulation of impairment losses has been carned outin consideration of IAS 36
{Imparment of Assets) In the reporting year, goodwill imparrment of €1 159 million was recogrised in the Energy Segment for renerco plan
consult GmbH (formerly Creotecc GmbH) due to the change in business actvities The disposal of Net Environment SL U and the Rock Power
Group, compnsing Rock Power Caceres S LU and Serrezuela Solar XX1SL U, resulted in a €1 5986 mullion reduction in the assigned goodwaill

Raiffeisen Kraftfutterwerke Sud GmbH's goodwill dechined in the previous year on account of the planned disposal of assets The company's
goodwll was not transferred to the buyer i the financial year 2015 1n ¢connection with the asset disposal The resulting disposal losses were
reported In the Income statement under other operating expenses and allocated to the Agriculture Segmentin the segment report. As a result,
goodwill fell in the previous year following the deconsclidation of Aufwind BB GmbH & Co Zwanzigste Biegas KG and Creotecc US LLC

The goodwill disclosed under intangible assets relates to the following company acquisitions

in € milion 2015 2014
"UNSER LAGERHAUS" WARENHANDELSGESELLSCHAFT m b H 0624 0624
AWS Entsorgung GmbH Abfall und Wertstoff Service (formerly AWS Entsorgung GmbH Abfall & Wertstoff Service) 0507 0507
Bad und Heizung Krampfl GmbH 0659 -—
BayWa Agn Romania SRL 1235 -
BayWa Agrarhande! Group (formerly Bahnhorst Group) 7 857 7857
BayWare Bioenergy GmbH 1428 1428
BayWare Rotor Service GmbH and BayWar e Rotor Service Vermogensverwaltungs GmbH 0221 02
BayWare Solar Energy Systems GmbH (formerly BayWare Solarsysteme GmbH) 14035 14035
BayWare Solar Projects LLC 0787 0623
BayWar e Solar Systems LLC (formerly Focused Energy LLC) 16 463 13 460
BayWare Solar Systems Ltd 0940 0886
BayWare Wind, LLC 0276 0248
Cefetra Group 12179 12179
CLAAS Wurttemberg GmbH 1189 1189
ECOWIND Handels- & Wartungs-GmbH 1348 1348
EURCGREEN Group 3445 3445
Great Lake Tomatoes Limited 1979 -
LTZ Chemnttz GmbH 0030 0030
Net Environment SLU - 0868
PC-Agrar Informations- und Beratungsdienst GrnbH Group 1533 -
renerco plan consult GmbH {formerty Creotece GmbH) - 1158
Rianto Limited 1124 -
Rock Power Group - 0728
RWA SLOVAKIA spol sTro 0152 0152
Schradenbiogas GmbH & Co KG 1924 1924
Sempol spol sro 0245 0245
Salarmarkt GmbH 3536 3105
Stark GmbH & Co KG {goodwill from asset deal) 0450 0450
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. »

in € million 2015 2014
T&G Vizzam Farms Pty Ltd (formerly Delica Pty Ltd) 1383 -
Tecno Spot Group 4969 2969
WAV Warme Austna VertnebsgmbH 4224 4224
Other 0893 0883
85635 76 797

Additional changes in the reporting year relate mainly to goodwill from the ritial inclusion of the companies acquired into the group of
consohdated companies The goodwill ansing from the acquisition of BayWare Wind, LLC, Selarmarkt GmbH, Rianto Limited, T&G Vizzarn
Farms Pty Ltd, Great Lake Tomatoes Limited, BayWar e Solar Systems LLC (formerly Focused Energy LLC}, BayWare Solar Systems Ltd
and BayWar e Solar Projects LLC s subject to exchange rate fluctuations, resulting in year-on-year differences

Of the overall goodwill disclosed, an amount of €0 398 million (2014 €0 400 million) 1s tax deductible in subsequent years

Goodwill 1s subject to an impairment test once a year In the context of the impairment test, the residual values of the goodwill allocated to the
indwvidual cash-generating unit are compared with farr value in use

Cash-generabing units are essentialty defined as legally independent organisation units directly assignable to the reporting segments within
BayWa Group (see Note B 1) In the event of a business combination of legally independent organisation units, the respective operating unit or
the respective geographically defined segment of the incorporating organisation unit 1s viewed as the cash-generating unit

The calculation of the value in use i1s based on the net present value of future cash flows anticipated from the ongoing use of the cash-generating
unit. In this process, the forecast of the cash flows s derived from the current planning prepared by Management on a three-year horizon, as well
as other assumptions which are based on the knowledge available at the ttme, market forecasts and empirical expenence

The cash flows were based on business sector-specific discount factors hefore tax between 5 7% and 10 2% The growth rates are the expected
average for the sector For the purpose of extrapolating the forecast based on the third budget year, a currently expected business sector-specific
growth rate of between 1 5% and 3 0% has been assumed for the peniods thereafter

On the basis of the planming assumptions made in the assessment, taking into account future market developments, the impairment tests carned
out showed that no goodwill had to be written down in the reporting year

Based on market data, the imparment test for cash-generating unit AWS Entsorgung GmbH Abfall und Wertstoff Service (formerly AWS
Entsorgung GmbH Abfall & Wertstoff Service) used a discount factor of 7 0% as well as a constant growth rate, derived from the industry average
and historical values, of 200 A 1 0% increase In the discount factor would hkely result in the carrying value exceeding the farr value in use of the
cash-generating unit by approximately €0 300 milhion A O 5% decrease in the discount factor would, In turn, result in the carrying value exceeding
the fair value 1n use of the cash-generating umt by approximately €0 200 milion

Based on market data, the impairment test for cash-generating unit "UNSER LAGERHAUS" WARENHANDELSGESELLSCHAFT mbH used
a discount factor of 8 29% as well as a constant growth rate, denved from the industry average and historical values, of 2 5% A 1 0% increase in
the discount factor would likely result in the carrying value exceeding the fair value in use of the cash-generating unit by approximately

€15 800 million A O 5% decrease in the discount factor would, in turn, likely result in the carrying value exceeding the farr value in use of the
cash-generating unit by approximately €6 000 million

The following 1s a breakdown of the additions to intangible assets

in € milion 2015 2014
Additions from developments within the company 4843 4000
Addions from separate acguisitton 16448 7165
Addhions from business combinations 16 864 1598

38 155 12763
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(C.2.) Property, plant and equipment

All propenrty, plant and equipment are used for operations This itern 1s measured at cost, minus depreciation If necessary, an imparment loss 1s
recogrised The costis made up of the purchase price, incidental purchase (transaction) costs and subsequent purchase costs, less any price
reducttons received If there (s an obligation to decommission an asset which 1s part of non-current assets at the end of its useful hife, or to
dismantle or rebulld a site, the estimated costs of these activities will raise the cost of purchasing the asset Property, plant and equipment are
written down on a straight-line basis over the course of their useful ife The units of production method was also used 1n exceptional cases where
this provided a true representation of the pattern in which the future economic benefits are expected to be consumed Depreciation 1s based on
the followang periods of useful ife applied uniformly threughout the Group

In years
Company premises and ofhice buildings 25-33
Residential butldings 50
Land improvements 10-20
Technical facilities and rachinery 4-30
Other facilities, fixtures and office equipment 3-15

The calculation of impairment losses has been carned out in consideration of [AS 36 (Impairrment of Assets) Imparrment requirements are
calculated by comparing the book vaiue of land and buildings and techmical facilities with their recoverable amount. The calculation of the
recoverable amount 1s based on the value in use This resulted in a need for imparrment of €6 380 million in the financial year 2015, which was
due to the lower earmings potential of four wind parks and one biogas plant allocated to technical facilities and machinery in the Energy Segment.
Added to this was a need for imparrment of €0 170 milhon on the technical facilities of a further Group company, which was the result of the
hmited utilisation of affected asset The imited utilisation of certain sites resulted in impairments in the previous year of €0 215 milhon on a plant
under construction in the Energy Segment as well as of €0 018 million on a plant of an Austrian Group company

Borrowing costs in connection with the purchase of property, plant and equipment, which under IAS 23 should be capitalised, are not recognised
in BayWa's consolidated financial statements owing to the lack of qualifying assets

An amount of €3 961 million (2014 €9 790 million) of total property, plant and equipment recognised at the end of the reporting pencd served
as collateral for hatalities

Assets from leasing are also disclosed under non-current assets These are mainiy finance lease qualifications n the area of real estate, technical
facihites and machinery and EDP hardware Under IAS 17, lease agreements are to be valued on the basis of opportunities and nsks according to
whether the beneficial ownership of the leased object (s allocable to the lessee (finance lease) or the lessor (operating lease) Consequently,
under IFRS the substance rather than the form of such transactions 15 the factor for determining value

Under IAS 17, property, plant and equipment rented by way of finance lease are reporied at fair value, provided that the net present value of the
mimmum lease payments 1s not lower Depreciation 1s carried out on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life or aver the shorter term of
the contract. Payment ohhgations arising from future lease instalments are reported on the liabilities side under other financial habiibies

Non-current assets compnse assets worth €215 822 million (2014 €228 033 milkon) that qualify as finance leases and which are assignable to
the Group as beneficial owner owing to the content of the related lease agreements Of this amount, €210 717 million {2014 €220 116 million)
relates to land and buildings, €0 242 milion (2014 €1 953 million) to technical facilities and machinery, €4 801 millien (2014 €5 869 million) to
office fixtures and fitings as well as €0 062 million (2014 €0 095 million) to intangible assets In individual cases, purchase options, classified as
finance leases, were agreed at the end of the term for lease agreements A decision i1s made on a case-by-case basis as to whether to exercise the
ophon to purchase at the end of the respective term

Leases of land and bu:ldings resuit almost exclusively from a BayWa AG sale and lease back transaction in the financial year 2013 for a portfolio of
80 itemns of real estate Due to the terms of the undorm lease agreements for the real estate that BayWa AG has leased ever since this time, these
agreements are to be classified as finance leases pursuant to the classification critena of IAS 17 The lease agreements include a fixed terms of

10 years inihially, with the lessor having two lease extension options of 10 and then 5 years |n the event that the lessor exercises both of the lease
extension options, BayWa AG will then have the option to extend the lease term by a further 5 years There s no option t¢ purchase the real estate
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at the end of the lease term The accounting profit resulting from the transaction 1s included as deferred income under other habiliies and 1s

released through profit and loss over the term of the lease

The overall future lease instalments under the existing lease agreements totalled as follows

1n € mahion 2015 2014
Sum total of future minimum lease payments
Due withun one year 18622 20184
Due between one and five years 69 452 71813
Due after more than five years 220610 236740
308 684 328737
Interest portion included in future muimimum lease payments
Due within one year 11951 12328
Due between one and five years 43668 45 327
Due after more than five years 91571 101 820
147 180 159475
Present value of future mimmum lease payments
Due within one year 6671 7856
Due between one end five years 25784 26 486
Due after more than five years 128039 134920
161 484 168 262

In respect of agreements which are classified as operating leases, largely real estate rental contracts, vehicle leasing and irrevocable building

nghts agreements, the future minimum lease payments are as follows

n € mithon 2015 ™4

Sum total of future Mumimum lease payments

Due within one year 77807 69414

Due between one and five years 203 859 185511

Due after more than five years 295394 215833
577 060 470758

In the financial year, rental expenses of €67 723 milion (2014 €75 581 million) from operating leases were pad

(C.3.) Participating interests recognised at equity, other financial assets and securities

Joint ventures and associated companies included in the consolidated financial statements are recognised using the equity method in proportion

to thesr equity plus any goodwill generated from the acquisibon process

Other financial assets of BayWa Group compnse interests in non-consohdated affiliated companies, interest in other holdings, credit balances with
cooperatives, loans and secunties These financial assets are allocated to the categories “held for trading”, “avaulable for sale”, “loans and

recevables” and “held to matunty”, capiialised and measured in accordance with 1AS 39

Financial assets heid for trading are always recogrised at their fair value The fair value corresponds to the market or stock market value (level 1 of

the fair vaiue hierarchy) Changes n fair vaiue are recorded through profit and loss under other income from shareholdings
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Secunties assigned to the “financial assets held for trading” category were stated at a fair value totalhing €1 983 million on the reporting date
(2014 €2 127 millton) As they are held for trading, they have been disclosed under current assets

Assets assigned to the "available for sale” category are reported at fair value provided there 1s an active market or fairr values can be reliably
calculated with a justifiable amount of effort, recognised at their fair values and otherwise carried at cost and, if necessary, less impairments In
the case of assets stated at fair value, the difference between the cost originally recognised and the fair value at the end of the reporting penod
1s offset in equity on the reporting date without effect onincome Assets reported at fair value are measured using stock market quctations
prevating at the end of the reporting penod (level } of the fair value hierarchy)

In the reporting year, impairment totalling €0 225 million (2014 wnte-ups of €0 453 million) were carried out on assets classified as “available for
sale" and recognised at far value

The participating tnterest classified as "available for sale” in Rarffeisen Zentralbank AG, Vienna, Austria, was reported at cost as there was no active
market for the secunties and it was therefore not possible to ascertain the fair market value Calculating farr value based on a discounted cash flow
method was not possible due to the fack of available data. Owing to the fact that the company belongs to a cooperative federation, the

marketability of the participating interest 1s also irnited

Similarly, all the shares in non-consolidated subsidiaries are recognised at cost Sale is at present not intended in the case of financial assets
measured at cost.

Loans to affiltated companies and other holdings as well as other loans are classified as “loans and recevables” These are measured atamortised
cost using the effective yield method

There are currently no assets classihied as “heid to matunty” in BayWa Group
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Development of consolidated non-current assets for 2015

Note (Ct -C3 and C.5.)

In € mithon Acqutsition/production costs
Currency  Additions from Disposals from
01/01/2015 differences consolidation Additions Disposals consoldation Transfers  31/12/2015
Intangible assets —_—
Industnal property nghts, similar nghts and
assets 180065 2605 11573 189018 6790 - 2763 209 234
Goodwil 98401 31589 7914 - 1591 - - 108313
Prepayments on account 2491 0006 0083 2273 - - -2496 2357 T
280 957 6200 19570 2129, 8381 - 0267 319904 :
Property, plant and equipment :
Land, similar nghts and bulddings, including
buildings on leasehold land 1,382 279 4547 17713 33161 19295 — 8845 1,418.156
Techmical facilities and machinery 1,003953 -1369 4100 33148 53482 — 11994 998 341 -
Other facilities, fixtures and office equipment 30608 ~0164 1251 29 205 34908 - 2136 302538 o
Prepayments and assets under construction 52181 -0178 co4 55470 2766 - -56252 48 496 _
Non-current biological assets 13609 -0339 - 22N - - 2652 18143 -
2,757 040 -6 597 23105 153 202 110451 - ~-30625 2,785674 :
Participating interests recognised at equity 196 463 - 9176 10244 - 12424 0436 203 895 :
Other financiaf assets _
Shareholdings in affilated companies 25 480 - 0598 1811 0039 1670 - 26180 T
Loans to affillated companes 0806 - - 0280 0586 - - 0s00
Participaticns in other compames 101 787 0670 0005 1480 can 1830 -0436 100844 —
Loans o associated companies 57 468 -0007 - 2363 12 468 1426 - 45930
Non-current marketable securrties 5944 -0010 - oon 0667 - - 5278 —_
Other loans 6772 0008 - 1186 1046 oo - 6908
198 257 0661 0603 7120 15627 4937 -0 436 185 641 :
Investment property —
Land 56 446 — - 0013 0782 - ~10 861 aag2l
Buildings 92 867 _ _ o027 2132 _ 161857 74605
149 313 - - 0045 2914 - -27018 119426 :
Consolidated non-current assets 3,582 030 0264 £2.454 191 902 137373 17 361 -57 376 3,614 540 :
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Depreciation/amortisation Book values

Depreciation Depreciation

related to Disposal- related to

Currency  additions from  Whnite-downsin related  disposails from
M/01/2015  differences consolidation current year  depreciation consolidation Whnte-ups Transfers  31/12/2015  31/12/2015 31412/2015
111245 1670 2706 20079 5267 - — -0016 130417 78817 68 820
21 604 - - 1159 0085 ~ - - 22678 85 635 76 797
- - - - - - - - - 2 3587 249
132 849 1670 2706 21238 5352 - - -0016 153095 166 BOS 148108
567 834 -0763 0064 33814 17654 - - =-10567 572728 845 428 814 445
573804 -2164 - 45 539 39956 - - -1974 575249 423092 430149
217731 -0129 0578 26820 313908 - - -0061 213031 89 507 87287
0634 - - - o213 —- — 0225 0643 47 B53 51 547
0502 -0014 - 0742 - — - 2979 4209 13834 13107
1,360 505 -3070 0642 106915 89734 - - -9398 1,365 860 1,419814 1,396 535
o019 - - - - - - - 0019 203 876 196 444
13309 - - 0030 Q013 - - - 13326 12854 1217
0089 - - 0017 o089 - - - om7 0483 on7
3159 - - 1227 068 - 0460 - 3858 96 986 98628
- - - - - - - - - 45930 57468
0094 0003 - o111 Q020 - 0010 - 0178 5100 5850
0064 0002 - - - - - - 0066 6843 6708
16 715 0005 - 1385 Q190 - 0470 - 17445 168 196 181 542
4137 - - - - -~ - -0768 3369 41 452 52309
72327 - - 2008 1655 — - -12538 60142 14 463 20 540
76 464 - - 2008 1655 - - -13306 63 511 55915 72 849
1,586 552 =-1385 3348 131 548 96 931 - 0470 -22720 1,529 930 2014610 1,995 478
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Development of consolidated non-current assets for 2014

Note {(C1 -C3 andC5)

In € million Acquisition,/ production costs
0/01/2014 Currency  Additions from Misposals from 31/12/2014
adjusted differences consohdatian Additions Disposals consglidation Transfers adjusted
Intangible assets
Industnal property nghts, ssimitar nghts and
assets 172873 29861 0528 8385 4175 0063 1 566 180 065
Goodwill 97 830 o088 1351 0057 0409 0516 - 98 401
Prepayments on account 1309 0063 - 2723 o217 - -1387 249
2rz2;m2 1112 1879 11165 4801 0579 0169 280957
Property, plant and equipment
Lend, simtlar nghts and bulldings, including
buildings on leasehold land 1331807 10903 39029 45 381 35701 1058 -8082 1,382279
Technical facitities and machinery 956289 8590 33657 23182 31905 8432 22572 1003853
Cther facilities, fixtures and office equipment 313350 1120 2441 28 393 46 549 0605 6868 305018
Prepayments and assets under construction 1019 0333 1549 54092 6567 - -28245 52181
Non-current bilogical assets 7994 0634 4337 0644 - - - 13809
2,640 459 21580 B1 013 151 692 120 722 10085 -6 887 2,757 040
Participating interests recogrised at equity 101 601 - 6426 92333 - 3897 - 196 463
Other financial assets
Shareholdings in affillated companies 34857 - 3218 3246 11162 4613 -0 063 25480
Loans to affilated companies 0739 - - ooy - - - 0 BOG
Participations in other comparues 146933 -0089 1483 21836 68439 - Q063 101 787
Loans to associated companies 68 898 0015 - 4 808 6172 10077 - 57 468
Non-current marketable securities 6051 ¢015 o1z 00N 0245 - - 5944
Cther lcans 7245 0039 - 0380 0882 - - 6772
264 771 -002¢ 4810 30 296 86910 14 680 - 198 257
Investment property
Land 61 555 - 2114 2339 5008 - -4554 56 446
Buiidings 110108 - 0576 00318 8199 - -9636 92 B67
171 663 - 2690 2357 13 207 - -14 190 149 313
Consolidated non-current assets 3,450 508 22672 96 818 287843 2256840 29 261 -20908 3,582 030
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Deprecrationfamortisation Book values
Depreciation Depreciation
related to Disposal- related to

01/01/2014 Currency  additions from  Wnte-downs in related  disposals from 31/12/2014 31/12/2014 31/12/2013

adjusted  differences consolidation current year  depreciatian conselidation Write-ups Transfers adjusted adjusted adjusted

95 421 0669 028 18 266 3541 Q060 - 0209 111245 68 820 77452

21 604 - - 0209 0209 - - - 21604 76797 76 226

- - - - - - - - - 2431 1309

117025 05669 0281 18475 3750 D060 - 0209 132.849 148.108 154 987

556 394 2129 1332 17 20119 0093 - -7026 567 834 814 445 775413

547 678 6739 1333 42 289 24372 3912 - 4049 573804 430149 408611

224 564 0930 1075 27 669 41 255 0328 - 5076 217731 87287 88786

0123 - {027 0215 - - - 0269 0634 51547 30896

- 0016 - 0486 - - - - 0502 13107 7994

1,328 759 a814 3.767 105876 85746 4333 - 2368 1,360 505 1,396 535 1,311 700

- - - 0019 had - - - 0019 196 434 101 601

10470 - 35 0604 0980 - - - 13309 12171 24387

0089 - - - - - - - 00839 0Nz Q0700

1997 - 0644 0532 - - 0014 - 3159 98 628 144936

- - - - - - - - - 57 468 68.896

0624 -0004 000 0079 0242 - 0 364 - 0094 5850 5427

00686 - - - 0002 — - - 0064 6708 7179

13248 -0004 3860 1215 1224 - 0378 - 16 715 181 542 251 525

3053 - 0333 0768 om7 — - - 4137 52309 58 502

86217 - 0215 2502 7086 - - -9611 T2 327 20 540 23 891

89 270 - 0548 3360 7102 - - -9611 76 464 72 849 82393

1,548 300 10479 8458 128 945 97823 4393 0378 -7034 1,586 552 1,995478 1,902 206
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(C.4.) Biological assets
T&G Global Limited's fruit or the fruit and vegetables harvest and its subsidianes in New Zealand are recognised in biological assets

The far values of biological assets developed as follows

In € million 2015 2014

Biological assets

Biological assets an 1 January G171 5667
Cepitalised costs 44577 28691
Addrtions from acquisitions - 0209
Addittons from company acquisthons 0370 3681
Change in fair value less selling costs 51186 0991
Disposals due to harvest -47 024 -30204
Reclassification of current assets - -0045
Disposal due to sales - -0300
Currency differences ~-0233 a51
Biological assets on 31 December 11877 917

Management measures BayWa Group's biclogical assets (fruits that grow on bearer plants) at farr value less selling costs on an annual basis The
present value of the biclogical assets 1s determined using the income capitalisaton approach or on the basis of the estimated market prices of the
amounts that are likely to be produced The measurement methods apphed in the Group are to be allocated to level 3 of the farr value hierarchy
There were no transfers between the indradual levels of the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2015

The following key assumptions and considerations were taken into account when determining the fair value of the Group's biological assets

Forecasts for the subsequent are used that are based on past expenence of estimates of future revenues, growth and margins (adjusted for
inflation}, as well as the location and variety of the crops,

The predictions for the foltowing year are based on the cash flows forecasted by the Management,
All key findings from the current financial year that could impact future expected harvests or product sales,

All material changes in the current year and the following year from harvest management.

1 04 BayWa AG Consolidated Financial Statements 2015




The following unobservable input factors were used to measure the Group's biolagical assets

Consolidated Financial Statements — Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Measurement method

Unobservable input factors

Vanance of unchservable input
factors

Relationship between measurement
parameter and fair value

Tonnage per hectare per year

187 tonnes to 1,702 tonnes

The higher the harvest volume, the higher the

Estimated market pnce
Tomatoes for the produced P per hectare per year far value
quantities rice per kilogram
ex works price per season €D 97to €808 perkg The higher the pnce, the higher the far value
50 tonnes to 103tonnes  The higher the harvest volume, the huigher the
Tennage per hectare per year per hectare per year faur value
Discounted cash flow -
Apples neome capitalisation Export pnce per tce' €12 56 to €31 41 pertce’ The higher the pnce, the higher the fair value
approach
Risk-adjusted discount rate 35 0% The hsgher the discount rate, the lower the
fair value
Tonnage per hectare per year 20 tonnes to 39 tonnes The higher the harvest volume, the h;g::i:]tz
hect:
Discounted cash flow -~ Price per tonne ber eciare peryedr
Citrus fruits neeme cap::];ziz: ex works price per season €816 58 to €1,526 38 per tonne The higher the pnce, the higher the fair vafue
Risk-adjusted discaunt rate 10 0% The higher the discount rate, the lower the
fair value
Crates per hectare per year 8,500 crates to 15,000 crates The higher the harvest volume, the h}gﬂ?ﬂ:te
per hectare per year e
Discounted cash flow - Price per kilogram
Kiwi fruits meome cap::];zt;g: ex works price per season €293 to €4 46 per crate The higher the pnce, the higher the fair value
Risk-adjusted discount rate 10 0% The higher the discount rate, the lower the
fair value
Tonnage per hectare per year 5 6 tonnes The higher the harvest volume, the h;glr:irat]lllz
Discounted cash flow - Price per kilogram perhectare peryear
Blueberes income cap::tsrit;: ex works price per season €6061t0 €12 34 perkg The higher the price, the higher the fair value
Risk-adjusted discount rate 10 0% The higher the discount rate, the lower the
fair value
1 Packaging unit tce (tray carton equivalent) correspands ta approximately 18 kg
The following table shows the present value of the harvest as at 31 December 2015
In € milhon 2015 2014
Biological assets
Apples 8533 5895
Blueberries 0189 0130
Citrus fruits {lemons, mandarins, aranges) 0938 0609
Kiwn fruits 0624 1656
Tomatoes 1672 03880
Other biological assets 0021 0001
Bralogical assets on 31 December 11977 9171

(C.5.) Investment property

The “Investment property" tem compnses 110 (2014 125) pieces of land and bulldings under lease and/or not essential to the operations of the
Group Allocation is made if the property 1s leased by third parties, if it 1s land or greenfield sites not built on and not expressly intended for
development or use, and in the case of properties used for a number of purposes, If use by the Group 1s of minor significance Properties in this
category are matnly warehouses, market buildings, garden centres, farm buildings (barns etc ), stlos, farmland and other undeveloped land as well
as, to a minor extent, office and residential buidings
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In accordance with the option under IAS 40, these properties are recognised exclusively at amortised cost — and not at far value - and written
down over thetr penods of useful life as Indicated under Note C 2 The book value on the reporting date came to €55 915 million (2014

€72 849 miilion} In the financiai year, depreciation of buldings came to €2 008 mullion (2014 €2 592 milhon) The expense in the same amount
has been included under depreciation and amortisation 1n the income statement No impairment losses were recogrised in the reporting year
Avalue adjustment of €0 768 milion had been reguired in 2014 on account of the hmited utilisation of an area of land In the reporting year,
buildings with a book value of €3 619 million (2014 €0 026 million) were reclassified from investment property to property, plant and
equipment and non-current assets held for sale In addion, land with a book value of €10 093 million (2014 €4 554 million) recognised in
investment property was reclassified to property, plant and equipment and non-current assets held for sale

The farr value of these properties was set at €120 057 millien (2014 €140 472 million) Fair value 1s not usually calculated by an expert Farr
value at the end of the reporting penod 1s generally determined on the basis of discounted cash flow calculations (levetl 3 of the fair value
hierarchy) The value of the land is calculated using current, official standard land values Locahon-related advantages and disadvantages are
suitably taken into account In the case of bulldings let, the income value of the buildings was calculated by taking actual annual rental Income
generated, less standard management expenses and the residual useful life of the building A comparison of far value against the book value of
the individual properties showed that there were no impairment requirements in the reporting year As a result, no impairment losses were
recognised on land and buildings The assessment resulted in a need for impairment of €0 768 million onland in 2014

Rental Income came to €5 883 mullan (2014 €7 503 million), operating expenses {(excluding depreciation) for the properties for which rental

Income was realised came to €0 507 milhon {2014 €0 673 million) In regard to properties for which no rental income was generated, operating
expenses amounted to €0 262 mdlion (2014 €0 359 milhon)

(C.6.) Tax assets

Income tax receivables comprise the long-term corporate tax credrn of BayWa AG pursuant to Section 37 para. 4 of the German Corporate Tax
Act (KStG) and also short-term reimbursement claims, they break down as follows

In € miilign 2015 2014
MNon-current income tax claims (with a residual term of more than one year) 1432 2802
Current income tax claims {with a residual term of less than one year) 22595 28009

24 027 30811

(C.7.) Financial assets

BayWa Group's financial assets comprise currency and interest rate hedges as well as commodity futures classified as financial iInstruments
pursuant to IAS 39 Financial assets are recognised at fair value as at the balance sheet date Financial assets are classified as “financial assets
held for trading” pursuant to IAS 39 as they are held for trading Foreign exchange and interest rate hedges are measured at their respective stock
market or market values (level 1 of the fair value hierarchy) at the end of the reporting penod or derived therefrom (level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy) Commodity futures are measured at fair value erther directly at prices quoted in an active market at the end of the reporting penod
(level 1 of the fair value hierarchy) or at pnices quoted for the respective goods taking into account the term at the end of the reporting period
(level 2 of the fair value hierarchy)
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The classification of the fair values of financial assets in the fair value hierarchy breaks down as follows

Currency hedges
In € millron
31/12/2015 , Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Commadity futures 13563 166124 - 179687
Currency hedges 42529 - - 42529
Interast rate hedges - 0157 - 0157
56092 166 281 - 222373
Currency hedges
In € milion
3N/12/2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Commodity futures 25850 105 991 - 131841
Currency hedges 21485 - - 21485
Interest rate hedges - 0083 - o083
47 335 106074 - 153 409

(C.8.) Other receivables and other assets

Recevables and other assets are always recogrised at amortised cost and are allocated to the "loans and receivables” category

All discermible risks, which focus in particular on the solvency of the respective contractual parties, are taken account of by approprate value
adjustments If a receivable shows signs of impairment, a value adjustment 1s carred out through to the net present value of expected future cash
flows Recewables which are non- or low-interest-beanng with terms of more than one year have been discounted

The "Other recevables and cther assets" iterm breaks down as follows

In € million 2015 2014
Non-current receivables (with a residual term of more than one year)
Trade receivables 13504 13434
Recervables from other taxes 0672 8302
Other receivables, including deferred income 45 434 324086
59610 54 142
Current recervables (with a residual term of up to one year}
Trade recevables 766 432 683576
Recewvables from affiliated companies 9 669 9537
Recervahles from companies in which a participating interest 1s held 57 809 46 206
Receivables from ather taxes 40078 49 455
Other receivables, Including deferred income 380768 295 631
1,254 756 1084415
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The current values of items recognised at amortised cost do not diverge matenally from the book values disclosed

The table below shows the extent of the credit nsks inherent in the recevables and other assets

Overdue Of which without specific value adjustments at the end of the reporting

Recawables recevables penod and overdue in the following penods
Specific value charged spectfic
Grossvalue  adjustments on "e’ther:dverg:g value Lessthan Between31and Between 61 and 91 days
In € million 2015 recevebles fhor acj adjustments 30 days 60 days 90 days and over
Receivables 1,337 100 21781 1,157 564 157 755 109 768 19 449 6784 21754
Qverdue Of which without specific value adjustments at the end of the reporting
Receivablas recesvables penod and overdue in the following penods
Specific value neither overdue charged specific
1
Grossvalue  adjustments on nor adyusted value Lessthan Between 31 and Between 61 and 91 days
In € milhion 2014 receivebles adjustments 30 days 60 days 80 days and over
Recewvables 1,165 165 17 367 963311 184 487 126 036 34655 8 445 15351

BayWa Group's customer structure 1s strongly diversified, both regionally and in terms of the specific segments As part of nsk management,
mmnimum requirements for creditworthiness and, beyond this, indvtdual credit Imits in respect of individual customers have been estabhished for
all customers of BayWa Group The recevables portfolio of BayWa Group 1s largely made up of numerous small recervables Credit imits of more
than €1 millicn are only accorded to a small number of customers with particularly good credit standing The continual analysis of the recevables
portfolic and special monitoring of customers with high ¢redit imits enable the early identification and evaluation of concentration nisks (nisk
clusters) Asat 31 December 2015, the credit nsk positions of 74 debtors (2014 83) were more than €1 milion respectively The Group does not
anticipate any matenial default nisk in respect of these customers

Value adjustment account
There are materal value adjustments requinng disclosure under the IFRS 7 category “Loans and Receivables (LaR)" at BayWa Group in the

“Trade recewvables” balance sheet item under other recesvables and other assets, otherwise, value adjustments play a minor role

The value adjustment account developed as follows

In € millon 2015 2014
Status of value adjustments on 1 lanuary 26 608 28575
Currency differences -0003 0029
Changes In specrfic value adjustments -0306 -3607
Changes in specrfic value adjustments calculated on a flat rate basis -3565 1611
Status of value adjustments on 31 December 22.734 26 608

The estimates underlying the calculation of value adjustments to trade receivables are based on histoncal default rates In the reporting year, there
was a release of value adjustments with effect on profit or loss of €3 871 million (2014 €1 986 million) due to a drop In demand for specific value
adjustments and a rise in the specific value adjustments calculated on a flat rate basis at the end of the reporting pencd

Recewvables due from affillated companies and shareholdings relate to both trade receivables and current financings
Other assets compnse first and foremost suppher credits not yet settled and other recervables items as well as collateral that 1s required to

be posted within the scope of the trading activities In addition, payments on account for mventones amounting to €64 688 miiion (2014
73 318 milhion) are included
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In order to enhance its financing structure, the Group has secured trade recevables by way of asset-backed securitisation (ABS measure) The
total volume from the ABS measure amounted to €140 000 million The trade recervables secured as at the balance sheet date by way of an
ABS measurement totalled €121 783 million (2014 141 907 million}

(C.9.) Actual and deferred tax assets

Income tax expenses constitute the sum total of current tax expenses and deferred taxes Current tax expenses are calculated on the basis of
taxable income in the year Taxable income differs from the consolidated result before tax due to expenses and income which are esther taxable or
tax deductible in subsequent years or never The Group's hability in respect of current taxes 1s calculated on the basis of the prevailing tax rates or
those that will be valid i the near future from the standpoint of the reporting date Deferred taxes are recogrused for the differences between the
book values of the assets and hiabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax valuations in the context of calculating
taxable income Deferred tax habilities are generally reported for ali taxable temporary differences, deferred tax assets are only recogmsed if it1s
probable that there are taxable,gams which can be used for deductible temporary differences Deferred tax assets on loss carryforwards are
recogrised provided that future tax advantages are likely to be realised within the next three years Such deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are not reported If they anse from temporary differences in goodwill (separate consideration of tax-related goodwill} or from the inittal
recognition {(excepting business combinations) of other assets and liabilities resulting from transactions which have no effect on taxable mcome or
netincome Deferred tax labilites are formed for taxable temporary differences ansing from shares held in subsidiaries or in associated
companies as well as interests in joint ventures, except where the iming of the reversal can be controlled by the Group and 1t 1s probable that the
tempoarary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future Deferred tax assets arise through temporary differences in the context of
investments and loans which are only recorded to the extent that it 1s probable that there will be sufficient taxable income available from which
assets from temporary differences can be used and where the assumption can be made that they will reverse in the foreseeable future

The book value of deferred tax assets 15 assessed every year at the end of the reporting penod and lowered if it is unlikely that there will be
sufficrent taxable iIncome for fully or parhally realising the clam

Deferred tax assets and labihites are calculated on the basis of expected tax rates {and tax laws) which are likely to be valid at the time when
habilities are settled or assets realised The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilites reflects the fiscal consequences which would anse
from the way in which, at the end of the reporting period, the Group expects the liabilities to be settled and the assets reahsed

Deferred tax assets and habilities are netted i there 1s an enforceable nght for offsetting current tax assets against current tax habiities and if they
are subject to ncome tax levied by the same tax authority, and the Group has the intention of setthng its current tax assets and current tax
labilities on anet basis Current and deferred taxes are reported as expenses or mcome through profit and loss unless they are incurred in
connection with items not reported in the Income statement (either in other results or directly in equity) In this case, the tax is also to be reported
outside the incomne statement. Moreover, there 1s no recognition through profit and loss if tax effects anse from the initial recognition of a business
combination In the case of a business combination, the tax effect 1s to be included when the business combination 1s accounted for

(C.10.) Inventories
Raw matenals, consumables and supphes, semi-fimshed and fimshed goods as well as services and merchandise are disclosed under inventories

Raw matenals, consumables and supplies as well as merchandise are always valued at cost, taking account of lower net realisable values In most
cases, the average-cost method is applied In some cases, the FIFO (first in first out) method was applied Semi-fimished and finished goods are
recogmised at their cost of production They include all costs directly allocable to the production process as well as an appropnate portion of
production-related overheads Financing costs which can be directly assigned to the purchase, construchon or production of a qualifying asset
are caprtalised as part of the cost of the asset. Agnculiural produce, harvested from biological assets, is recognised at farr value less selling costs
(see Note C 4 for detauls on the far value measurement of biological assets} Inventory risks arising from the storage penod or diminished
marketability tngger impairment. Lower values on the reporting date due to lower realisable value are accounted for One exception to this rule
apples to the nventories of these Group companies, which are held exclusively for trading and are therefore measured at fair value less selling
costs
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Inventories break down as follows

In € mudlion 2015 2014
Raw matenals, consumables and supplies 29107 34564
Unfirushed goods/sennces 485 349 410398
Fimshed goods/seraces and merchandise 1,627 085 1,541 357

2,141 541 1,986 319

In the case of lower net realisable value, write-downs are generally carried out in the form of specific value adjustments Only in excephonal cases
was a flat rate calculation apphed Impairment recogrised in profit or loss for the reporting year decreased year on year, from €87 079 milhonin
2014 to €85 130 million in the reporting year There were no reversals through prefit and loss in the year under review

The book value of the inventories reported at fair value less selling costs amounted to €419 873 million at the end of the reporting period
(2014 €321 293 million) The fair value of Inventories s denved from prices quoted for comparable inventonies in active markets at the end of the
reporting period

€17 602 million of the inventories disclosed on the reporting date served as collateral for liabilhes (2014 €33 685 million)

In the reporting year, borrowing costs of €0810 million (2014 €0 984 million) were capitalised as part of the cost of unfinished goods The
calcutation of borrowing costs eligible for capitalising was based on a borrowing rate of 1 84% (2014 2 80%)

The calculation of inventories 1s carned out through a (brought forward) end-of-penod inventory or through continuous tnventory

(C.11.) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents worth €84 459 million (2014 €108 356 milhon) comprise cash in hand, cheques and deposiis in banks with inthal
terms of no more than three months

(C.12.) Non-current assets held for sale/disposal groups

Assets of BayWa Group are classified as non-current assets held for sale if there 15 a Board of Management resolution on the sale and the sale 1s
highly probable within the following year (201 6)

Atthe end of the reporting peniod, there were 5 properties (2014 8) intended for sale and disclosed under the non-current assets held for sale
item These primarily relate to developed land with warehouses, halls and a petrol station as well as a DIY and garden centre

In 2014, this balance sheet item maunly included the assets measured at book value of Raffessen Kraftfutterwerke Sud GmbH that were
scheduled to be disposed of in the financial year 2015 and have therefore been classified as a disposal group within the meaning of IFRS 5

The standard under IFRS 5 regulating measurement specifies that depreciation of the respective assets must be suspended and Imparment
losses must only be recognised owing to lower far values less costs to sell

There were assets with book values assigned to non-current assets held for sale/disposal groups totalling €8 796 million at the end of the
reporting period {2014 €18 500 million} Fair value less estimated costs to sell cane to a total of €16 095 milion (2014 €22 128 milhon)

Farr value 1s measured on the basis of ongoing purchase price negotiations taking into account possible costs to seil In those cases i which no
disposal prices could be derved from ongoing purchase price negotiations, the farr value of real estate 1s measured on the basis of discounted
cash flow calculations (level 3 of the far value huerarchy) The vaiue of the land 1s catculated using current, official standard land values Location-
related advantages and disadvantages are suitabiy taken into account In the case of buildings let, the income value of the buildings was calculated
by taking actual annual rental Income generated, less standard management expenses and the residual useful life of the buillding
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Non-current assets held for sale/disposal groups break down as follows

In € million Agriculture  Buillding Matenals Other Actrvities
2015 Segment Segment Energy Segment Segment Total

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment - - - 9796 9796
Current assets

Inventones - - - - —
Naon-current assets held for sale/disposal groups - - - G796 9796
In € mellwan Agnculture  Building Matenals Other Actvities

2014 Segment Segment Energy Segment Segment Total

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 9083 - - 4006 13089
Current assets

Inventones 5411 - - - 5411
MNon-current assets held for safe/disposal groups 14484 - - 4006 18 500

The gains or losses from disposal realised in the current financial year in connection with non-current assets held for sale/disposal groups were
reported tn the iIncome statement under other operating tncome (Note D 2) and other operating expenses (Note D 5)

(C.13.) Equity
The consclidated statement of changes 1n equity shows the development of equity in detail

Share capital

On 31 December 2015, BayWa AG's share capital of €89 047 million (2014 €88 737 million) was divided into 34,783,980 ordinary registered
shares with an anthmetical portion in the share capital of €2 56 per share Of the shares 1ssued, 33,419,593 are registered shares with restricted
transferability and 121,136 recently registered shares with restricted transferabiiity (dividend-bearing employee shares from 1 January 2016
onwards) 1,243,251 shares are not registered shares with restricted transferability

In respect of subscnbed capital disclosed and pursuant to |AS 32, the share capital was reduced by the mathematical value of the shares bought
back (19,500 units, the equivalent of €0 050 million) in previous years, the capital reserve also decreased by €0 063 milon for the same reason

No shares were bought back in the financial year 2015

The number of shares in ctreulation developed as follows during the reporting year

Registered shares without Registered shares with

restncted transferability restnicted transferability

As at01/01/20185 ,243,251 33 400,093
Issuing of employee shares 121,136
Asat 31/12/2015 1,243,251 33,521,229
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Furthermore, subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board, the Management Board 1s authonised to raise the share capital one or several
times on or before 18 May 2020 by up to an overall norminal amount of €5,000,000 00 through the 1ssuance of new reqistered shares with
restncted transferability agamst cash contribution to the employees of BayWa AG and of affiliated companies within the meaning of Sections 15
et seq of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) Shareholders' subscription nghts are excluded Subject to approval by the Supervisory
Board, the Board of Managementis authorised to determine the further content of share nghts and condittons under which the shares are to be
issued Of this amount, €310,108 16 has been utihsed as at 31 December 2015 through the 1ssuing of employee shares The remaining amount
stands at €4,689,891 84 (remaiming Capital 2015)

Subject to the approval by the Supervisory Board, the Board of Management 1s authorised to raise the share capital one or several times on or
before 31 May 2016 by up to a nomunal amount of €12,500,000 through the 1ssuance of new registered shares with restricted transferability
aganst contnibuttons in kind The authorisation can be used in part amounts Shareholders’ subscription nights are excluded Subject to approval
by the Supervisory Board, the Board of Management 1s authonsed to determine the further content of share nghts and conditions under which the
shares are to be 1ssued (Authorised Capital 2011)

Subject to approval by the Supervisory Board, the Board of Management of BayWa AG 1s autharised to raise the share capital one or several ttmes
on or before 31 May 2018 by up to a nominal amount of €10,000,000 through the 1ssuance of new registered shares against contributions in kind
The authonsation can be used in part amounts Shareholders’ subscnption nights are excluded Subject to approval by the Supervisory Board, the
Board of Management is authorised to determine the further content of share nghts and conditions under which the shares are 1o be 1ssued
(Authorised Capital 2013)

Caprtal reserve

The capital reserve of €104 949 milion (2014 €101 683 million) is denved mainly from the premiums Jn an amount of €75 240 million

(2014 €71 974 miilion) fram the capital ncreases executed to date by BayWa AG Furthermore, premiums were generated on the nomimnal
values of the BayWa shares issued 1n connection with the acquisition of RWA AG and WLZ AG and the participations exchanged below their rating
at the historical stock market prices. These have also been disclosed under capital reserve

As in 2014, employees of BayWa AG and asscciated companies in Germany and Austna had the oppertunity to acquire BayWa shares at
favourat\:le conditions within the scope of a voluntary Employee Share Scheme In this context, 121,136 recent {as at 1 January 2016 dwidend-
bearing) (2014 108,488 recent [as at 1 January 2016 dividend-bearing}) registered shares with restricted transferability were 1ssued in the
financial year 2015 The exercise price of employee shares came to €17 71 (2014 €21 05) and was thus 60% of the stock market price of
registered BayWa shares with restricted transferability, which, on the preceding day, had stood at €29 52 (2014 €35 08), BayWa's Board of
Management had passed the resolution on the capital increase required for this measure As in 2014, the contribution of each participating
employee amounted to at least €135 00 and no more than €540 00 The advantage granted of €1 431 million (2014 €1 522 million), which was
the difference between the actual buying price and the stock market pnce, was posted to capital reserve in accordance with IFRS 2 and reported
as an expense under personnel expenses The vesting period for these shares will end on 31 December 2017 The shares 1ssued to Austnan
employees are also subject to a tax retention perniod, which will end on 31 December 2020

Revenue reserves

The revenue reserves of the Group stood at €538 564 milhon at the end of the reporting period (2014 €526 103 million) Of this amount,

€5 162 million (2014 €5 205 million) was attrnibutable to the statutory reserve, €-4 373 million (2014 €-2 815 mullion) to the assessment
reserve, €-209 543 milllon (2014 €-212 900 million) to the reserves for actuanal gatns and losses for prowisions for pensions and severance pay
and €747 318 mulion (2014 €736 613 million) to other reserves Transfers to and withdrawals from the revenue reserves were recorded both at
the parent company BayWa AG and at the consolidated subsidianes

QOther reserves
Other reserves comprise consolidated profit available for distribution of €69 679 million (2014 €66 276 million) as well as currency differences
of €7 487 million (2014 €3 710 million) carned without effect on income

Equity net of minonty interest

The minorty interest in equity primarily pertains to the cooperatives invested in the Austrian subsidiaries as well as the minority shareholders in
T&G Global Limited and therr respective subsidianes Details on the shares held by the non-controliing shareholders can be found in Note B 1 of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Capital management

The capital structure of the Group 1s made up of habilities and equity itis described in more detail n Notes C 13 to C 23 Equity capital came to
17 8% (2014 18 6%) of total equity at the end of the reporting period Adjusted for the recognised reserve for actuanal gains and losses from
provisions for pensions and severance pay including munoriy interests in the amount of €-215 712 milion (2014 €-218 838 million), the equity
ratio is 21 4% (2014 22 5%} As this reserve results from a change of parameters not within the company’s control when calculating personnel
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provisions, BayWa’s capital management uses an adjusted equity ratio For trading companies such as BayWa Group, a fixed equity ratio 1s only of
hmited relevance as a key business figure However, in particular the change in current assets following the warehousing of inventories in the form
of agricultural commodities, as well as the acquisition of project nghts in the Renewable Energies business sector filters through directly to total
assets and, in turn, the equity ratto forms the foundation for corresponding trading activities in the following year As a resuit, BayWa Group uses
equity-to-fixed-assets ratio Hl as a target This 1s designed to ensure that equity and long-term barrowings cover at least 90% of non-current
assets As at 31 December 2015, the equity-to-fixed-assets ratio was in excess of 100%

Gearnng
BayWa Group's management assesses and manages the capital structure in regular intervals via factors such as the key indicators “adjusted net
debt”, “adjusted equity” and “adjusted net debt/EBITDA"

Cash and cash equivalents are deducted from current and non-current financial habifihes at banks Non-recourse financings are also deducted
despite them carrying iterest They pertain to loans extended to project companies in the Renewable Energies business sector that are solely
based on project cash flow instead of BayWa Group's credit rating Lenders have no access whatsoever to BayWa Group's assets and cash
flows outside each project company EBITDA generated by the project companies dunng the reporting year came to €25 061 milhon (2014
€15 435 milhion) Grain inventories for mmediate use are also deducted These inventories could be converted into cash and cash equivalents
as soon as they are recognised due to their highly hiquid and current nature as well as thewr daily pnces listed on international markets and stock
exchanges Any price nisk is fully ehminated by a physical asset for sale, either through concluding a sales agreement with a highly solvent
business partner or through a forward contract cn the stock exchange On account of the highty quid nature of these inventories, BayWa Group
deems It to be appropriate to deduct them as cash and cash equivalents when calculating net debt and the related financial key figures

In € milion 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Non-current and current iabilities at banks 2382647 2113746
less cash and cash equivalents -84 459 =108 356
Net debt 2,298188 2,005 390
less non-recourse financing -181 247 =134 591
less inventones for immed.ate use -737245 -626 396
Adjusted net debt 1,379 726 1,244 403
Annualised EBITDA 288 308 279789
Ad|usted equity 1291613 1,269 214
Net debt (adjusted) to equity {adjusted) (in %) 107 a8
Net debt (adjusted)/EBITDA 479 445

(C.14.) Pension provisions

In Germany, there is a defined benefit statutory basic care scheme for employees which undertakes pension payments depending on the
contributions made In addition, pension provisions are set up as part of the company pension scheme to cover obligations ansing from accrued
pension nghts and from ongoing payments to employees in active service and former employees of BayWa Group and their dependents
According to the legal, economic and fiscal circumnstances of the respective countnes, there are different systems of provisioning for retirement
which are generally based on the length of service and the remuneration of the employees

BayWa Group's current pension commitments are based exclusively on defined benefit plans They are based both on company agreements and
commitments made on a case-by-case basis For the most part, these are final pay plans The obligation of the company consists in fulfilling the
committed benefits to active and former employees (“defined benefit plans™) The benefit commtments undertaken by the Group are financed by
allocations to provisions.

Due to pensicn plans no longer being available to new participants, the risks for BayWa related to defined benefit plans - such as longevity or
salary increases — have been significantly reduced Prior commitments relate to 12,823 claimants Of this number, 3,048 are active employees,
2,301 former employees with vested benefits and 7,474 are pensioners and surviving dependants More details on the arrangement of the key
defined benefit plans are prowided below
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BayWa grants retirement benefits on the basis of the benefit commitments of benefit plans taken out, the amount paid out depends on the
employees' wages or salary These constitute traditional defined benefit obhigations in the form of fixed-sum systems, benchmark systems or final
salary based commitments granted in the form of old-age, invalidity, widow/widower or orphan’s pensions

The Group bears the actuarial risks for these prior commitments, these nisks include longewvity and interest rate risks

The Group's Austnan companies also grant benefit plans, the amount paid out also depends an the employees’ wages or salary These benefit
plans are also granted in the form of old-age, invalidity, widow/widower or orphan's pensions

The Group also bears the actuarial nsks for these commitments, these risks include longevity and interest rate nsks

In addition, the Austrian Group companies have statutory obligations to 1ssue severance payments after the terminaticn of an employment
contract These obhgations are defined benefit plans and, as such, also fall within the scope of IAS 19 The Group also bears interest rate nisks in
these cases

The provisions for penstons and severance pay have been formed according to the projected unit credit method in accordance with IAS 19
Pursuant to this method, not only the pension and pension nghts at the end of the reporting period, but also future increases in pensions and
salanes are accounted for appiying a cautious assessment cof the relevant vanables This calculation is derived from actuanal apprassals and based
on a biometric calculation

The amount of the pension obligations (defined benefit obligation) has been calculated using actuanal methods where estimates are indispen-
sable Along with assumptions of life expectancy, the following premises, which have been established for the companies in Germany and Austria,
play arole In the case of Group comparies which are not located in Germany and Austria, benefit commitments only exist in exceptional cases

In % 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Discount factor 215 215
Salary trend 200-300 200-300
Pension trend 150-250 150-250

The amount of severance pay obhigations (defined benefit obligation) has also been calculated using actuanal methods based on estimates The
following assumptions were applied as a standard for all Austnan Group compames The non-Austrian Group companies do not have any
severance pay obligations

In % 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Discount factor 150 150
Salary trend 2.50-350 350

The salary trend reflects anticipated increases in salaries which, depending on inflation and the length of senvice to the company, amang other
factors, are estimated on an annual basis

For the German comparies, assumptions on life expectancy were based on the mertaiity tables of Prof Dr Klaus Heubeck (actuanal tables
2005 G} "AVO 2008-P - Rechnungsgrundlagen fur die Pensionsversicherung - Pagler & Pagler” (computational framework for post-

employment benefit nsurance) in the version intended for employees is used for the Austran companies

Increases and decreases in the present value of defined benefit obligations can give nse to actuanal gains or losses, the cause of which can also
be divergences between actual and estimated parameters of calculation The resulting actuanal gains and losses are recogrused directly in equity
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Actuarial gains of €5 720 milion (2014 losses of €137 962 million) were recorded directly in equity in the reporting year This includes actuarial
losses in the amount of €0 221 milhon (2014 €0 010 millkon) from associated companies accounted for using the equity method As atthe end of
the reporting period, actuarial losses recogrised directly in equity before deferred taxes amounted to €270 058 milion {2014 €275 778 million)

Total expenses from BayWa Group's benefit commitments amounted to €21 110 milion (2014 €24 045 mtthon)} and compnse the following

In € million 2015 2014
Ongoing service cast 704 5644
+ Share of interest 14 069 18401
= Sum total recognised through profit and loss 21110 24 045

Total expenses from the Austrian Group companies’ severance pay obiigations amounted to €1 915 million {2014 €2 136 million) and compnse
the following

tn € mullion 2015 2014
Ongoing service cost 1379 1325
+ Share of interest 0536 o8sn
= Sum total recogrised through profit and loss 1915 2136

The expenses arising from the accrued interest on nghts acquired in the past are disclosed under the financial result Rights accrued in the
respective financial year are included under personnel expenses

Duning the reporting period, the net present value of defined benefit obligations (DBC) and therefore the value of pension obligations reported at
Group level have changed as follows

In € milhon 2015 2014
DBO asat 1 January 671647 540 848
+ Changes m the group of consolidated companies - 0039
+ Sum total through profit and loss 21110 24045
+/- Changes in actuanal gains (-}/losses (+) -5751 135420
- Penston payments during the reporting pencd -28953 -28957
+/- Assumption of obligations -2800 0252
= DEBO as at 31 December 655 253 671647

The actuanal gains calculated for the reporting year (2014 actuanal losses) compnse actuarial losses from adjustments based on empincal
experience of €0 698 million (2014 €0 161 million) and actuarial gains of €6 449 million {2014 actuanal losses of €135 259 milion) from the
change in actuanal assumptions There were no actuarial gains or losses from the change in demographic assumptions in erther the reporting year
orin2014

Due to the disposal of the business activities of Raiffeisen Kraftfutterwerke Sud GmbH in 2014 and the associated transfer of the relevant
employees to the acquinng company, the pension obligations attnbutable to these employees were reported in the financial statements for 2014

as habilites from non-current assets held for sale/disposal groups

Duning the reporting peniod, the net present value of defined benefit obhigations (DBQ) and therefore the value of provisions for severance pay
reported at Group level have changed as foilows
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In € million 2015 2014
DBO as at 1 January 32278 28923
+ Changes in the group of consolidated companies - 0720
+ Sum total through profit and loss 195 2136
+/- Changes in actuanal gains (-}/tosses {+) -0190 2532
- Pension payments during the reparting pericd ~-1306 -2036

+/-  Assumption of obligations _ —
= DBQ as at 31 December 32695 32275

The actuarial gains calculated for the reporting year (2014 actuarial losses) comprise actuarial losses from adjustments based on empinical
experience of €0 051 million (2014 actuarial gains of €0 590 miilion), actuanal gains of €0 227 million (2014 actuanial losses of €1 886 milhon)
from the change in demographic assumptions as well as actuarial gains of €0 014 million (2014 actuanal losses of €1 236 million) from the
change in financial assumptions

Defined pension obligations developed as follows

in € mtlhion

2011 - 452539
2012 559701
2013 540843
204 671647
2015 655253

The actuanal gains (-)/losses (+) from adjustments with regard to pension obligations based on empirical expenence are as follows

Ih € mellion

201 6817
2012 7410
2013 5980
2014 0161
2015 0698

Severance pay obligations developed as follows

In € million

2011 25146
2012 27753
203 28923
2014 32275
2015 32695
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The actuarial gains (-)/losses (+) from adjustments with regard to severance pay obligations based on ernpirical experience are as follows

In € millian

2011 -2237
2012 1034
2013 - 0187
2014 -0590
2015 0051

In the financial year 2016, we expect that a probable amount of €20 134 miilion will be recognised through profit and loss for defined henefit

plans and €1 900 million for severance pay obligations

Sensitivity analyses

The matenal measurement parameters for pension obligation and severance pay provisions are the discount factor as well as safary and pension
trends, and for pension obligations also include remaining Iife expectancy, all of which may be subject to a certain degree of fluctuation over ime
The following sensitivity analyses for penston and severance pay obligations show the effects on the obligations resulting from changes to
matertal actuanal assumptions In each case, one matenal factor was changed with the others remaining constant In reality, however, it 1s rather

unlikely that these factors would not correlate

Sensitivity analysis for the DBO from pension obligations

Change in parameter in % If the parameter increases, the If the parameter decreases, Relationship between measurement
ar years DBO changes by the DBO changes by parameter and DBO
The higher the discount rate,
Dhiscount rate +075% -1023% 1213% the lower the DBO
The higher the salary increase,
Salary increase £ 0 50% 093% -103% the higher the DBO
The higher the pension increase,
Pension Increase +050% 6 06% =-568% the higher the DBO
Rematning Iife expectancy The higher the life expectancy,
according to mortality tables + 1 year 5 59% -583% the higher the DBO
Sensitivity analysis from the DBO from severance pay obligations
Change in parameter in % If the parameter increases, the If the parameter decreases, Relathonship between measurement
or years DBQ changes by the DBQ changes by parameter and DBO
The higher the discount rate,
Discount rate +075% -702% 7 89% the lower the DEQ
The higher the salary increase,
Salary increase 10 50% 5 06% -4 73% the tugher the DBO
The weighted duration of pension obligations i1s 15 years (2014 15 years)
The weighted duration of severance pay obligations is ten years {2014 11 years)
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The expected undiscounted payments from pension and severance pay obligations n subsequent years are as follows

In € millign Surmn total 2016 2017 - 2020 2021 -2025 > 2025
Pension obligatians 1,025 396 28 440 118714 152 759 725483
Severance pay obligations 42721 Q687 5977 10840 25217

(C.15.) Other provisions

Other provisions are formed when there 1s an obligation towards a third party which is likely to be called upon and when the amount of the

provision can be reliably estimated Provisions are recogmised in the amount of the anbcipated utihsation Provisions which were not drawn upon
in the following year are recognised at the discounted settiement amount at the end of the reporting period Discounting i1s based on market rates

Other provisions are mainly attributable to

1n € millicn 2015 2014

Non-current provisions (with a rmajonty of more than one year)

Obligations from persannel and employee benefits 60033 61038

Other provisions 22585 22098
82618 83136

Current provisions (with a matunty of less than one year)

QObhgations from personnel end employee benefits 63703 62559

Cther provisions 112237 108 642
17594 1712014

Provisions for cbligations arising from personnel and employee benefits consist mainly of provisions for jubilee expenses, service units, vacation

backlogs and flexitime credits as well as for age-related part-time service

Other provisions mainly comprise provisions for obligations from dismantling operations, for outstanding invoices, guarantee obligations, sales-

related bonuses and discounts as well as for impending losses from uncompleted transachons

In addition, there are a number of discernible risks and uncertain obligations They mamnly relate to costs for inherited contamination, follow-up

costs and hiigation nsks
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The provisions developed as follows

Compound
In € miflion As at interest/ Currency Agat
2015 01/01/2015 Addition  Reclassification discounting Utihisation Release differences 31/12/2015
Non-current provisions
Obligations from personnel
and empioyee benefits 61038 21479 -0740 t oM 22339 0445 - 60033
Other provtsions 22098 5763 -23N1 0822 3281 0478 -0028 22 585
83136 27 242 -3051 1863 25620 0924 -0028 82618
Current provisions
Obhgations from personnel
and employee benefits 62 559 52285 0740 — 49 034 2839 -0008 63703
Other provisions 108 642 116317 2311 0074 108628 6220 0741 112237
171 201 167 602 3051 0078 157 662 9059 0733 175840
In € milion As at Compound Currency As at
2014 01/01/2014 Addition  Reclassification interest Utilisation Release differences 31/12/2014
Non-current provisions
Obligations from personnel
and employee benefits 57 802 10120 -0603 1358 6966 0670 - 61038
Other provisions 28579 2027 -3657 2274 2517 5254 0646 22098
86 381 12147 -4 260 3829 9483 5924 0646 83136
Current provisions
Obligations from personnel
and employee benefits 61124 50959 0229 - 47984 212 0352 62 559
Other provisions 841N 123914 3707 0085 98473 5898 1178 108 642
145 245 174873 39836 0095 146 457 8019 1528 171 201

(C.16.) Financial liabilities

Financial habilities include all interest-bearing obiigations of BayWa Group effective on the reporting date These liabilities break down as follows

Residual term of
In € million Residual term of Restdual term of more than
2015 up to one year one to five years five years Total

Financial hatwiities

Due to banks 1,046 488 633632 434708 2,114 828
Commercial paper 266 448 — - 266.448
Dormant equity holding 1371 - ~ 1371

1,314 307 633632 434.708 2382647
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Residual term of
In € rllion Residual term of Residual term of more than
2014 up to one year one to five years five years Total

Financial habilihes

Due to banks 856 649 606 391 340120 1,802160
Commercial paper wnans - - 309215
Dormant equity holding 137 - - 1371

1,167 235 606 391 340120 2113746

BayWa Group finances itself through credit ines, on the one hand, and short-term loans for which no collateral s furmished, on the other In
indnvidual cases, long-term bank loans are used On 13 May 2015, BayWa placed a short-term bonded loan in a nominal amount of

€75 000 milkon 1n addition, the existing investors to the bonded loan 2010 and 2011 transactions were presented with an exchange offer on

9 November 2015 BayWa placed a bonded loan in a total nominal amount of €200 000 million consisting of seven bullet tranches The existing
investors accepted the exchange offer in a nominal amount of €27 500 million, with the remaining €172 500 million being newly placed A total of
€42 500 milllon remains of the bonded loan of a nominal amount of €200 000 million placed on 5 October 2010 following a repayment of

€83 000 million 1n 2014 and the repayment of the remaning tranche of a norminal amount of €72 500 milion which 1s due in 2015 as well as a
parhal repayment of the tranche of a nerminal amount of €2 000 million which 1s due In 2017 A total of €37 500 million remains of the bonded
loan of a nomina! amount of €218 500 million 1ssued on 12 December 2011 following the partial repayment of the tranches of a nominal amount
of €110 500 million which are due in 2016, while a total of €95 500 million remains following the partial repayment of the tranches of a nominal
amount of €108 000 million which are due in 2018 The banded loans serve to diversify the Group’s financing and are reported under liabilities
due to banks

MNorminal amount of loan In

2015 € million Matunty Interest
Bonded loan 5-year fixed 26 000 09/11/2020 103%
Bonded loan 5-year vanable 20 000 09/11/2020 6-month Eurbor plus C 75%
Bonded loan 6-year fixed 28000 09/11/2021 1 52%
Bonded loan 6-year vanable 21500 Qg/11/2021 6-month Eunbor plus 1 10%
Banded loan 7-year fixed 33500 09/11/2022 171%
Bonded loan 7-year vanable 24500 09/11/2022 B-month Eunbor plus 1 15%
Bonded loan 10-year fixed 46 500 09/11/2025 232%

Nomthal amount of loan in
2015 € million Matunty Interest

Bornded ioan 364-day vanzable 75000 11/05/2016 1-month Euribor plus 0 45%

Nomtnal amount of loan in

2014 € midlion Maturity Interest
Bonded loan 5-year fixed 100 500 06/10/2019 134%
Banded loan 5-year vanable 53 000 06/10/2019 &-month Eunbor plus 0 85%
Bonded loan 7-year fixed 79 500 06/10/2021 187%
Bonded loan 7-year vanable ; 52 000 06/10/2021 6-month Eunbor plus 1 10%
Bonded foan 10-year fixed 80 000 06/10/2024 263%
Bonded loan 10-year vanable 18 000 06/10/2024 6-month Eunbar plus 1 45%
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Naorminal armount of loan in

2011 € million Maturity Interest
Bonded loan 5-year fixed 74000 12/12/2016 320%
Banded loan 5-year vanable 23 500 12/12/2016 6-month Euribor plus 1 20%
Bonded loan 7-year fixed 67 500 12/12/2018 377%
Bonded Joan 7-year vanable 28 000 12/12/2018 6-month Eunbor plus 1 40%

Nominal emount of loan in
2010 € mullion Matunty Interest

Bonded loan 7-yeear vanable 42 500 05/10/2017 B-month Eunbor pius 1 35%

The bonded loans were reported at the fair value corresponding to the nominal value at the ttme when they were recognised, less transaction
costs The bonded loans are measured at amortised cost.

Of the current habilities due to banks, loans of €842 260 million (2014 €711 398 million) are due at any time The difference of €204 228 million
{2014 €145 251 milion) relates to the short-term portion of non-current labilities due to banks The average effective interest rate on short-term
loans 1s currently approximately 1 38% (2014 1 01%) per year

In 2015, BayWa AG increased the Commercial Paper Prograrmme by €100,000 million to €500,000 milhon As a result of the Commercial Paper
Programme, €266 488 million (2014 €309 215 milien) in commercial paper with an average term of 33 days (2014 76 days) and an average
weighted effective interest rate of 0 56% (2014 0 67%) had been ssued by the end of the reporting penod

Of the labilihes due to banks, €3 532 million at Group level (2014 €8 354 million) have been secured by a charge over property

The farr value of the financral liabilities does not diverge materially from the book values disclosed and 1s reported in Note C 26

The dormant equity heldings of four Austrian warehouses (“Lagerhauser™) in RWA AG each have an infinite term which can be terminated by the
warehouses atany time Interest s charged on the dormant equity holdings, the interest rate 1s fixed contractualiy Owing to the short-term nature
of these holdings due to termination being possible at any tme, the fair value is the book value

(C.17.) Financial lease obligations

The habilties-side net present values of future leasing instalments are carried under the fimance lease obligations (see also Note C 2)

Residual term of
In € mullion Residual term of Residual term of more than
2015 up to one year one to five years frve years Total
Financial lease cbligations 6671 25784 129039 161 494

Residual term of

In € million Residual term of Residual term of more than
2014 up o one year one to five years five years Total
Financial lease obligations 7 856 26 486 134920 169262
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(C.18.) Trade payables and liabilities from inter-Group business relationships

Non-current habilities are disclosed in the balance sheet at amortised cost. Differences between the historical costs and the repayment amount

are taken account of using the effective yield method Current liabilihes are recogrised in therr repayment or settlement amount

Liabilities due to affiliated compantes and companies in which a participating interest s held comprise not only trade payables but also habilities

ansing from financing

Residual term of

In € million Residual term of Residual term of mare than
2015 up to one year ane to five years five years Total
Trade payables 673186 4684 Q400 678270
Liabilites due to affiliated companies 3845 - - 3845
Liabilites to companies in which a participating interest is held 38290 - - 38290
Bills and notes payable = - - -
Payments received on orders 76899 - - 76899
792220 4 684 0400 797 304
Residual term of
In € milcn Residual term of Resdual term of more than
2014 up to one year one to five years five years Total
Trade payables 628050 c182 1084 629316
Leabilihes due to affitiated companies 2822 - - 2822
Liabifies to companies in which a participating interest 1s held 47 702 - - 47 702
Bills and notes payable 0555 - - 0555
Payments received on orders 65 86D 0323 0647 66839
744 998 0505 173 747 234
(C.19.) Income tax liabilities
Income tax liabihties according to residual terms break down as follows
Residual term of
In € milhion Residual term of Residual term of mere than
2015 up to one year one to five years five years Total
Income tax habilities 253N - - 25 301
253M - - 25 301
Residual term of
In € milhon Restdual term of Residual term of more than
2014 up to one yeas one to five years five years Total
Income tax Labtlties 27593 - - 27 583
27 593 - - 27 593

122

BayWa AG Consolidated Financial Statements 2015



Consolidated Financial Statements - Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(C.20.) Financial labilities

BayWa Group's financial habilities compnse currency and interest rate hedges as well as commodity futures classified as financial mstruments
pursuant to |IAS 32 Finanaial habifities are recognised at fair value as at the balance sheet date Financial habilites are classified as “financial
habilities held for trading” pursuant to IAS 39 as they are held for trading Foreign exchange and interest rate hedges are measured at their
respective stock market or market values (level 1 of the far value hierarchy) at the end of the reporting perod or derved therefrom (level 2 of the
far value hierarchy) Commodity futures are measured at fair value erther directly at prices quoted in an active market at the end of the reporting
period {level 1 of the far value hierarchy) or at prices quoted for the respectve goods taking into account the term at the end of the reporting
perod (level 2 of the far value hierarchy)

The classification of the farr values of financial iabilities in the fair value hierarchy breaks down as follows

Currency hedges
In € milhon
31/12/2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial habtites
Cammodity futures 41287 107 621 - 148.908
Currency hedges 20603 - - 20603
Interest rate hedges - 4007 - 4007
61890 111628 — 173518
Currency hedges
In € million
31/12/2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial habilities
Commodity futures 19086 105716 - 124 802
Currency hedges 11552 - - 11552
Interest rate hedges - 3192 - 3192
30638 108 908 - 139546

€169 868 milion of the disclosed financial iabilies had a residual term of 2 maximum of one year (2014 €136 422 millien) The residual term
for financial lrabilihes of €3 650 million was between one and a maximum of five years (2014 €3 124 million)

(C.21.) Other habilities

The tabie below shows a breakdown of other habilites

Res:dual term of

In € milon Ressdual term of Residual term of more than
2015 up to cne year one to five years five years Total
Socral secunty 4 395 0797 [oR1:]] 5383
Allowances receved 0045 0273 0639 0957
Liabilries from other taxes 65 846 - - 65 B46
Other habiibes including aceruais 184 884 27683 63836 276403
255170 28.753 64 666 348 589
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Residual term of

In € million Residual term of Residual term of more than

2014 up to one year one to five years five years Total

Social secunity 3865 0788 0369 5022

Allowances recerved 0053 0271 0603 0927

Lrabiliies from other taxes 63128 - - 63128

Cther liabilmes including accruals 136 866 51081 68454 256 40
203812 52140 89426 325478

The fair value of the items disclosed does not diverge materially from the book values disclosed

In the case of public subventions, these are amounts granted by public-sector authorities in connection with new investrents These subventions
are released over the probable useful life of the respective asset with the concurrent effect on income In the financial year, the release came to
€0 155 milion (2014 €0 095 million) which 1s disclosed under other operating income

(C.22.) Deferred tax habilities

The deferral of tax on the habiiities side has been carned out according to the temporary concept under IAS using the valid or official and known

tax rate as at the reporting date Further explanations on deferred tax can be found under Note D 8 “Income tax"

(C.23.) Liabilities from non-current assets held for sale/disposal groups

The habilthes from non-current assets held for sale/disposal groups of €5 079 midlion disclosed in 2014 relate to non-current pension and
personnel provisions allocated to the operations held for sale of Raiffeisen Kraftfutterwerke Sud GmbH in the Agniculture Segment There were

no habilities from non-current assets held for sale/disposal groups as at 31 December 2015

(C.24.) Contingent liabilities

In € million 2015 2014
Bills and notes payable 1808 23
(of which to affiliated companies) (= (=)
Guarantees 211487 131281
{of which to affiliated comparies) (3951) (3032)
{of which to associated comparues) (152 370) (117 950)
Warranties 8590% 86032
(of which to affiliated companies) (-) (=)
(of which to associated compames) 82 500 (82632)
Collateral for liabihties of third parties 8807 9008

{of wiich to atfilated companies)

-)

(=)
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(C.25.) Other financial obligations

Along with oblhigations from rental and leasing agreements (Note C 2) disclosed as operating leases, there are the following financial obhgations

In € million 2015 2014

Cther financial cbligations
from buyback obligations 14 347 16 621
from amounts guaranteed for interests in cooperative companies 5974 9 830

There are contractuat obligations {(purchase commitments) of €0 278 million (2014 €0 057 miilion) for the purchase of intangtble assets,
€21 990 million (2014 €14 970 million) for property, plant and equipment (real estate, vehicles) and €307 498 mithon (2014 €408 096 million)
for inventones

(C.26.) Financial instruments

Accounting policies and valuation methods

Under 1AS 32, a financial instrument s an agreement which gives rise simultaneously to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of ancther Initial recogmition 1s carned out at fair value, for subsequent measurements, the financial instruments are allocated to
the measurement categories defined under IAS 39 and treated accordingly Financial assets in BayWa Group are in particular trade recewvables
and financial investments as well as positive fair values from currency and interest rate hedges In addition, the positive fair value of commodity
tutures classified as financial assets within the meaning of IAS 39 would only be recognised for those scheduled for trading and not those
scheduled to be utilised by the Group Financial labilities regularly constitute a nght of repayment in funds or another financial asset. In

BayWa Group, these are especially labilities due to banks and trade payables as well as currency and interest rate hedges In addihion, the
negative far value of commodity futures classified as financial habilities within the meaning of 1AS 39 would only be recogmised for those
scheduled for trading and not those scheduled to be utiised by the Group

The financial assets cover the following classes

Financial assets available for sale (AfS) Financial assets available for sale are pnmarily financial investments, 1 e participating interests in non-
consohdated companies, participations and secunties Measurementis carned out at fair value which 1s based on the stock market price or the
market price in as much as there 1s an active market which allows realistic measurement The majonty of assets in this category are not traded in
an active market. As derving the farr value using comparable transactions of the respective period was also not possible, measurement at cost
and, If necessary, less any imparrments, was used as the best ewidence of fair value Gauns and losses not realised are reported in equity under an
available-for-sale reserve without effect on income Upon disposal of financial assets, the accumulated gains and losses from subsequent
measurements at fair value are recorded 1n equity through profit and loss If there 1s ewidence of a significant or permanent impairment of the fair
value, this 1s carried out in the iIncome statement through profit and loss

Loans and recewables (LaR) After niial recognition, loans and recewvables are carried in the balance sheet exclusively at amortised cost, In
BayWa Group, they mainty have short residual terms The book value 1s thus a reasonable approximation of far value Gains and losses are
recorded directly in the consolidated result when the loans and recewables are charged off or impairment s carned out

Financial assets held for trading (FAHTT) Financial assets held for trading are recognised at therr farr value This category also compnises
derwvative financial instruments which do not fulfil the conditions of a hedging instrument. Measurement 1s based on the market or stock market
value Gains and losses from subsequent measurements are recorded through profit and loss In addition, this category only includes the positive
fair values of those commodity futures scheduled for trading The measurement of commodity futures is based on the market or stock market
value for comparable transactions at the end of the reporting period
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The option of recording financial assets at fair value upon their initial recognition was not selected by BayWa Group
Financial assets are reported in the balance sheet on the settlement date
The financial habilities cover the following classes

Financral habilites measured at amortised cost (FLAC) These financial iabtihes measured at residual book value are measured at amortised cost
after thewr inibal recognition They mainly have shert residual terms The book value is thus a reasonable approximation of fair value Gains and
losses are recorded directly in the consoldated result

Financial llabilises held for trading (FLHFT) Dervative financial instruments which are not included in an effective hedging strategy under IAS 39
and whose market value from subsequent measurements has resulted in a negative attnibutable fair value are to be disclosed under this category
Market changes are recorded in the consolidated result through profitand loss Measurement 1s made at market/stock market value In addition,

this category only includes the negative fair values of those commodity futures scheduled for trading The measurement of commodity futures is

based on the market or stock market value for comparable transactions at the end of the reporting pernod

In addrtion, BayWa Group may also use a few farr value hedges to hedge inventories through commeodities futures Changes in the market value of
dervative financial instruments and their attnbutable underlying transactions are recorded through profit and loss

The option of recording financial hatilities at fair value upon their inhial recognition was not selected by BayWa Group

Dervative financial instruments are used in BayWa Group in particular to hedge the interest rate and currency risks ansing from operating
activities Interest rate caps, interest rate swaps and futures as well as commodity futures are the man instruments used Dervative financial
Instruments are carned at far value upon their initial recognition and at the end of each subsequent reporting period The fair value corresponds
to the positive or negative market value

BayWa Group conducts its business mainly in the euro zone However, business transactions in foreign currencies are also concluded via
consolidated Group companies The majonity of the bustness activities of the New Zealand compantes consolidated are denominated in New
Zealand dollars as well as in US dollars, euros and pound sterling The business transactions of the agnicultural trade companies are denominated
in euros and US dollars as well as in pound steriing, Polish zloty, Hunganan fonint, Romanian leu, Russian ruble and Ukrainian hryvria The
business activities of the consoldated Amerncan compames and companies in the UK currency area pertan almost exclusively to their respective
currency areas Stmilarly, the bustness activities of the consolidated Hungartan companies are restricted aimost without exceptron to the
Hungaran currency area. In BayWa Group, a few transactions 1n foreign currencies are also carried outn agnicultural trading, purchasing activities
are conducted predominantly in the common currency If foreign currency futures are concluded, they are hedged by the respective forward
exchange transactions For those forward exchange transactions for which there 1s a clear hedging relationship with an identifiable underlying, the
transaction is a hedge within the meaning of IAS 39 In cases m which a hedge exists and 1s designated as such, changes in the market value of
dervative financial instruments are recogmsed directly in other results For those dervatve financial instruments for which there 1s no clear
hedging relationship with an identifiable underlying, the transaction 1s not a hedge within the meaning of IAS 39 As a result, forward exchange
transactions are marked to market separately from the underlying transactions on the reporting date Market values are ascertained on the basis
of market information available on the reporting date Hedges generally pertain to the following year's foreign currency futures On 31 December
2015, there were forward exchange transactions denominated in US dollars, pound sterhng, Canadian dollars, Austrahan dollars, Polish zloty,
Czech koruna, Japanese yen, Romanian leu and Hungarian forint to hedge currency risks

126

. BayWa AG Consciidated Financial Statements 2015




Consolidated Financial Statements — Notes to the Consobdated Financial Statements

In the context of financial management, the Group 1s active on the money market pnimanly in borrowing short-term term deposits The procuring
of funds 15 carned out on the regional market of the respective operating urit. BayWa Group 1s therefore exposed to interest rate nsk i particular
The Group counteracts this risk by using denvatives of financial instruments, in the main interest rate swaps, interest rate caps and futures
Volume-related hedging always comprnises only a base amount of the borrowed funds For those dervative financial instruments for which there 1s
a clear hedging relationship with an identifiable underiying, the transaction is a hedge within the meaning of IAS 38 In cases in which a hedge
exists and 1s designated as such, changes in the market value of derivative financial Instruments are recognised directty in other results For those
dervative financial instruments for which there 1s no clear hedging relationship with an identifiable underlying, the transaction 1s not a hedge
within the meaming of IAS 39 As a result, interest rate derivatives are marked to market separately from the undertying transactions at the end of
the reporting period Market values are ascertained on the basis of market information available at the end of the reporting period Interest rate
hedges relate to both non-current and current financings

Book and fair values of financial instruments

The table below shows the transition between the balance sheet positions and the IFRS 7 classes and 1AS 39 measurement categories, broken
down into subsequent “measurement at amortised cost” and "measurement at fair value™ The book values are then ulimately shown aganst farr
value for the purpose of companson The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be recerved for the sale of an asset or paid for
the transfer of a hability between market participants in an arm’s length transaction at the end of the measurement penod Trade recevables and
recervables from inter-Group business relationships and other assets generally have short residual terms Their book values at the end of the
reporting penod therefore approximate to far value Trade payables and hiabihities from inter-Group business relationships generaily have short
residual terms Their book values approximate to fair value
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Measurement subsequent to initial

recogniticn
Fair value Farr value
1A5 39 without through
In € million category of Book value Amortised effect on profit and Not IFRS 7 Fair valug
n12/2056 IFRS 7 class 31/12/2015 oost income loss class 31/12/2015
Non-current financial assets
Gther financral assets AfS 114940 109 840 5100 - - 114940
Other financial assets LaR 53256 53256 - - — 53256
Trade recenables LaR 13 504 13504 - - - 13 504
Other assets LaR 46106 42527 - - 35879 46 106
Current financial assets
Securties FARIT 1983 - - 1983 - 1983
Financial assets FARIT 222373 - - 222373 - 222373
Trade recervables and recewvables from inter-Group
business relationships LaR 833910C B3390 - - - 833510
Other assets LaR 420 846 363 184 — - 57 662 420 846
Non-current financial habiiities
Financial abiiies FLAC 1,068 340 1,068 340 - - - 1.076 468
Trade payables and liabil ties from inter-Group business
relationships FLAC 5084 5084 - - - 5084
Financial habiiities FLHT 3650 - - 3650 - 3650
Other habxlities FLAC 93419 14 546 - - 78873 93419
Current financial habilibes
Financial habdes FLAC 1,314,307 1314307 - - - 1,314 307
Trade payables and liabiles from inter-Group business
relationships FLAC 792 220 715321 - - 76899 792220
Financial habiities FLHfT 169 868 - - 169 868 - 169 868
Other habilities FLAC 255170 180 549 - - 74621 255170
Aggregated by |AS 39 category/IFRS 7 class
Assets availabie for sale AfS 114840 109 840 5100 - - 114940
Loans and receivables LaR 1,367 522 1,306 381 - - 61241 1,367 622
Financial assets held for trading FAHIT 224 358 - - 224 358 - 224 356
Financial habilities measured at amortised cost FLAC 3,528 540 3298147 - - 230393 3,536 668
Financtal labilities held for trading FLHT 173518 = - 173518 - 173518
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Measurement subsequent to inibal

recognition
Farr value Farr value
1AS 39 without through
In € milion category of Book value Amartised effect on profit and Not IFRS 7 Fair value
31/12/2014 IFRS 7 class 31/12/2014 cost income loss class  31/12/2014
Non-current financial assets
Other financial assets AfS 116665 110805 5850 - - 116 655
Other financial assets LaR 64 887 64887 - - -~ 64 887
Trade recevables LaR 13434 13434 - - - 13434
Cther assets LaR 40708 30420 - - 10288 40708
Current financial assets
Securties FAHIT 2127 - - 2127 - 2127
Financial assets FAHTT 153 409 - - 163 409 - 153 408
Trade recevables and recervables from inter-Group
business relationships LaR 739319 739319 - — - 739319
Cther assets LaR 345096 279056 - - 66 040 345096
Nen-current financial habifities
Financial liabilities FLAC 946511 946511 - - - 954 106
Trade payables and hiabilihes from inter-Group business
relationships FLAC 2236 1266 - - 0970 2236
Financial liabilities FLHT 3124 - - 3124 - 3124
Other liabilibes FLAC 121 566 39927 - - 81639 121 566
Current financial hahiles
Financial habilities FLAC 1,167 235 1,167 235 - - - 1,167 235
Trade payables and liabilities from inter-Group business
relationships FLAC 744998 679129 - - 65 869 744998
Financial habilties FLHfT 136 422 - - 136 422 - 1368422
Other habtlities FLAC 203912 134007 - - 69 905 203:N2
Aggregated by IAS 39 category/IFRS 7 class
Assets avallable for sale AfS 116655 110 805 5850 - - 116655
Loans and recevables LaR 1,203 444 1,127 116 - - 76328 1,203 444
Financial assets held for trading FAHT 155536 - - 155 536 - 155536
Financial habilities measured at amortised cost FLAC 3,186 458 2968075 - - 218383 3,194 053
Financial habilihes held for trading FLHIT 138 546 - - 139546 - 139546
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Hierarchy of financial assets and habilities measured at fair value
In order to take account of the matenal factors which form part of the measurement of financtal assets and liabihties at fair value, the financial
assets and labiities of BayWa Group, each of which were measured at current value, have been divided up into a huerarchy of three levels

The levels of the far value hierarchy and their application to the assets and liabihties are descnbed below
Level 1 Prices are identical to those quoted in actve markets for identical assets or llabilthies

Level 2 Input factors which are not synonymous with the prices assumed at Level 1 but which can be observed esther directly (1e as prices) or
indirectly {1 & denved from prices) for the respective asset or hability

Level 3 Factors not based cn observable market data for the measurement of the asset or a hability {(non-observable input factors)

Derwative financial instruments are used in BayWa Group to hedge currency and interest rate risks Thes category also includes the farr values of
those commaedty futures that are scheduled exclusively for trading and are therefore to be classified as financial instruments within the meaning
of IAS 39 These commaodity futures are measured at fair value as at the end of the reporting penod The measurement of commodity futures 1s
based on the market or stock market value for identical or comparable transactions at the end of the reporting period Currency hedges are
measured at the closing price of the respective currency at the end of the reporting penod The fair values of commodity futures for those
transactions that are traded directly on the stock market are measured at the respective market price For those transactions not traded directly on
the stock market, the fair value 1s derved from observable market prices For the main product groups, the fair value 1s derived from futures so as
to include the temporal components of the commodity futures For those products for which no futures are traded, the far value 1s measured at
daily prices on the physical markets The measurement takes into account market hquidity and 1s discounted from the fair value For interest rate
hedges, the measurement does not take into account relevant basis instruments on the basis of current observable market data and using
recognised valuation models, such as the present value method or the Libor market model CAPs are also measured using valuation models such
as the present value methed or the option pricing models
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The table below shows the financial assets and habtlities measured at farr value assigned to the three levels of the fair value hierarchy

Hierarchical assignment of the financial assets and habilities measured at fair value in the financial year 2015

In € million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tota)

Financial assets measured at fair value

Denvative financial instruments & commodity futures 56 092 166281 — 222373
Securties FAHTT 1983 -_ — 1983
Financial assets AfS 5100 — - 5100
Sum total of financial assets 63175 166 281 - 229 456

Financial lrabilities measured at fair value
Dervative financial instruments & commodity futures 61890 111 628 - 173518
Sum totat of financal habdites 81 890 111628 - 173518

Hierarchical assignment of the financial assets and habiliies measured at fair value in the financial year 2014

In € milhon Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets measured at fair value

Denvative financial instruments & commodity futures 47 335 106074 - 153409
Securities FAHFT 2127 - - 2197
Financial assats AFS 5850 - - 5850
Sum total of financial assets 55312 106 074 - 161 386

Financial habihties measured at fair value
Denvative financial instruments & commoedity futures 30638 108 908 - 139546
Sum total of financial habilities 30638 108 908 - 139 546

The rise in both level-1 and level-2 dervative financial instruments and commodity futures 1s as a result of the year-on-year rise in commodity
futures scheduled exclusively for trading as well as a corresponding increase in currency hedges
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Net gains and losses
The following tabie shows net gains/losses from financial instruments and in other result reported in the income statement.

Shareholders’ equity and

2015 Assats habibes Totad Transition

No
Tategory FAHET AfS LaR FLHT FLAC allpcation Fl Natan Fl Total
1 Net gain/less in the financial result
Equity valuation of participating interests - - - - - - - 3284 3284
Income from participating interests - 2750 - - - — 2750 - 2750
Expenses from participating interests - -1432 - = - - -1432 - -1432
Result from disposals - 0368 - - - - 0368 - 0368
Result of parbcipating interests - 1 686 - - - — 1686 - 1 686
tncome from other financial assets - 2527 - - - - 2527 - 2527
Result from disposals - 0078 - - - - 0078 - 0078
Resuit of ather financial assets - 2605 - - - - 2.605 - 2608
Interest Income - - 5613 - — - 5613 - 5613
Interest iIncome from faur value
measurement 0003 - - - — - 0003 - 0003
Sum total of interest income 0003 - 5613 - - — 5616 - 5616
Interest expenses - - - - -43149 — -438149 -12 351 -60 500
Interest portion in personnel prowisions - - = - - - - ~15096 -15096
Interest expenses from farr value
measurement - - - -0114 - - -0114 - -0114
Sum total of interest expenses - - - -0114 -48 149 - -48263  -27447 -75710
Net interest 0003 - 5813 -0114 -48 149 - -42 847 -927 447 -70094
Sumn total net gain/loss 0003 429 5613 -0114 -4814% - -38 356 =24 163 -62519
Financial result -82519

2 Net gain/loss in the operating resutt

Income from dervative financial instruments
end commaodity futures 68 964 - - - - - 68 964

Incorme frorn the receipt of wntten-off
recenvables/release of recevables value
adjustments - - 7549 - - - 7549

Expenses from denvative financial

instruments and commodity futures - - - -33972 - - -33972
Value adjustments/write-downs of

recevables — — -11 440 - — - -11 440
Sum total net gain/loss 68 964 - -3891 -33972 - - 31101
3 Net gainfloss in equity

Change in the fair value from the market

valuation of securities - -0225 - - - - -0225
Reclassifications due to disposal of financial

assets (n the “avarlable for sale” category - - - - - - -
Net gain/loss from hedging instruments with

a clear hedging relationship -0671 - - -1232 - - -1903
Currency translation - - - - - 2032 2032
Sum total net gain/loss -0671 -0225 - -1232 - 2032 -0086
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Shareholders' equity and

2014 Assets habilihies Total Transrion

No
Category FAHFT AfS LaR FLHIT FLAC aflocation Fl Notan Fl Total
1 Net gain/loss in the finanaal resutt
Equity valuation of participating interests - - - - - - - 3394 3394
Income from partrcipating interests — 3599 — — — - 3529 — 3599
Expenses from participating interests - -2300 — - - — -2300 - -2300
Result from disposals - 21 355 - - - - 213585 — 21355
Result of participating interests - 22654 - - - - 22654 - 22654
Income from other financial assets - 8858 - - - - 8858 - 8858
Resuit from disposals - -0081 - - - - -0081 - -0081
Result of other financial assets - 81777 - - - - 8717 - B777
Interest Income - - 6772 - - - 6772 - 6772
Interest ncome from far value
measurement - - - - - - - - -
Sum total of interest income - - 6772 - - - 8772 - 6772
Interest expenses - - - - -45687 - -45887 -12946 -58633
Interest portion in personnel provisions - - - - - - - -19743 -189743
Interest expenses from fair value _ _ - -0050 _ - -0050 _ _0050
measurement
Sum total of interest expenses - - - -0050  -45687 -  -45737 -32.689 -78426
Net interest - - 6772 -0050 -45687 - -38 965 -32689 ~71654
Sum total net gain/loss - 31431 8772 -0050 -45 687 - ~7534 -20295 -36 829
Financial result -36 829
2 Net gain/loss in the operating result
Income from dervative financial instruments
and commadity futures 59 790 - - - - - 59 790
Income from the receipt of written-off
receivables/release of recervables value
adjustments - - 2677 - - - 2877
Expenses from derivative financial
instruments and commodity futures - - - -41 761 - - -41 761
Value adjustments/wnte-downs of
recemvables - - -11195 - - - -11195
Sum totaf net gainfloss 58 790 - -8518 -41 781 - - 9511
3 Net gain/loss in equity
Change n the fair value from the market
valuation of securities - 0453 - - - - 0453
Reclassifications due to dispesal of financial
assets in the “avarlable for sale” category - 2367 - - - - 2367
Net gain/loss from hedging instruments with
a cleer hedging relationshsp 1838 - - - - - 1939
Currency transtation - — - - - 10135 10135
Sum total net gain/loss 1939 2320 - - - 10135 14894
Income from participating interests includes dividend payments
BayWaAG Consolidated Financial Statements 2015 133



Consolidated Financial Staterments — Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following table shows an analysis of the maturity dates of undiscounted financial habilibes by 1FRS 7 class

Residual term of

in € milhion Residual term of Residual term of more than

2015 up to one year one to five years five years Total

Financial habilibes measured at amortised cost (FLAC) 2,473 456 721058 457 370 3.651 884

Financial habilibes held for trading (FLHIT) 169 868 3650 - 173518
2,643 324 724 708 457 370 3,825 402

Residual term of

In € millton Residual term of Residual term of more than

2014 up to one year one to five years five years Total

Financial habilities measured at amortised cost {FLAC) 2,147 535 718968 429 832 3,296 335

Financtal habiies held for trading (FLHIT) 136422 3124 - 139 548
2,283 957 722002 429832 3435881

The fellowing schedule of maturities shows the distribution of the forecast cash flows of the contractually agreed interest and redemption
payments In the IFRS 7 class "Liabilities measured at amortised cost” (FLAC) as at 31 December 2015

In € millsan Sum total Untl 6/2016 7-12/2016 2017 - 2020 > 2020
Share of interest 123 344 9871 20847 67 391 25 235
Redempton portion 3,528 540 1879175 563 563 653667 432135
Sum total 3,651 884 1,889 046 584 410 721058 457 370

The following schedule of maturities shows the distnbution of the forecast cash flows of the contractually agreed interest and redemption
payments in the IFRS 7 class “Liabilittes measured at amortised cost” (FLAC) as at 31 Decemnber 2014

In € millon Sum totad Until 6/2015 7-12/2015 2016-2019 > 2018
Share of interest 109877 10958 19594 62 482 16 843
Redemption portion 3,186 458 1,841 656 275327 656 486 412988
Sum total 3,296 335 1,852614 294 921 718 968 429 832

Information on denvative financial instruments

A few derwvatives in the context of fair value hedges for commodities futures may also be used in BayWa Group as hedging transactions under
IAS 39 and hedging transactions for interest rate and currency nisks in the form of interest rate caps, interest rate swaps and futures as well as
foreign exchange transactions In addition, the fair value of commodity futures classified as financial assets and financial abihties within the
meaning of |AS 39 would only be recognised for those scheduled for trading and not those scheduled to be utilised by the Group The farr values
are shown in the table below In the reporting year, gains of €68 964 million (2014 €59 790 million) and losses of €33 972 millon (2014

€41 761 million) were included in the calculation of the far value in the income statement
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The following table shows the maturities of the fair values for the derivative financial instruments as well as the commodity futures scheduled
exclusively for trading at the end of the reporting penod

Cumrency hedges
Residual term of
In € million Residual tarm of Residual term of mare than
31/12/2015 Total up to one year one to five years five years
Assets
Interest rate hedges 0157 Q157 - -
Cammodity futures 179687 179687 - -
Currency hedges 42 529 42529 - -
222373 222373 - -
Shareholders’ equity and labilities
Interes! rate hedges 4008 0857 3650 -
Commodity futures 148908 148908 - -
Currency hedges 20602 20602 - -
173518 169 868 3650 -
Currency hedges
Residual term of
In € mithon Residual tarm of Residual term of more than five
31/12/2014 Total up to one year one to five years years
Assets
Interest rate hedges 0083 0083 - -
Commodity futures 131841 131841 - -
Currency hedges 21 485 21 485 - —
153409 153409 - -
Shareholders’ equity and hiabihties
Interest rate hedges 3192 Qo6 3124 -
Commodity futures 124 802 124 802 - -
Currency hedges 11 682 11 552 - —
139 546 138 422 3124 -

The tair value of currency and interest rate hedges Is ascertained on the basis of market pnces quoted end at the end of the reporting penod
without netting off against counter-developments from possible undertying transactions The market value corresponds to the amount which the
Group would have to pay or would receive if the hedging transaction were closed out prior to the due date The farr value of commodity futures s
determined on the basis of or derived from stock market quotations at the end of the reporting period The farr value corresponds to the profit or
loss from the commaodity futures taking into account buying and sefling prices at the end of the reporting perod
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(C.27.) Risk management

Opportunity and risk management

The corporate policy of BayWa Group 1s geared toward weighing up the opportunihies against the risks of entrepreneurship in a responsible way
The management of opportunities and risks 1s an ongoing task of entrepreneurial actwity designed to ensure the long-term success of the Group
This enables BayWa Group to innovate, secure and improve what 1s already in place The management of opporturities and nisks 1s closely aligned
to BayWa Group's long-term strategy and medium-term planming The Group’s Decentralised regional organisation and management structure of
the operating business enables it to identify trends, requirements and the opportunities and risk potential of frequently fragmented markets at an
early stage, analyse them and take action which 1s both flexible and market onented Internationalisation also allows BayWa to tap new business
opportunities, which in turn reduces its dependence on the individual country markets and their nsks Moreover, the systematically intense ’
screening of the markets and of peer competitors 1s carned out with a view to identifying opportunities and rnisks This 1s flanked by ongoing
communication and the goal-onented exchange of information between the individual parts of the Group, which leverage additional opportunities
and synergy potential

Principles of opportunity and nsk management

BayWa exploits opportunities that anse in the context of its business activities but, at the same time, also enters into entrepreneunal nsks The
wdentification of entrepreneunal opportunrties, the safeguarding of the assets and the enhancing of enterprise value therefore necessitate an
opportunity and risk management system

The principles underlying the system set in place within BayWa Group to identify and monitor risks specific to the business have been described in
ansk management manual approved by the Board of Management. In addition, the Internal Audit Department regularly audits the internal risk
management system which supports the processes 15O certfications for the standardisation of workflows and for risk avoidance and the
concluding of insurance policies supplement the Group's management of nisk

Moreover, BayWa Group has established binding goals and a code of conduct in its corporate policy and ethical principles as well as the Code of
Conduct which have been implemented throughout the Group They regulate the indvidual employees’ actions when applying the corporate
values as well as their fair and responsibie conduct towards suppliers, customers and colleagues

Opportunity and nsk management within BayWa Group

In BayWa Group risk management i1s an integral component of the planning and management and control processes A comprehensive nsk
management system records and monitors both the development of the Group and any exasting weak points on an ongoing basis The risk
management system covers all segments and 1s included as a key component of reporting A particularly important task of nsk management is to
guarantee that risks to the Group as a going concern are identified and kept to a minimum This enables the management of Group companies to
react swiftly and effectively All units have nsk officers and risk reporting officers who are responsible for mplementing the reporting process

The reporting process classifies opportunities and nsks into categones and estimates thewr probable occurrence and potentia! financial impact
The system is based on individual observations, supported by the relevant management processes, and forms an integral part of core activities It
starts with strategic planning and proceeds through to procurement, sales and distribution and, finally, to the management of counterparty nisk As
an extension of the planning process that takes place in the business sectors and 1n procurement, sales organisations and centralised functions,
the epporturity and nsk management system serves to detect and assess potential divergences from expected developments in addition to
identifying and assessing key developments influencing business, this system facilitates the prioritisation and implementation of actmibies Asa
result, BayWa Group can make better use of the opportunities while avoiding or reducing the nisks

A carnerstone of the nsk management system are the nisk reports which are regularly prepared by the operating units These reports are subject
to evaluation by the Board of Management and by the heads of the business units The systematic development of existing and new systems with

a built-in warning component makes an indispensable contribution to strengthening and consistently building up a Group-wide opportunity and
risk culture
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A key component and, at the same time, an evolution of the opportunity and risk management is the *Risk Board”, which has been in place since
the financial year 2008 Presided over by the Chiet Executive Ofhicer, the Risk Board, which consists of operatons managers and support staff,
meets regularly to discuss and assess operational opportunities and rnisks on an ongoing basis Minuted meetings are used to develop an under-
standing of the opportunities and nsks and form the basis of the nsk measurement apphed to operational decisions

The uniform Group-wide risk management system implemented in 201 4 for the agnculture group encompasses the business activities of BayWa,
Cefetra Group, BayWa Agrarhandel GmbH as well as BayWa Agrar International B V and its subsidianes The minimum requirements for risk
management (MaRisk} pubhshed by the German Financial Supervisory Authonty (BaFin) serve as a benchmark for BayWa's nisk management
MaRisk includes arrangements governing the identification, assessment, management and monitoring of all matenal nsk types, including counter-
party nsks as well as operational nsks, such as quahity and logistics nsks BayWa adapted the standards establshed in the financial services sector
and leading trading companies for its Agncultural Trade business unit due to the flexible and practical framework of the matenal regulations
Appropnate and effective risk management pursuant to MaRisk comprises the nsk-beanng capacity as well as the formulation of strategies and
the establishment of internal control procedures The internal control system consists in particular of

» Arrangements governing the orgamisattonal structure and workflow,
= Processes for identifying, evaluating, managing, monitaring and reporting nsks (risk management and cantrol processes), and
* The setting up of a nsk controlling function

In order to manage market risks on each trading day, the posibons, including the spreads (underlying nisks), are determined and monitored for all
Group companies Value-oriented procedures, in addition to the volume limits, serve to ensure that the positions are managed n a manner that 1s
appropriate for the nsks These procedures include the regular mark-to-market valuation of pending agnicultural transachons and the determi-
nation of the trading results derved from this, as well as the portfolic-based value-at-risk procedure |n addition, scheduled and ad-hoc stress
tests are performed to recogmise the effect that extraordinary market price changes have con profit and loss and, where necessary, implement
measures to reduce nsks The trading positions of the agriculture group as wel! as the nsks these pose are reported to the operating units and
the local risk management officer daily and to Management Board in the form of a weekly Risk Report

These control mechanisms are supported by a standardised IT system solution that was introduced in 201 4, which sees all functions and
processes being meonitored by an external auditing company within the scope of user acceptance testing

The Agnculture Risk Committee 1s part of Risk Governance and acts as the highest decision-making body within the agriculture group, iti1s
composed of, among others, members of the Management Board and meets regularly and when warranted The Committee decides on nsk imits
and limit systems for the Agnicultural Trade bustness unit and, where necessary, implements risk-controlling and mitigating measures

A form of nsk controlling that 1s independent of trading was established at both the level of the Group and in the individual agniculture trading
companies to ensure that the provisions of the Agniculture Risk Committee are implemented in full Group Risk Control 1s responsible for the
Group-wide developments and implementation of sk management, sk montoring and nsk reporting methods, processes and systems The
Risk Qtficer's responsibility in the trading companies covers all nisk processes within the company, including limit monitoring and reporting The
Agrar Risk Controling Board, which 1s compnised of Group Risk Contral as well as the Risk Officers of the trading units, 1s also part of Risk
Governance and aims to promote the regular, at least weekly, structured exchange on nsk-relevant ncidents

Agrar Coordination Center (ACC) established tn 2014 to improve the commercial coordination of Agriculture Trade business actvities was further
developed 1n the reporting year and integrated in the newly created Economics and Public Affairs Department (EPAD) organisabonal units |n
addition to monitor the global markets, the EPAD 1s responsible for preparing market analyses for all of BayWa Group's agricultural activities The
Global Book Systern {GBS) was created to coordinate trade management activibies, it 1s responsible for the overarching coordination and
optimisation of the trading and nisk posttions of the indnvidual preduct lines in the trading of grain, ollseed and co-products for the natienal and
international sectors

Macroeconomic opportunities and nsks

General economic factors have an influence on consumer behaviour and investment patterns in BayWa's core markets However, these
environmental factors exert less of an mfluence on BayWa's business activities than on other companies BayWa Group's business model 1s
largely geared to satisfying fundamental human requirements, such as the need for fcod, shelter, mobility and the supply of energy Accordingly,
the impact of cyclical swings is likely to be less strong than in other sectors BayWa s even able to turn certain opportunities anstng in times of
crisis to its advantage through, for instance, the (dentificaton and acquisiion of suitable companies with a view to building up or expanding
existing ar new areas of business, BayWa is, however, unable to fully decouple from any severe setbacks to international economic development
that result from, among other things, the slump in global commodity prices
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Sector and Group-specific opportunities and risks

Changes in the political framework conditions, such as, for example, changes in the regutation of markets for mdnidual agnicultural products or
tax-related government subsidies of energy carniers, as well as volatile markets harbour nsks At the same time, however, they open up new
prospects Extreme weather conditions can have a direct impact on offerings, quality, pncing and trading in agncuttural produce and also
downstream on the operating resources business This is offset by the nse in product and geographical presence dversification in the Agriculture
Segment as this would reduce the dependence on individual markets and increase procurement and marketing flexibility BayWa also combats
quahity nsks by performing samplings and checks Risks posed by a deterioration in the quality of inventories are reduced by professional
warehousing standards Logistics risks resulting from a lack of transport capacities due to weather conditions or strikes are identriied and
managed early on by the early warning systems Global ¢imate changes also have a long-term effect on agriculture The global demand for
agncultural products, particutarly gran, continues 1o grow This may give nse to a sustained price uptrend The fruit-growing activihes pose a
financial nsk to the Group, which anses from the delay between cash outflow for buying, growing and maintasning the trees and vines as well as
the costs of the harvest and cash inflow from the sale of the fruit. This risk 1s managed by actively monitoring and contrelling net working capital
The development of income in the agriculture sector filters through directly to iInvestment capacity and propensity and therefore to the sale of
high-erd agncuitural machinery

In the energy business, renewable energies are parycularly affected by changes in promotion measures Against this backdrop, geographic
dversification stabilises the development of revenues and income and diversification across a number of different energy carners — above all,
wind energy, solar power and biomass — mitigates risk in certain markets that remain strongly dependent on subsidisation Climatic nsks (wind,
sunshine) also play a role for BayWa's electncrty-generating participations in the field of renewahle energies Long-term expert opinions mean
that average wind and sunshine are relatively easy to forecast in the medum term, although both positive and negative deviations can occur at
shortnotice Asset availabiity also posed a nisk, though this 1s greatly reduced by the assortment of proven components provided by well-known
manufacturers The conclusion of fuil-service maintenance contracts ensures that maintenance and repair work 1s performed within defined time
penods

Political and economic factors exert the main influence on demand in the construction sector Polibical factors of influence are, for instance,
special depreciation for listed buildings and measures to promote energy efficiency At the same time, the ageing housing stock in Germany will
encourage growing demand for modernisation and renovation In the Bullding Matenials Segment, BayWa Group 1s the franchiser for DIY and
garden centres Following the inclusion of the BayWa DIY and garden centres in a joint venture with Hellweg, the newly founded BayWa Bau- &
Gartenmarkte GmbH & Co KG, its operational management was transferred to Hellweg In ight of this, there 1s a nisk that the franchise company
in BayWa Group will no longer meet its contractual obligations to the franchisees in the previous way and of the previous quality This could result
i, among other things, claims for damages on the part of the franchisees This nsk was counteracted by the Group concluding long-term
agreements with Hellweg

Risks and opportunities from financial instruments

In addition to fixed- and vanable-rate financial instruments, which are subject to varying degrees of interest rate risks, BayWa Group also uses
dervative hedging instruments such as options and futures contracts to hedge its commodity futures As well as interest rate change risks, these
dervative hedging instruments are also subject to nsks posed by changes to the prices of underslying transachions as well as, depending on the
basis currency in which the dervative instrurment is denominated, currency risks Transactions that were not conducted via a stock exchange are
also subject to counterparty nisk. By the same token, changes to interest rates, currency exchange rates or forward market prices can lead to
unplanned ocpportunities

Price opportunities and risks

BayWa trades in merchandise that displays very high price volatility, such as grain, ollseeds, fertilisers, mineral oil, biomethane and solar
components, especially inits Agriculture and Energy segments The warehousing of the merchandise and the signing of delivery contracts
governing the acquisitton of merchandise in the future means that BayWa i1s also exposed to the nsk of prices fluctuating Whereas the nsk
inherent in mineral ails and biomethane s relatively low due to BayWa's pure distribution function, fluctuations in the price of grain, oilseeds,
fertlisers and solar components may incur greater nsks, also owing to their warehousing, If there 15 no matching in the agreements on the buying
and selling of merchandise In additton to absolute price nsks, business developments may be influenced by various price developments in the
local premiums, in the temporal pnice curve as well as different quality grades if there are no hedging transactions existing at the time when
agreements are signed, the ensuing nisk 1s monrtored on an ongotng basis by the respective executive bodies Whenever necessary, appropriate
measures to imit nsk are mitiated BayWa also operates as a project developer i the field of renewable energies This business harbours a risk
that, for instance, the planning and building of sclar power plants, wind farms and biogas plants are delayed and that they may be connected to the
gnid later than onginally planned In such cases, if the deadline for the further reduction in feed-in taniffs 1s not adhered to, there 1s a sk that the
iow feed-in and electricity income could result in the profitability of the projects being lower than pianned
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BayWa Group uses a portiolio-based value-at-nsk procedure to measure and controf risks ansing from future commodities classified as financial
nstruments within the meaming of IAS 39 The value-at-nisk used by BayWa aims to quantify the negative changes in the value of a portfolio,
which - with a certain degree of probability (85%) — will not be exceeded dunng a defined period of tme (5 trading days) The vaiue-at-nisk
calculated as at 31 December 2015 amounted to €2 693 million and indicates that the potential loss from the commodity futures considered will,
with a probability of 95%, not exceed €2 6§93 milhon within the next 5 trading days

Currency opportunihes and nsks

BayWa's activihes are largely located in the euro zone If foreign currency positions anse from goods and services transactions, these are always
hedged without delay Cther payment obligatons or receivables denominated in a foreign currency are hedged at the time when they anse
Speculative borrowing or investing bonds denominated in foreign currencies s prohibited

Share price opportunities and risks
To a small extent, BayWa Group's investment portfolio comprises direct and indirect investments in hsted companies Equity investments are
continuously monitored on the basis of ther current market values

Interest rate opportunities and nsks

Interest rate risk positions anse from the Group's floating-rate financing activities, especially from the issuing of short-term commercial papers,
short-term loans as well as variable-interest bonded loans Short-term debtis used manly to finance working capital To reduce the interest rate
nisk, which 1s not hedged using a natural hedge, BayWa uses dervatives instruments in the form of futures, interest rate caps and swaps

Interest rate nsk

The share of vanable-interest liabiities was further reduced and the share of fixed-interest labilihes rarsed in the current financial year by issuing
another bonded loan This resulted in a reduction in the weighted average interest rate for vanable-interest financial liabilites to 1 02% {2014

1 5%) A change in this interest rate of plus 1 0% to 2 02% would cause interest expenses to rise by €9 192 million A fall in this interest rate of
minus 1 0% to 0 02% would cause interest expenses to fall by €9 192 million

Legal and regulatory opportunities and risks

The comparies of the Group are exposed to a number of nisks in connection with htigation in which they are currently involved or may be involved
in the future Such Iihigation comes about in the course of normal business activities, in particular in relation to the assertion of claims from ser-
vices and deliveries that are not up to standard or from payment disputes Legal risks can also nse from breaches of compliance regulations by
mdmdual employees Anttrust inveshgations were conducted at various agnicultural comparies in Germany in 2015, including BayWa, with
regard to crop protection wholesale operations Inveshigations continue and the results or partial results were not avallable at the time of the
conclusion of the consolidated financial statements As a result, neither provisions for legal consultations nor balance sheet provisions had been
set aside as the Board of Management cannot provide an assessment of the matter at this tme BayWa forms reserves for the event of such legal
nsks If the occurrence of an obligation event s probable and the amount can be adequately estmated In the individual case, actual utihsation
may exceed the reserve amount.

Changes in the regulatory environment can affect the Group's performance such as, in particular, government intervention in general framework
cenditions for the agricultural industry and the renewable energles business Negative impacts emanate from the adjustment, reduction or
aboliton of funding measures Conversely, new regulatory and legislative developments influencing bioenergy can also result in opportunities

In the construction sector, changes to building or fiscal regulations may also have an impact on the development of business

Plant efficiency in terms of energy generation using renewable energy carriers 1s strongly reliant on regulatory frameworks and government
subsidies Poliically motivated changes to subsidy parameters, n parhcular the retroactive cuts to or abolition of feed-in taniffs, can significantly
impact the value of such facilities either in the form of lower future disposal prices or lower cash inflows from the operation of the facilities
BayWa combats the potential imphcations of such nisks on earnings by pursuing a threefold dversification strategy in its Renewable Energies
business sector The portfolio s diversified in terms of countries, energy carners and business units {projects and service on the one hand, and
other trading on the other hand)
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Credit and counterparty nsks

As part of its entrepreneunal activities, BayWa Group has an mportant function as a source of finance for its agncultural trading partners In the
context of so-called cultivatron contracts, the Group 1s exposed to a financing nsk arising from the upfront financing of agneultural resources and
equipment, the repayment of which 1s made through acquiring and selling the harvest. Moreover, BayWa grants financing to commercial
customers particularly in the construction sector in the forrn of payment terms of a considerable scope Beyond this, there are the customary
default nsks inherent in trade recervables Risks are kept to a minimum by way of an extensive debt monitoring system which spans all business
units To this end, credit imits are defined through a documented process of approval and monitared on an ongoing basis

in addition to credit nsks, the Agnculture Trade business unit also regularly monitors counterparty risks, consequently, market value changes to
open selling and buying contracts are measured so as to monitor the nisk of the non-fulfilment of contract obligations

Credit isks are constituted by’the economic loss of a financial asset brought about by default on a contractual payment by a contractual partner
and the detenoration of its credit standing, together with the danger of concentration on only a few contractual partners (risk clusters) Credit nsks
may anse in the IFRS 7 classes of financial assets “available for sale” (AfS), "loans and recewvabies" (LaR) and “financial assets held for trading”

(FAHIT)

Financial assets avalable for sale (AfS) This class mamnly comprises shares in affillated companies and participating investments and securities
These financial assets are not subject to further credit nsk beyond the value adjustments made to date in this class The maximum credit risk
exposure at the end of the reporting penod corresponds to the value of this class BayWa Group does not consider this to be sigruficant

Loans and recevables (LaR) As part of its entrepreneunal activities, BayWa Group has an important function as a source of finance for its
agncultural trading partners In the context of so-called cultivation contracts, the Group enters into a financing nsk ansing from the upfront
financing of agncultural equipment and resources Settlement is effected by way of buying up and selling the harvest. An extensive debt
monitoring system ensures that nsks are kept to a mtmimum in this business, as well as for other segments of the Group This 1s performed
through establishing and consistently moritoring credit imits, flanked by a documented approval procedure Value adjustments are carned out
on the residual nsk of the trade recewvables )

Theres currently no discernible concentration of default nsk from business relationships with individual debtors or groups of debtors The
maximum credit nsk exposure at the end of the reporting period corresponds to the value of this class The expected default sk amounts to
€12 604 milhon (2014 €15 746 million)

Financial assets held for trading {FAHfT) This category covers dervative financial instruments which are held to hedge currency and interest rate
risks The contractual partners of derivative financial instruments are mainly banks with international operations which have been given a good
credit rating by an external rating agency This category also mcludes the positive fair values of those commodity futures that are scheduled
exclusively for trading and are therefore to be classified as financial instruments within the meaning of IAS 39 These commodity futures are
measured at fair value as at the end of the reporting penod The measurement of commaodity futures is based on the market or stock market value
for identical or comparable transactions at the end of the reporting period In addition, this class of assets comprises a low volume of securities
There are currently nc payments overdue or value adjustments for default in this class

Liquidity nsks

The iiquidity nisk 1s the nisk that BayWa Group may not - or only to alimited extent - be able to fuffil its financial obhgations In BayWa Group,
funds are generated by operaticns and by borrowing from external financial institutions [n addion, financing instruments, such as mutticurrency
commercial paper programmes or asset-backed secuntisation, are used as well as bonded foans Existing credit lines are therefore measured to
an extent deemed suificient to guarantee business performance at all imes — even in the event of growing volume The financing structure
therefore takes account of the pronounced seasonality of business activites Owing to the diversification of the sources af financing, BayWa
Group does not currently have any nsk clusters in iguidity BayWa Group's financing structure with its mostly matching maturities ensures that
interest-related opportunities are reflected within the Group
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Rating of BayWa Group

BayWa enjoys a positive rating among banks This achievement s due to the solidity as well as to the long and successful history of the company
and its hugh enterprise value, underpinned by assets such as real estate In 2015, BayWa Group was again able to raise its credit faciliies and 1ssue
afurther bonded loan For reasons of cost effectiveness, BayWa deliberately dispenses with the use of external ratings

Opportunities and nsks associated with personnel

As regards personnel, BayWa Group competes with other companies for highly qualfied managers as well as for skilled and motwvated staff The
Group continues to require qualified personnel in order to secure its future success Excessively high employee fluctuation, brain drawn and failure
to win junior staff loyalty may have a detnmental effect on the Group's busingss performance BayWa counteracts these risks by offering its
employees extensive traming and continuous professional development in order to secure expertise Management based on trust, the tasking of
employees in ine with their natural talents and abiliies, as well as the definiion and adherence to our ethical principles create a positive working
environment.

At the same time, BayWa AG promotes the ongaing vocational training and development of its employees With more than 1,000 trainees in
2015, the Group ranks among the largest companies offering trarming specrfically in rural areas BayWa recruits a large majonty of its future
specialist and managerial employees from the ranks of these trainees Long years of service to the company are testament to the great loyalty
shown by BayWa personnel to “their” company This athitude creates stability and continuity and also secures the transfer of expertise down the
generaticns

IT opportunities and risks

The use of cutting-edge information technology charactenises the entire business activity of BayWa Group All key business processes are
supported by IT and mapped using state-of-the-art software solutions In a trading company with high numbers of employees, having work
processes supported electronically 1s imperative The continuous monitoring and reviewing of processes mapped electronically, however, involves
more than the mere implementation of new IT components 1t s always accompanied by an optimisation of process workflows, as a result of which
opportunities in the form of energy and cost savings potential can be dentified and realised At the same time, the nisk inherentin the system rises
in tandem with the growing complexity and dependency on the availability and reliability of the I T systems

To realise the opportuniies and mimmise the risks, the IT competence of BayWa Group 1s kept at a consistently high level The resources are
combined under Rl-Solution GmbH, a company belonging to the Group that provides the Group companies with [T services to the highest
standard Extensive precautionary measures such as firewalls, virus protection updated on a daily basts, disaster recovery plans and training in
data protection serve to safequard data processing Segregated in orgamsational terms, a data protection officer monitors compliance with
securty and data protection standards

Internal Control System for monitoring accounting processes

The Internal Control System (ICS) which monitors accounting processes is also a key component of opportunity and risk management.
BayWa Group has set in place a professional control system, which has been certiied in many areas, comprising measures and processes to
safeguard its assets and to guarantee the presentation of a true and fair view of the result of operations

The annual consolidated financial staterments are drawn up through a centralised process Compliance with legal provisions and regulations
pertaining to the Articles of Association dunng this process 1s guaranteed by the prescrnibed accounting standards Corporate Accounting actsas a
direct point of contact for the managers of the subsidiaries in matters pertaining te reporting and the annual and intenm financial statements and
draws up the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS

A control systerm which monitors the accounting process ensures the complete and timely capturing of all business transactions in accordance
with the statutory provisions and the regulations laid down under the Articles of Association Moreover, it serves to guarantee that stocktaking is
duly and properly performed and that assets and liabihies are recognised, valued and disclosed appropnately The contro! system uses both IT-
based and manual control mechanisms to fully ensure the regularity and rehability of accounting Beyond this, sutable control mechanisms, such
as strict comphance with the prninciple of dual control and analytical reviews, have been installed in all processes relevant for accounting In
addrtion, Internal Audit, which i1s independent of these processes, audits all accounting-retated processes

The obiigation of all subsidranes to report thewr figures every month on an IFRS basis in a standardised reporting format to BayWa enables target
performance divergences to be identified swiftly, thereby offenng an opportunity of taking action at short notice

Corporate Accounting monitors all processes relating to the consolidated financial statements as part of quarterly reporting, such as the capital,

liabilihes, expenses and income consolidation and the elimination of inter-company results, in conjunction with the reconciliation of the Group
companies
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The departments and units of the Group involved in the accounting process are suitably equipped in terms of guantity and quality, and traming
courses are regularly conducted

The integrity and responsibility of all employees in respect of finance and financial reporting 1s ensured through taking each employee under
obligation to observe the code of conduct adopted by the respective company

The employing of highly qualified specialist personnel, specific and regular training and continuous professional development as well as stringent
functional segregation in financial accounting in the preparing and booking of vouchers and in controliing guarantee compliance with local and
International accounting rules in the annual and consolidated financial statements

Quarall assessment of the opportunity and risk situation by Group management
An overall assessment of the current opporturity and nisk situation shows that there are no rnisks which could endanger the Group as a going

concern There are currently no such nisks discernible for the future either Allin all, the nsks to BayWa Group are imited and manageable

Along with potentially non-influenceable or only indirectly influenceable global policy nisks and macroeconomic risks, operational risks are also the
tocus of monmitoring As far as the latter are concerned, BayWa Group has taken approprate measures to manage and control these risks
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(D.) NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT
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The layout of the income statement accords with total cost-type accounting

(D.1.) Revenues

Revenues and earnings are always recorded at the time when the benefits of and the nisks associated with the ownership of the goods and
products sold and the services provided have passed to the buyer Revenues and earmings are reported minus discounts, rebates and bonuses

granted

The breakdown by business unit and region can be seen in the segment report (Note E 2) Owing to the diversified business activities of the
indmvidual segments, inter-segment revenues are transacted only to a minor extent.

In € mdiion 20156 2014
Goods 14,719 450 14,961 667
Services 208679 240121
14,928 129 15,201 788

(D.2.) Other operating income
In € rmthon 2015 2014
Rentat income 26 330 28736
Gans from the disposal of assets 96 549 34054
Gains from negative goodwill - 8354
Income from release of provisions 9983 13943
Reimbursement of expenses 17597 18163
Saurcing of employees 4418 4431
Adverlising allowance 2378 2186
Price gains 18117 20 347
Income from recevables written down/release of value adjustments 7 549 2677
Cther Income 44929 49535
157 850 182 426

Other income comprises income from licences and numerous other individual items Rental income includes gains from incidental costs Gans

from the disposal of assets primarily compnise the disposal of BayWa AG property inventones and also includes the proportionate distnbution of
the accounting profit resulting from a sale and lease back transaction for real estate in the financial year 2013 and, due to the classification of the
lease agreement as a financial lease, 1s to be distnbuted over the term of this agreement (€3 614 million)
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(D.3.) Cost of materials

In € million 2015 2014
Expenses for raw rmatenials, consumables and supples, and for goods sourced 13,278875 13,663975
Expenses for services outsourced 296 426 152941

13,675 301 13,816 916

(D.4.) Personnel expenses

In € mullion 2015 2014
Wages and salanes 676 271 653472
Share-based payment tadn 1522
Expenses for pensions, support and severance pay 52 627 52184
(of which ongoing service cost) (8 8OT) (6 969)
Social insurance contnbutions 94 827 8583
825 156 793 069

After calculating the provisions for pension and severance pay according to I1AS 19, expenses for pension and severance pay total €23 025 milhon
(2014 €26 181 million) Of this amount, a portion amounting to €8 420 milion (2014 €6 969 million) has been disclosed under personnel
expenses and a portion totalling €14 605 million (2014 €19 212 milhon) under interest expenses

Number 2015 2014

Employees

Annual average (Section 267 para. 5 of the German Commercial Code (HGB]) 16,609 16072
of which jomntly held companies within the meaning of Section 310 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) 8] 0

Asat 31 December 16,229 15917
of which jaintly held companies within the meaning of Section 310 of the German Commercral Code (HGB) 0 9]
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In € milion 2015 2014
Vehicle fleet 73899 77211
Maintenance 49 345 50592
Advertising 43642 44049
Energy 29761 32568
Rent 51291 48 297
Expenses for staff hired externally 24312 2383
Information expenses 13969 13895
Comrmission 13958 12637
Insurances 18.544 17268
Cost of legal and professionaf advice, audit fees 36349 34428
Amortisation/value adjustments of recervables 11440 11195
IT costs 3149 3067
Travel expenses 15593 13283
Office supplies 8216 7507
Other tax 8242 7751
Administrative expenses 4923 3981
Traning and continuous professional development B 324 8958
Decommussioning and disposal 8.447 9422
Currency-induced losses 17 726 23265
Losses from asset disposals 1077 11459
Other expenses 43127 36824
495 334 491 488
Other expenses comprise mainly general selhng and other costs, such as those incurred by secunng against operating risks
(D.6.) Income from participating interests recognised at equity and other income from
shareholdings
In € million 2015 2014
Profit/loss from participating interests recogmised at equity 3284 3394
Income/expenses from affilated companies 1065 ~0358
Income/expenses from the disposal of affillated companies -0 004 0448
QOther income from holdings and similar income 3485 32227
Write-downs of financial assets and other expenses -0 255 -0 886
Qther income from shareholdings 4291 3142
7575 34825
Dwdend income 1s recorded as and when a claim o payout anses
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(D.7.) Interest income and expenses

In € million 015 2014
Interest and similar tncome 5613 6772

{of which from affiliated companies) (0 594) (0447)
Interest from fair value measurement 0003 -
Interest income 5616 6772
Interest and similar expenses -48149 -45687

{of which from affiliated companies) 0217} {-0375)
Interest from fair value measurement -0114 -0050
interest porbion of finance leasing =-12.351 -1294¢
interest portion of the allocation to pension provisions and other personnel provisions -15096 -19743
Interest expense =75710 ~78 426
Net interest -70004 -71654

(D.8.) Income tax

Income tax breaks down as follows

In € million 2015 2014
Actual taxes -28 095 -28 855
Detferred taxes 1645 29134

-26 450 0279

Actual tax income and expenses comprise the corporate and trade tax of the companies in Germany and comparable taxes on foreign companies

Deferred taxes are formed for all temporary differences between the tax-related assigned value and IFRS values as well as the consohdation
measures Equity ncludes deferred tax assets of €54 346 mdlion (2014 €56 840 million) that were offset against the reserve for actuanal gains
and losses from provisions for pensions and severance pay Moreover, deferred tax assets of €0 135 milion {2014 liabilites of €0 343 million)
were offset against the assessment reserve in equity without effect on income Deferred tax assets include tax-reducing claims which anse from
the expected utisation of ioss carryforwards in the years ahead, the realisation of which 1s assured with sufficient probability These came to
€74951 million {2014 €72 549 milion) As part of corporate planning, a ime horizon of three years has been assumed here Deferred tax was
not formed on loss carryforwards of subsidiaries in an amount of €27 155 million (2014 €24 015 million) as their usability 1s not anticipated Loss
carrytorwards of individual Group companies can be partly carned forward within a imited period of time No tax assets which are eligible as
carryforwards are hikely to expire The deferred tax ncome expense from the ongmation and for reversal of temporary differences amounts to

€0 757 million {2014 deferred tax expense of €8 365 million)

Deferred taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates which apply or are anticipated given the current legat situation in the individual countries
at the time when taxes are levied The tax rate of BayWa AG remained at 28 18%, unchanged from the previous year
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Deferred tax assets and habilities are allocated to the individual balance sheet items as shown in the table below

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax lrabilibies
In € million 2015 2014 2015 2014
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 10084 6 892 98959 88095
Financial assets 4446 2574 24709 25347
Current assets 8483 14 625 13792 89287
Cther assets 0015 o013 0748 =
Tax loss carryforwards 102106 92126 - -
Prowvisions 99283 100957 1976 2596
Deterred tax llabilties 1475 2997 1568 1512
Other habilhttes 31752 25027 27494 32825
Value adjustments deferred tax assets =29 461 -21083 - -
Balance -2717% -25227 -27175 -25227
Consolidation 10517 10 370 16021 18021

211525 209 271 158 092 152456

The actual tax expenses are €1 637 million higher the amount that would have been incurred If the German corporate tax rate had been applied
under the currently prevailing law, plus the solidanty surcharge and the trade tax burden on the consolidated earnings before tax The
computational tax rate of 28 18% calculated for actual tax 1s based on the uniform corporate tax rate of 15 0%, plus the solidartty surcharge of

5 8% and the average effective trade tax of 12 35% Deferred tax liabities were not recognised for subsidiaries and associated companies as the
company can control the timing of reversals and because 1t 1s therefore probable that the temporary difference wiil not reverse 1n the foreseeable
future No deferred tax iabilities were formed for temporary differences in an amount of €13 472 million (2014 €12 418 milion) from
subsidiaries and associated companies

The table below shows the transition from the computed tax expenses in accordance with the corporate tax rate to the iIncome tax expenses
actually reported

In € million 2018 2014
Consolidated result before iIncome tax 88053 80424
Computational tax expenses based on a tax rate of 28 18% 24813 22663
Difference against foreign tax rates t 250 -0 352
Tax not relating to the period -4152 0558
Permanent difference changes 5296 3160
Tax effect due to non-tax deductible expenses 3827 1632
Trade tax deductions and additions -2845 -17 695
Final consolidation effect 1115 -0622
Tax-exempt income -8 664 -14108
Changes in the value adjustment of deferred tax assets 8379 3479
Tax effect from equity results 0963 0234
Effect from expenses recogrused directly in equity -0529 o029
Effects from changes in tax rates -2928 0286
QOther tax effects -0075 0459
Income tax 26 450 -0279
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(D.9.) Profit share of minority interest

The share of consolidated net ncome of €13 399 million (2014 €19 276 million) due to other sharehclders 1s mainly attributable to the minosity
shareholders of the Austnan subsidiaries as well as the minonty shareholders of T&G Global Limited and their respective subsidianies

{D.10.) Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated by dwviding the portion of profit of BayWa AG's shareholders by the average number of the shares issued in the
financial year and dividend-beanng shares There were no diluting effects

2015 2014
income adjusted for minonty interest In € million 48204 61427
Average number of shares 1ssued Units 34,643,344 34,534,846
Basic eamings per share € ¥ 30 178
Diluted earmings per share € 139 178
Proposed dvidend per share € 085 080
Dmidend per share paid out per financial year € 08B0 Q75

(E.) OTHER INFORMATION

(E.1.) Explanations on the Cash Flow Statement of BayWa Group

The cash flow statement shows how the cash and cash equivalents of BayWa Group have changed due to cash inflows and outflows during the
year under review Cash and cash equivalents shown in the cash flow statement compnise all liquid funds disclosed in the balance sheet, 1 e cash
in hand, cheques and deposits in banks Owing to the fact that the Group conducts its business mainly in the euro zone, the iImpact of exchange-
rate nduced changes i cash and cash equivalents is of secondary importance and 1s therefare not disclosed separately The funds are not subject
to any restraints on disposal

In accordance with the standards set out under IAS 7, the cash flow statement 1s divided up into cash flow from operating activities, investing
activities and financing activities

The cash flow from operating actvities 1s calculated indirectly, based on cansolidated net income for the year This cash flow 1s ascertained by
adjusting it for non-cash expenses (mainly depreciation and amortisation) and income The cash flow from investing activities 1s calculated on
a cash-effective basis and comprnises cash-effective changes in consolidated non-current assets as well as imcorming and outgoing payments
from the acquisition of compames Cash flow from financing actvities 1s also ascertained on a cash-effective basis and compnses primarly
cash-effective changes in borrowings and cash outflows from dividend distnbution and the reducton of funds Within the scope of the indirect
calculation of these positions, changes from currency translation and from the group of consohdated companies were eliminated as they do not
affectcash For this reason, a comparnson of these figures with the corresponding frgures in the consolidated balance sheet s not possible
Further details on acqursitions and disposals can be found under Note B 1

(E.2.) Explanations on the segment report

Divniding up of operations into segments

The segment repart provides an overview of the important segments of BayWa Group The breakdown of the segments accords with the
provisions set out under IFRS 8 The segmenits are to be presented in the same form as 1s submitted to decision makers, namely the Board of
Management of BayWa AG, in the respective reports made on a regular basis, and which therefore form the basis for strategic decisions This
results in greater uniformity of the internal and external reporting system All consolidation measures are shown tn a separate column of the
segment report. Aside from the depreciatton and amortsation included in this section, there are no other material non-cash items that must be
reported separately in the segment report
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Segment reporting by business sector

Through its Agricultural Trade business sector, the Group serves the whole value chain covering the production of agricultural produce This
includes the delivery of agricultural operating resources such as fertilisers, crop protection, seed and feedstuff The collection and selling of plant-
based products are also actvities allocated to the Agnicultural Trade business unit. The Fruit business sector combines the activities of the Group
in the business of fruit and vegetable cultivation and trading Along with the sale of agricultural and municipal equipment, the Agncultural
Equipment business sector also operates the workshops providing services In the Digital Farming business sector, which was disclosed for the
first tme in the financial year 2015, the Group provides software solutions and integrated services for process-controlled operations management
n agriculture

The Energy business sector mainly covers trading in mineral oils, fuels and lubrnicants and the filling station business The Renewable Energies
husiness sector combines the activities of the Group in the field of renewable energies Business is focused on project development as well as
trading and offering services for the operation of photovaltaic, wind power and biogas faciittes

The Bullding Matenals Segment sells building matenals for construchion and civil engineenng This segment also comprises the retail activities of
Austrian Group comparies

Aside from peripheral actvities, the Other Activites Segment mainly encompasses BayWa Group's real estate operations

Apart from sales revenues generated through business with third parties that are disclosed tn the business sectors, intra- and inter-segment sales
are also reported Revenues are not broken down by individual preducts and service at Group level due to the heterogeneity of the products sold
in the Group Both intra- and inter-segment sales are conducted at arm’s length terms and conditions Any intenim profits ansing in this context are
ehminated in the conseolidated financial statements Moreover, write-downs and write-ups and the financial results per business sector are
disclosed, along with earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA), earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) and earnings
before tax (EBT) This s also applicable to the segmental assets, with separate disclosure of the inventories and segmental iabilibies Investments
made (excluding financial assets) are also divided up among the business sectors Such mnvestments concern the addition of intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment as well as additions from company acquisitions Maoreover, information in this segment report includes the annual
average number of employees per business sector
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Segment information by operating segment

n € million Agncultural Agnculturel
31/12/2015 Trade Frust Equipment Digital Farrming Agnculture
Revenues through third-party business 8,321 436 567 353 1,260 711 5182 10,154 682
Intra-segment revenues 894 380 0037 18453 0846 913716
Inter-segment revenues 1747 - 0897 - 2644
Total revenues 9,217 563 567 390 1,280 081 6028 11,071 042
Earnings before interest, tax, deprecation and amortisation
(EBITDA) 71898 40022 31 880 -2222 141578
Depreciation and amortisation -30308 -13005 -10404 -06565 -54372
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) 41 590 27017 21476 -2877 87 206
Financial result -20657 -1008 -1031 -0104 -32080
of which net interest -2197 -5741 -9523 -0006 -37241
of which equity result -0029 4032 03n — 4314
Earmings before tax (EBT) 19619 1276 11 953 -2.883 49 965
Income tax
Net income
Assets 2,821 566 412 505 549 733 7218 3,791 022
af which Participating interests recognised at equity 3164 14 B5B5 6620 — 24339
of which non-current assets held for sale - - - - -
Inventones 1,086 682 29628 291188 0225 1,407 723
of which non-current assets held for sate - - - - -
Liabilties 1,935987 284131 434614 5083 2658815
of which Liabilities from non-current assets held for sale - - - - -
Investments in intangible &ssets, property, plant and equipment and
Investment property (Incl company acquisitions) 52488 45415 25745 9154 132802
Employee annual average 4147 2,361 3.489 97 10,094
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Transition/

Energy  Renewable Energies Energy Building Matenals Other Actwities® Consolidation Group
2246419 1017762 3264181 1,496 434 12832 - 14928 128
225 660 29 882 255542 35521 49 805 -1,254584 -
16201 18530 34731 1403 4308 -43086 -
2,438 280 1,066 174 3,554 454 1,533.358 66 945 -1,287 670 14,928 129
23 969 80814 114783 42 202 141 514 -15176% 288 308
-8579 -25004 -37583 -14753 ~16 560 -6893 ~-130161
15 390 61810 77 200 27 449 124 954 ~158 662 158147
-0109 -15073 -15182 -9956 147072 -152373 -62.519
-0210 -11200 -11410 -9584 -9720 -1738 -70084
- -4 501 -4501 - 347 - 3284
15180 50610 65790 17 465 115234 -160 401 B8 053
-26 450
81 603
224639 2,084 607 2,309 246 662733 3,597 830 -4,224024 6,036 657
- 10964 10964 Q051 168 522 - 203876
- - - - 9796 - 9796
36302 474 748 511050 138722 0833 83213 2141541
305921 1,619 700 1925621 556719 2412878 -2,594 277 4960 756
7130 24 947 32077 26 240 22746 - 213865
985 840 1,825 4,093 587 - 16,609
* before consolidation

BayWa AG Consoiidated Financial Statements 2015 151




Consolidated Financial Statements — Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information by operating segment

In € milhon Agrcultural Agncuitural
3112/2014 Trade Frurt Equipment Digital Farming Agncuiture
Revenues through third-party business 8230662 563901 1310705 - 10,105 268
Intra-segment revenues 628 167 - 19 499 - 647 666
Inter-segment revenues 1365 - 0823 - 2188
Total revenues 8,860194 563 901 1,331 027 - 10,755 122
Earmings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA} 96 402 34 088 33305 - 163 795
Depreciation and amortisation -31490 -13495 -11015 - -86 000
Earmings before interest and tax (EBIT) 64 912 20 593 22290 - 107 795
Financtal result -21143 -1828 -10783 - -33754
of which net interest -23494 -4456 -11299 - -39249
of which equity resuit 0633 2589 0369 - 3591
Earnings before tax (EBT) 41 418 16137 10991 - 68 546
Income tax
Net income
Assets 2,409 325 378765 602 042 - 3380132
of which Participating interests recognised at equrty 3081 12229 4505 — 19825
of which non-current assets held for sale 13963 0531 - - 14 494
Inventones 980832 26518 301 819 - 1,308 169
of which non-current assets held for sale 541 - - - 5411
Liabilihes 1,520 986 206 246 526 406 - 2,262 638
of which Liabilties from non-current assets held for sale 5079 - - - 5079
Investments in intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
Investment property (inel ¢ompany acquisitions) 51 384 60 751 17832 - 129 967
Employee annual average 4,158 1,910 3,421 — 9,489
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Transition/
Energy Renewable Energtes Energy Building Matenals QOther Activities* Consolidaton Group
2,702 841 786173 3,489014 1,524 766 82740 - 15201 788
214 905 15278 230183 31350 48 320 -857519 -
13780 0481 14 261 277 3218 -22384 -
2,931 526 801932 3,733458 1,558 833 134 278 -979903 15,201 788
14 882 54168 74 050 42.883 103 398 -104 337 279 788
-9138 -22 640 -31778 ~14912 -17704 -T3N7 -127711
5744 36528 42272 27971 B85 694 -111654 152.078
1182 -153M0 -14159 -10890 134 001 -112027 -36829
‘ 1133 -12839 ~11706 -10886 -9428 -0 385 ~71 654
- -2492 -2492 - 2295 - 3394
6877 23689 30 566 17 085 76 266 -112039 80424
0279
80 703
272 451 1943979 2,216430 574713 2,701 524 -3230800 5681 989
- 6016 6016 0051 170552 - 196 444
- - - - 4006 - 18500
: 39776 461 606 501 382 135579 1442 38747 1,986 319
- - - - - - 5411
347 471 1,525 348 1,872819 562504 2,009 153 -2,105 491 4,601 623
- - - - - - 5079
23 487 30686 54173 14.809 47 251 - 246 200
1,026 804 1,830 4,178 575 - 16,072

* before consolidation
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Segment reparting by region

Beyond reporting under IFRS 8, which does not require secondary segmental information, information on segment reporting by region 1s also
disclosed Consequently, external sales are allocated according to where the customer 1s domiciled, the Group's core markets are in Germ any,
Austna and the Netherlands Accordingiy, the external sales for these countnies are shown separately External sales attnbutable to New Zealand
have not been included here due to the secondary importance of said external sales The non-current assets attnbutable to the Netherlands have
not been included for the same reason

Segment information by region

External sales Non-current assets
In € million 2015 2014 2015 2014
Germany 6414126 7.052212 1,489 772 1,507 756
Austria 2,193732 2428720 371165 376118
Netherlands - 1,915555 - -
New Zealand - - 258747 234065
Other international operations 6,320271 380530 167 493 143754
Group 14,928 129 15,201 788 22871717 2,261 693

As revenues in the Netherlands will no longer exceed the materiality threshold of at least 10% of the Group's total revenues in the current
financial year, the revenues generated in the Netherlands will not be reported separately in the reporting year

(E.3.) Significant events after the reporting date

On 26 January 2016, the Bundeskartellamt (German federal antitrust authonty) conducted a search in a number of offices at BayWa AG
headquarters in Munich, Germany, on the basis of a warrant The investigation 1s based on the suspicion that employees of the company were
allegedly involved in agreements aimed at restricting competition in the sale of agnicultural equipment According to the court order authonsing
the search, several compames from the industry are being investigated No further details on the accusations were available to the company at the
time of the conclusion of the consolidated financial statements BayWa AG will offer its full cooperation with the Bundeskartellamt to clanfy the
circumstances

BayWa AG will take over the majority of the Dutch supplier of exotic frurts and vegetables, TFC Holland BV {TFC) based in De Lier, the
Netherlands, subject to approval by the antitrust authorities The Munich-based trading and services group will receve 68 4% of the shares for a
purchase price of €28 705 million The takeover 1s an important step for BayWa in its international growth strategy in the Agricultural Segment.
TFC has long-standing internahicnal trade relations in all procurement markets for exotic frurts - mainly for avocado, mango, ginger and citrus
fruits, as well as with the European food retaif industry By expanding its portfolio in the growth market for exotic speciality frurts, in particular in
the “ready-to-eat" sector, BayWa AG 1s strengthening its position as a leading international supplier of exotic and pome fruit

BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, acquired 100% of the shares in Evergrain Germany GmbH & Co KG {Evergrain), Hamburg, Germany, through
Group company BayWa Agrar Beteiigung Nr 2 GmbH, Munich, Germany, on 29 January 2016 for a purchase price of €4 992 milhon The
purchase agreement also includes purchase price components which, depending on key data determined for the financial year 2016 through
2019, amount to a maximum of €1 600 million Evergran 1s specialised in international trading with maiting barley With the take-over, BayWa s
expanding its natonal and international specialites business and will take a leading role in the malting barley trade The biggest market potential
for malting barley lies in the European Union and increasingly in the growth of South American and Asian markets Addional disclosures with
regard to the company acquisttion required pursuant to IFRS 3 B64 cannot be provided in these consolidated financial statements as the required
information was not yet avarlable at the time the consolidated financial statements were approved for pubhcation

BayWa AG, Mumich, Germany, acquired the project rights for a total of 31 wind power projects from juwi, a project developer based m Worrstadt,
Germany, through Group company BayWar e Wind GmbH, Munich, Germany The portfolio comprises an output of around 375 megawatts (MW)
at drfferent locations in Germany, for the most part in North Rhine-Westphalia and Rhineland-Palatinate BayWar e renewable energy GmbH wall
implerment the projects and complete them in line with our business model The projects are at different stages of development BayWare 1s
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anticipating approval for nearly one third of these projects in 2016 Following this, the aim is to immed iately commence construction BayWare
expects the first wind farms from the new portfolic to be commissioned as early as 2017

(E.4.) Litigation

The companies of the Group are exposed to a number of nisks in connection with Iitgation in which they are currently involved or may be iInvolved
in the future Such lihigation comes about in the course of normal business activities, in particular in relation to the assertion of clatms from ser-
vices and deliveries that are not up to standard or from payment disputes Legal risks can also rise from breaches of comphance regulations by
individual employees Antitrust inveshgations were conducted at vanious agneultural companies in Germany in 2015, including BayWa, with
regard to crop protection wholesale operations BayWa currently possesses no further information about the outcome of this investigation As

a result, no financial provisions were made In the form of provisions, nor were contingent liabilities recognised

Neither BayWa AG nor any of its Group companies are involved in a court case or arbitration proceedings which couid have a major impact on the
economic situation of the Group, either now or in the past two years Such court cases are also not foreseeable Provisions have been made in an
appropriate amount at the respective Group companies for any financial burdens artsing from a court case or arbitration proceedings and/or there
1S an appropriate insurance cover

gE.S.) )Information pursuant to Section 160 para. 1 item 8 of the German Stock Cerporation Act |
AktG

Pursuant to the German Secunities Trading Act (WpHG), any shareholder who reaches, exceeds or falls below the thresholds of 3%, 5%, 10%,
15%, 20%, 25%, 30%, 50% or 75% of the voting nghts of a listed company 1s required to inform the company and the German Financial
Supervisory Authority (BaFin) without delay BayWa AG was informed of the following holdings (the proportion of voting nights relates to the time
when notification was made and may therefore now be outdated)

Pursuant to Section 41 para. 2 1in conjunction with Section 21 para. 1 of the German Securties Trading Act (AktG), Bayerische Raiffeisen-
Beteiligungs-AG, Beilngnes, Germany, informed us on 4 April 2002 that the proportion of its voting nghts in our company came to 37 51% on
1 April 2002

Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH, Vienna, Austria, informed us on 16 July 2009 that, pursuant to Section 21 para. 1 of the German Securities Trading

Act (AktG), the share apportioned to 1t of the voting nghts in BayWa AG, Arabellastrasse 4, 81925 Munich, Germany, exceeded the thresholds of |
15%, 20% and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting nghts came to 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nghts, of which 8,389,785

voting rights from registered shares with restricted transferability and 143,888 voting nights from registered shares) on 15 July 2009

Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH, Vienna, Austria, informed us on 16 July 2009 that, pursuant to Sections 21 para. 1, 22 para. 1 sentence 1 tem 1
of the German Secunties Trading Act (AktG), the share apportioned to 1t of the voting rights in BayWa AG, Arabellastrasse 4, 81925 Munich,
Germany, exceeded the thresholds of 15%, 20% and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting nghts came to 25 120%
(8,533,673 voting nghts, of which 8,389,785 voting rights from registered shares with restricted transferability and 143,888 voting nghts from
registered shares) on 15 July 2009 Of these voting nights, 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nghts, of which 8,389,785 voting nghts from registered
shares with restricted transferability and 143,888 voting nghts from registered shares) were apportionable to Raiffeisen Agrar Holding GmbH
pursuant to Section 22 para. 1 sentence 1 tem 1 of the German Securities Trading Act {AktG) These voting rights were apportionable to
Rartfeisen Agrar Holding GmbH wia Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH (direct holder of the voting rights) pursuant to Section 22 para. 1 sentence
item 1 of the German Securiies Trading Act (AKtG)

LEIPNIK-LUNDENBURGER INVEST Betelligungs AG, Vienna, Austria, informed us on 16 July 2009 that, pursuant to Sections 21 para. 1,

22 para. 1 sentence 1 item 1 of the German Securihes Trading Act (AkiG), the share apportioned to it of the voting rights n BayWa AG,
Arabellastrasse 4, 81925 Mumich, Germany, exceeded the thresholds of 15%, 20% and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the
voting nghts came to 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nghts, of which 8,389,785 voting nights from registered shares with restricted transferability and
143,888 voting nghts from registered shares) on 15 July 2009 Of these voting nghts, 25 12% (8,533,673 voting rights, of which 8,389,785
voting nghts from shares with restncted transferability and 143,888 voting nghts from registered shares) were apportionable to LEIPNIK-
LUNDENBURGER INVEST Betetligungs AG pursuant to Section 22 para. 1 sentence 1 item 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (AktG)
These voting nghts were apportionable to LEIPNIK-LUNDENBURGER INVEST Beteiligungs AG via Raiffeisen Agrar Holding GmbH pursuant

to Section 22 para. 1 sentence 1 item 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (AkIG)

On 8 September 2009, we recewved the following notification from 'KORMUS' Holding GmbH, Friedrnich-Wilhelm-Raiffeisen-Platz 1, in
1020 Vienna, Austna, Company Register no FN 241822X
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“We herewith inform you that, pursuant to Sections 21 para. 1 and 22 para. 1 sentence 1 item 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (AktG), the
share of the voting nghts in BayWa Aktiengesellschaft, Arabellastrasse 4, 81925 Munich, Germany, apportioned to us had fallen below the
thresholds of 25%, 20%, 15%, 10%, 5% and 3% on 8 September 2009 and that the whole share in the voting nghts now amounts to 0% (the
equivalent of 0 voting nghts)

To date a share in the voting rights of 25 1 2% (the equivalent of 8,533,673 voting rights) was apportionable to us pursuant to Section 22 para. 1
sentence 1 item 1 of the German Secunities Trading Act (AktG) via LEIPNIK-LUNDENBURGER INVEST Beteiligungs AG Asaresultofa
demerger, 16,329,226 of the shares formerly held by us in LEIPNIK-LUNDENBURGER INVEST Beteiigungs AG (the equivalent of 50 05% of
the shares and the voting nights) were directly transferred to 'LAREDO’ Beteiigungs GmbH, our direct parent company, with effect from

8 September 2009 "

'LAREDO' Beteihgungs GmbH, Vienna, Austnia, informed us on 16 July 2009 that, pursuant to Sections 21 para. 1 and 22 para. 1 sentence 1

rtem 1 of the German Secuntes Trading Act (AktG), the share of voting nights apportioned to it in BayWa Aktiengesellschaft, Arabellastrasse 4,
81925 Munich, Germany, had exceeded the thresholds of 15%, 20% and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting rights came
to 25 12% (8,533,673 voting rights, of which 8,389,785 voting nights from registered shares with restricted transferability and 143,888 voting
rights from registered shares) on 15 July 2009 Of these voting nights, 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nghts, of which 8,389,785 voting nights from
shares with restnicted transferabihity and 143,888 voting nghts from registered shares) were apportioned to 'LAREDO' Beteligungs GmbH
pursuant to Section 22 para. 1 sentence 1 item 1 of the German Secunties Trading Act (AktG) These voting rights were apportionable to
‘LAREDQ’ Beteiigungs GmbH via ‘KORMUS' Holding GmbH pursuant to Section 22 para. 1 sentence 1 item 1 of the German Securities Trading
Act (AktG)

Raiffeisen-Holding Niederosterreich-Wien reg Gen m b H, Vienna, Austnz, informed us on 16 July 2009 that, pursuant to Sections 21 para. 1,

22 para. 1 sentence 1 item 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (AktG), the share apportioned to it of the voting nights in BayWa AG,
Arabellastrasse 4, 81925 Munich, Germany, exceeded the thresholds of 15%, 20% and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the
voting rights came to 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nghts, of which 8,389,785 voting nghts from registered shares with restncted transferability and
143,888 voting nghts from registered shares) on 15 July 2009 Of these voting nghts, 25 12% (8,533,673 voting rights, of which 8,389,785 voting
rights from registered shares with restricted transferability and 143,888 voting nights from registered shares) were apportionable to Raffeisen-
Holding GmbH, Niederosterreich-Wien reg Genm b H pursuant to Section 22 para 1 sentence 1 tem 1 of the German Securities Trading Act
(AKtG) These voting rghts were apportionable Rarffetsen-Holding GmbH, Niederosterreich-Wien reg Gen m b H wia 'LAREDQ’ Betelligungs
GmbH pursuant to Section 22 para. 1 sentence 1 item 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (AktG)

RWA Management, Service und Beteiigungen GmbH, Vienna, Austna, informed us on 10 May 2012 that, pursuant to Section 21 para. 1 of the
German Securities Trading Act (AktG), its share in the voting ights of BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, came to 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nghts}
on 15 July 2009 and that these voting nghts are apportionable to it via Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH (direct holder of the voting nghts) pursuant
to Section 22 para. 2 of the German Securities Trading Act (AktG)
We recerved the following additional information regarding these developments pursuant to Section 27a para. 1 of the German Securrties Trading
Act (AKiG)
1) Objectives of the acquisition
a) The acquisition of BayWa Aktiengesellschaft voting nghts serves to implement strategic goals,
b) RWA Management, Service und Beteligungen GmbH plans to cbtain additional voting nghts by means of acquisition or otherwise within
the next twelve months, but not te a significant extent, and mainly to prevent dilution of its existing voting rights,
¢) RWA Management, Service und Beteligungen GmbH currently does not intend to exercise any further-reacting influence on the
appointment of members of the 1ssuer’s administration, management and supervisgry bodies,
d) RWA Management, Service und Beteiligungen GmbH currently does not plan to implement any material changes to the company's capital
structure, particularly in view of the raho between equity and debt capital as well as dwvidend policies
2} Ongin of funds used for the acquisition
Insofar as the acquisition of the voting nghts occurred within the scope of the merger of RWA Verbundservice GmbH, the former wholly-
owned subsidiary of the reporting entity, with Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH, neither debt nor equity capital was used for the acquisttion of
BayWa Aktiengesellschaft voting nghts Any further small acquisitions concluded since the merger were paid with company funds

RWA Rarffersen Ware Austrnia Handel und Vermogensverwaltung eGen, Vienna, Austna, informed us on 10 May 2012 that, pursuant to

Section 21 para. 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (AktG), its share in the voting nights of BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, came to 25 12%
(8,533,673 voting nghts} on 15 July 2009 and that these voting rights are apportionable to it via Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH {direct holder of
the voting nghts) pursuant to Section 22 para. 2 of the German Secuntes Trading Act (AktG)

We recewved the following additional information regarding these developments pursuant to Section 27a para 1 of the German Securities Trading
Act (AKIG)
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1) Objectives of the acquisition
a) The acquisition of BayWa Aktiengesellschaft voting nghts serves to implement strategic goals,
b) RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austria Handel und Vermogensverwaltung eGen plans to obtain additional voting nghts by means of acquisition or
otherwise within the next twelve months, but not to a significant extent and mamnly to prevent dilution of its existing voting rights,
¢} RWA Rarffeisen Ware Austria Hande! und Vermogensverwaltung eGen currently does not intend to exercise any further-reachmg influence
on the appointment of members of the i1ssuer's administration, management and supervisory bodies,
d) RWA Rarffeisen Ware Austria Handel und Yermogensverwaltung eGen currently does not plan to implement any matenal changes to the
company's captal structure, particularly in view of the ratio between equity and debt capital as well as dadend policies
2} Onigmn of funds used for the acquisiion
Insofar as the acquisition of the voting rights occurred within the scope of the merger of RWA Verbundservice GmbH, the former wholly owned
subsidiary of the reporting entity, with Rarffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH, neither debt nor equity capital was used for the acquisition of BayWa AG
voting nghts Any further small acquisitions concluded since the merger were paid wath company funds

Correction of a voting nghts notfication from 16 July 2009

RWA Management, Service und Beteiigungen GmbH, Vienna, Austria, infformed us on 10 May 2012 that, pursuant to Section 21 para. 1 of the
German Securities Trading Act (AktG), the share of voting nights apportioned to 1t in BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, had exceeded the thresholds
of 15%, 20% and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting nghts came to 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nghts) on 15 July 2009
The share of voting nghts of 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nghts) 1s apporticnable to it via Rarffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH pursuant to

Section 22 para. 2 of the German Securities Trading Act {(AkiG)

Correction of a voting nghts notrfication from 16 July 2009

RWA Rarffersen Ware Austria Handel und Vermogensverwaltung eGen, Vienna, Austria, mformed us on 10 May 2012 that, pursuant to

Section 21 para 1 of the German Secunties Trading Act (AktG), the share of voting nghts apportioned to it in BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, had
exceeded the thresholds of 15%, 20% and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting nights came to 25 12% (8,533,673 voting
nghts) on 15 July 2009

The share of voting nghts of 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nghts) is apportionable to it wa Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH pursuant to Section 22
para. 2 of the German Secunties Trading Act (AktG)

Correction of a voting rnights notiication from 16 July 2002

Raiffeisen-Holding Niederosterreich-Wien registnerte Genossenschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Vienna, Austria, informed us on 10 May 2012 |
that, pursuant to Sechion 21 para, 1 of the German Secuniies Trading Act (AktG), the share of voting nights apportioned to it in BayWa AG, Munich, ,
Germany, had exceeded the thresholds of 15%, 20% and 25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting nghts came to 25 12%

(8,533,673 voting nghts) on 15 July 2009 |
This share in voting nghts of 25 12% (8,533,673 voting rights) i1s apportionable to 1t via the chain ‘LAREDQ' Beteihigungs GmbH, LEIPNIK- |
LUNDENBURGER INVEST Beteiligungs Aktiengesellschaft, Raiffersen Agrar Holding GmbH, Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH, the direct holder of '
BayWa AG voting nghts pursuant to Section 22 para. 1 sentence 1 item 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (AkiG)

Correction of a voting nghts nobification from 16 July 2009

‘LAREDOQ’ Beteihgungs GmbH, Vienna, Austria, mformed us on 10 May 2012 that, pursuant to Section 21 para. 1 of the German Securities
Trading Act (AktG), the share of voting nghts apportioned to it in BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, had exceeded the thresholds of 15%, 20% and
25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting rights came to 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nights} on 15 July 2009

This share in voting nights of 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nghts) 1s apportionable to it via the chain LEIPNIK-LUNDENBURGER INVEST
Betergungs Aktiengeselischaft, Rarffeisen Agrar Holding GmbH, Rarffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH, the direct holder of BayWa AG voting nghts
pursuant to Sactton 22 para, 1 sentence 1 tem 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (AktG)

Correchion of a voting rights notification from 16 July 2009

LEIPNIK-LUNDENBURGER INVEST Betelligungs Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna, Austria, informed us on 10 May 2012 that, pursuant to

Sechoen 21 para. 1 of the German Secunties Trading Act (AktG), the share of voting nghts apportioned to 1t in BayWa AG, Munich, Germany, had
exceeded the thresholds of 15%, 20% and 25% on 15 July 2008 and that the whoie share in the voting nghts came to 25 12% (8,533,673 voting
nghts} on 15 July 2009

This share In voting nghts of 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nghts) 1s apportionable to 1t via the chain Raiffeisen Agrar Holding GmbH, Raiffeisen
Agrar Invest GmbH (the latter being the direct holder of BayWa AG vohng nghts) pursuant to Section 22 para. 1 sentence 1 item 1 and

Section 22 para. 2 of the German Securntties Trading Act (AktG)

Correction of a voting nghts notification from 16 July 2009

Raiffessen Agrar Holding GmbH, Vienna, Austna, informed us on 10 May 2012 that, pursuant to Section 21 para. 1 of the German Securities
Trading Act (AktG), the share of voting rights apportioned to it in BayWa AG, Murich, Germarny, had exceeded the thresholds of 15%, 20% and
25% on 15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting rights came to 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nghts) on 15 July 2009
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Thus share in voting nights of 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nights) 1s apportronable to it via Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH pursuant to Section 22
para. 1 sentence 1 tem 1 and Section 22 para. 2 of the German Secunties Trading Act (AktG)

Correction of a voting nghts notification from 16 July 2009

Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH, Vienna, Austnia, informed us on 10 May 2012 that, pursuant to Section 21 para. 1 of the German Secuntes Trading
Act (AktG), the share of voting nghts apportioned to it in BayWa AG, Mumich, Germany, had exceeded the thresholds of 15%, 20% and 25% on
15 July 2009 and that the whole share in the voting nghts came to 25 12% (8,533,673 voting nights} on 15 July 2009

(E.6.) Related party disclosures

Under IAS 24, related parties are defined as compames and indiwviduals where one of the parties has the possibility of controlling the other or of
exerting a significant influence on the financial and business policies of the other

A significant influence within the meaning of 1AS 24 1s constituted by participation in the financial and operating policies of the company, but not
the control of these policies Significant influence may be exercised in several ways usually by representation on the management board or onthe
management and/or supervisory bodies, but also by participation, for instance, in the policy-making process through material intra-Group
transactions, by interchange of managenal personnel or by dependence on technical information Signsficant influence may be gained by share
ownership, statute or contractual agreement With share ownership, significant influence i1s presumed in accordance with the definiion under

1AS 28 (Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures [2011]) if a shareholder owns 20% or more of the voting nights, either directly or indirectly,
unless this supposition can be clearly refuted Significant influence can be deemed irrefutable if the policy of the company can be influenced, for
instance, by the corresponding appointment of the members to the supervisory bodies

In relation to the shareholder group of BayWa AG, the holdings of Bayerische Raiffeisen-Beteligungs-AG, Beilngnes, Germany, as well as
Rarffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH, Vienna, Austria, mean that they can exert significant influence on BayWa AG These companies are, therefore, to
be classified as related parties In addition to dvidend payments of BayWa AG to Bayensche Raiffeisen-Beteilligungs-AG of €9 768 million
(2014 €9 022 mihion} and to Raiffeisen Agrar Invest GmbH of €6 965 million (2014 €6 510 million), no business transactions were carnied out
n the financial year 2015 withun the meanmg of IAS 24 which need to be reported here

Transactions with related parties are shown n the table below

Bayernsche Raiffessen-
In € mullion The Board of Beteiligungs-AG and Non-consohdated Non-consolidated companies
2015 The Supervisory Board Management Raffeisen Agrar Invest companies > 50% > 20% < 50%
Recenables 0 0 Q 10 14
Liabiities 0 0 ] 5
Interest income 0 [} 4] 4] 0
Interest expenses o] 4] 0 0
Revenues 0 [+ 0 10 51

Bayensche Raffeisen-
In € million The Board of Betelhigungs-AG and Non-consolidated MNon-consclidated compantes
2014 The Supervisory Board Management Rauffeisen Agrar Invest companies > 50% > 20% < 50%
Recervables 0 0 [} 8 3
Lrabiities 0 0 o 3 25
Interest income 0 0 0 0 [
Interest expenses 0 0 o] 0 [
Revenues 0 o] o 8 83
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The transactions conducted with related parties predominantly pertain to the sale of goods

Members of the Board of Management or of the Supervisory Board of BayWa AG are members in supervisory boards or board members of other

companies with which BayWa AG maintains business relations in the course of normal business

(E.7.) Fees of the Group auditor

The following fees paid to the Group auditor Delartte & Touche GmbH Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft were recognised as expenses at

BayWa AG and its subsidiaries

In € milhen 2015 2014
For audits performed 0854 0794
For other consuftancy services 0044 0017
For tax consuttancy serices - 0045
For other senvices 0054 0006
0952 0862
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(E.8.) Executive and supervisory bodies of BayWa AG

THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Manfred Nussel
MSc Agriculture (University of Applied Sciences), Chairman,
President of Deutscher Raiffeisenverband e V

Other mandates

»  AGCO GmbH, Marktoberdorf, Germany

= Bayenische Rafffeisen-Beteihgungs-AG, Beilngnes, Germany
{Chairman)

» Deutscher Genossenschafts-Verlag eG, Wiesbaden, Germany

*  KRAVAG-SACH Versicherung des Deutschen Kraftverkehrs VaG,
Hamburg, Germany

*  Landwirtschaftiiche Rentenbank, Frankfurtam Main, Germany
{Board of Administration)

« Ralffeisendruckerer GmbH, Neuwied, Germany (Chairman)

= R+VVereinigte Tierversicherung Geselischaft a.G , Wiesbaden,
Germany (Vice Chairman)

«  RWA Ralffeisen Ware Austria AG, Vienna, Austna

Klaus Buchleitner

Vice Chairman

Managing Director of Raiffeisen-Holding Niederosterretich-Wien
reqg Gen m b H and Raiffeisenlandesbank Niederosterreich-Wien AG

Other mandates

*  AGRANA Beteligungs-Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna, Austria
(Second Vice Chairman)

= LEIPNIK-LUNDENBURGER INVEST Betethgungs
Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna, Austria

= Niederosterreichische Versicherung AG, St Polten, Austna

*  NO Kulturwirtschaft GesmbH , St Polten, Austna {until
9 March 2015)

= NOM AG, Baden, Austnia (Chairman)

* Raiffeisen Bank International AG, Vienna, Austria

» Raiffeisen Software GmbH, Vienna, Austna (Chairman since
10 December 2015, member since 20 November 2015)

* Raffeisen Zentralbank Osterreich AG, Vienna, Austna

»  Saint Louts Sucre S A, Pans, France (since 31 January 2015)

= Suddeutsche Zuckerrubenverwertungs-Genassenschafte G,
Gchsenfurt, Germany

Gunnar Metz
Vice Chasrman
Chairman of the Main Works Council of BayWa AG

160

Wolfgang Altmuller
MBA, Chairman of the Board of Directors of VR meine Raiffeisenbank
eG

Other mandates

= AERTICKET AG, Berlin, Germany (Chairmany)

» Bausparkasse Schwabisch Hall AG, Schwabisch Hall, Germany
(until 7 May 2015)

= Bayensche Raiffeisen-Beteligungs-AG, Beilngries, Germany

= D-RT Groep BV, Hoofddorp, The Netherlands (unti
30 October 2015)
Fiducta & GAD IT AG, Karlsruhe, Germany

«  RTKInternational S A, Bertrange, Luxembourg (Board of
Administration until 31 December 2015)

Theo Bergmann
Vice Charrman of the Main Works Council of BayWa AG

Renate Glashauser
Chairwoman of the Works Council, Agnicultural Equipment Eastern
Bavaria/Lower Bavaria region

Prof Dr h ¢ Stephan Gotz! (until 22 June 2015)
Associatton President and Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Genossenschaftverband Bayerne V

Other mandates

« Bayensche Raiffeisen-Beteligungs-AG, Beilngries, Germany

» Bayern-Versicherung Lebensversicherung AG, Munich, Germany
» DVB Bank SE, Frankfurt am Main, Germany

Monika Hohimeier
Member of the European Parlament

Peter Konig
Secretary of the Umon, ver di, Bavana
Other mandate

«  ADLER Modemarkte AG, Haibach, Germany

Stefan KraftM A

National Secretary of the Union, ver di-Bundesverwaltung

Michael Kuffner
Head of Occupationat Safety (EH & S}
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Dr Johann Lang
MSc Engineering, farmer

Other mandates

» Niederosterreichische Versicherung AG, St Polten, Austria

«  RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austria AG, Wien, Austria {Chairman)

*  RWARaffeisen Ware Austria Handel und
Vermogensverwaltung eGen, Vienna, Austria (Chairman)

Albrecht Merz (until 19 May 2015)
Retred bank director

Other mandate
+  Volksbank Stuttgart eG (Vice Chairman)

Wilhelm Oberhofer (since 6 August 2015 court
appointed)

Member of the Board of Management of Raiffetsen Kempten-
Oberallgau eG

Cther mandates

« Bayensche Rarffeisen-Beteiigungs-AG, Beilngnes, Germany
(Member of the Board of Management)

* BL E, Bau- und Land-Entwicklungsgesellschaft Bayern GmbH,
Munich, Germany (Chairman of the Supervisory Board)
Bayensche Beteligungsgeselischaft an der FIDUCIA GmbH &
Co KG, Beilngnes, Germany (Vice Chairman of the
Shareholders’ Committee)

- Bausparkasse Schwabisch Hall AG, Schwahisch Hall, Germany
{(Member of the Supervisory Board since 7 May 2015)

Joachim Rukwied

MSc Agnculture {University of Applied Saiences), farmer and
vintner, President of Deutscher Bauernverband e V and
Landesbauernverband in Baden-Wurttemberge V

Other mandates

» Buchstelle LBV GmbH, Stuttgart, Germarny (Charman)

= KW Bankengruppe, Frankfurt am Main, Germany (Board of
Administration)

= Landwirtschaftiche Rentenbank, Frankfurt am Main, Germany
{Charrman of the Board of Administration)

= Land-DATA GmbH, Vissethovede, Germany (Chairman)

» LBV-Unternehmensberatungsdienste GmbH, Stuttgart,
Germany (Charman of the Board of Admirustration)

» Messe Berlin GmbH, Berlin, Germany

= R+V Allgemeine Versicherung AG, Wiesbaden, Germany

= Sudzucker AG, Mannheim/Qchsenfurt, Germany

Josef Schraut
Head of Lubricant Sales, Vice Head of the Lubncant unit
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Monique Surges (since 19 May 2015)

Chief Executive Officer New Zealand German Business Association

Inc {(NZGBA), AHK New Zealand,
Treasurer New Zealand Europe Business Council (NZEBC),
Auckland, New Zealand

Werner Waschbichler
Charrman of the Works Council of BayWa Headquarters

THE COOPERATIVE COUNCIL

Manfred Geyer

Chairman

Chairman of the Board of Directors of RarffeisenVolksbank eG
Gewerbebank

Members pursuant to Article 28 para 5 of the Articles of
Association

Manfred Nussel
MSc Agniculture (University of Apphied Sciences), Vice Chairman,
President of Deutscher Raiffeisenverband e V

Dr Johann Lang
MSc Engineering, farmer

Other members

'

Michael Bockelmann

German public auditor, tax consultant, business graduate,
Association President and Charrman of Genossenschaftsverband
eV

Franz Breiteneicher
Managing Director of Rarffeisen-Waren GmbH Erdinger Land

Dr Alexander Buchel
Member of the Board of Directors of Genossenschaftsverband
Bayerne V

Rudoif Buttner (until 30 Apnl 2015)
Managing Director of Raiffeisen-Waren GmbH WetBenburg-
Gunzenhausen
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Albert DeB
Member of the European Parllament

Martin Empl
MSc Agriculture, farmer

Dr Roman Glaser
Charrman of the Board of Directors of Baden-
Wurttembergischer Genossenschaftsverband e V

Marcus Grauer (since 5 August 2015)
Managing Director of Raiffeisen-Waren GmbH lller-Roth-Gunz

Wolfgang Grubler
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Agrarunternehmen
“Lommatzscher Pflege" e G

Walter Heid|
President of Bayerischer Bauernverband

Franz-Xaver Hilmer
Managing Director of Rasffersenbank Straubing eG

Ludwig Hubauer
Farmer

Konrad Irtel

Spokesman of the Board of Directors of Volksbank
Raiffeisenbank Rosenheim-Chiemsee eG (until

31 December 2015)

Karlheinz Kipke
Chairman of the Beard of Directors of VR-Bank Coburg eG

Martin Korner
MSc Engineening (University of Apphied Sciences), farmer, frurt
farmer

Alfred Kraus
Managing Director of Rarffeisen-Handels-GmbH Rottal

Johann Kreitmeier
Chairman of Landeskuratonum fur pfianziiche Erzeugung in
Bayerne V

Franz Kustner
President of the Bayenscher Bauernverband, Upper Palatinate district
association

Wilhelm Oberhofer (until 6 August 2015)

Member of the Board of Directors of Bayerische Raiffeisen-
Beteilgungs-AG and Member of the Board of Directors of
Raiffeisenbank Kempten-Qberallgau eG

Alois Pabst (until 31 December 2015)
Economic adwvisor, farmer

Franz Reisecker
Ok -Rat Engineering, President of Landwirtschaftskarmmer
Oberosterreich, Farmer

Claudius Sexdl
Charrman of the Board of Directors of VR-Bank Rottal-inn eG

Gerd Sonnleitner
Farmer, former President of the European farmers’ association COPA,
the Deutscher Bauernverband and the Bayenischer Bauernverband

Angelika Schorer (since 5 August 2015}

Member of the State Assembly, Chairwoman of the Committee on
Food, Agriculture and Forestry in the State Assembly of Bavaria
(committee for agnculture)

Dr Hermann Starnecker
Spokesman of the Board of Directors of VR Bank Kaufbeuren-
Ostallgau eG

Wolfgang Vogel
President of Sachsischer Landesbauernverband e V

Rainer Whederer
Spokesman of the Board of Directors of Volksbank Raiffeisenbank
Wurzburg eG

Thomas Wirth
Spokesman of the Board of Directors of Raiffeisenbank im Stiftland eG

Maximihan Zepf
MBA, Member of the Board of Directors of Raffeisenbank
Schwandorf-Nittenau eG
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THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Prof Klaus Josef Lutz

{Chief Executive Officer)

Internatronalisation/Risk Management, BayWa Agn Supply & Trade
{BAST), Fruit, PR/Corporate Communications, Corporate Business
Development (Group strategy), Group Audit, Board of Management
Secretariat/Corporate Governance, Corporate HR {Personnel),
Corporate Marketing, Corporate Compliance, EPAD Economics and
Public Affairs Department, BayWa Foundation, Chairman of executive
and supervisory committees of the international agnculture and fruit
holdings

External mandates

= Giesecke & Devrient GmbH, Munich, Germany (Chairman of the
Supervisory Board and the Adwisory Board since
22 September 2015)

* Euro Pool System International B V, Ryswijk, The Netherlands
{(Member of the Supervisory Board )

Group mandates

=  RWA Rarffeisen Ware Austria AG, Vienna, Austria (First Vice
Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

= T&G Global Limited (formerly Turners & Growers Limited),
Auckland, New Zealand {Chairman of the Board of Directors)

«  "UNSER LAGERHAUS" WARENHANDELSGESELLSCHAFT
m b H, Klagenfurt, Austria (Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

Andreas Helber

Finance, Corporate Finance (M & A}, Bullding Matenials Segment,
Corporate Credit Management, Corporate Real Estate Management
(CREM), Corporate Controlling, Information Systems {RI-Solution},
Law, Business Senvices, Investor Relations, IT Coordination Center
(ICC), Corporate Insurance, CFQ Projects, CFO Agniculture, Member
of the executive and supervisory committees of the international
agriculture and fruit holdings

External mandate

«  R+V Pensionsversicherung a.G , Wresbaden, Germany (Member
of the Supervisory Board)

Group mandates

= BayWare USALLC, Witmmgton (Delaware), USA (Member
of the Board of Directors until 7 October 201 5)

«  RWA Rarffeisen Ware Austria AG, Vienna, Austnia (Third Vice
Charrman of the Supervisory Board)

= T&G Global Limited {formerly Turners & Growers Limited),
Auckiand, New Zealand {Member of the Board of Directors)

« "UNSER LAGERHAUS" WARENHANDEL SGESEL L SCHAFT
m b H, Klagenfurt, Austria (Member of the Supervisory Board)
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Dr Josef Krapf (until 21 March 2015)
Executve and supervisory committees of the international agriculture
holdings, Agncultural Trade

External mandate
» Suddeutsche Zuckerrubenverwertungs-Genossenschaft eG,
Ochsenfurt, Germany (Member of the Supervisory Board)

Group mandate
«  RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austria AG, Vienna, Austna (Member
of the Supervisory Board)

Roland Schuler

(since 1 April 2015)

BayWa Agn Services (Agricultural Equipment, Smart
Farming/Internationalisation Agn Services, BayWa Agrar Vertrieb),
Chairman of the executive and supervisory commuttees of the
international agneuttural services holdings (until 31 March 2015}
Energy, Agricultural Equipment, Renewable Energies business sector
(BayWar e renewable energy GmbH), Charrman of executive and
supervisory committees of the international energy holdings

External mandate
= Suddeutsche Zuckerrubenverwertungs-Genossenschait eG,
Qchsenfurt, Germany (Member of the Supervisory Board)

Group mandates

= BayWare USA LLC, Wilmington {Delaware), USA (Chairman
of the Board of Directors until 1 July 2015)

= BayWare Wind, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA (Member
of the Board of Directors until 1 July 2015)

»  RWA Raffersen Ware Austria AG, Vienna, Austna (Member
of the Supenvisory Board since 10 Apnl 2015)
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Matthias Taft (since 1 Apnl 2015) Reinhard Wolf
Energy, the renewable energies business (BayWar e renewable RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austria AG, Vienna, Austria
energy GmbH}, Corporate Logistics & Supply Chain, Chairman of
executive and supervisory committees of the international energy External mandates
holdings * Raffeisen Zentralbank Osterreich Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna,
Austria (Member of the Supervisory Board)
Group mandates = Niederosterreichische Verkehrsorgamsationsgesellschat mbH,
= BayWare AsiaPacific Pte Ltd, Singapore, Republic of Singapore St. Polten, Austria (Member of the Supervisory Board)
(Chairman of the Board since 3 November 2015}
« BayWare USALLC, Wilmington {Delaware), USA (Chairrman Group mandates
of the Board since 1 July 2015) * Garant - Tiernahrung Gesellschaft m b H, Pochlarn, Austria
- BayWare Wind LLC, Wilmington {Delaware), USA (Member {Charrman of the Supervisory Board)
of the Board of Directors) = Raffeisen-Lagerhaus GmbH, Bruck an der Leitha, Austna (Vice
» BayWare Solar Projects LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA Chairman of the Supenvisory Board)

{Member of the Board of Directors)

« BayWare Scandinavia AB (formerly HS Kraft AB), Malmo,
Sweden (Member of the Supervisory Board)

» BayWare Nordic AB (formerly BayWare Scandinavia AB),
Malmo, Sweden {Member of the Supervisory Board)

=  RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austnia AG, Vienna, Austna (First
Replacement Member of the Supervisory Board since
10 April 2015)

= Managing Director of BayWar e renewable energy GmbH, Munich,
Germany

Allocation of operations as at 31 December 2015
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(E.9.) Total remuneration of the Board of Management, the Supervisory Board and the
Cooperative Council

The remuneraton of the Cooperative Council amounts to €0 125 million (2014 €0 131 milion) The total remuneration of the Supervisory Board
comes to €0 686 million (2014 €0 686 million), of this amount €0 369 million (2014 €0 351 million) 15 vaniable In addition to Supervisory
Board remuneration, employee representatives who are employees of BayWa Group receve compensation not connected to their activities for
the Supervisary Board The sum total of such compensation received by the employee representatives came to €0 488 million (2014

€0 454 milhon) Total remuneration of the Board of Management comes to €6 326 milhon (2014 €6 519 milhion) and breaks down as foliows

In € million 2015 2014
Tota! remuneration of the Board of Management §326 8519
of which
ongeing remuneration 4997 5006
non-cash benefits 0224 0283
transfers to pension provision 1105 12330

benefits upon termination of the employment relationship — —

The angoing remuneration of the Board of Management 1s split up into

fixed salary components 2734 2706
vanable salary components - short-term 1012 1050
variable salary components - long-term 1250 1250

An amount of €3 360 million (2014 €3 255 milhon) has been paid out to former members of the Board of Management of BayWa Group and
their dependents Pension provisions for former members of the Board of Management are disclosed in an amount of €49 348 millton
(2014 €49 778 million)

In its meeting on 19 May 2015, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders passed a resclution pursuant to Section 286 para. 5 of the German
Commercial Code (HGB) to the effect that, in the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and of BayWa AG, the information required
under Section 285 sentence 1 tem 9 letter a sentences 5 to 8 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) and pursuant to Section 314 para. 1

item 6 letter a sentences 5 to 8 of the German Commercial Code (HGB) in the notes to the financial statements at company and at Group leve!
shall be waived for the financial year 2015 and for the next four financial years

BayWa AG Cansoidated Financial Staterments 2015 165




Consolidated Financial Statements - Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stafements

(E.10.) Ratification of the consolidated financial statements and disclosure
The consohdated financial statements were released for publication by the Board of Management of BayWa AG on 24 March 2016

In accordance with Section 264 lll of the German Commercial Code (HGB), the following companies, as subsidiaries included in the consolidated
financial statements of BayWa AG, do not apply the regulations governing disclosure {(Sections 325 et seq of the German Commercial Code
{HGB))

« TESSOL Kraftstoffe, Mineralole und Tankanlagen Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Stuttgart, Germany

« BayWa Mandels-Systeme-Senace GmbH, Munich, Germany

« BayWa Pensionsverwaltung GmbH (formerly BayWa Finanzbetedigungs-GmbHj), Munich, Germany

= BayWa Agrar Beteshgungs GmbH, Munich, Germany

« BayWa Agrar Beteihgung Nr 2 GmbH, Munich, Germany

In accordance with Section 264b of the German Commercial Code (HGB), the following compamies, as subsichanes included in the consolidated
financial statements of BayWa AG, do not apply the regulations governing disclosure (Sections 325 et seq of the German Commercial Code
[HGB])
«  Bauzentrum Westmunsterland GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany
= BayWa Agn GmbH & Co KG, Mumich, Germany
«  BayWa Obst GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany
= CLAAS Main-Donau GmbH & Co KG, Vohburg, Germany
« CLAAS Nardosthayern GmbH & Co KG, Altenstadt, Germany
= FarmFacts GmbH & Co KG, Pfarrkirchen, Germany
* Ketziner Lagerhaus GmbH & Co KG, Ketain, Germany
= Aufwind BB GmbH & Co Bioenergie Dessau Sechzehnte KG, Regensburg, Germany
= Aufwind BB GmbH & Co Sechsundzwanzigste Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany
»  Aufwind BB GmbH & Co Zwewindzwanzigste Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany
= BayWar e Solardacher il GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany
* reBioenergie Betriebs GmbH & Co Zehnte Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany
* re Bioenergie Betniebs GmbH & Co Zwolfte Biogas KG, Regenshurg, Germany
» Schradenbiogas GmbH & Co KG, Groden, Germany
* Dorenhagen Windenergieanlagen GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany

Solarpark Aquarius GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany

Solarpark Aries GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany
» Solarpark Lupus GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany
*  Umspannwerk Klein Bunsdorf GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing (formerly Munich), Germany
«  Windpark Holle-Sillum GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany
*  Windpark Namborn GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing , Germany
*  Windpark Wilhelmshohe GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing , Germany
* WP OWD Infrastruktur GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany
= Windpark Berschweiler GmbH & Co KG (formerly Windpark GHN GmbH & Co KG), Grafelfing, Germany
»  Windpark Finkenbach-Gersweiller GmbH & Co KG {formerly Windpark GHN Grundstucksverwaltung GmbiH & Co KG), Grafelfing, Germany
= Windpark Hettstadt GmbH & Co K@, Grafelfing, Germany
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» . M

(E.11.) Proposal for the appropnation of profit

As the parent company of BayWa Group, BayWa AG discloses profit available for distribution of €36,306,528 30 in 1ts financial statements as at
31 December 2015 which were drawn up in accordance with German accounting standards (German Commercial Code - HGB) and adopted by
the Supervisory Board on 30 March 2016 The Board of Management and the Supervisory Board will propose the following use of this amount to
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on 7 June 2016

In€
Dnadend of €0 85 per dvdend-beanng share 2946341740
Carried forward to new account 6,843,11090

36,306,528 30

The amount earmarked for distribution to the shareholders will be reduced by the portion of the shares owned by BayWa AG at the ime when the
resolution on profit appropriation was made, as these shares are not entitled to dividend pursuant to Section 71b of the German Stock
Corporation Act (AktG) This portion will be transferred to other revenue reserves

(E.12.) German Corporate Governance Code

The Board of Management and the Supervisory Board of BayWa AG submitted the Declaration of Conformity pursuant to Section 161 of the
German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) on 4 November 2015 and have made it permanently accessible to the shareholders on the company’s
website at www baywa com

Munich, 24 March 2016
BayWa Aktiengesellschaft

The Board of Management

Prof Klaus Josef Lutz
Andreas Helber
Roland Schuler
Matthias Taft
Reinhard Wolf
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Group Holdings of BayWa AG
(Appendix to the Notes of the
Consolidated Financial Statements)

as at 31 December 2015

Share in capital
Name and principal place of business n %
Subsidianes included in the group of consolidated companies
"UNSER LAGERHAUS" WARENHANDELSGESELLSCHAFT m b H, Klagenfun, Austria 211
AFS Franchise-Systeme GmbH, Vienna, Austna 1000
Agrar- und Transportservice Kolleda GmbH, Kolleda, Germany 580
Agrarhandel Zussow Bohnhorst / Naeve Betellgungs GmbH, Zussow, Germany 1000
Agrosaatd o o, Ljubljana, Slovenia 1000
Agroterra Warenhandel und Beteiligungen GmbH, Vienna, Austna 1000
Alisea Sr 1, Rome, Italy 650
Aludra Energies SARL, Pans, France 1000
Amadeus Wind, LLC, Wilmington (Detaware), USA 1000
AMUR SL U, Bercelona, Spamn 1000
Apallo Appies (2014) Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
ArlenaEnergy Srl, Milan Italy 1000
Ashults Kraft AB, Malmo, Sweden 1000
Aufwind BB GmbH & Co Bioenergie Dessau Sechzehnte KG, Regensburg, Germany 100,0
Aufwind BB GmbH & Co Sechsundzwanzigste Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany 1000
Aufwind BB GmbH & Co Zwewundzwanzigste Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany 1000
Aufwind Schmack Els§ Biogéz Szolgéltatd Kft, Szarvas, Hungary 1000
Aurora Solar Projects, LLC, Dover (Delaware), USA 1000
AWS Entsorgung GmbH Abfall und Wertstoft Service, Luckau (formerly AWS Entsorgung GmbH Abfall & Wertstoff Service, Boppard),
Germany 1000
Bad und Heizung Krampfl GmbH, Platthng, Germany 700
Baltic Logistic Holding BV Rotterdam the Netherlands 1000
Bautechmk Gesellschaft m b H, Vienna, Austria 1000
Bauzentrum Westmunsterand GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
Bayerische FuttersaatbauGesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Ismaning, Germany 792
BayWa Agrar Betelligung Nr 2 GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa Agrar Beteriigungs GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa Agrar International B V , Rotterdam (formerly Amsterdam), the Netherlands 1000
BayWa Agrarhandel GmbH (formerty Bohnhorst Agrarhandel GmbH), Steimbke, Germany 1000
BayWa Agn GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa Agn Romania S rl, Bucharest, Romanma 90,0
BayWa Agro Poiska Sp z o o, Grodzisk Mazewreck, Poland 1000
BayWa Energie Drenstletstungs GmbH, Munich, Germany 100,0
BayWa Handels-Systeme-Service GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa Marketing & Trading International B v, Rotterdarn, the Netherlands 1000
BayWa Obst GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa Okoenergie GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa Pensionsverwaltung GmbH (formerly BayWa Finanzbeteiigungs-GmbH}, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWare 148 Projektgesellschaft mbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWa re 148 Projektgeselischaft mbM, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWare 203 Projektgesellschaft mbH Grafelfing {formerly Grunwald), Germany 1000
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Share in capital
Name and principal place of business n %
BayWare 205 Projektgesellschaft mbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWare 206 Projektgesellschaft mbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWare Asset Holding GmbH, Grafelfing Germany 1000
BayWare Asset Management GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWar e Biognergy GmbH, Regensburg, Germany 1000
BayWar e Development, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
BayWare EPC, LLC, Wirmnington (Delaware), USA 1000
BayWare Espafa 5 LU, Barcelona, Span 1000
BayWare France SAS, Pans, France 1000
BayWar e Green Energy Products GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWare Hellas MEPE, Athens, Greece 1000
BayWare Italia Srl, Mian, italy 1000
BayWare Japan KK Tokyo Japan 1000
BayWare Mexico, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
BayWar e Nordic AB (formersly BayWare Scandinavia AB), Malma, Sweden 1000
BayWare Operation Services GmbH Munchen (formerly Sotarmarkt Deutschland GmbH, Schwabisch Hall), Germany 1000
BayWare Polska Sp z oo, Warsaw, Poland 1000
BayWare renewable energy GmbH, Munich, Germany . 1000
BayWare Rotor Service GmbH, Basdahl Germany 1000
BayWar e Rator Service Holding GmibH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWare Rotor Service Vermogensverwaltungs GmbH, Basdahl, Germany 1000
BayWare Scandinavia AB {(ehemals HS Kraft AB), Malmo, Sweden 760
BayWare Solar Energy Systemns GmbH (formerly BayWar e Solarsysteme GmbH), Tubingen, Germany 1000
BayWar e Solar Projects GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWare Solar Projects LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
BayWar e Solar Systems LLC {formerly Focused Energy LLC), Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
BayWare Solar Systems Ltd , Machynlleth, UK 900
BayWare Solardacher | GmbH & Co KG, Grafeling, Germany 1000
BayWare Solarsystemer ApS, Svendborg, Denmark 1000
BayWare UK Limited, London, UK 1000
BayWare USA LLC, Wilmington {Delaware), USA 1000
BayWa r e Wind GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWare Wind Verwaltungs GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWare Wind, LLC, Wilmington {Delaware) LSA 950
BayWare Windpark Arlena GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Baywar e Windpark Gravina GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWar e Windpark Guastla GmbH, Grafelfing Germany 1000
BayWare Windpark San Lupo GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1600
BayWa re Windpark Tessenano GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWa re Windpark Tuscania GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
BayWa Ravano Operation Services 511, Genoa, ltaly 875
BayWe Rus LLC, Moscow, Russa 1000
BayWa Ukrane LLC, Kiev, Ukraine 1000
BayWa Verariberg HandelsGmbH, Lauterach Austria 510
Berryfrut New Zealand Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
BGA Bio Getreide Austria GmbH, Vienna, Austra 1000
Biogas Meden Ltd, London, UK 1000
Biomethananlage Welbeck GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Bish (Holdings} Limited, London, UK 1000
Bishopthorpe Wind Farm Limited, London, UK 1000
BOR s.ro, Chocen, Czech Republic 928
Brahms Wind Hoidings, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware}, USA 100,0
Breathe Energia in Movimento S r L, Potenza, Italy 500
Burkes Agencies Limited, Glasgow, UK 1000
BW DSG, LLC (formerty Vivaldi Wind, LLC) Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
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Share In capital

Name and pnincipal place of business In %
Carnemough Solar Project Limited, Londen, UK 1000
Cefetra BV, Rotterdam, the Netherlands 1000
Cefetra Feed Service BV, Rotterdam, the Netherlands 1000
Cefetra Hungary Kft, Budapest, Hungary 1000
Cefetra lberica S L U, Porzuelo de Alarcon, Spain 1000
Cefetra Limited, Glasgow, UK 1000
Cefetra Polska Sp z o o, Gdynta, Poland 1000
Cefetra S p A, Rome, Italy 1000
Cefetra Shipping B V, Rotterdam, the Netherlands 1000
Chopin Wind, LLC, Wilmington {Delaware), USA 1000
CLAAS Main-Donau GmbH & Co KG, Vohburg, Germany 900
CLAAS Nordostbayern GmbH & Co KG, Altenstadt, Germany 900
CLAAS Sudostbayern GmbH, Taging am Inn, Germany 900
CLAAS Wurttemberg GmbH, Langenau, Germany 800
Cork Oak Salar LLC, Raleigh {North Caroiina), USA 1000
Cosmos Power S LU, Barcelona, Spain 1000
Delano Solar I, LLC, Wilmington {Delaware), USA 1000
Debca (Shanghai) Fruit Trading Ltd, Shanghas, People's Republic of China 1000
Dehca Australa Pty Ltd, Tullamarine {formerly Pakenham), Australia 1000
Dehca Domestic Pty Ltd, Tullamanne (formerly Pakenham), Australia 800
Delica Limrted, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Delica North Amenca, Inc, Torrance, USA 750
Diermeter Energie GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
Dorenhagen Windenergieanlagen GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
DRWZ-Beteligungsgeselischaft mbH, Munich, Germany 643
ECOwind do o, Zagreb, Croatia 1000
ECOWIND Handels- & Wartungs-GmbH, Kilb, Austra 900
EFL Holdings Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Eko-En Drozkow Sp z 0o 0, Zary, Poland 600
Eko-En Iwonicz 2 Sp z o o, Rezesow, Poland 750
Eko-En Kozmin Sp z o o, Poznan, Poland 1600
Eko-En Polanow 1 Sp z 00, Koszalin, Poland 750
Eko-En Polanow 2 $p z 0 0, Koszalin, Poland 750
Eko-En Skibno Sp z o o, Koszalin, Poland 750
Eko-En Zary Sp zo o, Zary, Poland 600
Eko-Energetyka Sp z o o, Rezesow, Foland 510
Energia Rinngvabile Pugliese S ri, Milan, Italy 1000
ENZA Fresh Inc, Seattle, USA 1000
ENZA Investments USA, Inc, Seattle, USA 1000
ENZA Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
ENZAFQQDS New Zealand Limited Auckland, New Zealand 1000
ENZAFRUIT {Hong Kong) Limted, Hong Kang, People’s Republic of Cluna 1000
ENZAFRUIT New Zealand {Continent) NV, Sint-Truiden, Belgium 1000
ENZAFRUIT New Zealand (UK) Limited, Luton, UK 1000
ENZAFRUIT New Zealand International Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
ENZAFRUIT PeruS A C, Lima, Peru 1000
ENZAFRUIT Products Inc , Wilmington (Delaware}, USA 1000
ENZASuntising (Holdings) Limited, Hong Kang, People’s Repubiic of China 510
Eohlica San Lupo S ri, Milan, taly 1000
EUROGREEN AUSTRIA GmbH, Mondsee, Austna 1000
EUROGREEN CZ s.ro, Jifetin pod Jedlovou, Czech Republic 1000
EUROGREEN GmbH, Betzdorf, Germany 1000
EUROGREEN Schwesz AG, Zuchwil, Switzeriand 1000
Ewind Sp z 0 0, Rezesow, Poland 750
F Url & Co Gesellschaft mbH Lannach, Austria 1000
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Share in capital
Name and principal place of business In %
FarmFacts GmbH & Co KG, Pfarrkirchen, Germany 1000
Fraisthorpe (Holding) Limited, Landon, UK 1000
Fraisthorpe Wind Farm Ltd , London, UK 1000
Fresh Food Exports 201 1 Limrted, Auckland (formaly Mangere), New Zealand 1000
Frucom Frutimport GmbH, Hamburg, Germany 1000
Frurt Bistributors Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Frutmark NZ Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Frutmark Pty Ltd, Mulgrave {formerly ENZACOR Pty Ltd, Pymbte), Australia 1000
Frutmark USA Inc, Seattle, USA 1000
Frutesa Chile Limtada, Santiaga de Chile, Chile 1000
Frutesa, George Town, Cayman Islands 1600
Furukraft AB, Malmo, Sweden 1000
FW Kamionka Sp z 0 o, Kamionka, Poland 1000
Garant - Tiernahrung Geselischaft m b H, Pochlarn, Austna 1000
GENOL Gesellschaftm bH & Co KG, Vienng, Austra 710
Ge-Tec GmbH, Lienz, Austria 1000
Great Lake Tomatoes Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Hafen Vierow - Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Hattung, Brunzow, Germany 500
Hallwood Logistics Lirmited, Glasgow, UK 1000
Haymaker (Homestead) Ltd , London (fermerty Eastbourne), UK 1000
Horticultural Corporation of New Zealand Limited, Auckland, New Zeafand 1000
immebilienvermietung Gesellschaft m b H, Traun, Austna 1000
INRG {Solar Parks) 14 Ltd, London, UK 1000
Invercargilt Markets Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Jannis Betelligungsgeseltschaft mbH, Munich, Germany 1000
Karl Theis GmbHM, Munich, Germany 1000
Kerffresh Growers Trust 2015, Kenkeri, New Zealand 630
Ketziner Lagerhaus GmbH & Co KG, Ketzin, Germany 1000
l.es Eckiennes de Saint Fraigne SAS, Pans, France 1000
Les Pointes Energies SARL, Pans, France 1000
LTZ Chemnitz GmbH, Hartmannsdorf, Germany 90,0
Lyngsasa Kraft AB, Malmo, Sweden 1000
MHH France SAS, Toulouse, France 990
Montjean Energies SARL, Pans, France 1000
Mozart Wind, LLC {formerty BayWar e Mozart, LLC), Wimmngtan (Delaware}, USA 1000
NLP Granger A82, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
NLP Velley Center Selar, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
Notch Peak Solar, LLC, Wilmingtan (Delaware), USA 1000
Parco Solare Smersalde S|, Brixen, ltaly 1000
Park Eohan Limanu S r |, Sibiy, Romania 990
Parque Ediico La Carracha S L, Zaragoza, Span 740
Parque Eclice Plana de Jarreta S L, Zaragoza, Span 740
PC-Agrar Informations- und Beratungsdienst GmbH, Pfarrkrchen Germany 100,0
Puterea Verde § r |, Sibiu, Romanma 753
Quelly Guenrouet Energles SARL, Panis, France 1000
r e Bioenergie Betnebs GmbH & Co Drelundzwanzigste Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany 1000
r e Bicenergie Betriebs GmbH & Co Vierundzwanzigste Btogas KG, Regensburg, Germany 1000
r e Bioenergie Betnebs GmbH & Co Zehnte Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany 1000
r e Bioenergie Betnebs GmbH & Co Zwalfte Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany 1000
Rarffeisen Agrod o o, Belgrade, Serbia 1000
Rarffessen Kraftfutterwerke Sud GmbH, Wurzburg, Germany 1000
Raffeisen Waren GmbH Nurnberger Land, Hersbruck, Germany 520
Rasfferisen-Agro Magyaroszdg Kit, Ikreny, Hungary 1000
Rarffetsen-Lagerhaus GmbH, Bruck an der Lertha, Austria 899
Rairffeisen-Lagerhaus Investibonsholding GmbH, Vienna, Austria 1000
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Share in capital
Name and principal place of business n %
Ravel Wind, LLC, Wilmington {Delaware), USA 1000
Real Power SL U, Barcelona, Spain 1000
Rembranct Van Rien Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
RENERCO GEM 1 GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
RENERCO GEM 2 GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
RENERCQ GEM 4 GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
renerco plan consult GmbH, Munich (formerly Creotecc GmbH, Freiburg im Breisgau), Germany 1000
Rianto Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
RI-Soluton Data GmbH, Vienna, Austna 1000
RI-Solution GmbH Gesellschaft fur Retas-intormationssysteme, Services und Losungen mbH, Muntch, Germany 1000
Rock Power S . U, Barcelona, Spain 1000
Rose & Crown Solar PY Limsted, London, UK 1000
RUG Rarffersen Umweltgesellschaft m b H, Vienna, Austria 750
RWA International Holding GmbH, Vierna, Austria 1000
RWA RAIFFEISEN AGRO d 0 0, Zagreb, Croatia 1000
RWA Raiffeisen Agro Romania S rl, Orfisoara, Romania 1000
RWA Raiffeisen Ware Austna Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna, Austna 500
RWA SLOVAKIA spol sro, Bratislava, Slovakia 1000
Ryfors Kraft AB, Malmo, Sweden 1000
Safer Food Technologies Limited, Auckland New Zealand 1000
Sant Congard Energies SAS, Pans, France 100
Samsonwind Wirtsnock GmbH, Thomatal, Austnia 800
Schradenbiogas GmbH & Co KG, Groden, Germany 8945
Sellindge Solar Limited, London, UK 1000
Sempol spol sro, Trnava, Slovakia 1000
SEP S AG Intersolatre 5 SNC, Mulhouse, France 1000
SESMP110 Lower House Solar Farm Limited, London, UK 1000
Shieldhall Logistics Limited, Glasgow, UK 1000
Sinclar Logistics Limited, Glasgow, UK 1000
Sjennebol Kraft AB, Malmo, Sweden 1000
Societe d'exploitation photovottarque du Midi Il SNC, Mulhouse, France 1000
Solarmarkt GmbH, Aarau, Switzerland 1000
Solarpark Aguanus GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
Salarpark Arnes GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
Solarpark Aston Clinton GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Saolarpark Homestead GmbH {formerly Solarpark Flrt GmbH), Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Lupus GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Lynt GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Vine Farm GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solesa Engineenng S r I, Turin, italy 1000
Status Produce Favona Road Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Stormon Energi AB Malmo, Sweden 1000
Studios Sotar 2, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
Studios Solar 3, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
Studios Solar 4, LLC, Wiimington (Delaware), USA 1000
Studios Solar 5, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware}, USA 1000
Studios Solar, LLC, Wilmington {Detaware), USA 1000
Sunflower Solar LLC, Raleigh {(Narth Carclina), USA 1000
Sunshine Movement GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
T&G Global Limited (formerty Turners & Growers Limited), Auckiand New Zeaand 737
T&G Vizzarn Farms Pty Ltd, Tullamarine (formerly Delica Pty Ltd, Pakenham), Australia 500
Taipa Water Supply Limited, Kenken, New Zealand 650
TechnikCenter Gnmma GmbH, Mutzschen, Germany 700
Tecno Spot - GmbH (formerly Tecno SpotSrl), Bruneck, [taly 1000
Tessennano Energy Sri, Milan, italy 1000
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Share in caprtal
Name and principal place of business n%
TESSOL Kraftstoffe, Mineralole und Tankaniagen Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Stuttgart, Germany 100,0'
Theil Rabver Energles SARL, Pans, France 1000
Tumers & Growers (Fit) Limited, Suva, Republic of Fip 709
Turners & Growers Fresh Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Turners & Growers New Zealand Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 1000
Turners and Growers Horticulture Limited, Auckland New Zealand 1000
Tuscania Energy S rl, Milan, [taly 1000
Umspannwerk Klein Bunsdorf GmbH & Co K@, Grafelfing (formery Munich), Germany 1000
Unterstutzungseinnchtung der BayWa Aktiengesellschaft in Munchen GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
URL AGRAR GmbH, Unterpremstatten, Austria 1000
VIELA Export GmbH, Vierow, Germany 740
Vine Farm Solar Wendy Ltd, London, UK 1000
Wagner Wind, LLC, Wilmington (Delaware), USA 1000
WAV Warme Austria VertnebsgmbH, Vienna, Austna 890
WealthCap Portfolio Finanzierungs-GmbH & Co KG, Grunwald, Germany 1000
Wessex Grain Ltd , Templecombe, UK 1000
Windfarm Fraisthorpe GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windfarm Lacedonia GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
windfarms ltaha S r L, Milan, ftaly 1000
Windpark Berschweiter GmbH & Co KG {farmerly Windpark GHN GmbH & Co KG), Grefelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark CreuBen Neuhof GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Finkenbach-Gerswesder GmbH & Co KG (formerty Windpark GHN Grundstucksverwaitung GmbH & Co KG), Grafelfing,
Germany 1000
Windpark Furstkogel GmbH, Kilb, Austna 1000
Windpark Hettstadt GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany - 1000
Windpark Hiesberg GmbH, Kilb, Austna 1000
Windpark Helle-Sillium GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Kamionka GmbH, Gratelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Kraubatheck GmbH, Kdb, Austna 1000
Windpark Melfi GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Namborn GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Wilhelmshohe GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Wingenfeld Energie GmbH, Hunfeld, Germany 10090
WP OWD Infrastruktur GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Subsidianes not included 1n the group of consolidated companies
"Danutert” Handelsgesellschaftm b M , Vienna, Austna 600
ABATIS Beteihgungsgesellschaft mbH, Dusseldorf, Germany 1000
Agrarproduktenhandel Gesellschaft m b H, Klagenfurt, Austna 1000
AGRO-CAD Software GmbH, GroBbardau OT Klemnbardau, Germany 1000
AGROMED AUSTRIA GMBH, Kremsmunster, Austna 800
Agro-Praperty Kit, Kecskemet, Hungary 1000
Bauzentrum Westmunsteriand Verwattungs-GmbH, Munich (formerly Ahaus), Germany 1000
BayWa Agrar Verwaltungs GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa Agn Argentina S.A, Crty of Buenos Aires, Argentina 1000
Baywa CS GmbH, Murich, Germany 1000
BayWa Finanzservice GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa InterOil Mineralolhandelsgesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWa Obst Verwaltungsgeselischaft mbH, Munich, Germany 1000
BayWar e Asia Pacific Pte Ltd, Singapore, Republic of Singapore 1000
BayWar e Bicenergy Betnebs GmbH, Regensburg, Germany 1000
BayWare Desarrollos Solares S de RL de CV, Mexico City, Mexico 1000
BayWar e Solar Pte Lid, Singapare, Republic of Singapore 1000
BayWare Solardacher | GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
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BayWa-Lager und Umschlags GmbH, Munich, Germany 1000
Biogasanlage Gesslingen GmbH & Co KG, Groden, Germany 1000
Bohnhorst Beteligungs-Geselischaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Niederer Flaming, Germany 1000
Bohnhorst Interhandel Sp z 0 o, Szcecin, Poland 760
Brands + Schnitzler Tiefbau-Fachhandel Verwaltungs GmbH, Monchengladbach, Germany 1000
Budge Haulage Limited, Templecombe, UK 1000
BW Solar 615 G K, Tokyo, Japan 1000
C L G Computerdienst fur Landwirtschaft und Gewerbe GmbH, Pfarrkirchen, Germany 1000
CefetraEste SL U, Pozuelo de Alarcdn, Spain 1000
Cefetra Norte S LU}, Pozuelo de Alarcdn, Span 1000
Cefetra Oeste S LU, Pozuelo de Alarcon, Spain 1000
Cefetra Sur S LU Pozuelo de Alarcédn, Spain 1000
Danugran Lagerei GmbH (formerly Danugrain GmbH), Krems an der Donay, Austna 60,0
ELG Energie Logistik GmbH, Munich {formerly Donau - Tanklagergesellschaft m bH , Deggendorf), Germany 1000
Eoliennes de la Benate SARL, Pans, France 1000
Erste Onshore Windkraft Beteligungsgesellschaft mbH, Oldenburg, Germany 1000
Eurogreen ttafia S r |, Milan, ltaly 510
FarmFacts Beteligungs GmbH, Pfarrkirchen, Germany 1000
GENGL Gesellschaft m b H, Vienna, Austna 710
Genol Vertniebssysteme GmbH, Vienna, Austna 1000
Graninger & Mayr Gesellschaft m b H , Vienna, Austria 1000
Green Answers GmbH & Co WP Vahibruch KG, Grafelfing, Gemany 1000
HERA Raiffeisen-Immobilien-Leasing Gesellschaft m b H, Vienna, Austna 510
Intersaatzucht GmbH & Co KG, Muruch, Germany 600
Intersaatzucht Verwaltungs GmbH, Munich, Germany 600
K3 Agroinvest Srl, Orfispara, Romania 600
Lagerhaus e-Service GmbH (formerly FLE Handels- und Beteilligungs GrmbH}), Vienna, Austra 1000
Lesia a.s., StraZnice, Czech Repubiic 1000
Magyar "Agréar-Haz" Kft , Székesfehérvar, Hungary 1000
MD-Betriebs-GmbH, Munich, Germany 80¢
NOB-Betnebs-GmbH, Muntch, Germany 800
Nuevos Parques Eélicos La Muela Al E, Zaragoza, Spain 1000
Fark Eolian Arlesem Sl Sibw, Romana 990
Park Eolian Solest Sr 1, Stbis, Romania 990
PATIS Beteilgungsgesellschaft mbH, Dusseldorf, Germany 1000
Raiffeisen Trgovinad 0 0, Lenart, Slovema 1000
Saatzucht Gleisdorf Gesellschaft m bH , Gleisdorf, Austria 667
Sant-Ferriol Energies SAS, Paris, France 1000
Schifffahrtsagentur GmbH, GroB Ludershagen, Germany 1000
Schradenbiogas Betriebsgesellschaft mbH, Groden, Germany 1000
Schradenbiogas Sp z 0 0, Wroctaw, Poland 1000
Solarpark Aldebaran GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
Sclarpark Cetus GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
Solarpark Gunes GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Horus GmbH Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Kinmel GmbH,Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Saiarpark Libra GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 10090
Solarpark Lugh GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Lugh Sp zo o Warsaw, Poland 1000
Solarpark Malina GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Malina Sp z 0 o, Warsaw Poland 1000
Solarpark Mitra GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Mitra Sp z 0 0, Warsaw, Poland 1000
Solarpark Pavo GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
Solarpark Perseus GmbH & Co KG Munich, Germany 1000
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Solarpark Samas GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Samas Sp z o 0, Warsaw, Poland 1000
Solarpark Sunna GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Solarpark Sunna Sp zZ o o, Warsaw, Poland 1000
Solarpark Tucana GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
Solarpark Wega GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
Sud-Treber GmbH, Stuttgart, Germany 1000'
Sunshine Bay GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
Sunshine Letin GmbH & Co KG, Murnich, Germany 1000
Sunshine South GmbH & Co KG, Munich, Germany 1000
Tierceline Energies SARL, Pans, France 1000
Tout Vent Energies SARL, Pans, France 1000
Vel de Moine Energies SARL, Paris, France 1000
WHG LIEGEN SCHAFT SYERWAL TUNG BETRIEBS GMBH, Klagenturi, Austna 1000
Wind Park Kotla Sp z 0 0, Warsaw, Poland 1000
Wind Park Lipnica Sp z 0 o, Nowy Targ, Poland 1000
Windfarm Bonwick GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windfarm Sewstern GmbH, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windkraft Beteligungsgesetischaft mbH, Dusseldorf, Germany 1000
Windpark Bad Berleburg GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windperk Bedesbach GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Cashagen GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Dissau GmbH & Co KG Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Hodenbachwald GmbH & Co KG {formerly Windpark Dabergotz GmbH & Co KG), Grateliing, Germany 1000
Windpark Jembke GmbH & Co KG, (formerty Wind park Selmsdorf IV GmbH & Co KG), Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Jettenbach GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Katzberg GmbH & Co KG, Grafetfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Klein Winternheirn Il GmbH & Co KG (formerty Windpark Hulsede GmbH & Co KG), Gratelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Langenlonsheim GmbH & Co KG (formerly Windpark Ratzingen GmbH & Co K@), Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Lauenbruck GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Molkenberg GmbH & Co KG, Grafeifing, Germany 1000
Windpark Olsberg GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Pferdsfeld GmbH & Co KG (formerly Windpark Bad Segeberg GmbH & Co KG), Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Reichwerler GmbH & Co KG (formerly Umspannwerk Obernwohlde GmbH & Co K@), Gratelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark SBG V GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Schmelz GmbH & Co KG (formerly WP GUG Infrastruktur GmbH & Co KG), Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Seershausen GmbH & Co KG (formery Windpark Unzenberg GmbH & Co KG), Grafeifing, Germany 1000
Windpark Uphuser Mark GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Wilhelmshohe Il GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Wimmelburg 3 GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Windpark Winterborn Il GmbH & Co KG (formerly Windpark Wessenstedt GmbH & Co KG), Grafelfing, Germany 1000
Yarta Sofar G K, Tokyo, Japan 1000
Associated companies included under the equity method
Agrimec Group BV, Apeldoom, the Netherlands 490
AHG- Autohandelsgesellschaft mbH, Horb am Neckar, Germany 480
Allen Blarr Properties Limited, Wellington, New Zealand 333
Apalla Foods Limited, Auckland, New Zeatand 500
Aufwind BB GmbH & Co Zwanzigste Biogas KG, Regensburg, Germany 1000
AUSTRIA JUICE GmbH, Allhartsberg (formerly Krollendorf), Austna 500
Baltic Grain Terminal Sp z 0 0, Gdynia, Poland 500
BayWa Bau- & Gartenmarkte GmbH & Co KG, Dortmund, Germany 500
BayWa Hechhaus GmbH & Ca KG, Grunwald (formerty Feldafing), Germany 990
BEEGY GmbH, Mannheim, Germany 251
BHBW Limited, Maidenhead, UK 500
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Share In capital
Name and principal ptace of business n %
Biomethananlage Barby GmbH, Barby (formerly Bioenergie Barby GmbH, Regensburg), Germany 251
Biomethananlage 5taBfurt GmbH Mannheim, Germany 251
BRB Holding GmbH, Munich, Germany 453
CRE Project Srl, Matera, ltaly 450
Dawid Oppenhesmer & Company |, LLC, Seattle, USA 150
Dawvid Cppenheimer Transport Inc., Wilmangton {(Delaware), USA 150
Deutsche Raiffeisen-Warenzentrale GmbH, Frankfurt am Main, Germany 378
EAV Energietechmsche Anlagen Verwaltungs GmbH, StaBfurt, Germany 490
Fresh Vegetable Packers Limited, Christchurch, New Zealand 41 4
Frisch & Frost Nahrungsmittel GmbH, Vienna, Austna 250
Heizkraftwerke-Pool Verwaltungs-GmbH, Munich, Germany 333
IFS Sr1, Bozen, Italy 510
LWM Ausina GmbH, Hollabrunn, Austna 250
McKay Shipping Limited, Auckland, New Zealand 250
Mystery Creek Asparagus Limited, Hamilton, New Zealand 14.5
NZ Kumara Dhstnbutors Limited, Dargawville, New Zealand 204
Raiffeisen Beteilligungs GmbH, Frankfurt am Man, Germany 474
Suddeutsche Geothermie-Projekte GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 500
Suddeutsche Geothermie-Projekte Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH, Grafeffing, Germany 500
‘Wawata General Parther Limited, Nelson, New Zealand 500
Worldwide Frutt Limited, Spalding, UK 500
1 Profit and loss transfer agreemeant
Associated companies and jont ventures of secondary importance not included under the equity method
Agrosen Holding GrmbH, Kremsmunster, Austna 300
Agro-Service-Groden GmbH, Groden, Germany 00
B L E, Bau- und Land-Entwicklungsgesellschaft Bayern GmbH, Munich, Germany 250
BayWa BGM Verwaltungs GmbH, Dortrmund, Germany 500
Bonus Holsystem fur Verpackungen GmbH & Co KG, Kufstein, Austria 260
Bonus Holsystem fur Verpackungen GmbH, Kuistein, Austria 260
BRVG Bayensche Raiffeisen- und Volksbanken Verlag GmbH, Munich, Germany 250
Chemag Agrarchemtkalien GmbH, Frankfurt am Main, Germany 333
DANUQIL Mineraloltager und Umschiags-Gesellschaft m b H, Vienng, Austra 500
DRWZ Marken GmbH Karlsruhe, Germany 328
EBULUM GmbH & Co Objekt Baunatal KG, Pullach im Isartal, Germany 040
ISTROPOL SOLARY as., Hormé Myto, Slovakia 298
Kamntner Saatbau e Gen , Klagenfurt, Austna 330
Kartoffel Centrum Bayern GmbH, Rain am Lech, Germany 500
Lagerhaus Technik-Center GmbH & Co KG, Korneuburg, Austna 341
Lagerhaus Technik-Center GmbH, Komeuburg, Austna 341
Land24 Gesellschaft mit beschrankter Haftung, Telgte, Germany 342
LLT - Lannacher Lager- und Transport GesmbH, Korneuburg, Austna 500
Logistkzentrum Rothlein GmbH & Co KG, Grafelfing, Germany 940
Mineralfutter-Produktionsgesellschaft mbH, Memmingen, Germany 500
QObst vom Bodensee Vertnebsgesellschaft mbH, Oberteuringen, Germany 475
00 Lagerhaus Solidantats GmbH, Linz, Austra 333
Projektentwicklung Windkraft Unterallgau GmbH & Co KG, Bad Wonshofen, Germany 313
Projektentwicklung Windkraft Unteraligau Verwaltungs GmbH, Bad Wonshofen, Germany 312
Rarffeisen - Landhandel GmbH, Emskirchen, Germany 234
Rarffetsen-Baywa-Waren GmbH Lobsing-Siegenburg- Abensberg-Rohr, Pforring / Lobsing, Germany 228
Sewstern Lane Wind Farm Limrted, Huddersfield, UK 500
VR erneuerbare Energien eG, Kitzingen, Germany 333
VR-LEASING DIVO GmbH & Co Immabihen KG, Eschborh, Germany a70
VR-LEASING LYRA GmbH & Co Immobilien KG, Eschbom, Germany 470
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Wind Park Belzyce Sp z 00, Warsaw, Poland 500
Participations in large corporations
Sudstarke Gesellschaft mnt beschrankter Maftung, Schrobenhausen, Germany
Equity in € thousand 126 814
Annual net income/loss in € thousand 259 65
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Affirmation by the Legally
“Authorised Representatives

We hereby affirm that, to the best of our knowledge and in ac-
cordance with the generally accepted accounting principles,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the net assets, financial position and the result of operations
of the Group, and that the Management Report on the Group
presents a true and fair description of the development of the
Group's business, including its performance, and of the mate-
rial nsks and opportunities inherent in the prospective devel-
opment of the Group

Munich, 24 March 2016

BayWa Aktiengesellschaft
The Board of Management

Prof Klaus Josef Lutz
Andreas Helber
Roland Schuler
Matthias Taft
Reinhard Wolf
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Independent Auditors’ Report

We have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared by BayWa Aktiengesellschaft, Munich — compnsing the balance sheet, the in-
come statement and statement of comprehensive income, the cash flow statement, the statement of changes in equity and the notes to the con-
solidated financial statements - and the group management report for the business year from 1 January to 31 December 2014 The preparation
of the consoclidated financtal statements and the group management report in accordance with IFRS, as adopted by the European Urnion (EU), and
the addtional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Section 315a para 1 German Commercial Code (HGB) and supplementary
provision of the articles of incorporation are the responsibility of the parent company's management. Qur responstbility 1s to express an opinion on
the consclidated finanoial statements and on the group management report based on our audit.

Woe conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Section 317 German Commercial Code (HGB) and German
generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statement promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprufer Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit such that rmisstatements matenally affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of
operations in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework and in the group management
report are detected with reasonable assurance Knowledge of the business actvities and the economic and legal environment of the group and
expectations as to possible misstatements are taken into account in the determination of audit procedures The effectiveness of the accounting-
related internal control system and the evidence supporting the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and the group management
report are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit The audit includes assessing the annual financial statements of
those entiies included in consolidation, the determination of enbties to be included in consolidation, the accounting and consolidation principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements and
the group management report We beheve that our audit provides a reasconable basis for our opimion

Qur audit has not led to any reservations

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audi, the consoldated financial statements of BayWa Aktiengesellschaft, Munich, comply with IFRS,
as adopted by the EU, the addibonal requirements of German commercial law pursuant to Section 315a para 1 German Commercial Code (HGB)
and supplementary provisions of the articles of incorporation and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of opera-
tions of the group 1n accordance with these requirements The group management report 1s consistent with the consclidated financial statements
and as a whole provides a suitable view of the group’s position and suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future development

Munich, 29 March 2016

Deloitte & Touche GmbH
Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft

(Gotz) (Tauber)
Wirtschaftsprufer Wirtschaftsprufer
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Report of the Supervisory Board

Faced by a globally challenging market envircnment with dechning pnices for raw matenals and agniculture produce, the BayWa Group achieved
successiul development in the reporting year 2015 and increased its operating result After a subdued start to the year during the first quarter, the
second quarter was marked by strong delay effects in agncultural trade and the project business of renewable energies Despite difficult under-
lying conditions in national agricultural trade, these delay effects were completely made up in the third quarter A good fourth quarter closed out
2015 Renewable energies, in particular, succeeded in making another impressive contribution to the BayWa Group’s overall performance

The Supervisory Board of BayWa AG has fulfilled the responsibility entrusted to it under the law, the Articles of Association and the bylaws It

regularly advised the Board of Management, coordinated the strategy with the Board of Management and supervised the latter in its management

of the company The common goal of the Board of Management and Supervisory Board is to raise the value of the company on a sustainable

basis The Board of Management always kept the Supervisory Board informed in a timely and comprehensive manner The Supervisory Board

was directly invotved in all decisions of fundamental importance to the company The measures requiring its approval were reviewed, and the

respective resolutions passed both in meetings and i writing by way of a circulation procedure Between the meetings, the Board of Management ‘
reported both in writing and in person on events of particular importance After thorough dehiberation and consultation, the Supervisory Board

made 1ts decisions on the reports and the resclutions put forward by the Board of Management. ‘

The Chairman of the Supervisory Board was kept informed about important decisions by the Board of Management on an ongoing basis and |
remained In close contact with the Chairman of the Board of Management. He was informed through regular detailed reports on the current

business situation The cooperation within the Supervisory Board and with the Board of Management in the reporting year 2015 was again

constructive and based on trust

Key points of consultation of the meetings of the Supervisory Board

Matters of consultation at the four regular meetings of the Supervisory Board in the financial year 2018 included the business and financial
development of the company, the performance of the individual business units, financial and investment planning, personnel-related decisions,
the nisk situation and questions of comphance, as well as the strategic development of the company |n particular, the Superviscry Board deliber-
ated on the participations entered into by BayWa AG during the period under review Moreover, the Supervisory Board addressed 1ssues pertain-
Ing to accounting and the audit of the annual financial statements of the company, as well as BayWa AG's nsk management and its risk position on
an ongoing basis Special attention was paid to the compliance monstoring at the Group The Board of Management reported regularly and
extensively on these issues as well as on the Group's current situation

Inits meeting on 25 March 2015, the Supervisory Board dealt mamnly with the annual financial statements and the management report on
BayWa AG and on the Group as at 31 December 2014 as well as with the report of the audits performed In addition, the Supervisory Board
consulted on the results of previous meetings held by the Audit Committee, the Lending and Investment Commitiee, the Strategy Commuttee,
the Nommation Committee and the Board of Management Commitiee The meeting aiso concentrated on the agenda for the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders on 19 May 2015, which included topics such as the proposal to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on the
election of a sharehotder representative to the Supenwisory Board Furthermore, strategic 1ssues within the BayWa Group were discussed At its
meeting, the Superviscry Board dealt with the vaniable salary components of Board of Management members for the financial year 2014 and
decided on the respective targets for the vanable salary compaonents for the financial year 2015 In addition, the Supervisory Board addressed in
depth the restructuring of the Board of Management functions, the departure of Board of Management member Dr Josef Krapf and the appoint-
ment of Board of Management member Matthias Taft. Other items on the meeting's agenda included a detailed report on the compliance system
and on an efficiency audst of the Supervisory Board which was performed

In the perted from 2 Apnito 8 April 2015, an amendment to the Declaration of Conformity pursuant to Section 161 of the German Stock Corpora-
tion Act (AktG) was resoived by way of a circulation procedure

Atits meeting on 6 May 2015, the Supervisory Board dealt with the intenm report for the first three months of 2015, as well as with the nsk
situation at the BayWa agricultural group and strategic issues in the agncultural sector Furthermore, chief representative Ito van Lanschot gave a
status report on the ongorng internationalisation of the agnicultural business

Atits meeting on 5 August 2015, the Supervisory Board addressed the interim report for the first half of 2015, among other things The Board of

Management also reported extensively to the Supervisory Board on market development, the development of the individual units, as well as on
the current risk situation at the BayWa agricultural group Furthermore, strategic issues concerning the BayWa Group, in particular at the BayWa
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agncultural group and in the fruit business, were discussed The Supervisory Board approved the appointment of Monique Surges as a member of
the Lending and Investment Committee following the departure of Albrecht Merz from the Supervisory Board The Board of Management
reported on the resignation of Prof Dr h ¢ Stephan Gotzl from his post on the Supervisory Board and on the Board of Management's petition
filed with the District Court of Murich to appoint Wilhelm Oberhofer to the Supeniisory Board After detailed consideration of the gender quota,
the Supervisory Board decided on a gender quota for the Board of Management of BayWa AG The Supervisory Board also approved the
appointment of two new members to the Cooperative Councit Lastly, the Supervisory Board adopted the resolution concerning the approval

of the terms and conditions for the 1ssuing of employee shares in 2015 within the scope of the 2015 authorised capital

An increase 1n share capital and a corresponding change to the Articles of Association on account of the 1ssuing of employee shares from the
2015 authonised capitai was decided by way of a circulation procedure in the peniod from 23 September to 6 October 2015

The interim report for the third quarter was presented at the meeting on 4 November 2015, and the Supervisory Beard discussed the develop-
ment of business in detail with the Board of Management. The Board of Management explained the develepment of business in the indwvidual
business units at length The internattonalisation strategy and nisk srtuation at the BayWa agnicultural group were presented in detall Furthermore,
the Supervisory Board was informed about the latest strategic projects in the BayWa Group and comphance 1ssues. The Supervisory Board also
consulted on the results of previous meetings held by the Audit Commuttee, the Lending and Investment Committee and the Strategy Committee
The Supervisory Board passed resolutions on the annual Declaration of Conformity to the German Corporate Governance Code and approved the
appontment of Wilhelm Oberhofer as a member of the Nomination Commitiee and the Strategy Committee Finally, the Supervisory Board
approved the extension of the terms of five members of the Cooperative Council

At the meeting convened to review the Group's accounts on 30 March 2016, the Supervisory Board dealt mainly with the annual financial state-
ments and the management report on BayWa AG and on the Group as at 31 December 2015, as well as with the report of the audits performed
The meeting also concentrated on the agenda of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held on 7 June 2016

Commuttees of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board has set up a total of six committees to enhance the efficiency of its work These committees prepare resolutions for the
Supemvisory Board and 1ssues to be discussed by the entire Supervisory Board To the extent permitted by law, decision-making powers of the
Supervisory Board were delegated to the committees on a case-by-case basis With the exception of the Audit Committee, the office of Chairman
in respect of all committees 1s held by the Chairman of the Supervisory Board The Supervisory Board was kept informed at ts meetings about the
work of the commuttees and therr resoiutions by the respective chairmen

Supenisory Board Chairman Manfred Nussel and the Supervisory Board members Wolfgang Altmuller, Klaus Buchleitner, Gunnar Metz and
Werner Waschbichler belong to the Audit Committee The Chairman of the Audit Committee 1s Wolfgang Altmuller BayWa AG has therefore
adopted the recommendation of the German Corporate Governance Code, which proposes that the Chairman of the Supervisory Board should
not hold the office of Chairman of the Audit Committee The Audit Committee held two meetings in the reporting year In the presence of the
wndependent audrtor, the Chairman of the Board of Management and the Chief Financial Officer, the commuttee discussed the separate financial
statements of BayWa AG and the consolidated financial statements for the financial year 2014, the report of management on the company and
the Group, as well as the audit reports at its meebing on 24 March 2015 Mareover, the statement declaring the independence of the independent
auditor pursuant to Code ltem 7 2 1 of the German Corporate Governance Code was obtained Resolutions on recommendations were drawn up
for the Supervisory Board to approve and adopt the separate financial statements and the consclidated financial staterments for 2014 and to
propose to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on 19 May 2015 that Deloitte & Touche GmbH Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft, Munich,
be elected as the independent audrtor for the financial year 2015

The meeting on 3 November 2015 dealt with the quarterly figures for the third quarter of 2015, the assignment of audit mandates and establish-
ing the key audit areas in respect of the 2015 annual financial statements and the audit fees

At its meeting on 29 March 2016, the Audt Committee also consulted on the choice of the independent auditor for the financial year 2016 and
recommended to the entire Supervisory Board that a proposal be put to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on 7 June 2016 in favour of
appointing Delortte & Touche GmbH Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft, Munich

Supervisory Board Chairman Manfred Nussel and Supenvisory Board members Gunnar Metz and Wolfgang Altmuller belong to the Board of
Management Committee The Board of Management Committee held ane meeting in the reporting year The Beard of Management Committee
concerned itself, in particular, with the restructuring of the Board of Management functions, the departure of Board of Management member

Dr Josef Krapf and the appointment of Matthias Taft to the Board of Management. It also provided the Supervisory Board with recommendations
on the vanable and fixed components of Board of Management member remuneration, as well as Board of Management members’ mandates

Supervisory Board Chairman Manfred Nussel and the Supervisory Board members Gunnar Metz, Prof Dr h c. Stephan Gotzl (to 22 June 2015),
Witheim Oberhofer (from 4 November 2015), Dr Johann Lang, Joachim Rukwied, Michael Kuffner and Werner Waschhbichler belong to the
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Strategy Committee The Strategy Committee met twice in the reporting year and concentrated mainly on the detailed preparation of Supenasory
Board meetings In addition, it discussed the company’s strategy alignment, as well as current business projects and investment plans

Supervisory Board Charrman Manfred Nussel and the Supervisory Board members Monika Hohlmeier, Dr Johann Lang, Albrecht Merz (to

19 May 2015), Monique Surges {from 5 August 2015), Theo Bergmann, Renate Glashauser and Josef Schraut belong to the Lending and Invest-
ment Committee The Lending and Investment Committee held two meetings in the reporting year The committee monitored investment
activities and reviewed lending activibies and credit exposures in ine with the authorisations 1t has been granted Beyond this, the committee dealt
with the settlement of the 2014 investment budget, and the investment budgets for 2015 and 2016

Supervisory Board Chairman Manfred Nussel, Dr Johann Lang and, from 4 November 2015, Mr Wilhelm Qberhofer belong to the Nomination
Committee Prof Dr h c Stephan Gotzl resigned on 22 June 2015 The committee is tasked with submiting recommendations to shareholder
representatives on the Supervisory Board for proposals of shareholders for the election of Supervisory Board members by the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders The Nomination Committee held one meeting in the reporting period, on 19 lanuary 2015

Supervisory Board Charman Manfred Nussel and the Supervisory Board members Gunnar Metz, Monika Hohlmeler and Werner Waschbichler
belong to the Mediation Committee, set up pursuant to Section 27 para. 3 of the German Codetermination Act (MitbestG) The committee was
not convened in the financial year 2015

Corporate Governance

Recogmsing the important contribution that corporate governance makes to the transparent and responsible management of the company, the
Supervisory Board regularly deliberates on refated matters More information on corporate governance can be found in the Statement on Corpo-
rate Governance Details concerning the amount and structure of remuneration recerved by the Supervisory Board and the Board of Management
can be found in the Group management report

With respect to the recommendations of the German Corporate Governance Code in the version dated 24 June 2014, the Supervisory Board
decided on an amendment to the Declarabon of Conformity pursuant to Section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act {(AktG) by way of a
circulation procedure in the penod from 2 April to 8 April 2015 With very few exceptions, the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board
also adopted at its meeting on 4 November 2015 the recommendations of the German Corporate Governance Code in the version dated 5 May
2015 The Declaration of Conformity pursuant to Section 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) 1s included in the Statement on
Corporate Governance pursuant to Section 289a of the German Commercial Code (HGB) It has also been posted on the company's website at
www baywa.com under Investor Relations

All members of the Supervisory Board participated in at least half of the Supervisory Board meetings held dunng the reporting period

Members of the Board of Management and of the Supervisory Board report any conflicts of interest without defay to the Supervisory Board In the
financial year 201 5, there were no conflicts of Interest in respect of members of the Board of Management or members of the Supervisery Board

Audit of the separate financial statements and the consolidated financial statements

The separate financial staternents of BayWa AG and the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year 2015, as well as the
management report on BayWa AG and on the Group, have been audrted by Munich-based Deloitte & Touche GmbH Wirtschaftsprufungsgesell-
schaft, and each was 1ssued an unqualified audit optnton

At its meeting on 30 March 20186, the Supervisory Board carefully examined the financial statements of BayWa AG, drawn up by the Board of
Management in accordance with the German Commercial Code, and the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the additionally applicable standards set out under Sechon 315a of the German Commer-
cial Code (HGBY), as well as the management report on BayWa AG and on the Group for the financial year 2015 and discussed them in detail in
the presence of the external auditor and the Board of Management. The key points of the 2015 audits as defined by the Audit Committee were
also discussed extensively All audit reports and documentation pertaining to the financial statements were made availabie to all Supervisory
Beard members in good tme The Supervisory Board concurred with the findings of the financial statements audnt at its meeting on 30 March
2016 The auditreports and the documentation on the financial statements were previously the subject of in-depth deliberation by the Audt
Committee at its meeting on 29 March 2016 The Audit Commuittee discussed the separate financial statements and the consolidated financiat
statemnents, the management report on the company and the Group, the audit reparts, as well as the proposal for the appropnation of profit in the
presence of the external auditor at its meeting on 29 March 2016 In accordance with the conclusive findings of the review by the Supervisory
Board, no objections were raised against the financial statements The Supervisory Board therefore ratified the separate financial statements of
BayWa AG and the consolidated financial statements of the BayWa Group on 30 March 2016, which are hereby adopted

The proposal of the Board of Management on the appropriation of profit available for distribution through paying a dvidend of €0 85 per share
has been reviewed and approved by the Supenvisory Board
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During the Supervisory Board meeting on 30 March 20186, the external auditor also reported that there were no substantial weaknesses in the
internal control system and the risk management system in respect of the accounting process The Board of Management has thus taken ali the
appropnate measures to fulfil its obligations in this regard

Changes to the Supervisory Board and to the Board of Management

Shareholder representative Albrecht Merz resigned from his position as a member of the Supervisory Board effective as at of the end of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on 19 May 2015 Monigue Surges was elected to the Supervisory Board by the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders on 19 May 2015 Prof Dr h ¢ Stephan Gotzl resigned from his position as member of the Supervisory Board effective 22 June
2015 On 6 August 201 5, Wilhelm Oberhofer was appointed to the Supervisory Board by the Distnict Court of Munich upon petition by the Board
of Management of BayWa AG The Supervisory Board would like to thank Mr Merz and Prof Dr h ¢. Stephan Gotzl for their constructive involve-
ment and harmonious cooperation

The Supervisory Board thanks the members of the Board of Management, the employees as well as the employee representatives of BayWa AG
and all Group companies for therr work Thewr dedicated commitment once again contributed to BayWa AG's success in the financial year 2015

Mumich, 30 March 2016
On behalf of the Supervisory Board

Manfred Nussel
Chairrman
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Corporate Governance Report / Statement on
Corporate Governance pursuant to Section 289a
German Commercial Code (HGB)

DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY PURSUANT TO SECTION 161 OF THE GERMAN STOCK
CORPORATION ACT (AKTG)

The Board of Management and the Supenasory Board of BayWa AG submitted the most recent Declaration of Conformity pursuant to Sec-

tion 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG) on 5 November 2014, revised on 8 Aprit 2015 The Board of Management ard the Supervi-
sory Board of BayWa AG declare that the recommendations of the "Government Commission on the German Ceorporate Governance Code” in the
version dated 5 May 2015 (published n the German Federal Gazette on 12 June 2015, herenafter referred to as the “GCGC")

have been and will be complied with, with the exception of the following

1 Deductible under the D&O insurance for members of the Supervisory Board - Code Item 3 8 para. 3 GCGC
In Code ltem 3 8 para. 3, the GCGC recommends a deductible to be provided for when a Directors & Officers {D&O) insurance policy 1s
taken out for members of the Supervisory Board BayWa AG has concluded a D&0O nsurance policy on behalf of the members of the
Supervisory Board that does not provide for a deductible in respect of its members BayWa AG 1s not of the opimion that the motivation
and the responsibility with which the members of the Supervisory Board discharge therr duties would be improved by having a deduct-
ble in the D&O insurance policy

2 Setting the targeted level of benefits, taking into account the length of service on the Board of Management —
Code ltem 4 2 3 para 3 GCGC
The Supervisory Board of BayWa AG appomnted Mr Matthias Taft as a member of the Board of Management with effect from 1 Apri
2015 The members of the Supervisory Board discussed and set Mr Taft's targeted level of benefits Mr Taftwill recerve a fixed pension
from BayWa AG, which i1s not dependent on the length of his service on the Board of Management The Supervisory Board believes this
arrangement s appropriate in view of Mr Taft's many years at the BayWa Group It should be noted that the employer-funded insurance
policies and pension commitments previously concluded for the benefit of Mr Taft by the Group companies of BayWa AG have been
discontinued

3 Severance payment cap — Code ltem 4 2 3 para 4 GCGC
In Code Item 4 2 3 para. 4, the GCGC recommends that, when Board of Management employment contracts are concluded, care should
be taken to ensure that, 1n the event of premature termination of a Board member's activities without senous cause, payments made to
the Board member, including supplementary benefits, do not exceed the value of two years' compensation (severance cap) and com-
pensate no more than the remairng term of the employment contract The employment contracts of members of the Board of Man-
agement of BayWa AG de not contain such a provision, as the amount of any possible severance payment s part of an agreement to be
signed upan termination of Board member activities and therefore depends on reaching an agreement with the respective member of
the Board of Management Even df such a contractual provision were to be included, a member of the Board of Management could
nonetheless insist upon having the full scope of claims anising from the employment contract paid out and otherwise refuse to give his
consent to the termination of his Board member contract. Moreover, BayWa AG s convinced that having such a clause 1s unnecessary
as, even without 1t, the Supervisory Board will take sufficient account of the interests of the company in negotiations with the member
leaving the Board of Management and not grant an excessive severance payment

4 Individual disclosure of executive remuneration — Code ltem 4 2 5 para 3 GCGC
In Code ltem 4 2 5 para. 3 GCGC, it 1s recommended that Board of Management member remuneration be disclosed in the remunera-
tion report in table form and for each member ndmwdually for financral years from 31 December 2013 At BayWa AG, Board of Man-
agement member remuneration is disclosed in accordance with relevant legal regulations The Annuial General Meeting of Sharehold-
ers 2015 passed a new resolution pursuant to Sections 286 para. 5 and 314 para. 2 of the old version of the German Commercial Code
{HGRB), according to which Board of Management member remuneration 1s not disclosed for each member indivdually As long as this
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders resolution 1s vahd, no indmdual disclosure of Beard of Management member remuneration
will take place pursuant to the recommendations in Code Item 4 2 5 para. 3 GCGC
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No set age hmit for the Board of Management — Code Item 5 1 2 para 2 sentence 3 GCGC

In the current version of the bylaws applicable to the Board of Management of BayWa AG, and contrary to the recommendations in
Code ltem 5 1 2 para. 2 sentence 3 GCGC, there 1s no restriction on age for membership in the Board of Management BayWa AG re-
views the ability to perform and the competence of the members of its executive body an an ongoing basis Age, however, I1s not indica-
tive of the ability of a current or potential member of saxd body to perform their duties For this reason, BayWa AG does not consider
fixed age imits, which also restrict flextbility in respect of personnel decisions and the number of potential candidates, expedient

Tasks of the Audit Committee - Code item 5 3 2 sentence 1 GCGC

Pursuant to Code Itern 5 3 2 sentence 1 GCGC, the Audit Commuttee should also concentrate on compliance if no other committee 1s
responsible for it. At the current time, compliance 1ssues are not allocated to any particular committee by derogation of Code ltem 53 2
sentence 1 GCGC In fact, the Supervisory Board 1s directly responsible for this area. Due to the high value it places on complance,
BayWa AG 1s of the opinion that all Supervisory Board members should be included in the response to compliance 1ssues In order to
ensure that tasks in this area are fulfilled comprehensively and professionally, this area remains the responsibility of the Supervisory
Board

No set age or specified hmit for maximum length of service on the Supervisory Board = Code ltem 54 1 para 2
GCGC

In the current version of the bylaws applicable to the Supervisory Board of BayWa AG, and contrary to the recommendations in Code
Item 54 1 para. 2 sentence 1 GCGC, there 15 no restriction on age for membership in or specified imit for maximum length of service
on the Supervisory Board BayWa AG reviews the ability to perform and the competence of the members of its supervisory body on an
ongoing basis Age, however, 1s notindicative of the ability of a current or potential member of saud body to perform thewr duties Fur-
thermore, the experhse of experenced and proven Supervisory Board members ought to be avatlable to BayWa AG For this reason,
BayWa AG does not consider a fixed age imit and a specified imit for maximum service on the Supervisory Board, which also restrnict
flexibility in respect of personnel decisions and the number of potential candidates, expedient.

Specification of concrete objectives for the composition of the Supervisory Board — Code Item 54 1 para 2 and
para 3 GCGC

In Code Item 5 4 1 para. 2 and para. 3, the GCGC recommends the specification of concrete cbjectives for the composition of the Su-
pervisory Board In the specification of concrete objectives, the international activities of the company, potential conflicts of interest, the
number of independent Supervisory Board members within the meaning of Code Item 5 4 2 GCGC and dwersity, among other things,
are to be given due regard in consideration of the situation specific to the company Proposals by the Supervisory Board to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders shall take these objectives into account. BayWa AG has not established concrete objectives and quo-
tas in this sense BayWa AG beheves that potential Supervisory Board members' qualifications are the primary critena for the assump-
tion of a Supervisory Board mandate and therefore also for the composition of the Supervisory Board In the proposals on the composi-
tion of the Supervisory Board, BayWa AG supports and takes into account the critena specaified in Code Iltem 5 4 1 para. 2 and para. 3
GCGC, though it does not regard concrete objectives or quotas as expedient.

Disclosure of personal and business retationships of Supervisory Board candidates with the company, the
company's executive and supervisory bodies and a shareholder holding a matenal interest in the company -

Code ftem 54 1 para 5to para 7 GCGC

Code ltem 5 4 1 para. 5 to para. 7 GCGC includes the recommendation that the personal and business relahonships of candidates pro-
posed by the Supervisory Board for election to the Supervisory Board with the company, the company's executive and supervisory bod-
1es and a shareholder holding a matenal interest in the company be disclosed BayWa AG does not comply with this recommendation
There is no legal certainty at the current time in regard to the nature and scope of circumstances that are to be disclosed upon the
proposition of election candidates Therefore, there is a risk that the lack of clanty in this Code Item could be used within the scope of
resolution challenges The Supervisory Board will continue to observe how this i1ssue develops and will review the application of this
Code ltem in future Supervisory Board elections

Information on the structure of performance-related remuneration for Supervisory Board members —

Code Item 5 4 6 para. 2 sentence 2 GCGC

Code ltem 5 4 6 para. 2 sentence 2 GCGC stipulates that performance-related remuneration 1ssued to Supervisory Board members is
to be onented toward the long-term success of the company and be evaluated over a penod of several years Alongside fixed annuat
pay, members of the BayWa AG Supervisory Board can also be pard vanable performance-related remuneration As this 1s defined on
the basis of the cash dividends for the respective financial year approved by the Annual General Meeting of Sharehalders, thisis a dis-
crepancy between this system and the requirement to onent performance-related remuneration toward long-term success BayWa AG
continues to believe that alignment with cash dvidends in the respective financial year 1s expedient. In the view of BayWa AG, this onen-
tabon ensures the harmony of the interests of the Supervisory Board and those of the shareholders
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Information on the disclosure of the remuneration of members of the Supervisory Board — Code ltem 5 4 6 para 3
Contrary to the recommendation under Code ltem 5 4 6 para. 3 GCGC, the remuneration of Supervisory Board members (including
remunerattion or benefits paid by the company to members of the Superasory Beard for services personally rendered, in particuiar the
rendering of advisory and agency services) has not been and 15 not temised Instead, it 1s dvided up into fixed and performance-related
components and disclosed annually in the Notes or Management Report, The information included in the Notes or Management Report
shows the structure and the amount of compensation receved by the Supervisory Board BayWa AG considers this information to be
sufficient to satisfy the interestin such information of the capital market and its shareholders

Information on the attendance of the members of the Supervisory Board at committee meetings — Code item 54 7
sentence 1 GCGC

Among other things, Code ltem 5 4 7 sentence 1 GCGC stipulates that a note is to be made 1n the Report of the Supervisory Board ifa
member of the Supervisory Board has attended only half or less than half of the meetings of those committees to which he or she be-
longs BayWa AG believes that it 1s important for a member of the Supervisory Board to participate in the committees and be involved in
the decision-making process as well As arule, meetings of the committees of BayWa AG's Supervisory Board are held twice a year
Missing one time would already resutlt in a note in the Report of the Supervisory Board when complying with Code ltem 5 4 7 sen-
tence 1 GCGC Due to the number of committee meetings, such a note would give a false impression of the discipline of the Super-
visory Board member with regard to meeting attendance

Muruch, 4 November 2015
BayWa Aktiengesellschaft

The Board of Management  The Supervisory Board
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MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Management and the Supervisory Board

As a company with its principal place of business in Munich, Germany, BayWa AG 1s subject to the provisions laid down under German law The
executive and supervisory bodies consisting of the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board form the dual-tier management and control
structure in accordance with the provisions under German stock corporation law The Board of Management and the Supervisory Board work
closely together in the interest of the company Therr joint goal i1s to ensure the company's continued existence and sustained value

The Beard of Management's duties and practices

The Board of Management, which i1s currently composed of five members, 15 mdependently responsible for running the company, developing the
corporate strateqgy, agreeing the strategy with the Supervisory Board and ensuring that 1t 1s implemented Itis responsible for the company's
annual and multi-year planning as well as for the preparation of the interim reports and the annual and consolidated financial statements The
Board of Management ensures that legal provisions, official rules and regulations as well as the company's internal guidelines are observed, and rt
works towards the Group’s compliance with them In accordance with legal provistons, the Board of Management reports to the Supenasory
Board regularly, promptly and comprehensively on all relevant issues pertaiming to planning, the development of business, the earnings, financial
position and assets, the risk situation, nsk management and compliance The Supervisory Board is directly involved in all decisions of fundamental
importance for the company Furthermore, such decisions are subject to approval by the Supervisory Board The Board of Management ensures
that there I1s open and transparent communication within the company

The Board of Management manages the company's business under its own responsibility The principte of joint responsibility applies, meaning
that the members of the Board of Management jointly bear the responsibility for the managing of the company Each Board member 1s assigned
certain tasks to be specifically handled under the allocation of duties plan (Geschaftsvertelungsplan} Certan decisions, especially those requiring
the Supervisory Board's approval or for which the Board of Management is responsible under the law or the Articles of Association, are reserved
for the entire Board of Management under the bylaws Moreover, a resolution must also be obtained from the entire Board of Management in
respect of matters which have been submitted to the Board of Management by the Chairman or by a Board member

Meetings of the Board of Management take place at least once a month They are convened by the Chairman of the Board of Management The
Chairman also sets the agenda and chairs the meetings The Board of Management 1s quorate if all members have been invited and at least half of
the Board members, including the Chairman, take part in deciding a resolution The resolutions of the Board of Management are valid through a
simple majonty of votes cast In the event of a tie vote, the Chairman shall have the casting vote Upon instruction by the Charrman, resolutions can
also be passed outside of meetings by way of votes cast in writing or by telephone

The Supervisory Board's duties and practices

The Supervisory Board of BayWa AG appoints the members of the Board of Management and adwises and supervises the Board of Management
in its management of the company The Supervisory Board 1s made up of 16 members In accordance with the German Codetermination Act
(MitbestG), it 1s composed n equal parts of representatives of the shareholders and of the employees The Supervisory Board 1s composed of
what 1t considers a sufficient number of iIndependent members A member 1s considered independent if he or she does not have any commercial
or persenal relatonship to the company, the company’s executive and supervisory bodies, controlling shareholder or any affiliated companies,
which can justify a matenal or long-term conflict of nterests Last year, the following changes to the Supervisory Board took place Albrecht Merz
resigned fraom his post following the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on 18 May 2015 The Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders on 19 May 2015 appointed Monique Surges to the Supervisory Board as shareholder representative for a term of four years
Prof Stephan Gotzl resigned from his post effective 22 June 2015 In its letter dated 6 August 2015, the Distnict Court of Munich legally appointed
shareholder representative Wilhelm Oberhofer to he a member of the Supervisory Board until the next Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
in June 2016 For further nformation on changes to the Supervisory Board in the reperting pertod, please see the Report of the Supervisory
Board

A set of bylaws regulates the tasks of the Supervisory Board, in particular, the internal organisation, the activities of the committees and the
regulations governing approval by the Supervisory Board for decisions of the Board of Management. Meetings of the Supensisory Board take
place at least once every quarter and, in addition, whenever necessary for business reasons Meetings are convened by the Charrman or, if he 15
detained, by the Vice Chairman

The Supervisory Board must also be convened if one of its members or the Board of Management requests it, stating the reasons The Super-
visory Board only has a quorum if eight members - including the Chairman - or twelve members take part in the meeting and in deciding on the
resolution Resoclutions of the Supervisory Board or one of its committees passed in writing, by telegraph, telephone, electroruc media or telefax
are only permitted if the Chawrman of the Supervisory Board or, if he 1s detained, the Vice Chairman has given the requisite instruction Decisions
generally require a simple majonty In the event of a tie vote, the Charrman of the Supervisory Board has a dual voting nght in the second round
votes are cast equally again
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The Supervisory Board meets without members of the Board of Management to the extent that this 1s necessary for independent discussion and
decision-making There s a standardised procedure for regularty reviewing the efficiency of the Supervisory Board's work BayWa AG has taken
out D&O insurance for the members of the Board of Management and the Supervisary Board which covers the personal fiabtlity nisk in the event
that financial damages are asserted against board members in the exercising of their duties There 1s currently no deductible for members of the
Supervisory Board {cf reasons cited previously in the Declarahon of Conformity) In accordance with the provisions of the German Act on the
Appropriateness of Executtive Remuneration, BayWa AG has provided for a reasonable deductible on the D&QO insurance taken out for members
of the Board of Management

Committees of the Supervisory Board

BayWa AG's Supervisory Board has set up six committees of experts to enhance the effictency of its work The respective committee charrmen
report regularly to the Supervisory Board on their committee's work For full details of the composition of each indvidual committee, please also
see the Report of the Supervisory Board

The Audit Commiitee concentrates mainly on the documentation of the independent audrtor in respect of auditing the annual and consolidated
financial statements and prepares them for adoption by the Supervisory Board The committee also supervises the accounting process, the annual
audit and the effectiveness of the internal control, nsk management and audit system It checks the auditor's independence and agrees on the key
points of the audit and on the fees with the auditor The Annual General Meeting of Sharehciders on 19 May 2015 appointed Deloitte & Touche
GmbH Wirtschaftsprufungsgesellschaft, Munich, as auditor for the financiaf year 2015 The Supervisory Board ensures that the committee
members can act independently and that they are farmiliar with and expenienced in appiying special know-how associated with the application of
accounting rules and the internal controlling procedures The Audit Commuttee 1s made up of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, two share-
holder representatives and two employee representatives

The Board of Management Committee concerns itself with personnel matters affecting the Board of Management, such as the content of Board
member contracts and the approval of sideline activibes The Board of Management Commutiee performs the preparatory work for the determina-
tion of the remuneration paid to the indwidual Board of Management members The committee 1s composed of the Charman of the Supervisory
Board as well as one shareholder representative and one employee representative

The Strategy Committee is mainly concerned with the preparation of Supervisory Board meetings Moreover, the committee monitors and
supervises the company’s strategic onentation as well as the implementation of current company projects Itis composed of the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board, three shareholder representatives and three employee representatives

The Lending and Investment Committee deals with the financing measures requiring approval by the Supervisory Board and supervises the
mvestment activibes Itis composed of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, three shareholder representatives and three employee represen-
tatives

The Nomination Committee 1s tasked with preparing the proposals of the Supervisory Board for the election of shareholder representatives to the
Supervisory Beard by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders It i1s composed of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board and two shareholder
representatives

Under the German Codetermination Act (MitbestG), the Mediation Committee, anchored m the law, only meets ¥, duning the voting process on
the appomntment or dismissal of a member of the Board of Management, the required two-thirds majority of the votes by the Superviscry Board 1s
not attained in the first round of voting It1s composed of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, one further sharehclder representative and two
employee representatives

The committees' practices are set cut in the Articles of Association and in the bylaws of the Supervisory Board Furthermore, the Supervisory
Board may entrust one or more of its members with special control functions More informatian on the activities of the Supearvisory Board and its
committees in the financial year 2015 can be found in the Report of the Supervisory Board The names of the members belonging to the various
committees are also listed there

Shareholders and the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

The organisaticn and execution of BayWa AG's Annual General Meeting of Sharehoiders 1s carried out with the aim of informing all shareholders
swiftly and extensively before and dunng the event. All shareholders listed in the share register (Aktienregister) and who have duly registered in
good time are entrtled to participate BayWa AG offers its shareholders the possibility of having their vote exercised in accordance with therr
personal instructions by a voting proxy appointed by the company The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders decides, among other things, on
the appropnation of profit, the discharge of the Board of Management and Supervisory Board as well as the nomination of the auditor Decisions
on changes to the Articles of Association and on measures that may change the share capital are exclusively reserved for the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders, to the exception of the use of authorised caprtal by the administration The share capital of BayWa AG is divided into
shares with restricted transferability (approximately 96%;) and registered shares (approximately 4%) Transferning registered shares with restrict-
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ed transferability 1s formally subject to the Board of Management's consent. However, in the past, approval has never been withheld Each share of
BayWa AG carnes equal voting nghts and confers the same dvidend entitlement. The company therefore apphes the “one share, one vote, one
drvidend” principle

Securtties transactions by the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board (Directors’ Dealings)

According to Section 15a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), the members of the Board of Management and the Supenvisory Board,
and persons close to them, are required by law to disclose the acquisiion and sale of shares in BayWa AG or financial instruments refated thereto
if the value of such transactions equals or exceeds an amount of €5,000 1n a given calendar year This also applies to certain empioyees with
managenal functions (executive managers, for instance)

Transactions disclosed in the financial year 2015 are published on the company website at www baywa.com

Shareholdings by the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board

As at 31 December 2015, the number of shares held in BayWa AG by members of the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board came
to less than 1% of the shares issued by the company There were therefore no holdings requinng reporting under Code Item 62 GCGC as at
31 December 2015

Avoidance of conflicts of interest

Under the bylaws of the Board of Management, its members are obliged to disclose any conflicts of interest to the Supervisory Board without
delay and to inform the other members of the Board of Management thereof Under the bylaws of the Supeniisory Beard, its members must
disclose any confiicts of interest - particularly those that could occur due to consultancy or board functions at customers, suppliers, lenders or
other business partners - to the Supervisory Board without detay Significant conflicts of interest in the person of a Supervisory Board member
that are not of a temporary nature should lead to the termination of the mandate In the financial year 201 5 just ended, there were no conflicts of
interest in respect of the members of the Board of Management or the Supervisory Board in the exercising of their duties on behalf of BayWa AG

Remuneration of the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board
As regards the remuneration of the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board in the financial year 2015, we refer to the Remuneration
Report that 1s part of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Equal participation of women and men in leadership positions

Like approximately one hundred other companies in Germany, BayWa AG s a publicly hsted stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) subject to
codetermination on a basis of party For these companies, the German Equal Participation of Women and Men in Leadership Positions in the
Private and Public Sector Act stipuiates a fixed gender quota of 30% women on supervisory boards, which BayWa AG will satisty

On 5 August 2015, the Supervisory Board complied with the additional legal requirement of setting a target for a gender quota and achieving sad
target no later than 30 June 2017 The Supervisory Board defined a target for women on the Board of Management of 0% by June 2017

On 23 September 2015, the Board of Management of BayWa AG also set as targets a quota of 18% for women in the top executive tier and a
quota of 12% for women in the second executive tier, which are scheduled to be met by 30 June 2017

Additional information on management practices

The Code of Conduct of BayWa AG forms the value system for BayWa AG it 1s mandatory and applies across the Group to all employees The
Code of Conduct has been made publicly available on the company's website at www baywa.com In addion, an internal control system has been
setn place to ensure comphance with the law, statutory provisions and internal gwdehnes as well as to avoid actions detrimental to business,
which includes prevention, monitonng and intervention Furthermore, the employees have the option of turning to an ancnymous whistleblower
system or applying to the external legal counsel mandated by BayWa AG to serve as an ombudsman in the event of occurrences in the ¢company
that do net comply with the law or gnevances in cooperation with business partners/companies

In order to avoid breach of regulations on the prohibrition of insider trading pursuant to Sechon 14 of the German Securnties Trading Act (WpHG),
the company has all persons who are deemed insiders under the legal provisions confirm inwriting that they were informed about ali relevant
statutory provisions governing trading in the shares of the company All persons who, owing to their actvities and authonsations, may have access
to potential insider information are listed in a Group-wide Insider Register The head of the Legal department monitors the regular keeping of the
Insider Register
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OTHER ASPECTS OF GOOD CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Communication and transparency

BayWa AG communtcates regularly and prornptly on the development of business as well as on its earnings, financial position and assets In order
to guarantee an ongoing exchange of information with the capital market, the company holds regular events as part of its investor relations
activities featuring the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for analysts and institutional investors in the form of roadshows and
indvidual meetings Press releases are published and press conferences and conference calls with analysts are held every quarter on business
performance The annual results are released at an Annual Results Press Conference and at an analysts’ meeting All new information disclosed to
financial analysts and similar parties in the context of the aforementioned investor relations activities 1s also made available to the shareholders
without delay All relevant presentations and press releases are promptly published in the Investor Relations section on the website of BayWa AG
BayWa AG places great importance on ensuring that all shareholders are treated equally with regard to tnformation

The dates of the main recurring publications (inter aha the consolidated financial staterments) and the date of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders are published in the financial calendar in good time Current developments are reported in press releases and, if necessary, in

ad hoc releases All information is also made accessible on the company’s website under www baywa.com

Responsible action and nsk management

The aim of risk management at BayWa AG 1s to identify the nsks of entrepreneunal achion at an early stage and evaluate them Risk management
is therefore an integral part of the company’s planning and management and control processes The internal control, risk management and audit
system 1s developed by the Board of Management on an ongoing basis and adjusted to changes in the environment. Parts of the internal control
and nsk management system for the accounting processes are examined by the external auditor More information on the structure and the
processes of risk management in the context of accounting processes 1s included in the Group management report.
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Financial Calender

Dates in 2016

31 March 2016 4 August 2016
| |

Press Conference
Second-Quarter Results

Annual Results Press Conference
BayWa AG, St -Martin-Str 76, Munich = 1030 am

1 April 2016
|

Analysts' Conference
DZ Bank, Frankfurtam Main = 1100 am

1030 am

12 May 2016
|

First-Quarter Results

Press release

4 August 2016
|

Analysts’ Conference Call
on the Second Quarter
200pm

12 May 2016
|

Analysts' Conference Cali
on the First Quarter
200 pm

10 November 2016
|

Press Conference
Third-Quarter Results
1030 am

7 June 2016
|

Annual General Meeting
ICM, Munich = 1000 am

10 November 2016
|

Analysts' Conference Call
on the Third Quarter
200pm
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